# VIRTUS





All content ©2010 The Hutchins School All rights reserved. CRICOS Registration No. 00478F ABN 91 133 279 291 The Christ College Trust trading as The Hutchins School Email: hutchins@hutchins.tas.edu.au Website: www.hutchins.tas.edu.au

Printed on recycled paper

## CONTENTS

Chairman of the Board	2
Headmaster's Report	4
School Directory	6
Staff Movements, Farewells and Retirements	7
Chaplain	10
Captain of School	11
Student Representative Council	12
Student Leadership	13
Hutchins Foundation	14
Parents' Association	15
Hutchins Old Boys' Association	16
International Relationships	17
From the Archives	18
John Bednall Centre for Learning Support	19
Webber Lecture	20
Academic Report	20
Design and Technology	21
English as a Second Language	21
Faculty of Science	22
Faculty of Mathematics	22
Marine School	23
The Graduation Statement	24
Libraries and Learning	25
Information Technology	26
Outdoor Education	28
Early Learning Centre and Junior School	29
Junior School Art	31
Junior School Music	32
Junior School Sport	33
Kinder Burman	34
Kinder Turner	35
Prep Fielding	37
Prep Gilkes	38
Year 1 Mirowski	40
Year 1 Smith	40
Year 2 Bamford	43
Year 2 Salter	44
Year 3 Marriott	46
Year 3 Robinson	47
Year 3 Vivarelli	49
Year 4 Berry	51
Year 4 McCreary	51
Year 5 Knight	53
Year 5 Webster	55
Year 6 Bullen	57
Year 6 Eaves	58
Year 6 Prebble	60

Middle School	62
Middle School Writing and Poetry	64
Year 7	66
Successes and Triumphs	67
Year 8	70
Year 8 Awards	71
Time and Space Program	72
Head of Senior School	75
Burbury House	76
Debating, Speaking and Writing	78
Visual & Performing Arts	80
Music	85
Buckland House	88
School House	92
Stephens House	96
Thorold House	100
Sport	104
Athletics	104
Australian Rules Football	105
Badminton	106
Basketball	106
Cricket	106
Cross Country	107
Cycling	108
Hockey	108
Orienteering	109
Rowing	109
Rugby	110
Sailing	112
Soccer	112
Sport Shooting	114
Surfing	115
Swimming	115
Tennis	116
Water Polo	117
Prizes	118
School Roll	122
Valete 2010	127

## CHAIRMAN of the Board



The 2010 year has been marked by the School's continuing success in the academic, sporting, arts and community spheres and all those who participated and contributed to these successes are to be congratulated.

From the Board's perspective the 2010 year has presented a full agenda. While continuing to monitor the successful implementation of the School's Strategic Plan, the Board participated in a full day's facilitated workshop where the focus was on the future and it considered where the School should adapt to take account of matters such as changing technology, changes in demography, globalisation, economic and future vocational trends, attracting and retaining talent, government relations and the affordability of independent education. The results from this workshop have been distilled and will be used as a basis to modify the School's Strategic Plan to ensure that the curriculum and operations of the School continue to adapt in the face of a changing future.

Around the School the Board has also overseen some significant developments. On 1 November the School officially opened the magnificent new facility, the **HG Baldwin Wing, Library Learning Centre** and **Nettlefold Library**. At that opening I congratulated all those involved in bringing the project from concept to reality, over a very short space of time and against challenging conditions imposed by the Federal Government's Building the Education Revolution funding program. As well as recognising the contribution from the Federal Government I also thanked the many contractors and individuals who worked in close collaboration with the School to ensure the Centre's successful completion and particularly thanked Fairbrother Constructions and their contractors for their high quality and safe work which enabled the project to be completed on time and on budget.

#### The Board is particularly grateful to the late Mr Baldwin and his family for the support provided to the School

Importantly, The Hutchins Foundation was a significant supporter of the development of the Henry Baldwin Wing. In addition to a direct financial contribution the Foundation Board judged that the Learning Centre met criteria pertaining to a bequest from the late Henry Baldwin and accordingly the Foundation directed funds from that bequest towards the project. The Board is particularly grateful to the late Mr Baldwin and his family for the support provided to the School. As always the support of The Hutchins Foundation in providing ongoing financial assistance which contributes to the continued development of much needed facilities within the School is greatly appreciated and the Board looks forward to continuing its close and fruitful working relationship with the Foundation.

At the same time as the Library Learning Centre was approaching completion the Board was already considering the next significant development for the School. During October the Board approved the \$4.2 million business case to redevelop Burbury House, The Hutchins School boarding facility. For some time the Board has recognised that the boarding house was in need of significant development and after considering several options it was decided that a full refurbishment of the existing Burbury House building represented the most viable alternative. The redevelopment meets the future needs of our boarding community and, while challenging from the financial and logistical perspectives, the Board's view was unanimous that the project should proceed.

The project has already commenced and is targeted for completion during Term 2 2011. While it will result in some disruption to our boarders during this time the Board and School management have been buoyed by the support provided to the project by the boarders' parent community.

At a personal level I feel very humbled to have assumed the Board Chairman's role and I acknowledge the support of my fellow Board members in electing me to the position. In particular I must acknowledge our Immediate Past Chairman, Mr Scott Harvey. With the completion of his tenure as Chairman, Scott announced his resignation from the Board effective 31 December 2010. Scott joined the Board in October 2003 and during his seven years as a Board member he has provided significant insight and leadership into the affairs of the School. Significantly, during his time as Chairman of the Board, he oversaw the development and implementation of the School's Strategic Plan and the Library Learning Centre project. On behalf of The Hutchins School community, I thank Scott for his significant service and contribution and, from a personal perspective, I thank Scott for his support as I have transitioned into the role of Chairman.

During the year the Board welcomed a new member to its ranks. Dr Marcus Haward was appointed as a Visitor's representative on 1 August 2010. Marcus is Associate Professor and Senior Lecturer of Government and Antarctic Climate and Ecosystems at the University of Tasmania. He brings a wealth of experience in education and curriculum development to the Board and we look forward to his contribution during his tenure.

With the resignation of Scott Harvey I am also able to announce that the Hutchins Old Boys' Association nominated Mr Charles Cottier to fill the vacancy created.

I am pleased to announce the Board ratified Charles' appointment effective from 1 January 2011. Charles has a very successful track record as a selfemployed businessman and the Board looks forward to benefiting from his broad experience.



I would also like to acknowledge my other colleagues on the Board, Megan Ayliffe, Charles Brothers, John Groom, Chris Holloway, David Morris and Pam Windsor. They have all made significant contributions which extend well beyond their regular Board roles, providing valuable assistance and advice to the School's management in their respective areas of expertise.

Your Board has always maintained the highest standards of Corporate Governance and reflective of this, at the instigation of the previous Chairman, the Board conducted a governance review to ensure its operations and structure reflected contemporary practice and met the strategic and operational agenda of the School. The result of this review was the refinement of the Board committee structure where the Strategic Planning Committee was disbanded and as such, the future Board agenda will have a greater focus on monitoring and modifying the School's Strategic Plan. The remit of the Finance and Audit Committee has been extended to include oversight of risk management and a new Board committee, the Policy and Planning Committee, has been created with risk management over the School's curriculum, information technology and succession planning for the School's Board and management.

## the Board will be known as the Board of The Hutchins School

The governance review has also resulted in the Board adopting a new title. To ensure the appropriate distinction between the respective roles of oversight by the Board and management of the School by its staff, the title The Hutchins School Board of Management has been dropped and the Board will be known as the Board of The Hutchins School. It is expected that revised rules reflecting the announced changes will be enacted early in the new year.

The success of the School is reflective of the efforts of all those people directly employed by the School together with a broad band of volunteers. To our staff | extend the thanks of the Board for your continued contribution and guidance provided to the students in 2010, particularly in volunteering your valuable time outside school hours over and above your normal roles. To our Headmaster, Mr Dean, our Deputy Headmaster, Mr Irons and Business Manager, Ms Self, I acknowledge your continued strong and dedicated leadership in attending to the affairs of the School and thank you for the support offered to me as Chairman and the support also provided to the Board in 2010.

#### I have witnessed the Prefect body providing great leadership and guidance to the students of the School

To all those supporters of the School who volunteer their valuable time in many spheres be it assisting with sport, the School fair, fundraising, the Arts, in the classroom or via our important partners, The Hutchins Foundation, The Hutchins Old Boys' Association and the Parents' Association, on behalf of the Board I thank you. Without your selfless efforts and provision of time many of the activities you support would not be the successes they are and often without your support they would likely not occur. As Chairman I have had the privilege of attending many official and ceremonial functions of the School. It is at these functions that I have witnessed the Prefect body providing great leadership and guidance to the students of the School while ensuring that the functions operate smoothly and successfully. On behalf of the Board I congratulate all Prefects for their efforts in 2010. I also wish to acknowledge the School's Captain Lawrence (Larry) Owen. Often called upon to take a lead role and speak as representative of the student body, Larry has carried the role with great responsibility and aplomb, while at all times displaying great humility. My personal congratulations go to Larry for his successful year and I extend my gratitude in making me feel welcome at all the functions we attended together.

To the young men of Year 12 I thank you for the contribution each of you has made to the life of the School. As this chapter finishes, a new one commences, one which due to your experiences at The Hutchins School, will offer many exciting prospects and opportunities.

I encourage you to grasp all the opportunities that come your way and, importantly, as the next generation of The Hutchins School alumni to remain strong ambassadors of the School. On behalf of the Board, I congratulate you on your graduation and wish you well in your future endeavours.

Lance Balcombe Chairman of the Board

## HEADMASTER'S Report



Mr Warwick Dean

Our 164<sup>th</sup> year has been remarkably busy, productive and successful through all areas of the school. Congratulations to the **Year 12 graduating class 2009** for their achievement of excellent academic results.

#### The Hutchins School continues a distinguished tradition of strong academic performance

We note with pride that greater than one in three students achieved from a possible 99.95, scores of 90 or better. This is a result any school would covet and in taking this opportunity to congratulate **Matthew Kang** on his achievement as **Dux of State** I wish to note also that the great body of last year's students were represented in first round offers to tertiary institutions of their preferred choice and that our top students were recipients of international, national and state offers and scholarships.

Indeed, The Hutchins School continues a distinguished tradition of strong academic performance and, while we celebrate achievements of outstanding students, it is the continued overall academic strength and consequent access to further studies of the majority of students that is our focus.

The Year 12 graduating class 2010 also achieved a real depth of academic

success as 27% of those presenting for their TCE achieved an ATAR score of 95 or more and 32% achieved a score of 90 or more. Congratulations go to **Tomos Lelong, Christopher Ryba** and **Lachlan Poslek** on their achievement of perfect scores of 99.95. It is a moment of pride in these young men and for Hutchins when the three available top places in the State are awarded to Hutchins students.

Guiding the future of the School is the work of the **Board of The Hutchins School** and again it has been a tireless and most supportive group and I thank them for their support for the work that we do. As this year marks the retirement of **Mr Scott Harvey** from the Board and as Board Chairman, I too thank him for his loyal assistance, energetic support and expert guidance over the past ten years. **Mr Lance Balcombe** has assumed the challenging role of Chairman and I look forward with him to our further successes.

On behalf of the School thank you to the **Parents' Association** for their significant fundraising and contributions to fun events. Please give them your support in 2011.

In 2010 the Commonwealth injected funding into education infrastructure projects and the evidence of our uptake is presented in the **Junior School entrance foyer** and another much needed **classroom** which meets the increasing demands of enrolments in the Junior School this year and beyond.

With the support of the Henry Baldwin bequest and under the same Commonwealth scheme, it is a pleasure to note the building and naming of the **HG** Baldwin Library Learning Centre. The construction of the Hutchins Foundation Archive & Heritage Collection building is another example of the importance of the work of the Hutchins Foundation. A stateof-the-art facility for our Foundation and Old Boys now provides a focus in the School for our alumni.

In 2011 we will be completing an internal rebuild of our boarding facility, **Burbury House**, and I look forward to continuing our enrolment of students from urban and rural Tasmania, the mainland, Western Europe and Asia and the Pacific. Our school culture is undoubtedly enriched by such exchanges and enrolments.

#### In terms of technological

**infrastructure** the global education village being the norm in our school studies has been achieved and I thank Dr Abell and her team for bringing the global classroom to Hutchins. Our quality of teaching and learning has been improved because of it.

Hutchins is committed to serving the community and does so each year in a myriad of ways, many unannounced and without looking for acknowledgement or praise. However, I do wish to single out that in 2010, and for the fourth consecutive year, Hutchins was the winner of the **Red Cross Winter Blood Challenge**. Well done to all donors and Mr Fishburn for their most unselfish contributions; you have saved lives.

I am delighted to report that much has been achieved by six extraordinary **Strategic Change Teams** as they have continued to roll out our **Strategic Plan** in its second of five years. In the areas of staffing, curriculum development, finance and infrastructure, enhancing our community connectedness and in developing technologies, I thank all staff who voluntarily contributed to ongoing successes.

#### prepare young men for their journey from the Middle Years to the Senior Years

One initiative arising from the implementation of the Strategic Plan is a unique course developed for Year 9. This unique year will prepare young men for their journey from the Middle Years to the Senior Years and is an exciting initiative in best practice teaching and learning for students at Hutchins. The Power of 9 will challenge students intellectually, physically, emotionally, socially and spiritually as they experience teaching and learning in classrooms, in the environment, in the community and in other quite different communities and cultures. The acquisition of the Marieville Esplanade Campus has been a timely addition to support and enhance these possibilities and specific thanks go to Mr Ken Kingston, Heads of Faculty and Mr Symons for a wonderful effort in preparing this for 2011.

Thank you too to Deputy Headmaster, Mr Barrie Irons, Head of Senior School, Mr Duncan Warlters, Head of Middle School, Mr Ian McQueen, Head of Junior School and ELC, Mrs Jenny Manthey, Business Manager Ms Jenny Self, and my PA, Mrs Carol Marshall. Thank you to Mr Devine and the Development Office staff for their wonderful support and most professional efforts, especially in the areas so often not noted such as running the business of Hutchins.

In 2010 there have been many opportunities for involvement by students in sports, camps, community services, outdoor adventures, music, performing and visual arts and, importantly, opportunities for our students to happily seek out and make new friendships, to experiment with and enjoy new experiences in learning environments and, in a supportive and happy community, to enjoy just developing into a young man.

The Hutchins School **Co-curricular Program** too has been very successful and we celebrate successes in state Music and Dance Eisteddfods and the Drama productions of *Legend* and **Spunky Squad**.

In 2010 Hutchins were finalists in First Basketball, Second XI Cricket, First XI Hockey, First XI Soccer and in Water Polo and were Premiers in Athletics, First XVIII and Second XVIII Australian Rules Football, Badminton, First XI Cricket, Junior, Senior and Aggregate Boys' Cross Country, Champions in Years 9, 10 and 11–12 Debating, Second XI Hockey, Under 14 Champions and Under 18, State Premiers in First XV Rugby, State Champions in Sailing (with success for Alec Bailey becoming Yachting Tasmania Sailor of the Year and Third in the world in his class), Second XI Soccer, State Invitational Premiers in Sport Shooting, College Champions and Boys' Aggregate Champions in Swimming and, in Rowing, Hutchins won all but one of the Head of River races and were Australian Champions in Under 19 VIII, Under 19 Coxless IV, Under 17 Single Scull and Under 17 Double and were noted as the most successful school at the National Championships. In any year in any school this is a list of extraordinary achievements. Congratulations and thanks go to all

student participants, to our **Director** of Sport and Co-curricular, Mr Wayne Brown, and all coaches, managers and assistants.

A most vital ingredient present in all great schools and in the achievements just noted is a fantastic staff. 2010 has been a year of sad loss in our community and I reflect on the deep sorrow on the deaths of Mrs Ros Ranalli and Mr Roger Drummond, each who gave such cheerful, kind, absolute and outstanding service to our Hutchins community. It is a mark of our community strength and commitment to one another that staff, together with parents, students and friends rallied to support each another in times of difficulty.

To our Hutchins staff thank you for a year of commitment, achievement, support, teaching, learning, nurturing and importantly, fun. I know I speak on behalf of all students, and particularly students of Year 12, when I pass on our gratitude and sincere thanks for a job well done.

A number of staff changes have occurred and I wish to note that retiring this year will be long-serving members of staff: Head of Art, **Mrs Marja Bratt**; Senior Mathematics teacher, **Mr Brian Burch**; Teacher of French, **Mrs Rae Burch**; Senior Science teacher, **Mr Mike**  Fishburn; Librarian, Mrs Margaret Hedlam, and ELC Teacher Mrs Lesley Salter. The Director of Marketing and International Enrolments, Mrs Annie Weatherburn will take a new direction managing her own business and Director of Alumni and Community Associations, Mr Tony Smithies will do likewise. I thank them for what amounts to over 100 years of exceptional service to The Hutchins School.

#### you have rewarded us and yourselves with an exceptional year of achievement

To the Year 12 of 2010, I note that Hutchins has worked to provide a supportive and stimulating community to develop your character and you have rewarded us and yourselves with an exceptional year of achievement. What you have done here **has** mattered. Many of you have left behind much of which you and we can be proud, especially the lessons and standards that remain now as evidence of manly behaviour for those who follow to mimic in 2011 and beyond.

Our School Captain, Lawrence (Larry) Owen, has been the epitome of what I have just said and I congratulate and thank him for an outstanding year of leadership. Like him, many of you have been the expression of what it is to be a good man and for that we are proud of that which your year has achieved.

Warwick Dean Headmaster



**The opening of the new Library Learning Centre in the HG Baldwin Wing** Left to right: Mr Barrie Irons (Deputy Headmaster), Dr Jill Abell (Director of Information Services), Mr Lance Balcombe (Chairman of the Board of The Hutchins School), Ms Jenny Self (Business Manager), Senator Carol Brown (representing the Federal Government), the Reverend Richard Humphrey (Dean of Hobart) and Mr Warwick Dean (Headmaster).

## SCHOOL Directory

School Visitor The Rt Rev J Harrower OAM Bishop of Tasmania

The Hutchins School Board

Chairman Mr L Balcombe

Chairman, Planning and Development Committee Mr C Brothers Chairman, Finance & Audit Committee

Mr L Balcombe Chairman, Strategic Planning Committee

Mr S Harvey

#### Members

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATION

Mrs M Ayliffe Mr J Groom Mr S Harvey Dr M Haward Mr C Holloway Mr D Morris Mrs P Windsor

The Hutchins Foundation Board of Directors

President Mrs J Inglis

Vice-President Mr J St Hill

Treasurer Ms J Self GAICD, JP

#### Directors

Mr S Bamford Mr I Camm Mr W Dean Mr N Dwyer Mr P Forbes-Smith Mr M Hagan Mr M Harris Mrs V Maddock Mr A Nesbitt

The Hutchins School Old Boys' Association

President

Mr N Dwyer Vice-President

Mr R Jackson

Secretary Mr A Smithies

Treasurer Mr M de Gouveia Committee Mr R Dick Mr G Friend Mr J Munnings

Mr G Phair

Mr T Vincent

The Hutchins School Parents' Association President Mrs C Burnett-Cosgrove

Vice-Presidents Mr M Hagan

Mr A Mitchell Secretary

Mrs R Oddie (Terms 1 and 2) Ms M Killion-Richardson (Term 3) Treasurer

Mr H Moll

#### Headmaster

Mr W P Dean MA, BA, DipEd, MACE, MACEL, MAICD

Deputy Headmaster Mr P G B Irons BCom, UED

Business Manager Ms J Self GAICD, JP

#### Foundation, Alumni and

Community Development

Mr A Smithies BEc, DipEd (Director) Ms M Mason-Cox, DipTeach, BEd, GradDipLifInfoStud, GradCertMusStud, TTC (Archivist) Mr J Ancher, BArch, BFA (Art Curator)

Events, Marketing and

International Enrolments Mrs A Weatherburn BBus, GCert Mktg, AMAMI (Director)

Academic Staff Dr J Abell BA, GradDipLib, TTC, MEdStuds, EdD, AALIA, MACE, MACEL Mr I Addison BSc, DipEd, TTC Mrs M-J Anders BSc, DipEd Mr A Apted BA, BTeach Mr A Bainbridge BMus, Music Performance (Hons), GradDipEd Mrs B Bamford BEd Mr C Berndt BEd, DipTeach, AdvCertEd, (ATTI), TPTC, MACE Mr J Berry BEd Mr T Blackhall BHumMovt, MEd Mrs M Bratt TTC

Dr J Britton BA (Hons), DipEd, PhD Mr P Brown BEnvDes, BArch, BTeach \* Mr W Brown BEd, MEdAdmin, MACEL Mrs S Bullen BEd, TTC Mr B Burch BSc, DipEd Mrs R Burch BA, DipEd, DipTeach Mrs L Burman BEd, DipTeach Mr S Cashion BArch, BEd Mr M Chambers BApplSci, DipTeach, MEd, MBA, MACS Mrs J Coad Mrs N Colev BHumMovt Mr M Conacher BHumMovt (Hons) Mr P Crofts BSc, DipEd, MSc (SciEd) Mr D Docking BSc, BEd, MEdStuds, TTC, GradDipCounselling Mr N Eaves BA, BTeach, MEd, MACE Mrs A Farmer BA, DipEd Mrs S Fielding AssDipAppSocSci (Child Care), BTeach, MEd, GradDipEd Mr A Finch BHumMvt Mr M Fishburn BSc Mr G Geale BEd, TTC Mr D Gilkes BEd Rev M Gray, BEc LLB, DipEd, ΒD Mr D Green BA, DipEd Mr A Greve DipEng, GradDipEd \* Mr M Groves BA, BTeach \* Ms P Hale BA, DipEd Mr J Hanek BFA, GradBEd Mrs S Hasenkam BSci, DipEd Mrs M Headlam BEd, AssDipApplSci, DipTeach, TTC\* Mrs J Heazlewood BA (Hons), BTeach Rev M Holland BA, MDiv Mr C Hudson BSc. BTeach. PGCert Math&MathEd (Melb) Mr A Hyland BEd, TTC, MEnvMgt Ms J Johnston BEd. CertGifted Ed,PostGradEdStuds, Grad CertFam Therapy, DipFamTherapy Mr K Kingston BA, GradDipPsychEd Mrs P Knight BA(Hons), CertEd, TTC, MACE Mr I Leonard BA (Hons), MSc(Eng), PGCE Mr P Lucas BA, DipEd, MEd Mr C Luke CertIVMus (Ensemble), CertIVMus (Perf), BA(Mus), DipMus, LicDipComp(Hons), Post GradDipEd

Mrs S Malarski BEd, GradDipCareersEd&Dev Mrs J Manthey BEd, DipTeach(Pri) Mr E Marr BA, BTeach Mrs N Marr BA, BTeach Mr S Marriott BEd Mr S McAloon BAppSci(PE) Mr R McCammon BSc. MEdStuds Mrs C McCreary BEd, TTC Mr J McLeod BA, DipEd Mr R McNamara BEd Mr I McQueen BA, BEd Studs Mr A Mirowski BEd, TTC Mrs J Moore BMus, TTC Mr K Moore BEd, DipTeach Mr S Moore BA (Hons), DipEd Mr S Nogajski BComm, BTeach Mr W Overton BA, MLitt, DipEd, ThL, FFin Mr A Palfreyman BA(Hons), BEd, COGE Mr T Polegaj BCom, BEd \* Mr G Prebble BEd Mr A Prior BPHE, GradDipEd Mr C Rae BA(Hons), BEd, TTC \* Mrs K Reid BA, DipEd, MAppSci (TL) Mr P Robinson BSc(Hons), PostGradCertEd, MEd Mrs R Robinson BFA, DipEd \* Mrs L Salter T Cert UK Mr M Sayers BA, DipEd Ms J Schafferius BEd(SecBus), GradDipTheolEd Mr J Seddon BSc(Hons), BTeach Mr R Servant BLaw, HDE TechCert Fitt&Turner Mrs R Short BEd, AMusA, TTC, CertEd Mr B Smith BSc, BEd Mrs J Smith DipEd(Prim) Mrs A Smithies BA(Hons), TTC Mr P Starkey BSc. DipEd Mr L Steven BFA. BEd Ms T Stoddart BEd Mr P Symons BEc(Hons), DipEd, TTC Mrs S Terhorst BPrimEd, DipSpecEd, GradDipCounselling Mrs R Terry BEd(Hons) Mr M Thorne BA, BTeach(Hons) Mr R Towns BApplSci, DipEd Mr T Turbett BSci,TechEd Mrs K Turner AssocDipSocSc (Child Care), BEd Mr P Van Tienen BSc. BTeach Ms K Vivarelli BA, BTeach Mr D Warlters AssDipApplSci, BSc, GradDipEd

6

- Mrs J Waters BA, DipEd, GradDipLib, TTC Mr A Webber BA(Hons), MEdStuds, GradDipRE, MACE Mr M Webster BA, BEd Mrs M Weeding BEd Mr J Williamson Higher Dip
- Teach Secondary Arts & Crafts, Grad DipCounselling, CELTA Dr P Wilson GradDipEd, BSc(Hons), PhD

#### The After School Care Centre

Mr B Searle BA(Hons) Ms L Ogilvie BA, CertBusComputing

#### Information Technology

Mr I MacRae BComp(Hons), MACS, MCP Mr M Ralph, BComp

Mr A Robinson CertlV InfoTech (General) (Terms 1 & 2) Mr P Moore CertIV InfoTechSupport (Term 3)

The Boarding House Mr J Hanek BFA, GradBEd Mrs A Bester BA, LLB

#### Ancillary Staff

Mrs J Arnott Miss P Carter BAgSci(Hons), DipLabTech Mrs S Daglas Mrs K Donohoe Mr B Duggan Mrs S Hall Cert IV Lib & Info Studies Mrs K Holloway BA, GradDipInfo&LibStudies Mr N Randall BA, BFA Mrs K Reid BA, DipEd, MApplSci(TL) Mrs C Russell BA

Mrs J Scaife BA CertIVEd(Teacher Aide) Mrs A Thomson BA, MA Mr B Trost BFA Miss L Weeks Dip(L&IS) Mrs S Westcott

#### Administration

**Outdoor Education** 

Children's Services

Worker

ESL

Outdoor Aide

Administration

Special Education

Outdoor Education

Outdoor Education

Assistant

Laboratory

Technician

Geography

Art

Middle School

Outdoor Aide

Outdoor and

Adventure Guide

Mrs D Beadle Mrs S Els Mrs E Griffiths Ms L Harper Mrs C Jones Mrs A Kirkland Mrs R Lucas Ms L MacFarlane Mrs C Marshall Mrs R Morrison Mrs R Mulcahy Mrs V Priest Mrs R Ranalli Mrs R Seddon Mrs A Terhell BA(OfficeMqt), GradCertBusAdmin

Mr D White BBus, MSIA, GradDipOH&S

#### Cleaning Staff

Ms N Amorosa Mrs K Bailey Mrs S Barr Mrs D Beadle (Terms 1 & 2) Ms S Featherstone Ms L Garth Mrs F James Ms W Leslie Ms E Reay (Term 3) Mrs L Richardson Mr D Steward

#### Maintenance Staff

Mr K Barnes Mr D Bishop Mr S Brown Mr G Burgess Mr J Carr Mr A Delpero \* on leave

STAFF Movements, Farewells and Retirements

The following new staff were appointed during 2010 to replace those who left at the end of last year or during the current year: Junior School

John Bednall Centre

for Learning Support

Sue Bullen Jordan Bush Phoebe Carter Alex Delpero

Laboratory Technician Facilities Co-ordinator Janina Gauden Receptionist Lynne Harper Receptionist Revd Mark Holland Assistant Chaplain Wendy Leslie Cleaner Patrick Moore Computer Technician Lucy Ogilvie Assistant Director of Child Care Nick Randall Teacher Aide -Design & Technology Emma Reay Cleaner John Tinning **Bus Driver** Brad Trost Teacher Aide – Art Duncan Warlters Head of Senior School Shane Williams **Bus Driver** 

We welcome these new staff members into the Hutchins family and wish them all a very happy and fulfilling time at the School.

#### Contract staff

Several members of staff joined us on limited term contracts to assist in the absence of staff who were on leave: Phillip Barratt Bus Driver Caroline Cross Matron

Nick Hancock Susannah Kelly

Robert Knight Peter Lucas Cameron McDougall Outdoor Aide Eleanor McLeod Moses Matthew Sandra Paine Jonathan Quinn Rod Radford Kathleen Ramsey Leigh Steven Lauren Stranger Robert Tuck Ben Wilkinson

John (Jack) Williamson Art Jing Yang Language Tutor Jiang (George) ZhuComputer Technician

#### Burbury House

To the boarding house we welcomed Residential Tutors Matthew Hayward, Matthew Casos and Peter Wilson and GAP students Sky Sissing, Michael Portnoi and Marcello Colombini.

We thank them for their contribution to the School and wish them every success in the future.

#### Resignations

During the year a number of staff resigned to take up positions elsewhere while others left us at the end of the year. We thank them for their dedicated service to the School and wish them every success in the future.

Mr Phillip Barratt Clyde Bewglass Mrs Marja Bratt Mr Brian Burch Mrs Rae Burch Mr Jordan Bush Tina Clifford Anna Conlan Mr Mike Fishburn

Janina Gauden Mrs Margaret Headlam Jan Musgrove Mrs Samantha Nicolson Laboratory

Mrs Sandra Paine

Mr Andrew Robinson Mrs Lesley Salter

Mr Tony Smithies

Mr Paul van Tienen Mrs Annie Weatherburn Director of

**Bus Driver** Maintenance Art Mathematics French Special Education Cleaner Assistant Director OSHC Science Receptionist Teacher/Librarian Receptionist Technician John Bednall Centre for Learning Support Computer Technician Early Learning Centre Director of Alumni and Associations Science Marketing and International Enrolments

## STAFF Farewells



#### Mike Fishburn

After nearly four decades of committed service to The Hutchins School, its students and community, the distinguished teaching career of Mr Michael Fishburn has drawn to a close.

The impact he has had on the lives and learning of students and staff alike is impossible to calculate, but one thing is certain, his enigmatic presence will not go unmissed.

Mike's tenure at Hutchins as a Science and Mathematics teacher began in 1973, following three years teaching at the Cate School in California, when he was hired by Reverend Dr Dudley Clarke. Thus began 38 years of dedicated teaching at Hutchins during which he has taught Year 8-11 Mathematics, Year 8-10 Science, Year 10 Biology and Biology 3C, as well as teaching Year 11-12 Psychology.

In addition to this core classroom teaching, his commitment and passion for education and enhancing the lives of students has seen him take on many varied roles and responsibilities within the School. He was Thorold Housemaster between 1974 and 1984, Year Head (9-12) from 1976 to 1988 and Academic Co-ordinator for Year 11-12 between 1989 and 2005. He was Acting Head of Buckland in 2004 and appointed Service Co-ordinator by Mr W Toppin in 2006.

His drive to provide students with meaningful opportunities to offer service to others in the community led to him being appointed Director of Community Service Learning by the Headmaster Mr Warwick Dean in 2008 and to the significant contributions made by Hutchins students to the Red Cross Winter Blood Appeal in recent years.

He has also played an important part in the development of Basketball at the School. He was Head of Basketball and Coach of the Firsts team from 1973 to 2005 and has continued to impart his knowledge of and passion for the game as a coach of teams ranging from Year 8 to Year 12 over the course of his tenure.

Mike will be remembered by both students and staff for his passion to share his knowledge and experience, whether that be in the classroom on matters of Biology or on one of his many other passions, such as fly fishing or photography.

And while the halls and staffroom will no longer echo with that familiar Californian greeting, 'howdy', there is no doubt that those who have 'shared a great adventure' with him through his teaching and collegiality will remember the impact he has had on their lives.

Best wishes for the future, Mike, and thank you for all you have contributed to the School and its community. May the trout forever leap at the sound of your wading and your cast be tight looped and always fall straight.

**Anthony Apted** 



Marja Bratt Hutchins 1999–2010

Pablo Picasso once said 'Every child is an artist. The problem is how to remain an artist once he grows up.'

I believe this quote encapsulates the vision and purpose of the Art Department at The Hutchins School and it is through our Head of Art, Mrs Marja Bratt, that we must thank for inspiring us to be the best teachers we possibly can and to inculcate a passion for the way in which we nurture and develop a culture of art appreciation in our students.

It is with sadness that we farewell and thank a wonderful mentor, teacher and friend.

We wish Marja all the best for the years ahead and I am sure we will see her continued presence within the Hutchins Art community.

**Rachelle Robinson** 



### Brian Burch Hutchins 1985-2010

Well this really is the end of an era at Hutchins as Brian Burch hands his chalk over to James Seddon and his classroom is filled with beds, mattresses and cupboards from the Boarding House.

Brian has been an absolute stalwart of the Mathematics Faculty in the 26 years he was at Hutchins. He and Kevin 'Tiger' Walsh made a formidable pair for many years. Brian took over as Head of Mathematics and really made our Mathematics Faculty the envy of many other schools.

In the earlier days at Hutchins, Brian coached Football and Cricket teams and then moved into taking Maths Help classes after school. So many students benefited from the countless hours he made available after school to answer Maths questions from any student in Senior School.

There were no half measures in Brian's teaching; students were expected to be focused in class, do their homework, study for tests and produce their best. The students knew though that he was always there to support them when they had difficulties. He insisted on his standards being met and the results his students have achieved in TCE examinations are extraordinary. When a student achieved an A from him they knew they had earned it.

A good illustration of his commitment was to give his Maths Specialised class a 2-hour exam after the Awards Assembly this year. One student commented, 'that was the hardest test that I had ever done in my entire life.'

We thank him for his leadership in the Mathematics Faculty, his nurturing of new Maths staff, the commitment to his subject and particularly the teaching of so many students. They will look back and say, 'I am pleased I was in Burchie's class'.

We wish him and his wife, Rae, all the very best as they go into retirement and we trust they will enjoy many years of well earned leisure.

Barrie Irons Deputy Headmaster



## Rae Burch

In 2010 we say farewell to Mrs Rae Burch who has been a highly skilled and dedicated teacher of French throughout the School since 1985. Students from Kinder to pre-tertiary have been enticed by French food, enjoyed singing French songs and benefited from her wealth of experience in promoting practical language learning.

Her older students appreciate her understanding approach and commitment to helping them do their best through corrections, exam practice and encouragement to enter competitions and take opportunities outside the curriculum. She has guided many students to achieve exceptional results in TCE French and language competitions. Through collaborating with her on curriculum documents, I have benefited from her deep understanding of her subject and how students learn. Mrs Burch is a perceptive and compassionate mentor; she has the respect of Hutchins staff and students; and although we will miss her, we wish her a very happy retirement.

Au revoir, Madame.

Alison Farmer Head of English and Modern Languages



## Margaret Headlam

As long serving Teacher-Librarian, Stephens Library, and often Librarianin-Charge, Mrs Margaret Headlam started at The Hutchins School in 1991.

During the course of her career managing the library and information needs of students from Kindergarten to Year 8, and in some years teaching English and SOSE, Margaret and her husband lan had four sons and boarders at the School. Many students over several decades will remember the animated weekly reading and Book Week performances by Margaret of the classics and new favourites of children's literature. They may even remember her favourite acronym DLSOPAE for the information literacy process - 'define, locate, select, organise, present, assess, and evaluate'.

Just prior to retirement in December 2010 while on two years' leave, she spent some part of that leave at the School of St Jude, USA campus as Teacher-Librarian. Ian accompanied Margaret to the position of Supervisor of Maintenance at the same school campus. In the most recent year, Margaret was based in the Nettlefold Library but worked in all three libraries in the School. One of Margaret's particular achievements was to set up the new Early Learning Centre Library in the late 1990s.

Margaret's fondness for travel is not surprising given her flexibility and commuting between her town residence and the farm at Woodbury, near Oatlands. As Teacher-in-Charge of Orienteering, a regular attendee at scholars' camps or retreats, as well as a dedicated and original member of the women's rowing team, Margaret ventured on a round the world trip before and after her 15 months' service at the Tanzanian School of St Jude. Inspired by the work of Gemma Sisia educating the poorest students out of poverty there, her colleagues at home were not surprised by her call to this good work.

At her farewell, Margaret reminded her friends and colleagues of the importance and timely lessons for life from her time educating young people in Tanzania.

Dr Jill Abell



## CHAPLAIN

In the Senior School, during Term 2 we had a series in chapel on the different ways of understanding the world that exist in our culture and where they come from. It became clear that the concept of 'worldview' was a new one for many of our students. An introduction to the Naturalism of Dawkins and the Postmodernism of much modern culture proved a controversial one.

### Blog

The intention was to start a conversation. And so it did. After a thoughtful message left for me in the question box I suggested that it would be helpful to produce a regular opportunity for students to ask questions and propose their ideas to issues raised in chapel. As a result of this 172 comments have been posted on various issues such as:

Are worldviews like accents? – is there such a thing as a true or right accent?

Are you an Apatheist? ie who cares? (from chapel guest Rev Paul Chew)

Is religion anti-science?

Dr Peter Wilson and Mr Brett Smith from our Science Faculty discussed their view of this relationship as guest bloggers.

We looked at the suggestion by physicist and philosopher, Prof Paul Davies, that faith is involved in all human activity

What is the relationship between ethics and religion? We looked at the recent debate in Sydney over the introduction of ethics as an alternative to the religious education period.

The outcome of this is that beliefs are a part of our conversation at Hutchins. Indeed, my chief comment poster in Year 12 would often write around 2am – after wrestling with his heavy school workload, he would take some time to consider the issues raised by the blog. Although often disagreeing with my views, he made significant efforts to educate himself further on the topic. In turn, he challenged my perceptions and forced me to look at my own assumptions and ask myself 'Why do I believe?' I would love to see our community become articulate about the nature of belief and what our role is in a secular society. We focus on a Christian understanding of that at Hutchins but not exclusively. The importance of understanding (much more significant than 'tolerating') our neighbour must be a basic part of a global-wise education. The blog is one contribution to that discussion that has emerged as a useful tool.

## New Chaplain

Rev Mark Holland has made an excellent start at Hutchins as Assistant Chaplain with specific responsibility for the Junior School. He has added a great deal from his youth work background and has run a well-attended JAFFA group (Jesus: A Friend For All) in the Junior School at lunchtime on Wednesdays with assistance from Buckland Chapel Leader Tom Beadle (Year 10). We have both worked in the Middle School with the JAFFA group on Fridays with the assistance of Alexander Elford (Thorold Chapel leader, Year 12). At JAFFA we run a number of fun events while giving students the opportunity to consider their beliefs and discuss Biblical issues. Some of the events include:

- The Annual Lolly Eating competition won by Ayrton Rose (Year 7)
- The JAFFA Cup Cricket (Double Wicket) competition won by a Year 7 combination (Liam Johnston with Patrick Lickiss (and Patrick Ball)).

The Senior School also enjoyed a faithful group of men meeting together, with special events such as the open invitation to watch a debate between well-known antitheist Christopher Hitchens and Christian philosopher, Dr William Lane Craig.

#### Confirmation

The opportunity to publicly declare one's faith in Jesus Christ is given each year and the following students were confirmed in 2010:

At St David's Cathedral: Matthew Allanby (Year 11) Elijah Elford (Year 8) Sean Gressie (Year 10) Liam Palmer (Year 10) Daniel Westbury (Year 10)

At Wellspring Anglican Church, Sandy Bay: Michael Fletcher (Year 8).

## Chapel Collection

The students of the Senior School have been contributing to the Chapel Giving each week and the following amounts were raised:

- Christian Blind Mission (Term 1) \$350
- CNEC Partners (Mission and Orphanage work) \$200
- Anglicare \$300

We also gave 300kg of pantry items to Anglicare in 2009 for Christmas hampers.

## Chapel Leadership

One of the highlights of 2010 for me has been the contribution of my Chapel Committee. The following students have contributed mightily:

- Chapel Warden and Thorold House Alexander Elford
- Buckland House Tom Beadle
- School House Jack McGrath
- Stephens House Thomas Whiteley

In particular, Alexander Elford has had a desire to take issues of faith 'outside the Chapel' and, with the co-operation of our new Head of Senior School, Mr Duncan Warlters, has addressed students at assembly on a regular basis. Alex has been a great encouragement in my work as Chaplain. He has regularly inspired me to 'lift the bar' to ensure that we look for new ways to communicate the Christian faith.

The Reverend Matthew Gray Chaplain



Patrick Lickiss and Liam Johnston (Year 7) receive the trophy and prizes from Rev Matt Gray for winning the JAFFA Cup for 2010.



*Rev Mark Holland with Huon Clark (and friend) at the Christmas donkey rides* 

10

## CAPTAIN of School



### A huge challenge

A great school has many qualities. These include the teaching facilities, the social and cultural opportunities, the sporting fields, and how the students carry themselves while at school and when they are out of school.

But I believe more than anything else that a great school is made by great teachers.

In December last year the Headmaster invited me to take on a huge challenge: The Hutchins School Captain for 2010. Everyone seemed to know what was expected of the incumbent in this role except me! However, right from my first week everything began to be okay. Why? Because more than anything else the support of the staff gave me confidence. Many teachers came up to congratulate me and wished me the best for the year - it was incredible. But it was the helping hand they offered which I most appreciated. So many teachers told me that if I was ever uneasy about something or needed help, they were here for me, as teachers but most of all as individuals who I could turn to.

As you grow up, each year you are treated differently by your teachers. Despite these differences in how you are viewed at each stage of your schooling, there is one thing that remains constant – the compassion and dedication of the staff to their students. It may be their job to teach us Maths, Drama, English or Science, but they go way beyond that in teaching us how to live in that big world outside the School community.

## a great school is made by great teachers

As I experienced a few weeks ago in my last week of Year 12, it all changes again, forever. In that week you transition from being a student to an Old Boy. Your teachers who have taught you so much will teach you for the last time. As you leave Awards Assembly, many catch your eye. The looks in their eyes say it all; they are proud to see what these young men have become.

## A culture of excellence

One of the most rewarding and successful events that the Prefects undertook this year was the inaugural Father and Son AFL Grand Final Breakfast. The breakfast came about from the idea of the importance of male role models in the lives of young men. The breakfast was honoured with the presence of two champions, the fourtime premiership player and 222 game VFL veteran Brent Crosswell, and the former Premier of Tasmania and 96game VFL veteran Ray Groom.

#### the importance of male role models in the lives of young men

The breakfast raised nearly \$2000, largely due to the help of Hutchins Old Boys Tom Allwright (Geelong) and Marcus Davies (Carlton) who were kind enough to arrange a signed jumper each from their respective clubs, which were auctioned off. Given the current battle Mr Chris Rae faces, the money was donated to Fight Cancer Foundation's Footy Colours Day. All of our thoughts continue to be with him.

A big thank you must go to all who helped the breakfast to be a success, especially to Alliance Catering's Chef, Adam, who ensured everybody was well fed. Another initiative which originated from the Prefects was two sessions with Years 8 and 9, on those values that describe a 'good man.' These sessions contributed to the establishment of the Good Man Award in memory of Private Benjamin Chuck, which was initiated by his father Gordon. A former student of Hutchins, Ben died while serving in Afghanistan. He encompassed all that it is to be a good man. The award is for a Year 12, voted by his peers, with the award presented by a student to that student at Speech Night.

These were just some of the initiatives, activities and events that the Prefects were able to undertake on top of their day-to-day leadership positions.

I would like to thank the Director of Student Leadership, Mr John Overton, for his role in helping me find my feet at the beginning of the year. A special thank you must go to the Head of Senior School Mr Duncan Warlters, who has made an enormous impression on me and the rest of the students in his first year at the School. Many thanks also to the Deputy Headmaster, Mr Barrie Irons, whose encouragement, advice and knowledge of the School are very much appreciated.

Most importantly I would like to thank the Headmaster, Mr Warwick Dean, who has mentored me throughout the year, ensuring that 2010 was a successful year for the Prefect body.

Finally I would like to thank all Prefects, leaders, and all others who have helped me and more importantly ensured that the School's culture of excellence is passed on to the next generation of leaders and students. Your support, guidance and abilities do not go unnoticed and you made it possible for us to achieve our goals.

It has been my greatest honour being the 163<sup>rd</sup> School Captain. This has been the fastest and busiest but most enjoyable year of my life to date, and I wish the incoming School Captain every success.

Lawrence (Larry) Owen School Captain

## STUDENT Representative Council



2010 saw the Student Representative Council (SRC) undergo major changes that were designed to allow the council to serve the students in a more diverse and comprehensive way.

This year the members of the Student Representative Council represented the student body as a whole with representatives from Years 9, 10 and 11. These students were under the guidance of Mr Wayne Brown.

Highlights of the year were the Mothers' Day Cocktail Party and the generous donations to charities such as Invisible Children, Gulf Aid, as a response to the oil spill in the area, Oxfam Australia, as a response to the Pakistan floods, donations to charities dedicated to fighting cancer, Beyond Blue and the annual 40 Hour Famine. Money was raised from lunchtime activities such as pizza lunches and barbecues and a plain clothes day.

One of the main focuses for the SRC was to increase the communication between the SRC and the student body. Prefects attended our meetings and this resulted in improved communication.

A new portfolio, the **Communication portfolio**, designed at improving the communication between the SRC and the wider school community was introduced. The Communication portfolio consisted of Charles Haward, Arjun Dubey, Henry West and Samuel Johnston.

Huw Green, William Fergusson, William Mure, George Dargaville and Cameron Brumby held responsibility for a new portfolio, **Events and Activities**. The portfolio organised and ran the Youth Week Barbecue and assisted with events such as the Mothers' Day Cocktail Party, the Father and Son Grand Final Breakfast and other fundraising activities.

The **Fundraising portfolio** was run by Frank Burridge, Yuxiang (Allan) Chen, Nanak Narulla and James Wheller. They organised activities to raise money for our charity focuses.

Another new portfolio, **Hutchins Community**, was run by Nicholas McVilly, Oliver Geale and Rajat Rao. The aim was to benefit the Hutchins community and the portfolio assisted with events such as the Mothers' Day Cocktail Party, the Father and Son Grand Final Breakfast and numerous lunchtime activities.

The **ELC portfolio**, consisting of Matthew Allanby, Jack Harrison and Isaac Woo, strove to increase the integration between the Senior School and the ELC, as well as organising events to benefit those in the ELC.

Edward Heath, Rory Middleton and Anton Roberts held the **Junior School portfolio**. At weekly meetings Edward, Rory and Anton assisted the Junior School Council in their activities, as well as organising their own activities such as a footy kicking competition and lunchtime activities.

Oliver Lane, Timothy McQueen and Samuel Padgett held responsibility for the **Middle School portfolio**. They have striven to strengthen the connections between the Middle and Senior schools by introducing ways of assisting the transition between the two schools through speaking at assemblies to educate students about preparing for the transition and getting the four Heads of Houses to introduce themselves to the Middle School students.

I would like to thank Mr Brown and Lawrence (Larry) Owen and the Captains for their assistance throughout 2010. They have ensured that 2010 has been a successful year for the Student Representative Council.

I have enjoyed my role as President and hope that the 2011 Executive can continue the great work accomplished in 2010 and wish them the best in their endeavours.

Simeon Thomas-Wilson SRC President

## STUDENT Leadership

utchins students who attended the Australian Student Leadership Conference in Launceston conducted by YLead in the September holidays were struck by the key message over the two days:

- Leadership is any action that makes the world I touch a better place
- Leadership is ACTION! Because actions speak louder than words!

Student Leaders at Hutchins in 2010 demonstrated the truth of this message. Captains and School Prefects ably led by School Captain Larry Owen worked hard to meet the goals set at the 2009 Leaders' Conference and, as a result, the student body enjoyed a settled year, despite challenges such as the crowded senior school area due to the building program. Congratulations to the following Year 12 students who were appointed to the position of Prefect:

Lawrence (Larry) Owen School Captain

Mike Titchen School Vice-Captain

George Burbury School House Captain

Jamie Clark Stephens House Captain

Samuel Downie Burbury House Captain

Andrew Isles Buckland House Captain

Richard Pearce Thorold House Captain

Shervin Aflatooni, Cameron Burnett, Nicholas Cannell, Lewis Connor, Sarawood (Gab) Dejanipont, Alexander Elford, Jordan Graney, Macaulay Hagan, Charles Jackson, Jack McGrath, Joseph McGrath, Michael Short, Ehsan Soltani, Simeon Thomas-Wilson, James Waldron

#### Leadership Programs

Students from Years 9 to 12 attended a variety of programs in the wider community to help in the development of their leadership skills.

## RYPEN

This weekend camp at Roches Beach has been successfully run by Rotary for Year 10 students for a number of years. Twenty-six Year 10s from 11 different schools participated.

Liam Palmer found the emphasis on goal setting the greatest help, while Jacob Harris believes he grew in self-confidence as a result of the weekend.

#### MUNA

Oliver Geale and Edward Heath represented Hutchins at the Model United Nations Assembly at Deloraine in May. Edward wrote:

... Some of the topics discussed included world peace, global warming, nuclear weapons and whaling. Debating these topics gave us a stronger understanding of global issues ... The atmosphere was both intense ... and relaxing in that people involved were friendly and willing to associate with new people.

## **Rising Generations**

For the second year Hutchins was represented at this exciting National Leadership Camp held at Collaroy Conference Centre in Sydney during July. This year, Tom Beadle (Year 10) and Matthew Allanby (Year 12) found the experience stimulating.

We were greeted by [some of] the most motivated, enthused and energised people on the planet. The theme was the Service Revolution ... Bec Heinrich, CEO of Rising Generations, made us question leadership and the role of a leader ... her actions fulfil her vision, helping people take a stand on the things they believe. The following day, the theme was values with Robyn Moore speaking about her successes and failure. Her fundamental message was 'You have the key to your life' Nick Farr-Jones shared his trials during his Rugby career ... his theme was resilience. The final day's theme was service, showing that our small innocent actions can have large consequences ....

## REACH

Twenty Year 9 and 10 students attended this workshop where students were encouraged to be 'real' and express themselves authentically aiming 'to support young people develop emotional intelligence'.

## YLead

Liam Palmer and Yuxiang (Allen) Chen attended the YLead Conference:

There was a strong emphasis on the Arts in this conference, with dancing and singing playing an important part. By the end of the conference we were all pleased with what we had achieved, the knowledge gained and we had all met some fantastic people.

## Congratulations to Award Recipients

At the final Headmaster's Assembly for the year, three students who have demonstrated their leadership skills were presented with Defence Force Long Tan Leadership and Teamwork Awards. They were:

Year 10 Tom Beadle Year 11 Charles Haward Year 12 Lawrence (Larry) Owen.

John Overton Director of Student Leadership



SCHOOL ADMINISTRATION

## HUTCHINS Foundation

The mission of the Foundation states:

'The Foundation works to ensure the future of Hutchins by supporting the School in an on-going capacity,' while the vision of the Foundation is 'To create a financially secure school where each student is able to develop their personal best.'

This echoes the vision of those who signed the original Memorandum and Articles of Association to set up the Hutchins Foundation in 1977, when it was feared that removal of government funding could jeopardise the future of independent schools. The original aim, then as now, was to create, maintain and grow an Endowment Fund to generate additional income for the School and to support the provision of excellence in educational outcomes.

It is a tribute to the original signatories to the Foundation that the Endowment Fund has grown significantly over the years, while the Foundation has also provided vital support to the School.

#### These links ... form the backbone of the Foundation and the whole school community

The Annual Appeal continues to be a major fundraiser providing library resources and other specialised equipment, while also providing options for donations to the Scholarship Fund and Building Fund.

Bequests are a key component of the Foundation's financial support base and are being given increased publicity through the *Magenta and Black* magazine and through a new bequest pamphlet designed by Tony Smithies in partnership with the Bequest Committee.

Under the chairmanship of John St Hill the Bequest Committee brings together a group of highly committed supporters of the School. By its very nature their work does not bring immediate dividends, however it is extremely gratifying that Hutchins and the Foundation are now reaping the benefit of the work of this committee, with several significant bequests having been received over the past year.

Old boys Henry Baldwin and Jeffery Boyes were long time supporters of the Foundation and the Bequest Committee, with Jeffery Boyes serving as the first Development Officer for the Foundation in its early years. Their bequests to the School and the Foundation ensure that there is a lasting testimony to their loyal and generous support for the School. *Vivit post funera virtus.* 

Following discussions with his family and the executors of his estate, the Foundation agreed to provide \$1,000,000 from the Baldwin bequest towards the construction of the new Library Learning Centre in the magnificent building which now bears his name as the HG Baldwin Wing.

Memorial gifts also continue to be encouraged as a tangible way of assisting the Foundation while also honouring the memory of a loved one.

The Foundation continues to support the employment of the School Archivist and when the plans for the new Library Learning Centre included a major new museum/archives section, the Foundation agreed to provide funding for this area. This is intended to be a valuable community resource and has already become a focal point for old boy gatherings and Foundation activities. An official opening of the Hutchins Foundation Centre is planned for early in 2011.

As in previous years the Foundation co-hosted the Hutchins Staff Dinner, held at the conclusion of the pre-term staff conference week. Held in the former Hutchins building in Macquarie Street, it again provided an excellent opportunity to highlight the history of the School, build a sense of community among the staff and to ensure that all members of staff are aware of the history and functions of the Foundation. The annual New Parents' Dinner was again an enjoyable and worthwhile function, promoting the concept of philanthropy and ensuring that new families to Hutchins understand the vital role of the Foundation.

The Foundation Awards for students known as *Follow your Dreams* attracted over thirty applications. Eight outstanding students were chosen to receive an award of financial assistance to pursue a wide range of interests.

The Hutchins Art Prize Committee, chaired by Peter Forbes-Smith, continued their work with John Ancher, staging the Hutchins Exhibition of Student Art Works which showcased some amazing art works by students of all ages.

Tony Smithies has had another busy year organising Foundation events, Old Boy Reunions, Anniversary events, *Magenta and Black* magazine and assisting the Parents' Association with its activities.

Anniversary Week always showcases the spirit of Hutchins as it brings alive the links between the past and the present. These links also form the backbone of the Foundation and the whole school community. To celebrate these links the Foundation hosted a luncheon during Anniversary Week for past and present Chairs of the Board of Management, the Old Boys' Association, Parents' Association and Foundation Board.

We celebrate the support of parents, old boys, students and staff in maintaining the wonderful traditions of Hutchins. The Foundation depends on the generous financial support of the whole Hutchins community to continue its work into the future.

Jenny Inglis President



## PARENTS' Association

## Do you know that you are a member?

2010 has proven to be a year of learning for The Hutchins School Parents' Association.

The School Fair has always been the major fundraising event of the school year however, due to the building works which included the new Library Learning Centre, it was deemed an impossibility.

The upside was that this gave the Parents' Association the opportunity to reflect on its current role and the direction in which it should be taking in the years to come.

For many years the numbers attending meetings have been dwindling due to the busy lifestyles of most Hutchins' families. For this reason the Constitution has been reviewed in anticipation of pending change.

The Parents' Associations' role within the School has been that of both fundraising and a communication tool between the parents and the School. Naturally the continuation of these roles is paramount.

It is envisaged that with the assistance of parents that a representative from each year group attend the meetings and reports back to the Committee. Simple in theory and in practice it should invigorate the Parents' Association with new ideas and fresh faces.

What many in our school community do not realise is that each parent is automatically a member from the time their son is enrolled at Hutchins. We encourage each parent to take advantage of the opportunity to become involved.

It was also decided that this year we should focus on the School community itself and take on a major social event rather than trying to replace our major fundraising event. After much discussion we decided on the Magenta & Black Masked Ball. This was a fantastic evening held on a winter's night in the month of August and was a dazzling success. Over 150 guests donned their masks and formal attire for a night which will be long remembered at Hadley's Hotel. Music was provided by the Hutchins Big Band, old friends had the opportunity to catch up, and new friends were made.

In September we enjoyed the Magenta & Black Hutchins' Race Day at Elwick. This was the second year for an event which again brings people together, raising much needed funds while enjoying the day in perfect weather.

Though these events were not intended to be fundraisers, we are pleased to report that both events provided much needed funds back into the bank balance.

The Association has also understood the need of branding our events. To this end we have decided on the Magenta & Black branding. Hopefully this will assist parents within the School to recognise that invitations and events with this logo desperately require their support.

Each year submissions are presented from staff for the Association to consider purchasing on behalf of the School. Money has been allocated for the following projects in 2010:

- Promethean Interactive Whiteboards for classroom use
- a much needed water tank to collect rainwater to introduce the ELC to sustainable gardening
- a sandpit for the ELC
- picture framing for art work displayed in the Junior School Foyer
- portable shade marquees of the use of the whole school for sporting events
- audio equipment for the Auditorium.

We have welcomed the parents of boarders into our Committee

meetings. Parents of boarders have also contributed to our funds for future spending and we look forward to their representation through the Parents' Association for many years to come.

I would like to recognise and thank the Parents' Association Committee for their ongoing support. I would also like to give my personal thanks to Judy Smith, Belinda Denehey, Cheryl Johnston, Martyn Hagan and Lynn Sayers for their assistance with the Ball and the Race Day. Without the invaluable help of their subcommittees, these events would not be possible. I would also like to recognise the efforts of Carol Plunkett who continues to work tirelessly in preparation of the Magenta & Black School Fair in 2011.

Thanks must also be given to the efforts of the Administration Team at the School, in particular Tony Smithies for his guidance throughout 2010.

In closing, I urge you to join in. Become involved. We need new ideas and new people and I should finish with saying:

'It's not difficult, we do have fun, we do raise money, but overall we laugh harder than we work!'

Cathi Burnett-Cosgrove President



Cathi Burnett-Cosgrove and Rick Allen at the masked ball



Rowena Ransley, Eleanor Ransley and Alex Hagan at The Magenta & Black Hutchins Race Day

## HUTCHINS Old Boys' Association

his year has been a year of consolidation for the Association. The Committee has been working hard on cementing the work done over the past years to improve the visibility of the Association within the greater Hutchins community. Behind this focus is the Strategic Plan that the Association developed in 2009.

One of the key areas has been improving the awareness of what the Old Boys' Network entails with current students. We have assisted a number of students in striving to achieve their best within their chosen fields through grants. Two awards have been made this year. Richard Pearce received \$500 to assist him with the costs of attending the International Science Fair in Canada while Aaron Zantuck has received \$250 to help with costs of attending a student Agriculture Conference. This has developed to a point now where a new strategy and system will be developed to allow a fair and structured approach to awarding future grants.

In early 2010 the Old Boys' Fathers' Cocktail Party was held at the home of the Headmaster. This event is in its second year and those in attendance took the opportunity to chat with the Headmaster and catch up with old friends.



The HSOBA coffee van at Open Day. Mr Nicholas Dwyer (President), Mr Tony Smithies (Secretary) and Mr Ralph Jackson (Vice-President)

The Association also participated in this year's Open Day, providing a greatly appreciated coffee van, and also conducted a sausage sizzle at the Anzac Day football match between Hutchins and St Patrick's College.

Anniversary Week saw the inaugural Old Boys' Business Breakfast at Hadley's Hotel on 3 August. This was well attended and the panel of Chris Rae, Roger Chung and Andrew Kemp entertained with anecdotes of years past and current adventures. The breakfast was chaired by John Groom, who had meticulously prepared the questions.

The annual Reunion Dinner was also held in Anniversary Week at Hadley's and this year was the first time that there were graduates from two millennia in attendance. This event is growing from year to year and I encourage everyone to try and attend when your year comes around.



Then Chairman of the Board Mr Scott Harvey and President of the HSOBA Nicholas Dwyer busy cooking sausages at the Anzac Day football match

Our online Communications Directory continues to grow. July this year saw a record number of log-ins to the site and the highest number of new sign-ups in three years. We will continue to expand this service over the next 12 months.

At the Ray Vincent Lunch in December we were delighted to announce that 1984 Leaver Craig Webb is the Ivied Tower Award recipient for 2011. This award is based on peer nominations and is intended to recognise old boys who have achieved great things in their chosen fields of endeavour. Craig established and runs the Raptor and Wildlife Refuge at Kettering and last year received a News Ltd Pride of Australia Award for his efforts.

An objective of the Committee this year has been to engage with other organisations associated with Hutchins and its old boys. I am please to say that the President of the Hutchins Old Boys' Football Club, George Friend, has joined the Committee and has indicated the Football Club's desire to work closely with the HSOBA into the future.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank the Committee for their support and work over the 12 months. I would also like to thank Mr Tony Smithies who works tirelessly behind the scenes to make everything happen. I must also thank Mr Warwick Dean for his ongoing support of the Committee and the old boys' philosophy. The support of the School and its current staff is paramount to the ongoing development of the HSOBA and the support that has been shown by Warwick has greatly assisted in the Committee being able to engage with the future old boys currently studying.

Nicholas Dwyer President

## INTERNATIONAL Relationships

A year of new beginnings, changes and wonderful experiences kept all of us involved with international students and exchanges 'on our toes'.

ommencing early in March Mr Warwick Dean, Headmaster, and selected key staff of Hutchins attended the 2010 Hwa Chong Institute Education Conference in Singapore.

Warwick Dean was especially requested to present a paper at the conference and received much applause and admiration by all as he delivered the paper entitled 'Educating for the Future – A teaching and learning toolkit for the C21st?'

For many years The Hutchins School has enjoyed a very positive and mutually beneficial relationship with Hwa Chong Institute. The two schools participate each year in an exchange program. During the Easter break Hutchins students are offered a teacher-escorted exchange program to travel to Singapore and during November the Hwa Chong students enjoy participating in the life of The Hutchins School.

Being able to be introduced to Asia via the beautiful city of Singapore while in the safe and supervised environment of the outstanding Hwa Chong Institute is a great way for this age group to build their global knowledge and connections. After Singapore Mr Warwick Dean and I continued to Beijing, China on an important mission which resulted in ratifying an MOU with The Second High School Attached to Beijing Normal University to enable a new Chinese Language Immersion Exchange between our two schools. This new exchange aimed to assist Hutchins students learning Chinese to spend one valuable month living the culture of the fascinating country of China. Escorted by Mr Erik Marr, Hutchins teacher of Chinese, the group came back to Australia with great enthusiasm for their studies and a far greater command of their Chinese language skills.

Due to the great success and in readiness for the return exchange by students of Beijing, we welcomed a visit by Deputy Principal – Mr Ruan Guojie, International Director – Mr He Guangzhong and their English teacher Ms Bu (Amy) YuanYuan.

Indian students from The Doon School visited Hutchins on exchange, our French connection continued and, as part of our full-fee paying international program, we welcomed German, Korean, Hong Kong, Singapore, Malaysian and Vietnamese students into the School as boarding students. And this was only the first half of the year! We welcomed our Scottish exchange students and sent our Hutchins student off to Scotland. We continued to welcome groups of visitors to tour Hutchins as well as overseas educators eager to learn about our curriculum.

Our contacts overseas in Europe who refer our wonderful mix of students to our school have envied us as we move into our summer as they brave the winter snow. We live in a fabulous country and a picture-perfect state. Our students are very lucky and I can confidently say having visited schools around the world over the past 11 years that The Hutchins School is one of the finest.

I look forward to assisting The Hutchins School in 2011, maintaining core international relationships with the School's representatives around the globe who refer international students to the School and to explore new opportunities for the School as the economy and strength of countries such as Brazil and Russia drive students to seek quality schooling in Australia.

Annie Weatherburn Director of Marketing and International Relations

## FROM THE Archives

ith the move to the HG Baldwin Wing completed in September, the new school museum opened for business in the relocated Olga Braham Gallery. While researching and setting up displays is an ongoing process and the preparation of permanent exhibits a thought provoking and time consuming business, the exhibition space is developing in a pleasing manner. One of the most gratifying aspects of the new museum is its central location. Already we have had many students wander in during their recess or lunch breaks. The portable typewriter never fails to interest and amuse - with our 'bookmark-maker,' the old Hutchins Foundation seal stamp, running a close second - proving the popularity of hands-on exhibits. There have also been a number of gatherings of old boys in the museum space, resulting in some very positive comments and several donations to the Hutchins Archives and Heritage Collection. The downstairs archival store is still in a state of somewhat organised chaos from the Big Move, but with the stocking of our new shelving units and compactuses, it should be cajoled into a state of readiness for the start of the 2011 school year.

This year saw the completion of our **Preservation Needs Assessment,** for which we received Federal funding through the Community Heritage Grant scheme administered by the National Library of Australia. Conservator Judith



View towards the entrance of new Olga Braham Gallery, showing 1902 carved settle

Andrewartha carried out a thorough and comprehensive survey of items in the collection. She suggested methods of preserving and preventing damage to items in the collection and priorities for their implementation, thus increasing the lifespan of documents, photographs, furniture, artworks and other artefacts. Already we have benefited in numerous ways from the practicality of her advice – perhaps the most obvious being the off-site freezing of the entire textile collection, resulting in pest-free uniforms and other fabric items.



Hutchins Crest donated by former teacher and school bursar, Roy Collings, 1937. Originally part of the large arched window of the Big Schoolroom facing Macquarie Street, it now guards the entrance to the Chapel of St Thomas. Facing the wrong way and in need of restoration, the flashed glass crest has been singled out in the recent Preservation Needs Assessment for conservation work.

Digitisation of the collection has also progressed far and fast this year, with the allocation of funds making possible the off-site scanning of the entire school magazine collection and the copying to both DVD and hard-drive storage of our film, video and CD collection. The next exciting development – the transfer of data to the School website – is about to get under way. The on-site digitisation of the Hutchins Roll of Scholars is progressing well and will soon provide us with computer access to at least the most basic information concerning each student.

While digitisation of resources and preparation for the move to our new premises – along with the day-to-day tasks of accessioning objects, both new and old, preparing regular articles for Communiqué and Magenta & Black and answering numerous enquiries - took up the bulk of the Archivist's time and energy, space was made during the year for productive engagement with the profession. During the year, I attended a Disaster Workshop organised by the Maritime Museum of Tasmania in conjunction with the Tasmanian Museum and Art Gallery which produced valuable information for our own embryonic disaster plan. Meetings of the Australian Society of Archivists included a fascinating series of talks given by past State Archivists and the present incumbent of a redesigned and renamed position at the top level of joint management with the State Library of Tasmania. I also prepared a history walk document for the Year 7 classes on Anniversary Day.

Sadly, our dedicated volunteer, Mr Richard Lord, passed away in November. His assistance will be sorely missed, as will his joy in making himself useful in the field of history and his painstaking efforts to carry out any task allocated to him. Mr David Brammall has been away travelling for much of this year, but we look forward to his return. Now that we have space and dedicated facilities we will be looking to rebuild our team of volunteers in the year ahead. Already we have some keen juniors who have contributed their time during this year, in very difficult circumstances, and we look forward to welcoming them back in 2011.

My sincere thanks to Mrs Anna Kirkland for her cheerful assistance with the digitisation of the Hutchins Roll of Scholars; to the Maintenance, Cleaning and Information Services teams for their invaluable aid with the move and its aftermath; to Dr Jill Abell for her unwavering attention, high expectations and expert guidance through the potential minefields of technology, design and fiscal management; and to the Hutchins Foundation for funding our wonderful new facilities, thus helping to bring to fruition Headmaster Warwick Dean's long-held dream of a proud new museum worthy of displaying the rich and historically significant Hutchins Archives and Heritage Collection.

Margaret Mason-Cox Archivist

## JOHN BEDNALL Centre for Learning Support

n 2010, the Centre continued to be a busy place providing support and guidance across the School, and continuing to monitor and assess students who come under our care. Students from Years 3 to 6 undertook standardised assessments in Reading, Spelling and Maths.

All students in Years 3, 5, 7 and 9 completed the National Assessment Program in Literacy and Numeracy. Results were available in September. This is another useful tool to assist in identifying students' strengths and weaknesses.

This year the Centre has offered, for those identified students in the ELC and Junior School, an array of gifted programs, ranging from Maths enrichment and problem solving, to research and essay writing skills. The tasks have been set to challenge and motivate the students encouraging them to develop higher order thinking skills that allow them to think creatively and independently. The Junior School students have in particular enjoyed some of the hands-on activities involving the building of structures from paper towers and bridges, to Rube Goldberg machines (overly complex machines designed to do a simple

task involving principles of energy transference and transformation). Much of the work has seen some very creative and intuitive constructions built, with students analysing and evaluating what they have designed.

Students in Years 6, 7 and 8 participated in the Mathematical Challenge for Young Australians. Middle School students were involved in a range of extension projects from publishing a newspaper to preparing a dinner for famous people in the 1640s. The senior students were able to attend a Peter Vardy conference that was titled 'Tomorrow's World' and looked primarily at what is truth in the world and environment around us. The lectures were engaging and thought- provoking, and promoted much discussion. Year 10 Art students were involved in an Artistin-Residence program with local artist, Leigh Steven. It was great that Benjamin Lieutier, a Year 12 student, painted a mural outside the Centre as part of his final Art Production work. It has been a great year with much happening and some inspiring work produced from all students.







#### The John Bednall Centre for Learning Support in the ELC

We have thoroughly enjoyed working with the ELC boys during 2010. Our program has focused on literacy support, and has included reading, literacy games and writing activities. We used exciting stories to capture the boys' imagination and to develop a love of reading. A favourite story was 'Fish Head Soup,' written by Jill Eggleton. This is a humorous tale about the relationship between Mrs Spatt and her pet spider and the Fish Head Soup that she made. This tale was a great stimulus for the exploration of words. We talked about rhyming words, action words, made-up words and the meaning of words. We also looked at the sounds in words.

'Fish head soup, fish head soup, I love, love, love, fish head soup,

Boil up the bones, boil up the eyes.

There's nothing like a scoop of fish head soup!'

## WEBBER Lecture

#### The Hutchins Annual Webber Lecture – 'Integrity; what price?'

The annual Webber Lecture (named in honour of the Reverend Webber, former Dean of Hobart) is a major event on The Hutchins School calendar and has attracted significant speakers over the years. This year was no exception, and the large crowd that turned out underscores the importance that this program and the presenter, Mr Simon Illingworth, have achieved.

The 2010 guest speaker was former Victorian police officer Simon Illingworth, who was instrumental in the uncovering of corruption in the Victorian Police Force.

His message about values, self-respect and integrity was a powerful one that made an impression on all those present.



Headmaster, Mr Warwick Dean, Mr Simon Illingworth and Mr Andrew Webber, member of staff and son of Reverend Webber.

## ACADEMIC Report

Congratulations to the Year 12 students of 2010 on achieving an outstanding set of results. The Hutchins School is celebrating another excellent year of academic achievement.

B uilding on last year's strong results and Matthew Kang's Dux of State achievement (the fourth time in the past five years a Hutchins student has achieved Dux of State), students in Year 12 obtained an excellent TCE record with perfect scores of 99.95 going to three students: Tomos Lelong, Lachlan Poslek and Christopher Ryba.

This is the fifth time in six years students from Hutchins have topped the State. In addition, a strong 27% of the Year 12s achieved a score of 95 or more and close to one in three students achieved a score of 90 or more.

Indeed, The Hutchins School has again been distinguished by its strong academic performance across the majority of the Year 12 cohort, and I stress that while we celebrate the achievements of outstanding students – and we are very proud of their efforts  it is also the continued overall and superior academic strength of the great majority of Year 12 students that is our focus, our strength and our celebration.

## celebrating another excellent year of academic achievement

Much has been achieved across a range of subjects in TCE studies and in VET studies and I am pleased to extend accolades to the students, staff and supportive parents who teamed to bring about such a strong result.

I look forward to this year's graduating Year 12 class again achieving a real depth of successes and the students again taking pleasure in achieving their post-school goals.

Warwick Dean Headmaster



omos Lelong



Christopher Ryba



achlan Poslek

## DESIGN and Technology

The Faculty of Design and Technology encompasses design and problem solving developments in areas such as Robotics, Design and Technical Graphics, Computer Graphics and Design, Housing and Design and Design and Production with focus areas in metal and wood.

Il students are introduced to the thinking strategies of the design process. These strategies are developed, streamlined and applied to each individual design. Ideas are developed through a process of research and development of concepts that are turned into physical solutions. Understanding the design and physical limits of materials and the realisation that options must be considered are part of the Thinking and Doing process. Skills are developed that assist with the building of self confidence. Along with directional adjustments from teachers, amazing results of self expression and character continue to happen.

## amazing results of self expression and character continue to happen.

The Postie Concept Drag Bike that has been developed by David Joscelyne, David O'May, Daniel Carr, Matthew Huizing and Mr Roy Servant has progressed well and has been the centre of great interest.

Design and Production classes have produced some very challenging work this year. Richard Giblin has excelled in the metal area along with Alec Bailey with some great examples of self expression and craftsmanship. Luke Chamberlain crafted a well designed guitar made mainly of Tasmanian timbers. All members of the group researched, designed and produced their work using native timbers to the highest standard possible. Max (Martin) Backmann, Michael Bodach, Sorawis (Nont) Korananan and Thomas McGrath all finished work of a high standard during their time in Robotics

Frank Burridge was the standout in Housing and Design with a well-resolved unit development project for underneath his existing residence.

Tom Beadle, Michael Manthey and Richard Giblin all distinguished themselves in Design Graphics.

Matthew Keep and Shervin Aflatooni developed some amazing concepts in Computer Graphics and Design.

There were looks of satisfaction and pride on many faces as the results of their planning and decision making were realised and then carried home. Well done!

Tom Turbett Head of Faculty

## ENGLISH as a Second Language

nce again, English as a Second Language classes at Hutchins have been categorised by hard work and steady improvement in the command of a second (or third language). All classes have worked solidly and consistently in class, in preparation for exams and assessment tasks. Forty five students from Hong Kong, Korea, People's Republic of China, Thailand, Vietnam, Germany, Taiwan, Ethiopia and Dubai have studied ESL in Middle School and Senior School at Hutchins this year, with several Junior School students also receiving ESL tuition. As usual, the diverse cultural mix of our classes has led to a rich exchange of perspectives and a strong sense of mutual support and encouragement among the students.

More than ever in the past, I think it is safe to say that international students are participating and excelling in the wide variety of activities and experiences offered at Hutchins. In class, students have written on a range of subjects, in a variety of genres, studied novels, completed research essays and presentations, conducted quizzes and competitions, read many books and stories and completed artwork based on their reading – amongst other activities.

#### More than ever in the past, I think it is safe to say that international students are participating and excelling in the wide variety of activities and experiences offered

Computer-based learning has been central to work done by all groups. The large combined Years 9 and 10 class, which has had 21 students through the course of the year, did some very interesting work on survival and survivors, the Year 7 and 8s have worked on stories of wild animals, Frankenstein, Sherlock Holmes and Homer's Odyssey. Years 11 and 12 have been challenged to refine their research, presentation and discussion skills around their issues of choice.

We have still found time for fun, with hotly contested challenges in class and trips to the cinema, the Hastings Cave and Pool and the Tasmanian Museum and Art Gallery. These challenges were often prepared and run by the students themselves and certainly enjoyed by all.

Throughout the year, great intensive English support has been provided by Mrs Hobeck and Mrs Paddock. Mr Peter Lucas' work with his intensive classes for Middle and Senior School groups has proved to be of excellent benefit in helping students to quickly advance with the language skills which they urgently need to fully enjoy their time at Hutchins.

All in all, it has been an extremely busy and extremely rewarding year in ESL.

Simon Moore Teacher of ESL

## FACULTY of Science

his year Hutchins students have produced many excellent experimental research investigations.

Year 10 students Jeremy Yang (The Mpemba effect), Samuel Johnston (Antarctica as a source of water) and Thomas Johnston (Stereo pinhole camera) presented their research investigations at the International Student Science Conference in Taiwan. The week was filled with excursions and lectures to industrial and university facilities on the theme of Green Technologies. Some highlights were the production by the students of hydrogen gas from sewage waste through anaerobic processes; a visit to the Giant bicycle factory and a visit to the education facility at the site of the 1999 earthquake in Taiwan which measured 7.3 on the Richter scale.

Hutchins entered 17 investigations in this year's UTAS Science Investigation Awards. Judges guestioned the students to determine how scientifically they had conducted their experiments and how well they could communicate their procedure and findings. At the presentation ceremony several Hutchins students were successful in winning a number of awards and received cash prizes sponsored by local industries and individuals. The winning entrants were: Michael Manthey (Year 10): Best Investigation Years 7-10; Oscar Beattie (Year 9): Shared 1st Best Agricultural Research Years 7-10: Samuel Crofts: 1st Year 10; Sam Johnston: 2nd Year 10; Hugh Johnson (Year 9): 1st Year 9; Yashovardhan Makharia (Year 9): Equal 2nd Year 9; Benjamin Johnston, James



Padgett, Oliver Burnell (Year 7): Years 7-8 People's Choice Award.

Benjamin Armstrong, Samuel Crofts, Michael Manthey and Nicholas McVilly travelled to Sydney to compete in the Junior Youth Physics Tournament. The tournament is run a little like a debate. where teams present a solution to a problem and the other team tries to finds flaws in the solution. Five problems had to be researched which involved many hours of experimental work and research. The students performed creditably amongst teams from Queensland, NSW, New Zealand and Singapore. It was a great experience and gave them a good insight into what it means to pay attention to details and to have evidence for your conclusions.

Andrew Mackay, Jarra Taurian and Jonathon Kearney from the Middle School, along with Mr McCammon, attended the International Kids Teaching Kids Coastal Conference. The boys gave a workshop to nearly 70 young students from many backgrounds. They presented their work on the many ways which humans have devised to protect coastlines from erosion. In addition, they explained some of the other topics which they had covered in class, including climate change and sea level rise. They also described coastal changes which had occurred in Hobart over periods of time, especially at Sandy Bay Beach, and the annual cycle in which sand accumulates in dunes over the summer.

#### Tasmanian Science Talent Search Award

winners in the Research Investigation section were: Jeremy Yang:1st Prize; Samuel Crofts: 2nd Prize; Michael Manthey: 3rd Prize; Hugh Johnson: Merit; Samuel Johnston: Merit. A High Distinction was achieved by Christopher Krushka (Year 10) in the ICAS Science Competition. Sixteen Hutchins students received a plaque for their effort in the National Chemistry Quiz. Plague winners were: Year 11: Charles Haward (equal 1st internationally), Andre Botha, Rory Middleton, Isaac Woo, William Wurf (all equal 2nd in Tasmania), Thomas Dobie, Nanak Narulla, Henry West; Year 12: Lachlan Poslek (1st in Tasmania), Christopher Ryba (2nd in Tasmania), Thomas MacDonald (3rd in Tasmania). The best individual results in the Tasmanian Titration Competition

were: Thomas MacDonald, Ehsan Soltani (Year 12); David Lord, Jun Il Bae, Chun-Yi (Jimmy) Lin, Roman Marsh, George Dargaville and David Joscelyne (Year 11).

Year 11 and 12 students had the opportunity to listen to the 2010 AIP Women in Physics Lecturer, Professor Winstanley, speaking on Black Holes, Spaghetti and Explosions. Year 9 students experienced the Science and Engineering Challenge. Michael Short, Richard Pearce and Alexander Elford from Year 12 attended the National Youth Science Forum in Canberra in January. Year 8 students were visited by Mr Terhorst from the CSIRO as part of the Scientists in Schools program. The Year 8 students were involved in remote sensor moisture monitoring in a test patch at the School.

Peter Crofts Head of Science

## FACULTY of Mathematics

This would have to be one of our most memorable and productive years for quite some time. There were many outstanding individual and team performances across all year groups – too numerous to list!

To put things into perspective this year students at Hutchins entered the following competitions with great success in all:

- Australian Mathematics Competition
- UNSW ICAS Mathematics Competition
- Tasmanian Mathematics Competition
- Australian Mathematics Challenge
- Australian Mathematics Enrichment
- Tasmanian Mathematics Relay
- M L Urquhart Examination
- Australian Mathematical Olympiad
- Australian Mathematical Olympiad Senior Contest.

Hutchins students received these results: 6 Medals, 13 Prizes, 1 Gold Certificate, 3 Best of Year Group, 5 Honourable Mentions, 29 High Distinctions, 70 Distinctions and 110 Credits along with 3 First, 4 Second and 2 Third placings. These results highlight the level of dedication, participation and success that our students had across all year levels.

In addition to their normal studies a number of students entered first year tertiary education at the University of Tasmania as part of the High Achiever Program. Congratulations to Tomos Lelong (Year 12) and Lachlan Poslek (Year 12) for completing Calculus and Applications with High Distinction and to Christopher Ryba (Year 12) who completed Advanced Calculus and Applications with High Distinction and for being selected as a reserve member for the Australian Mathematics Olympiad team. Along with very strong and encouraging results from the TCE external Mathematics examinations it is clear that 2010 was definitely a successful year for Mathematics.

Congratulations to all students who participated throughout the year. Well done on a fine effort!

Cameron Hudson Head of Mathematics

## MARINE School

An often asked question this year has been, "Are you moving the Marine School into the newly acquired and renovated building on the Marieville Esplanade Campus?" This question erroneously implies that the Marine School is separate from The Hutchins School. The Marine School is curriculum devised to provide programs that will educate and interest students in marine activities and the aquatic environment within the existing school curriculum. The focus is on skill acquisition, service and career pathways in marine-related industries. Some elements of programs will indeed utilise our new campus. This has already begun with the use of the gym by rowers and the multi-purpose area by Marine Studies students for snorkelling programs. Currently programs are running for students from Years 5 to 12 in Science, design and boating as well as the established rowing and sailing sports.

Science Extension in Year 8 has focussed on elements of boat design and longshore ecology, linking in with national data collection programs. The Year 9 elective studied coastal ecosystems and water quality. In the Year 10 elective, the students undertook water and boating safety courses so that scientific study could be conducted off the shore in the Derwent Estuary and D'Entrecasteaux Channel.

Students from Years 7 to 12 participated in the Yachting Australia Certificate courses in Competent Crew, Inshore Skipper and Yacht Racing. The service given by Tobias McShane, Timothy Clark and Thomas MacDonald in assisting with Introductory Course candidates or maintenance of the School yacht, *Aurora*, is greatly appreciated. The Maritime Studies class was small this year but of very high quality. Eight students completed all elements of the Coxswain's Certificate, with Fletcher Caldwell and Timothy Clark also completing the Diesel Engineering module.

Working on the Water is a program run by a consortium of private, government and research groups, aimed to expose Year 10 students to the wide range of careers available in marine-related industries. Hutchins students gained 9 of the available 40 places. Over the three days of the program, the students visited oyster and fish farms in the Channel, looked at tourism and fishing, visited the Antarctic Division, Marine Discovery Centre and TAFI, listened to numerous presenters and were given a seafood lunch at Mures.

Our co-operation with the Royal Australian Navy continued this year with members of the Maritime Studies class participating in exercises on board *HMAS Arunta* in Storm Bay. Unfortunately Operation Seagull (skills exercises with the Navy) was cancelled due to cut backs in Defence spending. The *HMAS Tasmania Award* was awarded to Timothy Clark this year as the student who best exemplifies the Navy motto of *Honour, Honesty, Integrity, Courage and Loyalty.* 

In memory of the Battle of Trafalgar, to celebrate the contribution of mariners to Tasmania and commemorate those who have died at sea, the Mariners' Service was held on the Sunday after the Battle's 205th anniversary. Michael Titchen carried the Hutchins flag and Roman Marsh and Henry West led the parade of flags around the church.

It has been a while since the opportunity to take students to sea has arisen. In

April, a pilot for the Power of 9 program saw 12 students and 2 staff sail to Port Davey for a week of adventure and service in the World Heritage Area. 12 other students and 2 staff, who had walked in from Recherche Bay, sailed the *Windeward Bound* home. Lyndon Cantwell, Timothy Clark, Gareth Hughes and Sebastian Lopa and two staff joined the *Windeward Bound* for a week sailing along the East Coast. Trips like these build confidence, develop leadership, grow skills and encourage a spirit of discovery in those fortunate enough to participate.

The Marieville Esplanade Campus will serve as a multifunction asset for most programs of the Marine School and Power of 9. It contains a large multi-use room for classes, meetings or functions, a small gymnasium and office and storage facilities. With the rowing shed close by, this will develop into a very useful complex.

Peter Starkey Director Marine School



## THE GRADUATION Statement

### The Graduation Statement – developing an intelligent and compassionate community!

In the past, when students completed Year 12 the only document formally provided was a certificate of results issued by the Tasmanian Qualifications Authority (TQA). The Hutchins Graduation Statement was introduced to supplement this, to provide an official and holistic record and testimonial of a student's participation and achievement during his senior years.

It is, in many ways an opportunity to highlight his achievements and maturity achieved throughout his journey. It also continues to complement certificates of a student's participation and achievement in his academic studies issued by the Tasmanian Qualifications Authority.

It includes:

- Academic and Co-curricular Awards during the year, from the Awards Assembly and from Speech Night
- Leadership any leadership positions successfully undertaken
- Service the achievement of the Senior School Service Award and successful completion of the course Community Service Learning
- Further Recognition and Achievement

   any academic, sporting or cultural awards achieved through involvement in the School's program
- Scholarships any scholarships held

 Religion and Philosophy (RAP) – the successful completion of the course Making Moral Decisions.

A student may achieve The Graduation Statement; The Graduation Statement with Distinction; or The Graduation Statement with High Distinction. These three statements are distinguished by the standard of participation and achievement in Community Service Learning and Making Moral Decisions

Our commitment to developing these attributes is real and sustained. For example the Director of Service Learning, Mr Mike Fishburn noted, 'Hutchins is honoured to have participated in the 2010 Tasmanian Winter Blood Challenge and to have topped the event for the fourth year in a row with 106 donations ...'

Over 95 students in Years 10, 11 and 12 enrolled in **Community Service Learning** and enthusiastically involved themselves as volunteer contributors to house, school and community service tasks. Students have been active in blood donation, Cancer Council events, Legacy, Hobart Show, local community groups, services and charities. They have tutored, coached, organised, fundraised, directed and managed events, participated in work groups, and assisted professionals and teachers. Students continue to demonstrate confident involvement, gain accredited recognition, learn of their own capacity to help and provide service and as a result, find their own humanity.

Making Moral Decisions engages students in profound conversations about significant moral and ethical issues. They explore abortion, euthanasia and capital punishment. They attend the Webber Lecture, which this year was entitled 'Integrity – at what price?' The Graduation Statement captures the essence of what it means to be a Year 12 leaver from The Hutchins School. It is awarded to a young man who

- is self-aware and able to recognise and develop his personal strengths and overcome his weaknesses
- does what he can to contribute for the benefit of others in a wide variety of contexts
- reflects deeply on ethical questions, has an awareness of a variety of ethical approaches to moral dilemmas and demonstrates a respect for the diversity of opinions held within the community.

Graduation is, therefore, an important rite of passage and Speech Night is a form of graduation ceremony as it provides, in part, a public occasion to acknowledge and celebrate the achievements of our Year 12s and the expertise and dedication of their teachers.

So what then is its value? It certainly is a testament to a student's commitment to the mission and values of the School. It is also a clear statement by the School of how well we regard him. It is without doubt a significant addition to his resumé.

More importantly it says something to the student about himself, about how he wants to be remembered, about the challenges he accepted, and what he learned. However, Doug Larson, noted that 'The trouble with learning from experience is that you never graduate.' The biggest lesson is that a student's learning is a lifelong journey and that in post-school endeavours he has much to offer his family, his community and, indeed, his school. His Graduation Statement is part of this pathway.

Peter Symons Director of Teaching and Learning



Mr M Fishburn (Director of Service Learning), Andrew Isles (Captain of Buckland House), Ms Issabel Eaves (Marketing Officer of the Blood Service) and Mr W Dean (Headmaster) at the presentation for the Winter Blood Challenge



Students mixing cement for their service project at the orphanage Opportunity for Poor Children at Mae Hon Song in Thailand

## LIBRARIES and Learning

## Libraries and Learning Express: All aboard the LLC!

The challenge for the library's express move in September this year into the new Library Learning Centre building was the philosophical, functional and physical merger of the old, the new and ample provisions for flexibility and the future.

School libraries and their learning spaces, like teaching and curriculum **are** undergoing a change of thinking. Some elements of 21<sup>st</sup> century library design for digital literacy and academic integrity, self-directed learning and independent study draw the familiar library spaces and value of reading for life closer to learning hubs of new technologies with the flexible and always ready to use teaching/classroom sized spaces.

The expansive new facility offers endless opportunities for change and reconfiguration for quiet study areas, spaces for small group work and spaces for reading relaxation. The size of print collections will get slightly smaller as we rely more and more on digital information.

New models of e-commerce for educational publishers, with the rapid growth of e-books, e-texts and audio books catered for by a variety of e-reader 'apps,' and personal devices, mean that the library collection development embraces not only 'bought' materials but licensed materials in a virtual library service. The copyright, digital rights management and licensing issues added layers of complexity for staff and students in the initial and ongoing development of a new e-book service.

The Nettlefold Library went 'RFID' this year, adopting the innovative library borrower and stocktaking technology which uses 'radio frequency identification' tagging. In July, in three weeks, over 35,000 items were tagged and a self-check out terminal was custom designed to enable express checking.

For dedication to the standards of excellence for teacher-librarianship and ICT collaboration, Mrs Kate Reid, Teacher Librarian, was the winner of the Australian School Library Association's Tasmanian Teacher Librarian of the Year 2010 Award.

This year in the Stephens Library, Mrs Kate Reid's focus has been to use technology to promote reading and to emphasise the ethical use of information. In Term 2, Years 2 to 6 concentrated on Digital Citizenship, using resources from the Cyber Smart government website to help students develop a better understanding of how the internet works, the difference between personal and public information, and how to behave responsibly online. Year 6 took this out into the online world by blogging their learning activities on dedicated blogs called Cyberblogs. Year 3 learnt a great deal about the Hutchins intranet, and produced a series of videos to demonstrate their new understandings.

In reading promotion activities over 200 students completed the target of 10 Books in 10 Weeks in the popular Premier's Reading Challenge. For National Simultaneous Storytime in May the ELC enjoyed a reading of the hilarious Bruce Whatley picture book *Little White Dogs Can't Jump.* The next week boys contributed their own innovative strategies to get a reluctant dog into a car! Children's Book Week 2010 theme saw the Library Express continue 'Across the story bridge'.

The ELC and Junior School enjoyed some memorable author visits. The internationally renowned author, Graeme Base, launched his new picture book *The Legend of the Golden Snail*. Year 1 then particularly enjoyed creating their own adventure story picture books.

Years 3 to 6 had the pleasure of hearing Mark Greenwood and Frané Lessac (husband and wife team of author and illustrator) describe how they create their picture books. Years 3 and 4 heard Frané explain how she plans and sketches out illustrations and saw examples of all stages of picture book creation. Years 5 and 6 were enthralled by Mark's presentation of how he researches and writes his Australian historical stories, from *The Legend of Lassiter's Reef* to his new title *Ned Kelly and the Green Sash*.

Middle School students continue to work in the library to gain service hours and their assistance is greatly appreciated.

The Stephens Library now has a blog – nicknamed the SLOG – which is accessed

from the Stephens Library homepage. While this is still in its infancy, there are examples of student work from Years 1 to 5: pictures, written reviews and student-created videos. It is planned to add book reviews, information about library activities and other interesting events.

The *Clickview* server and range of services provides 'video on-demand' to all large screens, desktops, laptops and netbooks in the School. *Clickview* allows the libraries to manage the copyright and serve many types of digital media including audio podcasts and images as well as a vast number of weekly educational programs.

All three libraries – the ELC Library, the Stephens Library and the Nettlefold Library have been able to again acknowledge the invaluable role played by the Hutchins community with the contributions to the annual Library Appeal. In this demanding digital age, it enables the continual acquisition, resource displays and appreciative use of picture books, quality reference works and other print materials beyond the standard textbooks to emphasise both reading for knowledge and *reading for life*.

Jill Abell and Kate Reid



Graeme Base with students and books



Mrs Kate Reid in the new library

## INFORMATION Technology

he e-learning strategic vision is that The Hutchins School is a 'learning organisation with staff who are ICT competent' and a 'school of the future in using 21<sup>st</sup> century tools and e-learning strategies to engage and empower all students, staff and its wider community' continues to direct the deployment of IT. Information technology is increasingly available to all teaching spaces to enable students to have a uniform experience regardless of where they are timetabled. The investment in classroom technology infrastructure is targeted at maximising these strategic objectives. An e-learning management team comprising teaching and support staff known for their best practice in ICT and student IT leaders are charged with project initiatives to realise these strategic intentions. Several initiatives have commenced in 2010, including an ICT Audit, launch of an ICT competency framework, a varied program of professional development and a sustained program for safety online.

Led by Co-chairmen, Tomos Lelong and Shervin Aflatooni, the Student IT Leadership team included Christopher Ryba, Matthew Keep, Thomas MacDonald, Joshua Vasicek, Joseph McGrath, Cameron Burnett, Samuel Counsell, George Duckett, Ryan Ward, Andrew Flett, Donald Holloway, Jesse Usoalii, John (Jack) Pereira , Benjamin Robinson, Yashovardhan Makharia, Andreas Souvleris, Harshvardhan Makharia , Alex Hickie, Benjamin Lienert and Thomas Skalicky. Beyond their critical support for every Hutchins function or event requiring sound, video, lighting and communications, and other special public projects ranging from running the sound and lighting for UK visitor, Stephen Heppell's 'Be Very Afraid: Building Connections' seminar to assisting staff with the international

video-conferencing or the GeoDome activities on the annual ICT Expo Night.

Learning resources which had an impact on engaging, stimulating and empowering students to reach the intended learning outcomes have been the netbooks in general classrooms and iPads in assisted learning. Everyday use included standard application software [eq functional literacy and word processing, Science practical work in data logging in spreadsheets, creative image manipulation in design tasks]; internet research, web2.0 and email communication activities; as well as online access to quality digital content in national services and digital videoon-demand with high speed broadband services.





Video-conferencing with high speed, high performance bandwidth to link face-toface with authentic research activities or immersion activities - collaborative experts in cultural and scientific organisations such as Questacon and CSIRO - excited students learning. Classes from Years 4-9 and students in Years 10-12 have enjoyed videoconferencing. Activities ranged from Questacon's Perception and Illusion activity for Mrs Sue Bullen's Year 6 class; Polycom's live cross for Mrs Knight's Year 4 to meet national volunteers who are Extreme Weather Heroes on their Green Corp activities during natural disasters; sessions with expert Professor Graham Durant on the Iceland volcanic eruption or Polar Adventurer and environmental scientist. Tim Jarvis in Antarctica: Year 12 student. Mike Titchen's lead in the student debate on internet censorship in National Science Week hosted by Dr Karl Kruszelnicki ; or Year 11 student, George Duckett's lead in the live link to an international conference in Denver Colorado of teachers to talk about our 'students' digital life.'

Teachers have had regular PD sessions as well as several outstanding tools to quide their professional learning and enable the design of quality instructional programs such as learning to work with their curriculum standards via Electronic Unit Planner [www.eup.com. au]. Benchmarking their ICT skills and competencies with the ICT Audit and a host of online tutorial courseware for just-in-time learning also meant regular professional development sessions to discuss and plan with the intended outcomes of the Federal Government's Digital Education Revolution for the provision of 1:1 computing and deploying of seven powered, secure and mobile trollies of class sets of 28 netbooks to all teaching departments for Years 9 to 12 across the School.

The IT staff team systematically evaluated competitive business enterprise solutions to provide a secure infrastructure and wireless implementation. Risk management, return of investment (ROI) measures and outcomes to deliver safe and effective practices were important considerations. Strategies include RAID, UPS and surge protection on all servers; automated and off-site back up and storage; fast secure wireless installation, virtualisation technology and VMWare; access to high speed broadband bandwidth, cloud storage and AARNET ISP services with a forward implementation of VOIP. A particularly important initiative for 2010 has been the development of the 'apps for the mobile' learning with the introduction of the *Power of 9.* 

Our Staying Cyber Smart at Hutchins program comprised the Cybersafety Outreach program with ACMA speaker, Greg Gebhart, independent consultant and ex-Victorian policewoman, Susan MacLean, several evening sessions for parents and a range of sessions for students on managing cyber-bullying and harassment, being 'phone smart', keeping minimal digital footprints, privacy and security with using Facebook or similar social networking sites, a chance to discuss issues such as mobile phone policies or the codes of conduct. In these sustained awareness programs, Dr Jill Abell and Mrs Kate Reid also surveyed students about the way they use technology in Years 5-10 to give accurate data for their design of future cybersafety activities.

High speed broadband, emergent technologies and visualisation tools offered new opportunities for working with new media and visual literacy skills in our 21<sup>st</sup> century curriculum during 2010. In Term 3, Australia's Academic and Research Network (AARNet) provided The Hutchins School with the opportunity to erect and use the aweinspiring GeoDome. It is an inflatable, immersive 3D theatre wherein the projection design and visualisation can assist students to wonder, imagine and venture to the end of the known universe via NASA's Digital Universe Atlas. The highly interactive visual-spatial experience in the dome allowed learners to interact with the high definition images and video. The fly through tours of the known universe were brought to life by a set of space data and imagery from NASA and images from the global telescope networks, using technologies found in online gaming, such as the hand-held game controller. For Hutchins Junior School students and neighbouring primary student visitors, the afternoon and evening coincided with the vernal equinox. It was also a full moon. For Year 3 studying the day and night sky, a picnic evening was held for families to view the event with the School's telescopes and with members of the Astronomical Society of Tasmania.

#### Dr Jill Abell

**Director of Information Services and ICT** 



## OUTDOOR Education

uring the past year students have ventured into the outdoors, sometimes to areas unknown to them and undertaken yet another challenge (or two).

The adventures of 2010 kicked off with two weekends at Southport.

The students and staff from the boarding house got to know each other over two sunny days as they enjoyed swimming, hiking and camping.

Weekend number two saw a group of Middle School mothers visit Southport on a research mission that a number of mums have undertaken over the past few years. This year mums strolled along a rainforest walk, enjoyed some basic kayak instruction and got to know each other over afternoon tea.

The students in Year 7 followed a week later and over the four weeks each class enjoyed the challenges of walking, camping, cooking, kayaking, surfing, navigating, knot tying and team challenges. In the later part of the year they undertook an urban challenge which saw them race around Hobart, between Hutchins and the Domain collecting information from various checkpoints.

In April, some of the Year 6 group experienced a trip to Canberra-Melbourne while some visited Maria Island. The highlights of Canberra included Parliament House and Questacon. As for Maria, the trip highlights included the walk to Bishop and Clerk and then snorkelling and spotting huge crayfish!

Again in August, Year 6 students experienced alpine environments as some undertook camp on the second highest point in Tassie, Ben Lomond, while others flew into Mt Hotham for a week in Victoria's high country. Even in the cold weather, much fun was had and new skills learned.

The first of the Power of 9 Challenges occurred in April. Co-ordinated by Mr Kingston, 23 students departed Hobart aboard the *Windeward Bound*. In the late afternoon of day one, half left the ship at Récherché Bay and began the trek along the South Coast to Port Davey. The sailing group rounded South East Cape and headed to Port Davey to undertake some marine studies before meeting and swapping with the walkers. After sailing, kayaking and some rugged weather, the group arrived home 14 days later. A great experience was reported by all.

Other Year 9 challenges in 2010 included sea kayaking (windy and with side on waves), mountain biking, rock climbing, an urban challenge, surf awareness (including a visit to Shipstern's Bluff ), the Overland Track bushwalk (trekking through snow), sliding the slopes of Mt Hotham and the global challenge to Thailand.

The traditional mid-year camp for Year 8s again had groups experience rock climbing, mountain biking and walking during five days on the Freycinet Peninsula. A theme of minimal impact saw many students challenged by the realisation of their own footprint.

In October, a group of senior students undertook a walk to the rugged peak of Frenchman's Cap. Assisted by Mr Duggan and Mr Prior they achieved this threeday walk with some earning a Duke of Edinburgh Award in the process. Well done to Samuel Johnston, Peter Humphrey, Nicholas Rowell and Benjamin Armstrong.

The Year 2 classes ventured to Southport for their big day out orientation in readiness for next year's camp. After stopping at Port Huon we arrived at Southport for a tour, some beach time and a BBQ lunch.

Year 3, 4 and 5 camps occurred in Term 3 and between Southport and Bruny Island JS lads camped, walked, spotted(!), paddled canoes, surfed and played. Some of their own quotes include;

- I was excited about camp. I thought canoeing was really fun. I didn't enjoy the first night as our tent collapsed I really enjoyed the food. (Layne)
- I felt safe at camp because I had the food I was allowed. I felt that the weather was reasonably good. I felt the ferry could have been better on schedule. (Isaac)
- I felt cold and tired. Camp was fun and sleeping in a tent was exciting. Canoeing was awesome. Going home was a relief and I was glad to be home. (Angus)
- Sad, Happy, Tired, Energetic, Relieved, Agitated, Hungry, Excited, Miserable. (Tom D)

- I think the canoeing was really enjoyable. I felt safe. I felt warm and comfortable in the cabin. I think could have played a few more games. (Ollie)
- I did not enjoy the lollies my Dad gave me. Camp was not as good as I thought it would be. The waves were a little bit too big. I felt cold and damp in the tent. (Will)

These Year 9s contributed to the JS camps as mentors and for this we thank them: Timothy McQueen, Henry Laskey, Nicholas Cenin, Thomas King, Michael Fraraccio, Ryan Neal, Manoli Marios, Timothy Adams, Richard Davidson-Lim, Patrick Noonan, Samuel Cleary, Hugh Balcombe, Benjamin Thomas and William Sander.

A big mention to Mr Ben Duggan, who has had a big year! His adventures don't end; as you read this he'll be trekking through India with World Challenge and we wish him well and look forward to the stories.

Thanks also to Peter Symons, Ken Kingston, Alex Mirowski, Shane McAloon, Anthony Prior, Lauren Stranger, Jonathan Quinn, Robbie Tuck, Alice Mudge, Nick Hancock and Marcello Colombini.

Todd Blackhall







## EARLY LEARNING CENTRE and Junior School

#### Connections

In education there needs to be relevance, authenticity and a sense of belonging and connection. Children journey along four interconnecting pathways – their family, their school, their social and their inner world. The greater the separation of the pathways and the less they are connected, the greater the risk to the child because the opportunity for one pathway to provide strength and direction to another is reduced.

## Family Pathway

Family is the first pathway for us all. It is where each child starts to develop a sense of self and connection. It is where they first start their knowledge journey and hopefully it is a world that they always remain connected to.

The Kindergarten boys shared their own 'family stories' in Term 3 giving them all an insight into where they came from and assisting their sense of identity, an outcome which is recognised as vital in the Early Years Framework.

## School Pathway

At school the boys are not just learning but making connections. All of our integrated units of work from Kindergarten to Year 6 contain rich concepts of which content is a vehicle to learn about bigger ideas. When boys learn about the exploration of Antarctica in Year 5 – they don't just learn facts about Scott, Amundsen and Shackleton but they explore concepts such as leadership, heroism, bravery, motivation and sacrifice - to make connections with human endeavour on a much broader scale. Costa's '16 Habits of the Mind' also help the boys to make learning connections, to know what to do when they don't know the answer, such as when to persist, when to apply past knowledge and when to create, imagine, innovate and think flexibly.

The family and the school pathways work best when connected and we thank Hutchins parents for the myriad ways that this happens, help in the classroom or sporting arena, the communication between home and school and the time taken by each parent to express the joys as well as the concerns.

## EARLY LEARNING CENTRE and Junior School

Good teachers possess a capacity for connectedness. They are able to weave a web of connections among themselves, their subjects and their students so that students have opportunities to reach their potential.

I thank all teachers for their professionalism and their ability not to just teach their subjects but to teach the whole child. I would also like to thank Mrs Lesley Salter who retired at the end of 2010. She has contributed an enormous amount and her compassion and professional integrity will be missed. Mr Eaves left the Junior School last year. However, fortunately his many talents will still be utilised across all of the School in

his new capacity as a Learning Support Teacher in the John Bednall Centre for Learning Support.



Mrs Lesley Salter



Xavier, Lewis, Owen and Nick show the vegetable spaghettis

## Social Pathways

Some of our social connections are changing too. There are new ways of networking using technology and our boys are socialising in whole new ways. However, it is still important for boys to learn how to enrich and nurture these connections. A fundamental part of being a fulfilled human being is the way we connect to ourselves and to others. Learning how to establish, maintain and even restore good relationships underpins everything we do in the ELC and JS. This happens on a daily basis in sport teams, class circle time, prayer time, houses, Junior and Senior School buddies and our restorative justice, behaviour management systems. We are now also a 'Kidsmatter' school and

we look carefully at the importance of social and emotional health and wellbeing. In 2011 we will work with Professor Dr Toni Noble on 'Bounce Back,' an emotional skills program.

## Spiritual or Inner Pathway

One of the greatest challenges for young people is to sort out a meaning of life. Boys journey from rules to values; from a world where the school and home sets the parameters, to living in a world where values need to be internalised. Hopefully at school through Chapel, RAVE, class mentoring, and in everything we believe and do at Hutchins, we are providing a solid foundation with strong core values to equip our boys for their lifelong journey.



## EARLY LEARNING CENTRE and Junior School

## Songline

Bruce Chatwin wrote in detail about Australian Aboriginal songlines, also known as 'dreaming tracks'. Each totemic ancestor, while travelling through the country, was thought to have scattered a trail of words and musical notes along the line of his footprints and these songlines lay over the land as 'ways' of communication between the most far-flung tribes. A song was both map and direction finder.

These songlines represent the wisdom and knowledge of the ancestors as they made their journeys across the great continent. Aboriginal people believe that each person must go and find the right songline, to connect with their ancestors.

At Hutchins we want each boy to know that his family, school, social and inner or spiritual pathways are all inextricably intertwined and connected to shape his own songline – his personal map and direction finder for life.

Jenny Manthey Head of Early Learning Centre and Junior School







## Junior School Art

2010 has been a busy and productive year in the Junior School Art room. During Term 2 the students and I set ourselves the challenge to create artworks using recycled materials. The Year 3s collected boxes and created paper mâché 'Picasso Faces'. They created beautiful angled face-like constructions and painted them using a predetermined colour scheme. The Year 4s and their parents got into the recycled theme by collecting and chopping up tin cans. The boys then studied mathematical aspects of patterning and created a beautiful shimmering metallic patchwork collage. The result of their collaborative efforts looks amazing! Finally the Year 5s worked with old plastic icecream containers to create a quirky garden in the JS foyer with real grass! We did get more than a few strange looks as the instant turf was rolled out on the foyer carpet.

This year has been highly successful in terms of displaying and celebrating the boys' work and creating an artistic community. Artworks have been displayed throughout the Junior School during the year, at our Magenta & Black exhibition and boys have held outdoor installations of their sculpture work at lunchtime. We were also lucky enough to secure funding from the Parents' Association and the Hutchins Foundation to begin framing some large collaborative artworks. These works will hopefully be the start of a collection that adds vibrancy and a young child's perspective to our fantastic permanent catalogue at the School. I am constantly amazed by the creativity, talent and determination of our boys and 2010 has been no exception!



## JUNIOR School Music

The Junior School music program continues to flourish with every student from Kindergarten to Year 6 actively involved in music making through a variety of experiences.

Many performance opportunities are created for the students as they become involved in assemblies, Chapel Services, Year 4 Wakakirri, Choir, Year 6 Symphonic Band, Open Day, Anniversary Week, Soirees, the Christmas Nativity Play and Presentation Night.

# JUNIOR SCHOOL

## String Program

Over 100 students are involved in the String Program. In Year 3 every student is given the chance to play a stringed instrument. An exciting development has been the introduction of the cello, under the direction of Mr Brendan Conroy. The Year 3 students also attended the TSO Children's Education concert featuring the narration and music of *Peter and the Wolf.* 

The Junior String Orchestra has been given many opportunities to perform – the Ensemble Show Case, Anniversary Assembly, the Spring Concert and Junior School Presentation Evening. In this group students play violin, viola cello and double bass.

Another 'first' for this year was the very successful String Soirée where all students from Years 4 to 6 performed under the direction of their tutors Mrs Heather Thompson, Ms Nara Dennis and Mr Brendan Conroy.

## Pinocchio

All Year 5 students are to be congratulated on their wonderful performance of the musical *Pinocchio* They delighted audiences with their acting ability, beautiful singing and theatrical skills.

The lead role was played by Michael Oddie, and he was ably supported by Hamish McCulloch, Harrison Bignold, James Tucker, Thomas Dunbabin, James Moroney, James Weir, Thomas Young, William Harris and Albert Wyatt. Together with the strong backing of the chorus and cameo roles, the students gave four very polished performances.

#### Soirées

All students who learn an instrument through private tuition, performed at a Soirée Evening for their particular year level. A wide range of instruments was heard including piano, violin, cello, guitar, saxophone and drums.

## Year 6 Symphonic Band

Under the direction of Mr Scott Cashion and assisted by Mr Les Johnston, the students have weekly class tuition, and the results of their hard work were achieved at the Junior School Presentation Evening with their performance of *Duelling Dragons*. Sixty students played in the band and were certainly 'fired up!'

## Choral Development

The *Treble Singers* Choir has a membership of 65 students who meet under the direction of Mrs Robin Short and Mr Andrew Bainbridge.

Performances have included the Ensemble Concert; Open Day;

Anniversary Service at St David's Cathedral; combining with Fahan Junior Choir for their Winter Concert and the Junior School Presentation Night.

## ELC

Our youngest boys continue to delight with their music making, both in the classroom and to an audience.

They have performed in Junior School Assemblies, entertained on Grandparents' Day, performed at Soirées and provided Christmas entertainment for the folk at Queenborough Rise.

A group of 30 Year 1 and 2 boys stirred the emotions of the Year 12 Leavers when they presented a vocal tribute at the Valedictory Service.

Our Chapel was the setting for the Prep boys interpretation of the Christmas Story.

The Kindergarten boys also presented two well-rehearsed items, 'Santa's Hiccups' and 'Happy Christmas.' These young boys sang completely from memory, with very little prompting needed. What an achievement for boys so young!

## Presentation Night

Presentation Night was the culmination of our achievements from Years 1 to 6.

We chose the idea of 'Connections' as the focus around which our items were created. Our students have become very aware of how they can make connections in their school life and learning, and in their relationships with their peers, family, the environment and community.`







The ELC boys were very connected, dressed as skeletons, as they presented their version of 'Dem Bones' and 'Doctor, Doctor.'

Instrumental performances included 60 Year 3 string players together with their tutors, playing violin and cello; the String Orchestra with 32 budding musicians performing 'The Rainbow Connection' and 60 students performing in Year 6 Symphonic Band – all very true indicators of the growth and success of the Instrumental Programs.

The Year 5 students brought back fond memories reciting the words of

the beautiful poem 'I Love a Sunburnt Country' which celebrates our connection with the land.

The Drama Group presented a wonderful performance 'What You Do Matters' which very aptly made connections for us.

The climax of the evening was the staging and singing of the Massed Choir with over 300 students on stage – quite a connection as singers, musicians and conductor all combined as one!

2010 has been a rewarding and productive one for us musically and this could not happen without the support of the dedicated music staff: Mr Scott Cashion, Ms Nara Dennis, Mr Brendon Conroy, Mrs Jean Moore, Mrs Anna Quinn, Mrs Heather Thompson and Mrs Rose Seddon. Last but not least special thanks must go to Mrs Jenny Manthey, Head of Junior School for her continued support of all things musical; Mr Andrew Bainbridge, Director of Performance, for his sensitive and much appreciated accompanying; and Mr Christopher Luke, our Head of Music, for his leadership.

Robin Short Music Faculty

## JUNIOR School Sport

2010 was another busy year of participation in sport for our Junior School students. The action started early in the year with the House Swimming Carnival at the Hobart Aquatic Centre. An impressive day of competition saw Buckland House finish victorious. Record-breaking performances by David Geary, Karl Lickiss and the Year 4 Stephens Relay team of Fraser Brumby, Jack McTye, James Browne and Sam Canny were some of the highlights of the day. From the results of this carnival a Junior School team was selected to represent Hutchins at the JSSATIS Swimming Carnival.

Meanwhile, all Junior School students were active during their sports afternoons as part of the Summer Sport Program. Students participated in their choice of Cricket, T-ball, Tennis, court games or bushwalking. Year 5 and 6 students who chose Tennis were also given an opportunity to participate in the JSSATIS Tennis roster and our Year 6 cricketers played a series of friendly matches against local schools.

The winter sports season kicked off after the Easter break with all students from Year 2 to 6 playing for a team in their chosen sport of Soccer, Football, Hockey, Basketball or Table Tennis. During this time we also fielded a team in the Schools' Water Polo Roster. With so many teams playing it is impossible to single out specific highlights; all students are to be commended for their commitment and participation in their chosen sport. Such a large program couldn't be possible without the support of the parents, friends, family members and teachers of the students who assisted in roles of coaching, refereeing and managing teams. A huge thank you to all of you.

Late in April the students of the ELC and Junior School ventured down to Dru Point for the Cross Country carnival. The weather was kind and at the end of a fantastic day, School House took home the points. This year the Lion was joined by Mr Irons, as a special quest runner, who did a super job in completing the course with all the ELC and half the Junior School classes. A Cross Country team was selected from the results of this event and trained hard with Mr Berry and Mr Eaves in preparation for the Tasmanian All Schools Cross Country event and the JSSATIS Cross Country carnival. Our students performed admirably in both these events, with highlights being an individual gold medal to Torin Jones and a team gold medal for our Year 6 team -Nat Franklin, Connor Schmidt and Fergus McShane, and a gold medal for our Year 3 team - Torin Jones, Spencer Reid and Samuel Kokkoris at the Tasmanian All Schools event. Owen Law of Year 5, who finished second in his age group, was selected to represent Tasmania from results at this event.

#### all students are to be commended for their commitment and participation in their chosen sport

The Junior School Winter Sports Day was the next event on the calendar for our students, who played for their houses in Basketball, Australian Rules, Hockey and Soccer. The points for the day were spread evenly across all houses with wins for Thorold in Basketball, School in Aussie Rules, Buckland in Hockey and Stephens in Soccer.

Term 3 saw us preparing for our Athletics Carnival with School House as the winning house. Highlights were record breaking performances by Nat Franklin, Torin Jones, Fraser Brumby and the Year 4 4 x 100m relay team of Fraser Brumby, Hugh Jubb, Timothy MacLachlan and Liam Scott. A team to represent the School at the JSSATIS Athletics carnival was selected from results from this day. All students who competed at the JSSATIS carnival did a sensational job both on and off the track, but the highlights came from Torin Jones, Oscar Chau and Russel Taib who all set new records.

From Athletics we moved back into summer sport with students again choosing a sport of their choice to keep them active during sports afternoons. Year 6 Cricket players again played a number of friendly matches with local schools and also hosted a visiting team from Sydney Grammar.

Term 3 also saw 81 Junior School students put themselves to the test in the Schools Triathlon Challenge. They swam, rode and ran with literally thousands of other students from Tasmanian schools at Bellerive Beach. This was a fantastic event which epitomised the spirit of Junior School sport at Hutchins; participating, doing your best and enjoying the experience.

## KINDER Burman



THIRD ROW: Byron Brown, James Scott, Tasman Poslek, Samuel Stone, Jobe Brocklehurst, Nicholas Jager, Luke Harris, Charles Harrison SECOND ROW: Jonty Coad, Julius Patiniotis, Lachlan Krushka, Rohan Subbarayalu, Oscar McLaren, Zacherry Church, Xavier Busch, Nelson Humphrey FRONT ROW: Callum Wherrett, Jack Akl, Lewis Turnbull, Arjun Yellap, Henry Browning, Finlay Adams, Gilbert Cumming, Lloyd Kacic-Midson TEACHER: Mrs Lee Burman TEACHER ASSISTANT: Mrs Karen Donohoe



Great fun at Roches Beach with Julius, Luke and Gilbert.



Lachlan, Luke, Lloyd and Lewis love autumn.



Sam puts the finishing touches to our class painting.



Arjun organises the model boats.



Oscar enjoys the helicopter visit.



Nicholas has made a web for his spider.



Rohan enjoys himself at the boat park.



Charles and Jobe painted birds for their project.


Pyjama party time



Nelson looks after the new plants in our garden.



Great bike riding, Henry



'Go Saints,' says Callum!



ames works hard on his rawing.



Byron is tired after running the Cross Country.



Zacherry explores at the Marine Centre.

### KINDER Turner



THIRD ROW: Joshua Wise, William Bovill, Toby Manning, Luca Nunn, Archie Simondson, Cody Wighton, Aden Chan, James Greenaway SECOND ROW: Robert Zeeman, Oliver Medwin, Archie Stewart, Charlie Mitchell, Xabi Kumar, Alexander Smart, Jack Larkin, Henry Larkin FRONT ROW: Edward Broadby, Reuben Cousins, Benjamin Pullin, Lachlan Ludeke, Matthew Zeeman, Jack Griffiths, Tyler Colev ABSENT: Nelson Foale TEACHER: Mrs Kate Turner TEACHER ASSISTANT: Mrs Stella Daglas



Luca showed us the tree at the Botanical Gardens which reminds him of the one from 'The Magic Faraway Tree.' The class sketched the tree.



Matthew held a cookie stall. His friend James helped him serve the customers.

### KINDER Turner

We have been enjoying a unit focusing on our 'Family Stories'. We listened to each boy present a special time or interest he has shared with one or more of his family members, giving him a chance to be the expert on an idea. We then explored this concept further as we celebrated each 'Family Story' in depth. These photographs depict some of the wonderful experiences which unfolded as we shared each others' 'Family Stories'.



Charlie enjoys exploring rock pools with his family. Will, Robert and Nelson helped him make a rock pool at school.



Luca helped Toby make a secret garden at school similar to the one Toby has at home.



Oliver enjoys water skiing with his family. He and his friend Archie made a boat with waterskiers attached.



Alexander showed his friends Jack L, Jack G and Henry how to make banana cake like he does with his Dad.



Xabi loves to play soccer with his dad and sister at home. Reuben and Edward helped Xabi make model soccer players at school.



William likes to work in his Poppy's garage. Poppy came to school and helped William and his friend Tyler make wooden boats.



Henry is a chef. He made ravioli with his friends. Henry and his brother Jack are making the pasta.



Lachlan took our class to see his boat 'Shiraz and painted a picture of his boat with his friends Ben and Luca.



Josh taught his friends Lachlan, Archie and Nelson how to cook quiche.



Cody showed his friends the easy and hard parts of the play equipment at his 'Pindos Park.'



Aden rides his bike with his family. We had an awesome bike afternoon on the oval.

36

# PREP Fielding



THIRD ROW: Tallis Flowers, Thomas Gibson, James Lucas, Harry Headlam, Campbell Logan SECOND ROW: Ethan Hurst, Samuel Wickham, Ollie Artley, Jack Parsons, Arthur Hayes-Newington, Oliver Traill, Finn Mead

FRONT ROW: Monty Williams, Toby Moss, Campbell Rooke, Thomas (George) Pullin, Huon Clark, Darcy Ellis-Wickham, Dong Hun Kang TEACHER: Mrs Sarah Fielding TEACHER ASSISTANT: Mrs Julie Arnott

### Memories of Prep F

I like school because you get to learn heaps of things. I like the teachers. Arthur Hayes-Newington

I like making the magic glass jars where we had to put glitter, feathers and sequences and paper in the jar. My jar sparkled. Monty Williams

I really liked doing the red books that had lots of maths work in them to do. My favourite page was the clock page. Jack Parsons



I liked doing the craft box because you can make anything you like. Harry Headlam



My best memory of Prep was doing swimming lessons at Collegiate Pool. It was very fun



swimming and I got better at swimming. Campbell Logan

I really liked going to the Collegiate Pool because we got to float on a really big mattress.



Darcy Ellis-Wickham







I liked swimming at the Collegiate Pool because it gave me energy and I liked swimming under the noodles. Samuel Wickham

The best memory of Prep was going to the Collegiate swimming pool because we were allowed to jump off the side of the pool into the water.

The best thing about Prep was playing games on the computer. James Lucas

Toby Moss





### PREP Fielding

My favourite activity in Prep was to paint the bird house with some Kinders because I got to paint one side. Oliver Traill



paint one side. Dliver Traill

The best thing in Prep was doing the 'Bird House.' Finn Mead

This year in Prep my favourite thing was reading books. Dong Hun Kang



In Prep I liked going to the Collegiate swimming pool and doing Learn to Swim. It was great fun! I also liked



building the house for the birds. Thomas (George) Pullin

In Prep my favourite thing was writing because it helps me when I grow up. Huon Clark

I liked it when we went on an excursion to the Tip Shop and we went on a bus to get there. Ollie Artley



In Prep we went to the Tip Shop to buy some wood and pipes to make the bird house. Campbell Rooke



In Prep my favourite excursion was going to the Tip Shop. We looked for materials to make our bird house. Thomas Gibson



It was fun collecting the swimming rings at the Collegiate swimming pool. Ethan Hurst



In Prep I like colouringin rainbow puzzles and drawing. Ethan Hardham

I liked it when we went to the Tip Shop to get the things to build the 'Bird House.' Tallis Flowers





# PREP Gilkes



THIRD ROW: Alan Hamilton, Hilton Voss, James Krushka, William Hale, Elijah Sargent SECOND ROW: Henry Carne, Sebastian Giannis, Ben Fergusson, Jefferson Roy-Chowdhury, James Walters, Angus Broadby, Verity Forrest

FRONT ROW: Lachlan Marriott, David Humphrey, Hugo Allison, Gabriel Wake, Cale Hine, Joshua Brazendale, William Whitbread

TEACHER: Mr David Gilkes TEACHER ASSISTANT: Mrs Julie Arnott

### ROARRRRR

Prep G boys explored lions as par of their work on 'Living Things'. The lion is one of the symbols of The Hutchins School and a lion cub is the symbol for the Early Learning Centre. In keeping with some of the principles of the Reggio Emilia philosophy to Early Childhood Education, the boys expressed their ideas and understandings of lions through 'many languages' – for example painting, drawing, writing, documented conversations and clay work.

One particular lion was regularly talked about by the Prep boys throughout the year. Christian the lion was raised by two men in a house in London and then released back into the wild. The boys were fascinated with the amazing footage they watched on the internet of the adult lion Christian being reunited with his human friends after many years of being part of a pride in Africa.

# PREP Gilkes

### Mr Gilkes asked the boys some questions about lions:

What do you know about lions?

Lachlan Marriott: Lions like meat. They have sharp teeth. They live in Africa.

**Angus Broadby:** The dad lion has a mane. Lions can pounce when they see animals.

Henry Carne: Lions have very sharp teeth. They can run very fast.

Verity Forrest: Lions have sharp teeth so they can eat animals.

Ben Fergusson: Lions can run fast to catch their food. When they let Christian the lion go he remembered them and he ran up to them.

Alan Hamilton: Lions eat meat. Christian the lion got bigger and he remembered those two people and hugged them.

David Humphrey: Lions roar because they get angry and they eat meat.

James Walters: Lions can camouflage into their surroundings to catch their prey.

**Gabriel Wake:** Lions are really strong and they sometimes get angry and eat meat.

William Whitbread: Christian the lion met those people again and jumped on them ... how did he know?

James Krushka: The lion Christian ran up to the men and hugged them and remembered them. They were happy.

Jefferson Roy-Chowdhury: Christian grew up at the people's house, they took him back and then when they came back he remembered them. He came up and jumped on them.

Joshua Brazendale: Boy lions have manes but girl lions don't. Christian the lion was a kid and he grew up and then he remembered them for a long time and he ran up to cuddle them.

Aaron Hardham: Lions eat meat. They wait until something is looking the other way and then they get them and rip them.

Hilton Voss: Christian the lion's family came back and he gave them a really big hug because he missed them.

### Why is the lion a good symbol for The Hutchins School?

Henry Carne: Because lions are strong.

James Walters: Lions are brave and Prep boys are brave and strong.

Lachlan Marriott: The builders of Hutchins thought it was a good thing.

Elijah Sargent: I think a dog would be better.

Verity Forrest: Because lions are fast and we're fast when we run.

Alan Hamilton: Lions are tough.

**Gabriel Wake:** A lion makes it look like it's a boy's school.

Jefferson Roy-Chowdhury: Lions can make loud noises like the siren at play time.

Hilton Voss: A snail wouldn't be good because it would be too slow but lions are quicker than them. Lions are not scared of anything!



William Whitbread, James Krushka, Hugo Allison, Jefferson Roy-Chowdhury and David Humphrey with the ELC lion cub



Books, photographs and models of lion things to explore – provocations for thinking!



Angus Broadby and Alan Hamilton look closely at a photograph of a lion sculpture.

### *Could a real lion be part of The Hutchins School?*

Cale Hine: No – a lion's too big and scary and it can't talk.

James Walters: No – because he might destroy the property and go out of control.

Angus Broadby: There was a real lion at Hutchins at the Cross Country.

Joshua Brazendale: A real lion could eat the kids... and maybe the teachers! But I could pat it.



Lachlan Marriott remembers the Hutchins lion at Dru Point. This is the cross country. We had to chase the lion. I was faster than him.



*Cale Hine:* The lion is trying to look for his prey.



Sebastian Giannis: We had to daw a lion's face on a circle and then we had to get these rectangles and put them around his face in a pattern to make his mane.

# YEAR 1



THIRD ROW: Dashan Forrest, William Anders, William Francis, Lloyd Lucas, Declan Gilmour, Felix Morgan, George Odgers, Thomas Doyle

SECOND ROW: Will Grierson, James Mitchell, Joshua Wiese, Tom Griffiths, Oscar Reisz, Angus Christie, James Kemp, Tyson Afamasaga

FRONT ROW: Henry Oddie, James Giannis, Liam Canny, Lucien Patiniotis, Lachlan Redburn, Luke Mitchell, Fraser Cumming

TEACHER: Mr Alex Mirowski TEACHER ASSISTANT: Mrs Amanda Thomson



THIRD ROW: Benjamin Boman, Jake Maumill, Maxwell Larkin, Isaiah Douglas, Ronan Hardy, Quinn Kacic-Midson, Lochie Taplin, Flynn Millhouse

SECOND ROW: Benjamin Horsham, Benjamin Barker, Zachary Phair, Oliver Elrick, Will Durand, Aryan Dubey, Riley Kopfstein, Luke Manns

FRONT ROW: James Atkins, Benjamin Davie, Michael Carmona, Matthew Hocking, Kilian Rankin, Oliver Bird, Jake Wilkinson

ABSENT: Micah Finnila

TEACHER: Mrs Judy Smith TEACHER ASSISTANT: Mrs Amanda Thomson

### Come over to my place

Year 1 have been investigating why we need shelter, the materials we use to build a house and what influences the design of a home. The boys experienced being engineers, builders, architects, designers through a range of learning experiences.

My dream house is a tree. It has a party room and it has a pipe that leads down to the toilets. There is a land called Mario at the top. In the land of Mario you can ride yoshies and it has lots of bedrooms. My dream house has a TV room with a big plasma TV. Joshua Wiese

My dream home is awesome. There is a massage room and a boxing room. It has a games room and a swimming room. In the games room you play footy games and soccer games. Henry Oddie

When you walk into the house, if you bring your swimmers, you can go down the water slide. If you don't have your swimmers you can go up the stairs and down the lift. There's gold underground and you can go down the laundry chute to the baby's room. James Mitchell

My dream home has a trap door at the bottom of the floor. There is a guy falling through the trapdoor and there is a slippery slip. Liam, Tom, Oscar and I are going down the slippery slip. Tom and Liam are waiting at the top of the slide. Lachlan Redburn

In my dream house you have to get a strike or a spare to get in. And to get into the sport room, you have to go down the slide and there is a racetrack and you have to find a secret door to get to the racetrack. There is a telescope that sees what you want to see. And there is a disco. Jake Maumill



Tom Griffiths, Thomas Doyle, Angus Christie and Lloyd Lucas made different types of shelters from around the world using clay.



Lucien Patiniotis, Fraser Cumming and Luke Mitchell. Looks pretty strong to me.



Jake Maumill, Quinn Kacic-Midson, Maxwell Larkin and Aryan Dubey used clay to build a range of shelters from all over the world.



James Atkins, Finn Stevenson, and Michael Carmona take up the challenge to build a shelter out of milk cartons.



Jake Wilkinson, Benjamin Barker and Will Grierson getting ready to check the strength of their bridge.



Matthew Hocking, Flynn Millhouse, James Giannis, Benjamin Boman, Luke Mitchell and William Anders with their futuristic houses.

In my dream home I have a bedroom with a TV and a bunk bed. I have an air craft that is right above me and the air craft carries an F22 pilot and a ladder that is 14 metres and leads up to the air craft. There is a slide and there are two coconut trees.

### Tyson Afamasaga

My dream home has a pool with a deadly shark in it that will bite your head off except if you are a friend. My house is full of gold and money. I have laser beams on the gold house to protect it. Luke Mitchell

My house is a castle. It has a disco, a pool, a games room, motorbikes, laser skirmish, ten pin bowling, a rollercoaster and a bar. You have to bring your bathers because there is a pool. My favourite thing is the laser skirmish because there is a dizzy wizzy that brings you to the bases. **Oliver Bird** 

My dream home has a pool and it has a pet shop. In the pet shop you can buy pets but no cats are allowed in the house. But you can buy them at the pet shop. There is a dog making machine and a sunbathing room and a park. Oscar Reisz



Benjamin Davie's dream home



Declan Gilmore's dream home



Lochie Taplin's dream home



George Odger's dream home

# Year 1



Oliver Elrick painting his house of the future



Kilian Rankin, Tyson Afamasaga and Dashan Forrest. How strong do you think it will be?



Oscar Reisz designing his dream home



William Francis' dream home



Will Durand with his dream home



James Kemp and Benjamin Horsham measure the height of their building.



Liam Canny's dream home



Zachary Phair's dream home



Jake Maumill's dream home



Isaiah Douglas' dream home



Oliver Bird's dream home



Riley Kopfstein's dream home

EARLY LEARNING CENTRE

42

# YEAR 2 Bamford



THIRD ROW: Samuel Harris, Axel Moore, Ethan Taylor, William Lickiss, Jack Whitton, Thomas Midgley SECOND ROW: James Fulton, Saxon Wright, Alexander Betts, Jack Marios, Noah Sargent, Sebastian Longman FRONT ROW: Ethan Medwin, Ryan Deng, Thomas Bennett, Henry Reeve, Thomas MacLachlan, Joe Clifford TEACHER: Mrs Beth Bamford

### Green Machines for the Future

Year 2 investigated renewable energy resources and designed and built their own Green Machines for the future.

I made a solar panel train. There are five solar panels. I built a seat in there. The engine is in here through the door. It heats the steam and the steam turns the turbine and makes electricity to make the motor go to drive the wheels. Alexander Betts

I made a water car and it runs on water. The oxygen of the bubbles go into the oxygen tank. The hydrogen is for powering the wheels. There's an engine for the hydrogen. The oxygen goes into the air. The wheels don't go that fast because the engine is too heavy. The hydrogen is a bit heavy. The tank for the water is at the top at the back. I made the screen out of cellophane and haven't made a door but it was too hard. I'm going to draw them on. Joe Clifford My Green Machine is an underwater house. It runs on solar power – there is a solar panel. The special features are its windmills. The bigger the waves – they make them go too. The solar power helps the house for power for cooking. There is a generator and it makes the electricity.

James Fulton

I built a power station that runs on rubbish and the methane gas. The methane gas burns with air. The garbage truck brings the rubbish and it gets burned up and the methane comes along the tube and spins the turbine and makes the generator make the electricity go out to the power lines. Axel Moore



Ryan building his Green Machine



Thomas is building his Green Machine.



Ethan is building his Green Machine.

# YEAR 2 Bamford



Saxon's Green Machine



Tom shows his Green Machine at the Science Fair



lenry and his water powered propeller



Sebastian shows his Green Machine at the Science Fair



Ethan shows his Green Machine at the Science Fair.



Jack and Alex visit the Science Lab



Axel and Sam visit the Science Lab.

# YEAR 2 Salter



THIRD ROW:Sebastian Folvig, Charles Maxwell, Hudson Arkley-Anderson, Troy Kroon, Jack Vallance SECOND ROW: Jack Allison, Trent Stephens, Jack Campbell, Harry Whitton, Hamish Betts, Harry Riley FRONT ROW: Alexander Rankin, Oscar Kessler, Sean Magnusson, Max Denehey, Jack Rossiter, Fletcher Hilder ABSENT: Alden Rankin

TEACHER: Mrs Lesley Salter



Trent makes his model



Ethan is building his Green Machine.

### It's a Conundrum'

It's a conundrum, What shall we do? We really don't want to leave Year 2! The year has passed, in a flash But now we do have to dash. The work's been done. Fun has been had. There were some moments When guys were bad! All was forgiven, Lessons were had. We kept persisting, Wrong and bad choices we were resisting! First it was sea monkeys, eggs to small creatures, Some boys grew beans with strange looking features! Next it was families, history and treasure. Heirlooms and power points without measure. Our Gappie was Michael, we loved him to bits. Maths groups, place value, adding and take, We loved choosing boxes - great things to make. Narnia was the land we loved so much. Aslan, we all longed and longed to touch. We loved the story, Twits came first. Dawn Treader next, the picture that

Term 2 was clean and green, Renewable power was to be seen. We made blue prints for machines, Machines that used renewable power Our Science fair took more than an hour! Every day we worked hard Daily fitness was our reward. We loved the playground, Skipping too, 'Let's play Squirt,' Yes. Wahoo! 'Squirt' was the very, very, very best, It helped us to concentrate and listen We all got good, we played it lots. Call out a name, bob straight down, Mustn't wait to turn around. Friday was Free Choice, if the work had been done. Stickers we aim for. No one has ever got none! So many things were fun, fun, fun. PE Reading, Rave, Chapel, French, just a few, We loved Music and choir time too. Artistic things we learnt to do, Working with clay and pastels were new. Swimming was daily, improvements mainly, Splashing, diving, saving, gliding. Sport came next, every Thursday -We all loved our Winter Sport Great skills we were taught.

Into Term 3 we tumbled, So much work our tummies rumbled. Visiting playgrounds, PMIs Loving designing, Making models, 'This looks good,' 'That will work,' 'Let's make it fun.' Designing and building are nearly done. The Big Day out was very new Southport beach was on view. We loved it all We ran and played. In Year 3, we all will have stayed! Year 3 'Buddies' was a treat, Lots of new friends we got to meet. Mapping skills we got to learn, writing stories, that was cool. So many things we got to do. Mustn't forget that incredible girl... 'Matilda!' The conundrum is still very much here, 'How will we fit everything in?' Speech Night rehearsals had us in a spin. The last few weeks were so much fun. We wished that we had only just begun. But. The final time has come, Our wonderful ELC journey is done. We say together, so you can hear, We really have had an **awesome** year!



burst!

Goodbye to Sebastian



Ethan is building his Green Machine



Swimming Term 2: Jack



The Movember boys



'Tra la Laaaaa !'

By 2S, 2010

Transfixed faces ... wow!

### YEAR 3 Marriott



THIRD ROW: Selby Allen, Lachlan Prescott, Collins Wang, Kael Fishwick, Dylan Taylor, Sudhaunshu Hardikar

SECOND ROW: Petro Anagnostis, Bradley Lakoseljac, Sajiv Rao, Joshua Dine, Lachlan Richardson, Thomas Reeves FRONT ROW: Andrew Kemp, Samuel Botte, Yianni Anagnostis, Nathan Plunkett,

FRONT ROW: Andrew Kemp, Samuel Botte, Yianni Anagnostis, Nathan Plunkett, Brendan Heatley-Hart, Bryan Stephens TEACHER: Mr Scott Marriott

The swimming carnival was my most nervous event of the year, it was really fun though. It was my first swimming carnival. I came third in my first race. I was really proud of myself. Before my first race my mum kept grinning at me and it made me really nervous. In my second race I came fifth but before the relay I came second. In the relay we came first.I went before the end of the carnival but Nick's mum text my mum and told me that Buckland won. I sang the house song the whole way home. Nathan Plunkett

My favourite memory is going to Elizabeth College. My favourite part was the hot air balloons, but I wish we could have eaten the Gummy Bears he exploded! We played with bubbles made of carbon dioxide. Sajiv Rao

2010 was an awesome year I could hear Mum and Dad cheer My favourite moment will be speech night,

I am going to be in such a fright, That I just might..... Sudhaunshu Hardikar We went to Collegiate a number of times this year. We went there for learn to swim, Anglesea Presents and to see our Year 3 Buddies. We walked about 2km from the Senior campus to the Junior campus!

#### Aaron Kwan

This year cartooning was fun. Especially the expressions! Drawing Andy Cap was fun. My favourite expression is horror. In GeoDome I learnt a lot more about space. The discovered universe is about 15 million years across. Andrew Kemp

In Term 1 Mr Marriott told us to see if we can do awesome graffiti. I thought mine was pretty cool, but Selby's was awesome. The class did really well. Selby and I have improved really well. Lachlan Richardson

Camp was a good trip for school and the first walk was fun. The food was great; the games were lots of fun! Kael Fishwick My buddy was very shy, but then he began to become like a brother,

We soon became friends and looked out for each other.

The second day he was not here,

I began to shed a tear.

Later I had a play and

All my problems went right away.

I liked having him back. Brendan Heatley-Hart

My best memory of year three is the Interschool Swimming Carnival, at the Aquatic Centre. The big white pool divider was gone! The pool looked really big. I was amazed! I came first in the 50m breast stroke. The big time board was working and there was a Telstra voice which told us 'take your marks...... Beeep'. I was really happy. Lachlan Prescott

In Term 1 we did graffiti. Of course we did it on paper, behind the white board so no one could see! We have really improved on our graffiti. Joshua Dine

2010 has been a great year. My favourite thing this year was skipping with 3R, because I worked out how to do crisscross! We also played Sudden Death I came third on two of them. My favourite skipping game was tails. Bradley Lakoseljac

My favourite moments of the year were the Geodome and Collegiate. At the Geodome we got to see the planets, planetary nebula, stars and galaxies around the universe. We did all this just using a remote control and a computer – oh and Mr Ralph!

### Collins Wang

I remember when Thomas and I made it into the Interschool Athletics carnival. It was my turn to race the 100m, the gun shot, I ran! I finished in third place! I was proud. When we ran the relay we came second.

### Yianni Anagnostis

The day of the Father's Day stall was fun because we had the chance to buy a present for our Dads. That day was the greatest day of my life. Samuel Botte My favourite memory of 2010 was camp. It was fun because we went down to the beach and played soccer with the Year 9s. We won! It was too wet to sleep in the tents, but it was still fun. I went boogie boarding, I caught some big waves. My cabin mates were – Josh, Sajiv, Andrew, Yianni and Bryan. Dylan Taylor

My favourite memory of 3M was when Yianni and I went to the Interschool Athletics carnival. I came first in the 100m and Yianni came third. In the relay we came second. Our team came second or first in nearly every event! It was a hot day too.

#### Thomas Reeves

Going to watch 'Diary of a Wimpy Kid' was probably the funniest excursion of the year. I liked the bit were Greg said 'I heard Riley has a cute Butt' and Rowley said 'a butt can't be cute, it's a butt!' Greg and Rowley were really good friends in the movie.

Bryan Stephens

On the 11<sup>th</sup> hour of the 11<sup>th</sup> day of the 11<sup>th</sup> Month in 2010 the bell rang. We had a minute's silence. To remember the soldiers who have died around the world. I look forward to Remembrance Day next year.

Selby Allen



Catching waves on camp



Year 3 beach walk

Camp was the most fun I have had all year! I was nervous when we had the swimming carnival. I was excited when we made our rockets. Golden Time makes us happy. It was funny at Cross Country. Petro Anagnostis



Lunch tım



Where's Brendan'?

### YEAR 3 Robinson



THIRD ROW: Nicholas Smart, Miles McTaggart, Nicholas Allardice, Zane Foster, Luca Gentile, Dean Conn

SECOND ROW: Lewis Drury, William Cottier, Mitchell Warrington, Karl Lickiss, Jack Scott, Angus Pullin

FRONT ROW: Brandon Fisher, Samuel Giannis, Alexander Mackay, George Mazengarb, Patrick Alcock, Ayden Cousins TEACHER: Mr Paul Robinson My favourite thing about Year 3 was camp. I really enjoyed bushwalking. I liked doing skipping. Camp was awesome. Talking with my friends Miles and Brandon was cool. Sam Giannis

My favourite thing about Year 3 was the camp. I really enjoyed making models. I liked doing bushwalking. Basketball was awesome. Camping with my friends Angus and George was cool. Dean Conn

My favourite thing about Year 3 was bush walking. I really enjoyed bushwalking. I liked doing champs. Making model planes was fun. Playing soccer with my friends George and Will was great. Ayden Cousins

# YEAR 3 Robinson

My favourite thing about Year 3 was making new friends. I really enjoyed playing bootball. I liked learning violin. Camp was awesome. Playing with my friends Gabrial and Karl was fun. Mitchell Warrington

My favourite thing about Year 3 was playing with my friends. I really enjoyed bootball. I liked doing violin. Champs was lots of fun. Computers in the library with my friends Mitchell and Karl was really fun. Gabrial Carelese

My favourite thing about Year 3 was Camp. I really enjoyed playing spotlight. I liked doing the table tennis tournament. IT was awesome.

Painting planets with my friends Lewis and Jack was fun

Luca Gentile

My favourite thing about Year 3 was making model planes. I really enjoyed learning about planets. I liked doing going on excursion to the movies.

Bushwalking was fun. Launching rockets with my friends Alex and Nick A was fun Patrick Alcock

My favourite thing about Year 3 was Camp. I really enjoyed swing on the rope swing.

I liked doing shelter building. IT was interesting. Painting aboriginal animals with my friends Jack and Luca was great. Lewis Drury

My favourite thing about Year 3 was making model planes. I really enjoyed camp. I liked doing maths. Flying paper planes was fun. Playing champs with my friends Patrick and Nick A was fun. Alexander Mackay My favourite thing about Year 3 was going out for sport. I really enjoyed doing space work. I liked doing our magic spell writing. Perfect Lift Off writing was good. Playing with my friends on the oval was fun.

Samuel Jones

My favourite thing about Year 3 was playing with my friends. I really enjoyed making model planes. It was fun. I liked doing Hobart Sim City. Spelling was good. Building shelters with my friends at camp was good. Karl Lickiss

My favourite thing about Year 3 was learning new things. I really enjoyed camp and playing soccer. I liked doing projects Bushwalking was brilliant. Quick cricket with my friends Dean and Luca was awesome. Jack Scott

My favourite thing about Year 3 was the excursion to the movies. I really enjoyed making models with everyone.

I liked doing sport in the afternoon. Football was wicked. Playing soccer with my friends Will and Lewis was great. Angus Pullin

My favourite thing about Year 3 was making lots of art. I really enjoyed bike riding in the triathlon.

I liked doing the BFG giants. Bushwalking was cool. Playing with my friends George and Brandon was cool. Miles McTaggart

My favourite thing about Year 3 was learning everything in class and Mrs Scaife. I really enjoyed listening to Horrid

Henry stories. I liked doing classwork.

Camp was awesome. Playing with my friends Kael and

Nick was fun.

Zane Foster

My favourite thing about Year 3 was Mr Robinson. I really enjoyed making models. I liked doing the triathlon. Camping was wicked. Building camps with my friends Nick and Sam was brilliant. Nicholas Smart

My favourite thing about Year 3 was playing cricket. I really enjoyed bushwalking on Mt Wellington.

I liked flying paper planes. Making model planes was good. Playing with my friends Dean and Sam was great.

George Mazengarb

My favourite thing about Year 3 was Mr Robinson I really enjoyed PE I liked doing games and sport. Camp was okay. Learning with my friends Nicholas and Luca was fun. Nicholas Allardice

My favourite thing about Year 3 was the excursion to the movies. I really enjoyed going to Camp. I liked doing soccer for Hutchins. Football was fun. Quick Cricket with my friends Angus and Lewis was awesome. William Cottier

My favourite thing about Year 3 was music and making model planes. I really enjoyed playing the violin. I liked doing the triathlon. Mr Robinson was my best teacher. Playing soccer with my friends Will and Miles was fun. Brandon Fisher

My favourite thing about Year Three was teaching a great class.

I really enjoyed doing all the fun activities inside and outside the classroom.

I liked doing model building and painting. Playing champs and teaching other new games was fun. Mr Paul Robinson

# YEAR 3 Vivarelli



THIRD ROW: Jordan Kiley, Torin Jones, Oliver Burrows-Cheng, William Sharman, James Carne, Josiah Ralph SECOND ROW: Spencer Reid, Joshua Seaman, George Alcock, Jackson Coad, William MacMichael, Callum Calder, Zachary Pulver, Samuel Kokkoris FRONT ROW: Raiden Lemon, Maxwell Beattie, Gregory Beckett, Thomas Bent, Nicholas Powell, Ethan Hine

TEACHER: Miss Kate Vivarelli

### Thinking in 3V

This year in 3V we have focused on different thinking strategies to help sort our ideas. To reflect on our best memories from the year we used some of the strategies we learnt. We put our thinking caps on and this is what we came up with!

#### Water Rockets Launch

(Y chart-looks like, feels like, sounds like)

It looked like people were having fun building rockets. We saw the rockets nose diving and the water flying out of our bottle creations.

It felt like soaking, cold water, splashing on us as the rockets blasted off! We felt happy when we launched our perfect, slim rockets.

It sounded like rockets smashing the sound barrier. People were counting down until they launched. We heard the rockets whizzing through the air.

Samuel Kokkoris, Torin Jones, Joshua Seaman, Oliver Burrows-Cheng and Gregory Beckett

### Molesworth Excursion (PMI)

#### Plus

We built huts out of sticks, branches and bark which we collected from the bush.

We made crispy, tasty damper.

We saw wallaby footprints in the sand.

We nervously climbed over the wobbling tyre and rope bridges, scared of falling in the creek below.

#### Minus

We almost fell off the two bridges. Spencer's hut kept caving in. Some of us burnt our damper.

#### Interesting

We explored a rocky, sandy cave. We got to play chasings on a gigantic rock.

James Carne, Ethan Hine, Spencer Reid, Thomas Bent and Jordan Kiley



'Family' – Josiah and his grandparents



'Balancing' – Torir



'Creating'-Thomas and Jackson

JUNIOR SCHOOL

# YEAR 3 Vivarelli

Tasmanian Expo lunch (I think, I see, I wonder)

I think the food tasted overwhelmingly good. I think the Valhalla ice cream tasted great! I think I ate too much!

I saw delicious food being presented on the table. I saw the class lining up for pumpkin soup and milkshakes. I saw the melting triple choc fudge brownies. I saw the Cadbury chocolate disappearing quickly.

I wondered how many apples Raiden ate? I wondered what food everyone tried and what they liked? I wondered what the smoked salmon tasted like?

Jackson Coad, Raiden Lemon, William Sharman, Josiah Ralph and Nicholas Powell

Camp Thinkers Hats (De Bono's Six Thinkers Hats)

Information: We played soccer on the sandy beach. We all went to bed very late.

It was a long bus ride and there were three cabins and three tents.

Feelings: We were all feeling nervous and excited on the way down to Southport before our first camp. We felt scared on the rope swing.

Strengths: We went bushwalking and boogie boarding. The fire was warm and there was a big open space to play in. The food was good! New Ideas: There could be more table tennis balls and bats. We should bring more socks and go to the beach more.

Thinking: We think we should have brought more marshmallows, pillows and water.

Judgements: There should be newer cabins and an even longer bushwalk. People should sleep for longer.

George Alcock, Maxwell Beattie, Zachary Pulver, Callum Calder and William MacMichael



'Designing' – Josiah and Raiden



'Exploring'– Ethan, James, Will, Nick and Jordan

### YEAR 4



THIRD ROW: Hamish Johnston, James Browne, Hugh Jubb, Liam Scott, Finn Macrossan, Patrick Betts, Henry Mitchell, Connor Noble

SECOND ROW: Koh Kawaguchi, Rhett Wiggins, Oliver Lamb, William Stadler, Alexander Titchen, Timothy J MacLachlan, William Mathot-Dewis, Thomas Davie

FRONT ROW: Charles Moss, Jack McTye, Lachlan Peacock, Baxter Crawford, Hugh Oxbrough, Henry Chambers, James Anderson, Nicholas Davey

ABSENT: Tom Taglieri





THIRD ROW: Sebastien (Bas) Horne, Mitchell Rickards, Hamish Allan, Mitchell Hurst, Will Polley, Samuel Carmichael

SECOND ROW: Ryan Marshall, Fraser Brumby, Alistair Kinne, Fergus Charles, Kade Rossiter, Oscar Chau, Jonathon Towns

FRONT ROW: Declan Lee, Samuel Ryan, Tenzin Phuntsok, Benjamin Green, Jack Weeding, Mason Bird, Benjamin McTaggart, Joseph Bailey, Sam Canny ABSENT: Timothy Mison, Toby Mison

TEACHER: Mrs Caroline McCreary

### The Year 4 News

Year 4 students have been busy in our roles as reporters of the major events this year. We hope you enjoy our stories.

### **Great Performances**

Year 4 were off again to review a performance by the senior Collegiate students who were joined by some boys from Hutchins. Cinderella was a spectacular show which held us spellbound. There was a feeling of excitement as the curtains opened as this was the first performance in front of a large audience. The costumes were colourful, the characters were strong in their roles and the singing and dancing were very professional. Overall, it was a performance definitely worthwhile seeing. Collegiate Junior School students performed Angelsea Presents where the students performed the tales of Snow White and also The Little Red Hen. All performers earned whistles and cheers and rightfully so!

Do Your Homework or Walk the Plank!

We're on deck with Year 4 as we hit the seas on the *Lady Nelson*, actually just the Derwent River. It was so cold I was going to jump off the ship! Well, it probably wasn't that cold ... anyway, we all felt like convicts on our way to Botany Bay, but otherwise it was great! We left Constitution Dock slowly, but not a bad pace. As soon as we got to the middle of the river we sped up a bit. The boys got to hoist the sails, ring the bell and even steer the ship! We went up to the bridge and back and were told the story of the *Lady Nelson.* What an interesting history and a great way to learn!



# YEAR 4

### A Touch of AFL

The tension was building up as we joined for a Year 4 meeting. The anticipation was great when we were told that a special football player was coming. Who could it be? Marcus Davies was coming! Marcus left Hutchins last year and was drafted to the Carlton Football Club. In our tribes we wrote five questions to ask him in our 'press conference' interview. Marcus gave us very detailed answers and we learned a lot about the commitment and determination it takes to make it in the AFL. We headed outside to have a class versus class



AFL game. 4Mc had Marcus, while 4B had Mr Berry. It was a fantastic game! It was really interesting to hear about the experiences and we learned that with determination to follow your dreams it is possible to make them come true. It was a great experience.



#### Lights, Camera, Action

The spotlight shone on the Year 4 Wakakirri performance as it hit the stage of the Derwent Entertainment Centre. The performance was outstanding

but in order to achieve this many things had to happen before the night. Hours of practice were organised and with the help of a few dance experts (since Mr Berry failed dismally at trying to teach them to dance) it started to come together. The costumes were made, our faces were painted and we became the characters that were invented in the imagination of Walt Disney. In front of a capacity crowd the



boys put on a performance that amazed the audience but also left a message in their hearts. A great shout of 'believe' left the audience in no doubt that by believing in ourselves, with hard work and a little imagination, that anything is possible. It was a wonderful experience that we will never forget.

### Boring Old School Work ... Not!

We have learned so many interesting things this year. We kept a record of our journey as a convict or officer on the First Fleet and followed the adventures of an early Australian explorer. We used the six thinking hats to organise our learning and that enabled us to look at the achievements from many different perspectives. Ancient Communities were our next challenge where we looked at how what has happened in world history and how that has influenced our world today. We became Romans, Egyptians, Greeks, Incas and even Vikings. The boys broke up into groups within their tribes and each group had to research a certain aspect of their communities. The presentations were interesting with models, posters and a wide variety of information. Our focus for third term was 'Waterworks' and in small groups we produced a short two minute TV show about an aspect of water. Filming with Mr Moore and the brilliant technology was an amazing experience.

# YEAR 5 Knight



THIRD ROW: James Tucker, Benjamin Feeger, Angus Calvert, Xavier Dixon, Oliver Farid, Samuel McCulloch, Owen Law, Thomas Bester SECOND ROW: Layne Alexander, Lewis Wood, Albert Wyatt, Patrick Kearney, Thomas Dunbabin, James Weir, Liam Lorkin, David Humphrey FRONT ROW: Michael Oddie, Tom McTye, Nicholas McIntyre, Isaac Sargent, Maxillanos Kokkoris, Thomas Young, Alex Grining, William Harris TEACHER: Ms Trish Knight



5K remember Louis Charles Bernacchi, first Australian to overwinter in Antarctica and ex student of Hutchins



5K busy in the garden



Nick and Tom M show our different sized pumpkins



Angus, Thomas Young and Alec examine rocks with our visiting Scientist



More enthusiastic gardening



Tom B, James W, Patirck, Xavier and Nick imagine themselves on Macquarie Island

My favourite part of the year was when we went to the Marine Discovery Centre for our Term 1 Ecosystem unit. In Term 2 my favourite part was the Crystal Growing competition; I was partners with Layne. **Tom Bester** 

Everything was great but the best bit was the camp. We went to Bruny Island for three days. We went on a ferry to Roberts Point from Kettering. When we got there it was great but on the second day some people got homesick. David

Some of the things I really enjoyed about Year 5 were the teachers and the subjects, knowing that if I needed help the teachers were there for me. Thank you Ms Knight for a great year. James W

The highlight of my Year 5 was our play, *Pinocchio*. We started rehearsals in Term 1 through to Term 2. We didn't get our part until the end, well almost. We had to practise every part and then the teachers chose who was best at it. In the end I was the Dunce at the school Pinocchio went to. I really enjoyed it and had great fun. **Owen** 

This year I had a lot of fun. One of my favourite things we did was growing crystals, it was awesome. We had great excursions; it was the best year yet. Xavier

My highlight of my year in 5K was probably the camp. In my tent in the night we didn't get any sleep because of the rain and wind. The tent was blowing everywhere and so we went inside. It took about five minutes to get out of the tent because it had collapsed. The next day we went canoeing, which was fun. Sam

Year 5 was awesome! One of my favourite things was all the activities I got to do. Starting with the Wiki workshop (which happened to be on my birthday!), I suddenly found myself being involved in so many things like a survey and the Green Team. All the other events like excursions and sport carnivals we did over the course of the year were also great. Year 5 has been an excellent year! James Tucker

# YEAR 5 Knight

The highlight of Year 5 was when we went on our Hobart Polar Connections walk and our lunch at Mures. I enjoyed our bushwalk to Bangor. The Marine Discovery Centre was very interesting. I learned a lot at the Marine Discovery Centre.

#### Oliver

I had fun this year doing swimming. I got into the Inter-school team. The yeast experiment was fun and the pizzas we made were delicious. Making sock puppets were fun even though mine's eye fell off.

#### Angus

Making sock puppets was really fun. 5K and 3V learnt how to sew properly (with some minor needle stabs.) We also learnt how to co-operate when we made a puppet show afterwards. Layne

The best bit about 5k were the fun experiments because we got to make our own pizza and our own island. As well, we got to taste our pizzas and see our islands flood. The other good thing was the Hobart Polar Connections assignment. Liam

Year 5 was the best year I've had so far at Hutchins. Ms Knight has been the best teacher I could have hoped for this year. She has helped me so much with every subject and as for the class, it was a great class and I think we have made some great friends over the year. Michael

This year was a really good year. The things I liked most were the camp, the garden and *Pinocchio*. The camp I enjoyed it more than most. I think because I did what I normally do in my free time (walk around). The garden was another good experience because I got to taste lots of different foods. *Pinocchio* was good because I had been wanting to do a musical since my brother did *Honk*. **Thomas** 

What I enjoyed in Year 5K was the Athletics carnival because it is running and I'm good at running and because it is really, really fun. Max I enjoyed Year 5 a lot. My favourite part must have been when we were in the middle of an Antarctic assignment and got to write about the race to the South Pole. Lewis

The highlight of the year was going on the *Aurora Australis* for a tour. It was brilliant seeing the engine room, the controls and everything else. Nick

Year 5 was great. It's hard to choose a favourite part. Camp and excursions were good but the best bit was probably the Wiki workshop and the Science week lunch. I was very, very lucky to go to both of them. It's always fun to know you can make a change to the world. So much fun! Tom D

I really enjoyed camp. I loved walking peacefully among the green landscape. I cherished the water as I canoed through the great lake. I felt the hot sand touch my feet as I ran into an endless realm of happiness. I savour the taste of delicious food. How I loved camp! Isaac

This year it was quite fun. We did work but also evened it out with games. We went on fun excursions. Camp wasn't the best. But overall it was almost the best year yet.

#### Albert



*Year 5* Pinocchio *chorus* 



Costa and 5K in our garder



Helen demonstrates how to harvest leeks

My character in *Pinocchio* was ABC. I really enjoyed the musical. Mrs Short, Mr Bainbridge, Ms Knight and Mr Webster helped everyone to pull through. The first time I did it I was very frightened. I thought I was going to muck up but I didn't. I was really pleased with myself and everybody else.

### Alex

My highlight was when my Dad came in and talked to us about the River Derwent and also when I was in the String Soirée. I was the only double bass and I enjoyed it very much.

### Patrick

My favourite thing this year in 5K was Hobart's Polar Connections, *Aurora Australis* and lunch at Mures. It was my favourite because we got to walk around the land marks from our project. Go on and have a tour of the *Aurora Australis* and, of course, having lunch at Mures with ICE CREAM. Will

I enjoyed the Antarctic unit as we learned a lot about Hobart. At the end of the unit we visited all the sites, boarded the *Aurora Australis* and got to have lunch at Mures. Ben Feeger

Mark Greenwood's visit was interesting and he told us about how he went looking for the gold when he was writing *Lassiter's Reef.* I enjoyed the visit of Sue and the sniffer dog, Shark. He got rid of all the cats on Tasman Island. **Tom M** 



Tom D and James T had the opportunity to meet Polar Explorer Tim Jarvis



Sewing sock puppets was a great buddy activity we did with Year 3

### YEAR 5 Webster



THIRD ROW: Harrison Bignold, Dane Friberg, Matthew Burgess, Alec Kelly, Morgan Downham, Hamish McCulloch, Reuben James, Hamish Spence, Peter Mercado SECOND ROW: Samuel Caccavo, Thomas Baddiley, Harry Wallace, Charles Read, Daniel Kelleher, Alec Munro, Robert Jiang, James Moroney FRONT ROW: Philip Humphrey, Jeremy Reid, Jacob McIntyre, Jack Hayes, Fraser Moroney, Elliot Bleathman, Tasman Daengdej, Phelin Ndimanyi TEACHER: Mr Michael Webster



Alec K and Bucks' Basketball Team



Albert, Tasman, Thomas, Alec M and Rober



Philip, Peter and Hamich McC



Harrison, Reuben, Morgan and Thomas

On 10 November, 2010 the Hutchins Green Team went to the Kids 4 Kids' conference at the University of Tasmania. It was a huge conference, with over 600 people. We went there to help, guide and usher people to their seats and workshops. Some of us worked at the registration helping people find where they were supposed to be. There was also a swap meet for toys which was very successful.

#### Fraser Moroney and Elliot Bleathman

In Term 2, Year 5 learned and performed the musical *Pinocchio*. It was really fun; we put on four performances, on the first night we were filmed and on the second Mr Dean, the Headmaster, came to watch. The other two shows we put on for other schools. It was fun at times and funny at others (especially when Reuben couldn't sit down at the end of our last performance because of his costume). All in all we loved it.

#### Alec Kelly and Thomas Baddiley

In Term 2, Year 5 went on a bushwalk to Collins Cap. The first bit of the track was not that hard but it did get harder through the trip. When we got to the top we had lunch and stayed there for a bit. On the way back Charlie fell down a bank and nearly went into the water. Charlie Read and Philip Humphrey

In Term 2, we had Winter Sports Day where we got to try different sports. There were four sports but you had to choose one to play in the morning and one in the afternoon. I chose basketball and hockey while Reuben chose basketball and soccer. All of the sports were fun and competitive. We were all very happy at the end of the day. Tasman Daengdej and Reuben James

Mark Greenwood is an author who writes about Australian history and he came to Hutchins to talk to us about his books. He is a good author because he goes to where his books are based to study before he writes his books. For example, he once wrote a book about the war in Gallipoli (*Simpson and his Donkey*) so he went to Gallipoli to study for his book. He told us some interesting stories. Samuel Caccavo and Morgan Downham

### YEAR 5 Webster

Harry, Jake and James

Jeremy, Phelin, Thomas B, Lewis,

We have done lots of fun experiments this year; these are some of our favourites: We were looking at yeast and pizza involves yeast so we made pizzas and they were great! Another experiment was when we grew crystals; we made them because the University was holding a competition. We also made a plasticine city/island in a plastic container to represent an island then we put a tiny bit of water in to represent the sea. Next we put an ice cube in to represent the melting ice cap of Antarctica. After a while it melted, some of our islands were flooded and this represents what would happen if the ice caps melted. We enjoyed them a lot!

#### Hamish Spence and Harrison Bignold

On 27 April, 2010 the ELC and Junior School went to Dru Point for the House Cross Country. Before our race we did some simple stretches and walked the course. The Year 5s ran one red lap (800m) and two blue laps (1km each). That's 2.8 km in total! After our race we had lunch and listened to music. Soon after that we left and went back to school. School House won overall. Alec Munro and Robert Jiang

In Term 2, Year 5W went on an extreme walk to Collins Cap. This was a tough walk because the path was icy and wet; once the path cleared it was a rewarding sight. We had lunch on the top and took a few pictures. When we went down it was a little tougher but in the end it was a good walk.

#### Dane Friberg and Peter Mercado

For my winter sport I played hockey. My mum was the coach and Jeremy's dad was the referee. We won our first few games. It was fun playing St Virgil's because the teams were even and we had a close game. For my winter sport I played Water Polo and Soccer. Our soccer coaches were Mrs Knight and our gap student, Marcello Colombini. We won most of games, drew twice and lost twice. Both times we played the other Hutchins team we won. My best match was when I scored three goals. My other sport was Water Polo. My coaches were Cameron Brumby and George White. We won all our matches except one, which was against Mt Stuart. Our biggest win was 14-0 against Mt Carmel. Hamish McCulloch

Phelin and Da

In Term 3, Year 5 went to Bruny Island for camp. On the first day we got to know our surroundings and put up the tents. We were divided into three groups for the camp. For dinner that night we had pasta (it was all right). That night we played find the chicken and get the ball past Mr Webster. That night when we went to bed there was a storm at 1:00 in the morning and people kept on talking the whole night. The storm wrecked most of the tents. The next day we went bush walking, canoeing and we played some games at camp. Canoeing was probably the best part of camp. The next day we packed up the tents and bags and went to the beach at the neck of Bruny Island. There were three injuries on camp.

Charlie and Morgan fell out of their canoe and cut themselves on an oyster farm. The other was when Jack got hit with a torch, fell over and split his lip. Jeremy Reid, Jack Hayes and Jake McIntyre

Da

In Term 1, the Junior School had the House Swimming Carnival at the Aquatic Centre. It was an exciting day. Everyone did a good job but at the end of the day Stephens came out on top. In Term 3, we had the Athletics Carnival on the War Memorial Oval. It was a great sunny day and we really enjoyed it. There were a lot of records broken. It was a close competition all day and the lead changed a lot during the day. In the end the winner was School House and lucky last was Buckland. They did a fantastic job. Harry Wallace and James Moroney

In Term 1, Year 5 were learning about micro-organisms. Yeast is an example of a micro-organism so we made pizzas. First we set the ingredients on the tables and got our pizza dough. Some of the dough was sticky so we put extra flour on them; we got a baking tray and went up one by one to put the ingredients on. We cooked the pizzas in the ovens in the boarding house. We ate the pizzas after lunch and had a talk about yeast at the end.

Phelin Ndimanyi and Matthew Burgess

56

# YEAR 6 Bullen



THIRD ROW: Nicholas Thomas, George Grover, Thomas Macrossan, Rainjan Blakers, Jack Green, Rainier Roberts, Alexander Pace

SECOND ROW: Roan Gillam, Sean Lowrie, Michael Gentile, Jock Taylor, Aleksander Folvig, James He, Ben Speakman, Wun Cheung (Tom) So

FRONT ROW: Harrison Davidson-Lim, Campbell Braithwaite, Abraham Parsons-Lucas, Thomas Walcott, Liam James, Shifan Patel, James MacMichael, Johan Heather TEACHER: Mrs Sue Bullen

### 6B reflect on the Habits of Mind

In Year 6, we had drama and in drama my habit of mind was responding with wonderment and awe which is being enthusiastic and passionate. In Maths, I used thinking about your thinking in some of the hard questions to strive for accuracy. Also in Writers Notebook I persisted in my portfolio writing and wrote the best narrative this year. Johan Heather

As the year progressed, we started to realise that all of the subjects we were studying used at least one habit of the mind. Creating, imagining and innovating was one that was used a lot in 6B as we were given a number of topics including our government work where we had to create a bill that would somehow help our community. I've also applied this habit of the mind to a World Vision Conference where a group of boys attended an awareness-raising activity which forced us to think about solutions to world poverty.

Abe Parsons-Lucas

This year I have progressed in my writing, and SOSE. Some of the highlights for me were art, drama, carnivals and a lot more. I think when we had our Athletics Carnival, a lot of people had to have persistence because when they got tired, but they needed to go on till they finished the race. This year was a great, fun year for me.

#### James He

This year I have improved at my spelling and handwriting. Some of my highlights were drama, going to Canberra and the Mt Hotham trip. Some of the habits of mind I used were persistence because I persisted through all the projects even though sometimes I had to stay up late to finish them. I also applied past knowledge to new situations in Maths. Roan Gillam

This year I improved my Soccer, Spelling, Reading and Maths as I tried hard to strive for accuracy. I tried hard to persist in Maths and I found that I get more done and if you believe you can do it, it will happen.

Jock Taylor



t's 4.30am and we're still smiling



A time to remember



Ready, aim and fire.



Let's dance



Artists of the future!



Jock Taylor and George Grover inspec younger student's work

# YEAR 6 Bullen

Creating, imagining and innovating: we had the opportunity to have lessons in acting. We were taught by Mrs Weeding, who gave us different exercises to reinforce our drama skills. My favourite activity, was acting to a sound effect, where we got a sound effect such as a clock ticking or a phone ringing. This forced us to look at the sound differently to create a good play. **Tom Macrossan** 



On the sports field

JUNIOR SCHOOL

In Year 6, I have been doing projects and assignments, and each project or assignment has involved a habit of the mind. We went to Maria Island Camp where we used persistence to go on the massive bush walk. After that we made Rube Goldberg machines. We imagined and created a machine that could knock Indiana Jones's head off! We then went to Ben Lomond where we strived for accuracy in throwing snowballs at each other! Michael Gentile

I have thoroughly enjoyed this year, I have persisted through the assignments to get them done, and I've applied past knowledge to them, for example, the world tour assignment I have been around the world and I've remembered some of the Hotels and Icons. But my favourtie thing this year has been '' Writers Notebook'' because I've been on top of the work that we have had to do, which is an achievement. Also I have come out of my ''shell'' and gave it all my best, and this year has been one of the best yet! Rainier Roberts



Cold and wet, but still having fun!



Day at the Museum



We test the power of electricity

# YEAR 6 Eaves



THIRD ROW: Nat Franklin, David Geary, Josh Brown, Angus Reid, William Burgess SECOND ROW: Connor Schmidt, William Dobson, Oskah Marshall, Henry Moss, Russel Taib, Jack Field, Jack Richardson, Jack Wallace

FRONT ROW: Fergus McShane, William Smee, Louis Duckett, James McNeill, Maxwell Shepperd, James Taranto, Andonis Pavlides, Benjamin Denduang ABSENT: Ewan Favretto TEACHER: Mr Nick Eaves



Josh leading discussions



Sergeant-at-Arms

# YEAR 6 Eaves

Year 6 has been a great year for me. One of my highlights was winning every game in AFL for Hutchins. Another highlight was going to Canberra and Sovereign Hill and panning for gold. Also going to Ben Lomond and seeing tons of snow was great. James Taranto

The best part of Year 6 was camp. It was awesome. We went to Mt Hotham, I was snowboarding it was fun. I fell in a big hole but by the end I was pretty good. Getting back home was really good. Will Smee

I like going to Canberra and riding around Lake Burley Griffin and gold panning in Ballarat. I liked drama because that was lots of fun acting and also PE playing games. Will Dobson

My highlight for Year 6 was when I was skiing down the Big D going flat out. And my second highlight was playing for the 5–6 football team and not losing any games. And when we won we would win by about 50 points on average. David Geary

My favourite part of Year 6 was going out for games and one of my favourite highlights was going to Ben Lomond and sliding down the slopes and throwing snowballs at other people. I had good fun beating every team in football. It was cool because we never lost.

### Ben Denduang

My favourite thing about Year 6 this year was the Mt Hotham ski trip. It was my favourite thing because before that I had never been to a place with so much snow. It was also the first time I had ever snowboarded. And it was fun to spend a few days with all my mates. Nat Franklin

My favourite thing I have done this year was skiing because it was fun. It was my first time skiing. I was the fastest in Hutchins, and I could go down a blue run and QC. Andonis Pavlides

My most favourite thing in year six was going skiing in Mt Hotham, for an alpine experience. I loved playing with the snow and skiing down the mountain really really fast. Connor Schmidt My main Year 6 highlight was when I went to Mt Hotham for our winter camp and learning how to snowboard. Another was when I went to sovereign hill in Ballarat. I enjoyed the original creaming soda and looking at all the old shops. Louis Duckett

One of my favourite things was going to Canberra. I liked riding around the lake. I liked it when we went bowling too and also when we went to the space communications centre. That was interesting. It was fun when we went to Ballarat and went up Sovereign Hill to the old little village where you could go gold panning or buy stuff at the shops. Fergus McShane

My highlight of Year 6 was going to Mt Hotham for a school trip. The trip was lots of fun for everyone. The trip was also a great way for students to snowboard or ski. All up it was a really fun trip and I had lots of fun snowboarding. It was disappointing when we had to leave the mountain because it was so much fun. Jack Field

My favourite thing in Year 6 was the Ben Lomond camp. We did lots of things like walking in the snow, talking, watching movies and so much more it was so much fun. We played board games our time was free, iPods on the bus trips and hogging out on the lollies we bought. Jack Haywood

My highlight of Year 6 was when we went to Mt Hotham. I did snowboarding and I thought it was great fun. We also had a snowball fight which was pretty cool, and a walk that was OK. The trip was for 5 days and on the first and last day we had to go on a 7 hour bus trip. But it didn't matter because we got to stop at McDonalds. **Russel Taib** 

My few highlights for this year were Mt Hotham and camp, they were really good. Playing footy for Hutchins and winning was the best thing (especially winning). All of that were the best things that I did in Year 6. Mr Eaves was pretty decent too. James McNeill

My favourite highlights in Year 6 are going to Canberra and going to Ben Lomond. I also played football for Hutchins and we won all of our games. The following subjects I liked were sport, Tech and Music. I have enjoyed Year 6 this year.

Jack Richardson

The favourite thing about Year 6 for me was the term two Mt Hotham ski trip. Because I have never been skiing before and the scenery was awesome, not to forget how awesome the snowboarding was. By the time the trip had finished I didn't want to leave. We stayed in a ski lodge and slept in cabins, I stayed in a cabin with Julian, Ewan and Angus and it was lots of fun.

#### Jack Wallace

My highlight for year six was the Canberra/Melbourne trip. Half the boys went from Year 6 and the other half went Ben Lomond. At the end of the trip we went to Sovereign Hill in Ballarat. There we got to buy lollies make things like candles and try olden days bowling and lots more. In the Melbourne airport on the way back to Hobart we got to buy our dinner. Over all, the trip was great fun and a good experience. Will Burgess



Ben presenting Laos



Will and Vietnam



Jack in Thai costume

### YEAR 6 Prebble





Politician in the making

Refreshments for all

THIRD ROW: Kin San (Kevin) Tsoi, Luke Roberts, Ian Hamilton, Samuel Horton, Benjamin Lienert SECOND ROW: Edward Johnstone, Jack Reid, Charles Greenwell, Lachlan Gardner, Ken Bray, Declan Stevenson, Patrick Eberhard, Fenn Gardner FRONT ROW: Toby Burnell, Theo Kessler, David Lennon, Thomas Skalicky, Julian Hudson, Jayden Stevenson, Robert West, Stewart Jackson ABSENT: William McCullum TEACHER: Mr Gary Prebble

This year I enjoyed making films and music theory. I would like to improve my tidiness. Ben Lienert

I've really enjoyed Hutchins this year in making friends. The activities I found tricky would be: sticking to task, Algebra and thinking before I act By next year I will have definitely accomplished those tasks. Declan Stevenson This year in Year 6 I have liked a couple of things like the camps, the Rube Goldberg and all the drawing activities. Next year in Year 7 I would like to improve my time management skills and drawing. Jayden Stevenson I enjoyed this year a lot – from Drama to Tech and I especially enjoyed sport. Also the Ben Lomond camp was good especially sliding down the ice. Also we did a six hour bushwalk on Maria Island. It was tiring but worth the view. Next year I hope to listen with empathy and understanding. David Lennon In Year 6 we've had some big projects this year. I've played handball with Max and Jayden, and Mr Prebble is an awesome teacher. Next year I want to improve my spelling and my writing. Ian Hamilton

This year was a very good year. I liked doing 'Priority Work' and next year I want to improve on my organisation and time management skills.

### Stewart Jackson

This year I have enjoyed sport the most because it was a chance to get active after having lots of schoolwork. I would like to improve sticking to one bit of work and not stopping it halfway through. Theo Kessler

This year was fun. I really liked Tech and Drama. I think I could have improved on listening to the teacher. Next year I hope to also improve on my Maths, Handwriting and Computer Skills. **Toby Burnell** 

What I enjoyed at Hutchins this year is PE, Music, Chinese and Sport. But what I can improve on is my Maths, listening and just concentrating on my work more. Sam Horton

This year my favourite subject was Art. We were making sculptures that were inspired by an Aboriginal lady. I think I took a responsible risk when we were in the last lesson and I needed to paint my sculpture pretty quickly so I painted it with two basic colours, black and white. I think I did well this year handing work in on time but next year I would like to do just a bit better.

### Thomas Skalicky

What I've enjoyed this year is summer sport and playing cricket on the WMO. Next year I hope to improve my spelling and running.

### Charlie Greenwell

I really enjoyed this year because I found new friends. I played chess or handball and did priority work. I participated in the camp in the snow and all the drawing activities. I want to get better in my spelling.

### Max Froelich

This year I have enjoyed sport and the camps because we got to look for gold in Ballarat and we had snowball fights at Ben Lomond. Next year I will hope to improve on my handwriting and drawing. Will McCullum This year I have enjoyed rowing. It keeps you fit and you get out on the water. I would like to improve my time management skills. Jack Reid

I enjoyed all of the sports and activities of the year. They held some challenges but after it was a lot of fun. The camps (Mt Hotham and Canberra/Melbourne) were exciting and fun. What I would like to improve on from this year would be applying past knowledge to new situations.

### Julian Hudson

What I have enjoyed this year are the camps because you get to go to different places and do fun stuff like panning for gold at Ballarat and skiing at Mt Hotham. What I want to improve in next year are: Maths, spelling, concentration levels, organisation skills, sport, Art (drawing) and Computer Skills.

### Ken Bray

What I liked about this year was Art in class. I would like to improve on managing my impulsivity. Locky Gardner

I liked the camps because the activities like snow fights at Ben Lomond and bike riding at Canberra. I want to improve on my computer skills.

### Luke Roberts

This year I have enjoyed drawing the China picture and the Canberra/ Melbourne camp. It was fun because we got to go to Parliament House. I want to improve my hand writing and my drawing skills for next year. Robert West

This year was fun. I really liked Tech and Drama. I think I could have improved on listening to the teacher. Next year I hope to also improve on my Maths, handwriting and Computer Skills. **Toby Burnell** 

This year I enjoyed making our balloons because it was really fun and we got to make a movie. Next year I hope I can talk a little less and do better in writing our stories.

### Eddie Johnstone

This year I have enjoyed representing Hutchins in footy, and participating in the two camps. Next year I want to improve my spelling and time management. Patrick Eberhard

This year I have enjoyed the camps like Mt Hotham. Next year, I think I could improve on presentation and my writing. Fenn Gardner



There's intelligent life somewhere in that jungle



What a golden experience



Artist extraordinare



Theo – working or posing

JUNIOR SCHOOL

### MIDDLE School

### 'The more things change'

A nineteenth century Frenchman, Alphonse Karr once famously said: 'The more things change, the more they are the same.' For our Middle School, 2010 has been a year of many changes and I thought it might be interesting to test Karr's statement through an examination of the results of those changes.

A change in the wider school environment meant the Middle School had access to the wonderful new H G Baldwin Library Learning Centre and our students have gained particular educational benefit already from the displays in the Foundation Heritage Centre and the video-conferencing facilities in the global classroom.

Physically, our environment in the Middle School remained the same clean. attractive, well-maintained learning space, thanks to our supremely professional cleaning and maintenance staff. However, enrolment numbers meant that, unlike the arrangements in past years, we were able to leave our Millington Room set up as a large double room space all year. Year group meetings, whole Middle School meetings and the Year 8 project displays were very easily organised as a result. Students in 8AHy will remember our using this room for a very pleasant debate morning with some girls from Mt Carmel. The topic for this was 'That we get the television we deserve'. But, surely even Middle School students have not behaved badly enough to deserve that.

Under this classroom configuration, we were also able to have all Year 7 Mentor Group rooms in the corridor near Mrs Waters' office. Mrs Waters' firm, caring eye plus her efficient and thoughtful organisation of Year 7 Pastoral week, attendance at Year 7 camps and diligent supervision of the Year 7 Pastoral Team has meant we can always rely on most Year 7s making a smooth transition into our Middle School.

Now, such random assessment of the results of changes in our Middle School for 2010 is most unscientific. So, for the purposes of this study we have devised what we call our Constancy Scale (patent pending) in order to ensure all our findings can be considered authoritative. Mrs Waters' Year 7 Pastoral Team was certainly a mixture of constants and changes, this year. However, firmly on top of the Constancy Scale was Mr Addison since he has long been a Year 7 Mentor and he remained so all year, giving his Mentor Group his usual care and attention; enthusiastically teaching Maths and Science; guiding Stephens House through the ups and downs of the Cock House Competition; and passionately coaching our Hockey players. I do wonder though, how many of the students have noticed that twinkle in his eye as Mr Addison constantly scans our day-to-day Middle School lives on the alert for all that is quirky and humorous.

Coming in a close second on the Year 7 Mentor Constancy Scale would be Mr Leonard. Second because he joined our Middle School team only this year. Constant because he fitted very well into our Year 7 Pastoral Team ready to take every opportunity to get to know and to help the students in his Mentor Group settle in to their new school. His professionalism in the classroom and his readiness to take on extra duties such as co-ordinating our leadership program and acting as Academic Co-ordinator during Mr Hyland's absence in Term 3 are evidence of how well he has fitted into the wider Middle School Team.

His length of service in our Middle School helps Mr Sayers gain third place. Only third, however, because he absented himself throughout the whole of Term I to enjoy the delights of his thoroughly welldeserved long service leave. On his return, it wasn't long before he was contributing just as he always has, teaching diligently and imaginatively, organising the next Red Centre Trip, co-ordinating Basketball. Of course, as is usual for Mr Sayers, he was also ready to 'go the extra mile:' this time it was writing the script of his 2010 Play on Tour on his sick bed.

Of course, Mr Sayers' leave forced us to make a change in that we had to find a replacement for him. Mrs Stoddart filled this gap with wonderful energy but the briefness of her time with the Year 7 team put her fourth on the scale. But, of course the Middle School teaching constants were there in her repertoire: dedication, professionalism and genuine concern for her students. Mrs Stoddart also brought her own individual style to the role, evident in the decoration of her Mentor Room, her interactions with her colleagues and students and the presentation of her lessons. Her daily, cheery 'Moorningggg!' thrown recklessly at all passersby surely reflects her individual style.

In equal fourth place is Mr Geale. He began the year as an agent of change, by joining the Year 7 Pastoral Team after a number of years as a Year 8 Mentor. Soon, he and Mrs Stoddart were in competition as to who would provide the more stimulating and attractive Mentor Room environment. Mr Geale's conscientiousness and genuine caring for the welfare of his students meant that he was an ideal addition to the Year 7 Pastoral. Of course, at the same time, Mr Geale pursued his teaching of Drama, presenting some extremely entertaining plays in the Middle School House Drama Competition and yet another superb Errols evening.

We have all been most impressed by Mr Marr's introduction of Chinese into our school and the number of students electing to study this subject illustrates why we are so impressed. However, staff changes meant we also had to call on him to be a Mentor in Year 7 in the middle of the year. So it's fifth place for him on the Constancy Scale for Year 7. But he certainly deserves to be on the scale because this already very busy young teacher not only agreed to take on the extra duties of being a Mentor but he took them on with determination, and genuine good humour.

In Year 8 Mr Prior and Mr Berndt are both at the top of the scale, because, although they were in fact both new to Year 8 this year, they remained in the Year 8 team all year.

Mr Berndt brought a calming influence to his Mentor Group and combined that with a genuine concern for the welfare of his students. While ensuring that his Design and Technology students were given the maximum opportunities and encouragement to produce top quality work, he also found time to guide a good many Year 8s through the difficult task of completing their Year 8 Projects.

One of Mr Prior's constant tasks must definitely have been changing hats. He had his Head of the Health & Human Movement Faculty hat to wear when organising such things as curriculum, curriculum delivery and staffing. A change of hats meant he became Director of Middle School Sport, co-ordinating all the Cock House activities and ensuring each Middle School student was getting the most out of his sporting opportunities. A quick dash into the nearest phone booth and he would emerge in his Year 8 Mentor hat, ready to guide, to advise and to write reports. And each of these hats seemed to fit perfectly.

After over thirty years of service to our Middle School, Mr McCammon certainly rates highly on our Constancy Scale. Of course, in those circumstances no one could deny him the leave he took throughout Term 2 but it was this leave that dropped him into third place. This was another of our many changes and it must be said that we did miss his calm, caring, consistently pleasant manner and the dedication and innovation he brings to his Science teaching.

Mr Hyland has to share this third position with Mr McCammon and the reasons for this are very similar. Mr Hyland's enthusiastic and selfless service has been a feature of our Middle School for nearly ten years and this year he has continued to take that service to an even higher level through his contribution as Middle School Academic Co-ordinator. This role requires him to oversee and co-ordinate such aspects of school life as reporting, course choices, family-teacher conferences and general curriculum development and delivery matters. So it was another significant change, when he too undertook some very well-earned long service leave throughout Term 3. However, like Mr McCammon, he spent some of that 'leave' in at school, doing reports.

Making a brief appearance on the Year 8 scale was Mrs Ramsey who replaced Mr McCammon in both his teaching and Mentor roles while he was on leave. She brought with her a cheery smile, boundless enthusiasm and a willingness to get involved in everything from the challenges of Year 8 camp to the intricacies of students and their knitting. Also, just as she had done in Term I as a replacement for Mr Sayers, Mrs Stoddart helped out in Term 3 as a replacement for Mr Hyland. So, her completely idiosyncratic, "Moorningggg!" could be heard floating once again through our corridors.

2010 saw a most significant Middle School event in that we changed our Head of Year 8. Because this is such a vital role, any change in the Year Head must have inevitable consequences. I noticed some almost immediately. In what some might see as unseemly haste, Mr Geale had replaced Mr Kingston's wonderful stories









of travel and surfing with some of the funniest jokes of the eighteenth century. Framed posters for The Errols soon graced the walls of the Year Head's office where once diving photos and certificates held pride of place. I'm sure if you asked any of our Year 8s how these men are different as Year Heads, he would reply, 'Well, Mr Kingston is Mr Kingston and Mr Geale is Mr Geale.' And if you asked the same student what these men have in common, his reply would be, 'They're both concerned that we do the right thing; they both really care about us and they're both fun.' It should be noted that in translating these replies from Year 8 Speak I have removed all usage of the word "like" in order to protect the reader's sanity.

A change that was not out of the ordinary this year was our usual welcoming of 100 new students representing half of our overall population, having farewelled 100 Year 8s at the end of last year. This process of changing personnel has two consequences. The first is that we as a staff always feel some regret at parting with students we have come to know and like and have enjoyed working with because of their enthusiasm, their honesty, their sense of fun and their simply being themselves. At the same time though, the second consequence is that we meet 100 new and different selves who always bring with them those same wonderful attributes. So, for the purposes of the scale, I guess you could say these consequences cancel one another out.

Add to the above summaries the constants of the guidance offered our students by our Counsellor, Mr Docking; our Chaplain,



Reverend Matt Grey and his assistant, Rev Mark Holland and the dedicated service they receive from our bus drivers, our Secretary Ms Donna Beadle, our groundsmen and our maintenance staff. Then consider that on any number of occasions when I prowled the Middle School in 2010, I saw our students productively and usually happily engaged in classroom learning activities of all sorts and shapes and sizes and our friend, Alphonse seemed spot on. What a stroke of modest genius my Constancy Scale has proven.

So, the end of another *Virtus* article signifies the end of another year and once again, I have tried a light-hearted way of approaching that summary. But there is no light-hearted way of noting the passing during the year of our Middle School Secretary, Mrs Ros Ranalli. Sadly, we only knew her briefly but what a wonderful privilege knowing her was. Ros' enthusiasm, compassion, sense of family and boundless love of life are treasured memories for us in Middle School. Surely, Ros was the only member of staff who could get away with calling Middle School aged students, "Lovie"!

### lan McQueen Head of Middle School

### MIDDLE SCHOOL Writing & Poetry

#### From 'Bhagvati'

MIDDLE SCHOOL

There once lived a king named Aarunya. He had all the things he could wish for but he was still not happy. The problem was that he had no heir to inherit the throne. So when he heard that the great Sage Raibaba had come to his capital, he was overjoyed. He invited the saint to his palace and asked him to stay for a few days. On the last day, the king went to Sage to ask for a child. Sage Raibaba gave him a bowl of porridge to give to his wife. He took it and went home happy.

That night he told the queen to drink the porridge. Then he slept happily. The next morning the queen gave birth to a little baby girl. The queen died after the process and Aarunya was left alone to care for his daughter. He decided to name the child Bhagvati, after her mother.

Years passed by and Bhaqvati was growing up fast. Then, one day, the king did not return from his hunting trip. Bhaqvati started getting worried and just as she was about to send a scout to look for him, a soldier ran into the palace. His clothes were torn and he had a swollen eye. Bhaqvati asked the servants to bring him water. As he drank, he related his tale. The hunting party had gone out dressed as common men so the king could have a look at what was happening in the city. They were hunting a deer when a group of bandits ambushed them. They killed nearly all the soldiers. As the king was riding away, one of the bandits shot an arrow and it killed him. The guard had been lucky to escape with his life.

Bhagvati wept for many days over the death of her father, and made an oath that she would avenge him or die in the process.

Himaushu Hardikar, 7EMa

#### A Moment at Camp

I am terrified of big waves. Absolutely terrified. But there I was, paddling around right in front of the biggest wave I've ever seen outside a surfing magazine. Aidan was 'teaching' me how to jump over them; he said it was fun. Fun! If this was fun then so was throwing pebbles at an angry sabre-toothed tiger! Water sloshed around my head. This was insane! I couldn't even stand. OK. Keep calm. A calm, clear mind. I opened one eye and saw the wave. It was massive! At least five metres high. Panic time! I tried to swim to the beach but the wave's pull was too strong. The wave curled and foam appeared on its crest. It was going to crash on top of me!! Blosh went the wave. Ahblublublub went I. I was under the water, the wave doing barrel rolls, turning me over and over and over. I couldn't breathe. This was !\*&@\$#! ... Hang on, I thought. This wasn't so bad. I did a back flip. I did more. It was FUN! It was like being in a Matrix movie!

I was sad and dizzy when I came to the surface.

Max McLaughlin, 7ILe

#### From 'Prologue'

I felt the earth shake beneath my feet and heard a loud rumble in the distance; a giant eighty foot high cannon had blasted its huge shell into the midst of the battle, throwing troops from both sides in all directions. Skurn, our leader, had not yet released our dreadjumpers so I was not yet in the battle, but I could clearly see what was happening outside the bunker. A giant lizard waddled into view, pulled its head back like a spring and struck a soldier in the chest with a beak-like mouth, slicing through the poor man's skin like a knife through jelly before closing its maw. The soldiers around it started to blast it with their energy rifles with no effect on the creature. The squad called in the destroyolytes, a type of infantry dedicated to the use of heavy weaponry. I saw what looked like a flare of some type but I knew what it was - a highly accurate weapon used for cases like this.

Thor Holloway, 7EMa

#### From 'Mid Year Homeroom Report' (a response to the novel *Don't call me Ishmael* by Michael Gerard Bauer)

Name: Ishmael Leseur

Wonderful work for your first half of Year 9, Ishmael! You have been a pleasure to teach and I look forward to seeing you again after the holidays for some more fun, excitement and amazing English extravaganzas. You are a fantastic addition to Year 9 at St Daniel's and really set an example of the true St Daniel's spirit. You showed some great examples of courage forged in a lion's den. An outstanding example that deserves pointing out was when you helped push our rugby team to complete the impossible and overcome Churchill. Even when you had a lot of troubles of your own you were able to help a new boy, and that really takes a lot of courage. Well done. After seeing some of your work in English I have observed that you are a very capable, smart student. You just need to make yourself heard. I know that you might be a quiet person but you know the answers and much, much more and it would be fantastic if you shared your ideas with the class more often; that way everyone would benefit from it.

Daniel Larratt, 8AHy

#### **The Detective**

He was there, sitting at the front of the office looking smart as usual. He cut quite a mean figure. He stood at 6 foot 3, but for his size he was very stocky, wide at the shoulders and very muscular through the arms and legs. His sandy, blonde hair was hanging low over his forehead, plastered down with the usual hair gel. He also wore silver reflective aviators covering his eyes. But this man had one very distinctive feature, the reason for the glasses: a vertical scar starting at the right side of his forehead passing over his eye and ending near his mouth, the reason for his nickname, 'Scarecrow'. His real name was Schofield. Shane Schofield. He wore his normal leather jacket with skinny leq jeans, finished with his detective shoes, Vans hiding special attachments needed for solving crimes. Scarecrow topped off his detective skills with an IQ of 180, and reflexes quicker than a cat. This was no detective to be messed with.

William Schiwy, 8CBe

#### Sharks

The sharks are coming after me They're really quite a fright My leg is bleeding most freely Much to the shark's delight

It started on the town jetty When Tom was full of pride I didn't have the slightest fear When asked to have a ride

His boat was shiny, fast and sleek I loved it when I heard The engine roared like a raging creek And warbled like a bird

We sped out of the crowded bay And headed out to sea We saw some dolphins on the way Exciting Tom and me

All at once they swam away In one great sweep of tails We soon saw why they wouldn't stay We saw the Humpback whale

The giant was not playing though Not fluking or the like In fact it had a deadly foe A shark, about to strike

And strike it did, but not the whale The fish that Tom had thrown I saw his face it looked so pale The cheeks as white as bone

He really cared about the whale He wanted it to live The shark had finished but a tail And all Tom had to give

#### Aussie Bushman's Spell

Abbot's budgies, Gillard's locks. Classic milk, scale of crocs. National pies, wombat poo. ANZAC biscuit, pouch of roo. Chocolate lamington, tooth of shark. Jar of vegemite, dingo's bark.

Mix 'em up, add some oil, She'll be right, let her boil.

T-bone steak, The Don's bat Burnt snag, feral cat V8 from a Holden car, VB beer from a Victorian bar, Peach Melba, devil's claws Granny Smith apple core Redback's venom, dunny seat Cassowary feather, plover's beak.

Mix 'em up, add some oil, She'll be right let her boil.

Christopher Boult, 7IAd

The engine of our vessel stirred As more sharks came to feed We tore away from the shark herd Their chase was not our need

But they did chase us, caught us too A huge one far ahead I saw him jump I swear he flew His eyes were gleaming red

He landed on the stern railing And shocking Tom and me He flipped the boat we went flailing Into the angry sea

Tom landed underneath the boat A lucky chance for him He was safe (for now) to float While I just had to swim

SWIM FOR MY LIFE once I was in I'd landed on a shark. It shook me off and, with a grin -Let's say it left a mark

A frenzy happened as I bled But I was off at speed The loss of blood, it spun my head The sharks confused with greed!

The sharks were scrapping I led still They realised I was winning A blood trail leading to the kill And my head still spinning

The humpback saved me that I know Its tail saved my life It fluked upon its and my foe And swept me from my strife

### **Australian Macbeth**

#### First Bushman:

Emu's neck and leaf of gum, Flathead spike and Wombat's bum, Devil's jaw and scale of croc, Tail of dingo and footy sock, Chopper's mo and tooth of gummy, VB bottle and Leatherwood honey, Uluru and Vegemite, Waltzing 'tilda and drunken nights.

All: Double, double boil and brew; Fire, burn; and billy, stew.

#### Second Bushman:

Harbour Bridge and Holden cars, Lady Nelson and Risdon bars, Blundstone boots and ocker's hat, Kookaburra bird and two fruit bats, Huon pine and rusty roof, Baggy green and brumby's hoof, Shane Warne's spin and barramundis, Sovereign Hill and Kevin Rudd's grundies.

All: Double, double boil and brew; Fire, burn and billy, stew.

Liam Fitzgerald, 7IAd

Still bleeding, I soon saw the boat With Tom sitting on top He helped me to his wreck afloat My leg still bled non-stop

We clung there for what seemed a year Until we saw a sail I yelled, Tom screaming in my ear (We thought) to no avail

Then just as she was leaving sight We saw her turn around Tom and I yelled with such delight Thank goodness we'd been found

But by the time the yacht was there The sharks were back again The fear I had, I couldn't bear I fainted from the pain

When I woke up I heard the sea I sat up, in a bed Tom was sitting close beside me "You are awake," he said

We made it back to the town bay The kind yacht owner said "You kids be careful now OK?" I just nodded my head

We made it home by half past nine We went our separate ways Mum fussed on me that leg of mine And cared for me for days

And now those teeth marks they're still there

The red gash it's still sore That great shark gave me such a scare I sail the seas no more

### Jonathon Clark-Hansen, 7ILe

#### Scarface

(a response to the novel *Seashore and Shadows*, by Colin Thiele)

Great White Shark Teeth as sharp as new razor blades Skin as rough as sandpaper As fast as a speeding bullet

A scar as white as Antarctic ice As scary as a bat in a dark cave Eyes as wicked as a silent hinter Sly as a fox hunting an animal in the

night Dangerous as clapping in an

avalanche

Rips food with the strength of a hydraulic ram

Fearsome as a shadow in an alley Great White Shark.

Alex Hickie, 71Le

# YEAR 7

The 94 students who have spent 2010 in Year 7 have been a pleasure to know and a delight to work with. The learning that has taken place across the curriculum, supported by a school-wide emphasis on the 'Habits of Mind,' has seen students grow from strength to strength, developing skills, interests and attitudes that will see them flourish in Year 8 and beyond. It is with great pleasure and great satisfaction that I commend them for their hard work, good humour, energy and courtesy.

The year really started on Step Up Day in 2009, when students met their Mentors and classmates for the first time. Reassured, the holidays sped by as they always do and they returned to school, with great anticipation, on 9 February. And then the excitement began. As always, Term 1 was full of activities and challenges: an introduction to kayaking in the very first week, the Swimming Carnival, the class camp at Southport, the Mother and Son Night, SWAP days, Open Day, the sports program, Winter Sports Day, the Science morning with Collegiate, House Drama, and, of course, they quickly became immersed in the Year 7 curriculum. For many students Science, Design and Technology, Drama, Religious Studies and LOTE were brand new subjects which they attacked with relish.

Highlights continued throughout the year. The Errols, Academic Extension afternoons, Cross Country, the Athletics Carnival, the Anniversary Week History Walk, socials, choosing electives, a bonus Outdoor Education day, Ham'n'Jam, enabled students to get involved, whatever their interests, and contribute in a worthwhile way to the School.

For many students, memorable moments included receiving Merit Certificates, their Braid and DCW and their Service Hours Certificate, all significant achievements in which they justifiably took enormous pride. The successes and triumphs that have been enjoyed by so many of this special group, as well as the daily small successes and triumphs that have gone unheralded, are thanks largely to the magnificent team of teachers who devote their time, energy and expertise to ensuring each student reaches his potential. The Mentors – Ian Addison, Matthew Sayers, Ivor Leonard and Erik Marr (and Graeme Geale and Teresa Stoddart) have my heartfelt and humble thanks for all that they continue to do for the students in their charge.

The end of the year is always tinged with sadness as we farewell the year group and send the students on to the next stage of their journey. We do so, however, in the sure knowledge that they are ready for all of the challenges that await them.

Goodbye and good luck boys, and thank you for your contributions to Year 7 in 2010.

Janet Waters Year Head









### Year 7 Art

In Semester 2 students undertook two projects that focused on creativity and skill. An evolving line drawing helped them understand the techniques involved with felt pens and they explored line, shape and creativity. The students started with a 2cm square with part of a line drawing which was glued onto the page. Then they developed the drawing from this point, trying to hide the square while creating a dynamic image.



# SUCCESSES and Triumphs

#### Year 7 Awards

### Braid

58 students received their braid as the first step in the Colours Awards

### DCW

Ziah Cooper, Patrick Ball, Jonathon Clark-Hansen, Oliver Kumala, William Millhouse, Tea Yun (Jason) Song, Samuel Jones, Harshvardhan Makharia, Jordan Hargrave, William Scott, Michael Young, Christopher Boult, Lachlan Paul, Benjamin Jarvis, Eden Johnson, Himaushu Hardikar, Kun Woo (Kevin) Kim, Jock Calvert

### Service Hours

Lachlan Brumby, Henry Johnstone, Harshvardhan Makharia, Patrick Ball, Alec Bastick, William Millhouse, Himaushu Hardikar, Lachlan Paul, Lachlan Bannon, Liam Johnston, Connor Spaulding, Jordan Foster, James Schmidt, Benjamin Johnston, Aidan Rossiter, William Burbury, Eden Noble

### Academic Awards

#### Alliance Française

Honourable Mention: Himaushu Hardikar Participants: James Drummond, Michael Young

### ICAS Spelling Competition

D: Asher England, Samuel Jones Credit: Himaushu Hardikar, Harrison Manton

### ICAS Writing

D: Asher England C: Himaushu Hardikar, Thor Holloway ICAS English Competition: HD: Asher England D: Himaushu Hardikar, Michael Young C: Henry Johnstone, Patrick Lickiss, Harshvardhan Makharia, Harrison Manton,Oliver Rodriguez

Middle School Poetry and Prose in Performance Competition Overall winner: Max McLaughlin. Year 7 Winner: Jonathon Clark-Hansen. Honorable Mentions: Ayrton Rose, Oliver Kumala, Ziah Cooper, Thor Holloway

### Australian Geography Competition

D: Henry Johnstone C: Lachlan Paul

### ICAS Science Competition

HD and Medal: Samuel Jones D: Alex Hickie, Benjamin Jarvis, Henry Johnstone, Lachlan Paul, William Scott C: Harrison Manton, Jayson Seaman

Australian National Chemistry Quiz D: Benjamin Jarvis

UTAS Science Investigation Awards People's Choice Award Year 7/8: Benjamin Johnston, James Padgett, Oliver Burnell

### ICAS Mathematics Competition

HD and Medal: Benjamin Jarvis HD: Lachlan Paul D: Patrick Ball, Spiros Daglas, Thor Holloway, Henry Johnstone, Harshvardahan Makharia, William Scott, Michael Young. C: Alec Bastick, Mac Bethune-Watkins, Asher England, Jonathon Ertl, Himaushu

Hardikar, Eden Johnson, Samuel Jones, Kun Woo (Kevin) Kim, Oliver Kumala, Harrison Manton

### Australian Mathematics Competition

HD: Lachlan Paul, Harshvardhan Makharia.

D: Benjamin Jarvis, Michael Young, Liam Johnston, Charles Lane, James Schmidt. C: Thor Holloway, William Scott, Eden Johnson, Henry Johnstone, Oliver Burnell, Himaushu Hardikar, Tea Yun (Jason) Song, Alec Bastick, Harrison Manton, Ibrahim Mohamad, Oliver Kumala

Maths Challenge for Young Australians D: Benjamin Jarvis

C: Harshvardhan Makharia, Lachlan Paul

John Bednall Centre Short Story Competition Winner: Asher England

The Hutchins School Short Story and Poetry Writing Competition Jonathon Clark-Hansen (Poetry)

### Eisteddfod performers

Thomas Downie, Hamish Fife, Ziah Cooper, Ayrton Rose, Max McLaughlin, Michael Young, Harrison Manton, Thor Holloway, James Schmidt

Robocup Junior Robotics State Finals David Kesseling

### The World of Sport

#### Athletics

James Sonneveld, Thomas Sonneveld, Donald Bradshaw, Charley Britton, Benjamin Johnston, Connor Spaulding, Jake Morgan, Ziah Cooper

#### Badminton

Eden Johnson, Sebastian Knevett

### Cross Country

Robert Law, Henry Johnstone, Benjamin Johnston, Charley Britton, James Schmidt, Lachlan Brumby, Zachary Vassallo, Lachlan Paul, Christopher Boult, William Hay

Dance Harrison Manton, Ziah Cooper

Hockey Charles Lane

Orienteering Benjamin Jarvis

### Rowing

Ziah Cooper, Henry Johnstone, Samuel Fergusson, Liam Johnston, Benjamin Johnston, Connor Spaulding, Lachlan Paul

#### Rugby

Ziah Cooper, Ned Howe, Liam Fitzgerald

### Sailing

Jock Calvert, Charles Connor, Oliver Burnell

Soccer Zachary Vassallo

### Swimming

Daniel Himson, Christopher Boult, Henry Johnstone, Lachlan Brumby, James Schmidt

### Tennis

Jeremy Goddard, Patrick Lickiss, Zachary Vassallo

### Water Polo

Andrew Hudson, Ayrton Rose, Lachlan Brumby, William Hay



THIRD ROW: Kun Woo (Kevin) Kim, William Cole, Lachlan Bannon, Daniel Himson, James Sonneveld, Ned Howe, Hamish Fife SECOND ROW: William Connor, William Millhouse, Perri Deane, Lewis Robottom, Ibrahim Mohamad, Tazmyn Slicer, Lachlan Paul, Charles Connor FRONT ROW: Harrison Manton, Liam Fitzgerald, Ghislain Ndimanyi, Asher England, Hassan Mohamad, Oliver Kumala ABSENT: Christopher Boult, Lincoln Paine TEACHER: Mr Ian Addison



THIRD ROW: Michael Young, Donald Bradshaw, Spiros Daglas, Caleb Berriman, Mac Bethune-Watkins, Harry Kokkoris, Andrew Hudson SECOND ROW: Matthew Vafakos, Jeremy Goddard, Patrick Lickiss, Lachlan Brumby, James Schmidt, Sebastian Knevett, Karl Beckett, James Drummond

FRONT ROW: Benjamin Jarvis, Himaushu Hardikar, Samuel Jones, Jackson Bennett, Jayson Seaman, Ayrton Rose, Thor Holloway, Harshvardhan Makharia



THIRD ROW: William Lambert, Samuel Fergusson, Isaac Denholm-McCredie, Alex Hickie, Liam Johnston, Thomas Sonneveld, Eden Noble, Jordan Hargrave, Connor Spaulding

SECOND ROW: Max McLaughlin, Zachary Vassallo, Liam Kelleher, Henry Johnstone, William Scott, Alexander McFarland, Aidan Rossiter, Jack Rasmussen

FRONT ROW: Thomas Downie, William Burbury, Jonathon Clark-Hansen, Jake Morgan, Braidon Brooks, David Kesseling TEACHER: Mr Ivor Leonard





THIRD ROW: Jordan Foster, Alec Bastick, Hamish Reeve, Jock Calvert, Ziah Cooper, Allan Bakker, William Geason, Benjamin Johnston, William Hay

SECOND ROW: Carter Hansen, Angus Woodcock, Jock Denehey, Robert Law, Nazrwi Woldemicheal, Charles Lane, Charley Britton, Oliver Burnell, Eden Johnson

FRONT ROW: Patrick Ball, Jonathon Ertl, Callum Foote, Oliver Rodrigues-Csokas, Tea Yun (Jason) Song, James Padgett TEACHER: Ms Teresa Stoddart

MIDDLE SCHOOL

### YEAR 8

he Year 8s have had a very productive and busy 2010. It has been marvellous to witness the enthusiasm with which this year group has accepted such a wide range of opportunities and challenges.

Andrew Mackay, Jarra Taurian and Jonathon Kearney are to be congratulated on their efforts at the Coastal Conference on the Sunshine Coast in October. There were 500 students from all round Australia plus participants from 9 overseas countries and the boys did a great job with their presentations.

Nicholas Gribble was the MS Chess Champion for 2010. Nicholas and Tobias McShane did a meticulous job of organising and running the tournament.

Harrison Thomas and Josh Williamson earned entry to the Tasmanian Institute of Sport for their Soccer.

### A number of boys this year made State teams.

Australian Rules Football: Benjamin Shea, Mitchell Hibberd, Oliver Jones

Basketball: Daniel Larratt

Touch Football: Alexander Bessell

Water Polo: James Thompson

Rugby: Thomas Farmer, James Mellor, Jesse Usoalii, Oliver Mathot-Dewis

Athletics: Benjamin Robinson, Jesse Usoalii, Lockie Manning

Cricket: James Green

And (my personal favourite): **Elijah Elford** played Pokemon Cards for the State.

Some tremendous individual contributions were noted. John (Jack) Pereira's service to the Middle School was a massive 91 hours at the time of writing this report with more to come.

Andrew Mackay came first in the State in the ICAS Science Competition in addition to three other High Distinctions in other competitions. Thomas Harrison won Best Actor in his section at the Deloraine Drama Festival plus Best Actor at the Clarence Eisteddfod and topped this off by winning the Hutchins Poetry and Prose Competition. **Benjamin Robinson** made the State Athletics Squad. Gerald Evans made the State Cycling TIS Squad.

Good reports about this group of students came in often during the year; some examples were Mitchell Hibberd and Marco Lubiano's fantastic effort in the ELC where they were very helpful and in tune with the needs of the young boys; James Burgess' excellent speech in Headmaster's Assembly about Mr Kingston; and Nicholas Fiotakis' outstanding assistance at the Year 6 into 7 barbecue.

Of course it would be remiss not to mention the Mentors. Mr Hyland, Mr McCammon, Mr Berndt and Mr Prior continued to contribute above and beyond the call of duty. Mrs Stoddart and Miss Ramsey also served a term each and the students will not forget easily their input. (The lost art of knitting was introduced with great success!)

The calibre of this year's crop of Year 8s can be seen in the incredible effort put into our fundraising. Over \$1,000 was raised for the Jim Stynes' Cancer Appeal.

It will be with great interest that we watch these boys enter the Senior School. We wish them all the best, they will certainly be missed in the Middle School and we look forward to hearing of their future exploits.

Graeme Geale Head of Year 8



Golden Apple poster



Andrew and James



Chess players



Year 8 Soccer players



Top hat actor
# YEAR 8 Awards

#### 2010 Year 8 Leaders:

Mark Astley, John (Jack) Pereira, Johannes Peters, Michael Fletcher, James Burgess, Andrew Mackay, Benjamin Robinson, Cameron Allen, James Thompson, Jock Mure, Matthew Scaife, Benjamin Jones

#### Double Colours Winners:

Thomas Avery, James Mellor, Edward Cotton, Lachlan Grueber, Andrew McMaster, Li Wei (Nicholas) Chu

#### Triple Colours Winners:

Andrew Mackay, John (Jack) Pereira, Ian Fulton, Samuel Casey, James Burgess, Matthew Scaife, Johannes Peters, Samuel Davy, Michael Fletcher, Mark Astley, Oliver Jones, Lievin Ndimanyi, William Fisher, Cameron Allen, Henry Garrett, Jack Bastick

#### Service Awards:

John (Jack) Pereira, Jesse Usoalii, James Mellor, Andrew Mackay, James Burgess, Andrew McMaster, Louis Cole, David McQuillan, Matthew Scaife, Oliver Jones, Mark Astley, Michael Fletcher, James Lelong

#### National English Competitions:

High Distinction: Johannes Peters, Mark Astley, Ian Fulton, Lachlan Grueber. Distinction: Matthew Scaife, Henry Garrett, William Fisher, Li Wei (Nicholas) Chu

#### Junior Secondary State Maths Relay: 1st in State Our Team: Nicholas Gribble, James

Mellor, Johannes Peters, Andrew Mackay

#### National Maths Competitions:

High Distinction: Mark Astley, Nicholas Gribble, Lachlan Grueber, Andrew Mackay (x2), Ian Fulton, James Mellor

Distinction: James Thompson, Benjamin Jones, Ian Fulton, William Fisher, Samuel Davy, Li Wei (Nicholas) Chu, James Burgess (x2), Alexander Bessell (x2), Benjamin Robinson, Stipe Mamic, John (Jack) Pereira, Henry Garrett, Jock Mure, Sebastian Withers, Jack Bastick, Johannes Peters, Tobias McShane

National Geography Competitions: High Distinction: Andrew Mackay

#### National Computer Skills Competitions:

High Distinction: Henry Garrett Distinction: Mark Astley, Lachlan Grueber, John (Jack) Pereira, Andrew Mackay, Jesse Usoalii

#### National Science Competitions:

High Distinction: Andrew Mackay (plus a medal for being one of the best in Australia), William Fisher, Matthew Scaife

Distinction: Jacob Knevett, Ian Fulton, Jarra Taurian, Duncan Kelly, Mark Astley, Thomas Harrison, Lachlan Grueber, Henry Johnston, Benjamin Robinson, John (Jack) Pereira, Gavin Yang, James Thompson, Johannes Peters, James Mellor, Alexander Bessell, Stipe Mamic, James Lelong

#### National Chemistry Quiz Plaque Winners:

Henry Johnston, Johannes Peters, Gavin Yang

#### Alliance Française:

Honourable Mention: Alexander Bessell, Andrew Mackay

National Chemistry Competitions: Award of Excellence: Johannes Peters

## TIME AND SPACE Program

## 'Awesome'

That was the response of a Year 7 student to the Year 7 Mother-Son Evening held early in Term I as part of the Middle School's trial of Bill Jennings' 'Time and Space' program.

This program aims to help mothers, fathers and sons better cope with what Bill calls a very significant period of transition. Late last year, the Headmaster, Mr Dean, suggested we in the Middle School investigate the possibility of bringing Bill Jennings' program to the School in 2010. We met with Bill soon after; we really liked the sound of his program and decided to give it a trial.

Essential to Bill's sessions is the idea expressed by people such as Celia Lashlie in her book, *He'll Be OK -Growing Gorgeous Boys into Good Men.* Lashlie writes of the theory that boys are best aided in the transition from young boy to youth in two ways. First, mothers need to understand that often, in order to best help their sons navigate this transition stage in their lives, they need to stand still and let go. However, the second aspect in this process is that they need to feel safe in this 'letting go' through having the certain knowledge that their boy has a good man in his life who then 'steps up' to guide him through this transition period.

Our involvement in this 'Time and Space' program meant that we held two evenings in the first half of Term I. The first was a Father-Son Evening for Year 8s and the second was a Mother-Son Evening for Year 7s.

Both evenings were wonderful examples of the strength of our school community: thirteen staff, two Year 11 students and two parents of boys who had already passed through that particular Year joined between 35 and 45 parent-son couples to participate on each evening.

A briefing dinner for the staff and parents involved on the panel, a panel session, small group discussions, parent-son one to one chats and a very moving culminating ceremony, followed by supper made up the format for both evenings. Each occasion began with animated chatter and ended with parents and sons almost glowing with pride and love. Needless to say that as a school, we were delighted with the results but it is best to finish by returning to the words of those who participated:

A Year 7 boy: I've learnt so much about mum and her views about me and her life.

A Year 8 dad: This was one of the best bonding experiences we have had.

lan McQueen







THIRD ROW: Thomas Cottier, Jarra Taurian, David McKay, Duncan Kelly, Jock Stalker, Thomas Avery, Darian Turner, Benjamin Simpson, Peter Eastment SECOND ROW: Anthony Krueger, Jung Wook (James) Kim, Fergus Richardson, Nicholas Gribble, Thomas Henning, Mark Astley, Jack Bignell, Broden Balsley-Polley, Wun Lim (John) So

FRONT ROW: Elijah Elford, Li Wei (Nicholas) Chu, William Schiwy, Hugh Johnston, Lochlan Fraser, James Mellor ABSENT: Wallace Ling, Johannes Peters TEACHER: Mr Christopher Berndt



THIRD ROW: Daniel Larratt, Harrison Thomas, William Fisher, Wesley Rietveld, Benjamin Shea, Edward Jeanneret, Louis Cole, Henry Garrett, Nicholas Russell, Mitchell Hibberd SECOND ROW: Edward Cotton, Jack Grining, Sanchit Paul, Luke Phillips, Jonathan Francis-Smith, Alexander Bessell, Dylan Mayne, Jack Bastick, William Terry

FRONT ROW: Alex Geappen, Jack Lowrie, Oscar Wyatt, James Burgess, Marco Lubiana, Alexander Hall ABSENT: Jacob Knevett TEACHER: Mr Anthony Hyland MIDDLE SCHOOL



THIRD ROW: Samuel Davy, Harry Oldmeadow, Jesse Usoalii, Andrew McMaster, Oliver Mathot-Dewis, Lievin Ndimanyi, Jonathon Kearney, Harrison Paine, Yiorgo Mellas

SECOND ROW: Josh Williamson, Ian Fulton, Stipe Mamic, Sebastian Withers, Andrew Mackay, James Green, William Colbert, Hayden Reiss, William Campbell FRONT ROW: Andrew Jones, Brayden Pennicott, Hugh Bell, William Heyward, Samuel Green, Joseph Burbury ABSENT: Nicholas Fiotakis, James Lelong TEACHER: Mr Rob McCammon



THIRD ROW: Connor Jury, James Thompson, John (Jack) Pereira, Lockie Manning, Michael Fletcher, Mitchell Haines, Henry Johnston, Benjamin Jones, Samuel Young, Tobias McShane SECOND ROW: Jackson Turner, Jock Mure, Harry Bristow, Samuel Casey, Thomas Farmer, David McQuillan, Gerald Evans, Gavin Yang,

SECUND ROW: Jackson Turner, Jock Mure, Harry Bristow, Samuel Casey, Thomas Farmer, David McQuillan, Gerald Evans, Gavin Yang, Oliver Jones, Cameron Allen

FRONT ROW: Thomas Harrison, Frederic Moll, Benjamin Robinson, Samuel Wood, Matthew Scaife, Lachlan Grueber TEACHER: Mr Anthony Prior

# HEAD OF Senior School

2010 will be remembered as a year of achievement and change. The Senior School was most capably lead by Lawrence Owen and his prefects, there was great success academically and in co-curricular activities and the staff have toiled to provide the students with guidance, example and opportunity. Throughout the first two terms the students were cooperative, tolerant and flexible with one another to co-exist in reduced space during the building of the new Library Learning Centre. The opening of the building at the start of Term 3 has greatly enhanced the learning environment for all.

## Leadership

At the 2009 Leaders Conference, the Year 11 students made a commitment to some guiding values that included, fairness, honesty, integrity, respect and commitment. Lawrence Owen (Captain) and Michael Titchen (Vice-Captain) were united and committed to these principles. George Burbury (School House), Jamie Clarke (Stephens House), Richard Pearce (Thorold House) and Andrew Isles (Buckland House) were steadfast to these ideals at a house level and they remained a point of reference throughout the year. The 'good man' concept was explored by the Prefects with Year 9 and Year 8 students. It was a decision by the Prefects to address with these groups what the traits of a good man may be, and how our students are emulating these qualities. It was thought-provoking, insightful and well led by the Prefect group. The inaugural Prefects Father/ Son Breakfast was held to promote the 'good man' theme and celebrate the Football grand final. Thanks to the SRC, Prefects and Year 11 waiters for their work in getting this together.

## Academics and Co-Curricular

Hutchins was represented in Taiwan for Science, India for IT, interstate for Business and Maths and locally for numerous other competitions and fairs. Perhaps standout efforts were by Christopher Ryba in Mathematics, Thomas Lelong for IT, Jeremy Yang, Samuel Crofts and Michael Manthey in Science and Claude Alcorsco in Business Studies. However, it is the vast majority of students who work hard each day to better themselves and improve their academic credentials that also require acknowledgement. Students have been awarded a total of 183 Academic Excellence, 388 Academic Achievement and 144 Academic Achievement Awards during the year.

There were many students, staff and coaches involved in the cocurricular program during the year. The perseverance, determination and



poise demonstrated by the students were significant factors in the success in a wide and varied range of activities that included 20 plus championships or premier titles spanning Rowing, Football, Rugby, Sailing, Debating, Music, Drama, Dance, Basketball, Badminton, Cricket, Swimming, Shooting and Cross Country. An outstanding achievement for all involved.

## Pastoral Care

The House System is an integral part of the pastoral care system at Hutchins. In 2010, the importance of the House System spread to include activities between Junior, Middle and Senior campuses. It was a great opportunity for the older students to impart the culture, caring and idiosyncrasies of each house.

The students have such a wide range of activities to participate in for their house. These include, Chess, Debating, Athletics, Cross Country, House Drama and Music, which were wonderful events. The success of School House to secure the Swimming Carnival for the first time in 20 years was a highlight. This and other victories culminated in School House being Cock House Cup winners, while Thorold won the Gumley Shield for Academics. I would like to acknowledge the important work of mentors to guide, care for and be role models for our students. They are lead professionally by a dedicated and highly skilled group of Housemasters.

## Staff

Hutchins is fortunate to have a vibrant, enthusiastic and committed staff working for the students in their care. They are prepared to work with students and families to gain the best possible outcomes for individuals. We give thanks and wish Rae Burch, Brian Burch and Mike Fishburn well in retirement. Between them, they have given 75 plus years of teaching service to the School. Enjoy a well earned break. Good luck also to Mr van Tienen with his move to Alice Springs.

Duncan Warlters Head of Senior School

## BURBURY House

Wow! What a year for Burbury House. We have been triumphant in so many facets of our community and we can certainly celebrate a year of continuing traditions and successful change. Change is a challenge that is necessary for growth and development and the Burbury House community has prospered in 2010 by embracing change and moving into the future. Tradition is what defines our culture and we have established some wonderful relationships and experiences based on the traditional virtues of boarding in Burbury House.

Led by our able team of Masters our full house of over sixty boarders has continued to build an environment and community where Safety, Security, Support and Fun are the underpinnings of our home. We would like to extend our thanks to the wonderful Safety, Security, Support and Fun provided by Mr Adrian Finch and his wife Carmen, Dr Peter Wilson, his wife Janie and their two boys Fletcher and Jacob (Baldock), Mr Matthew Hayward, his wife Katherine and their new addition, baby son Sebastian, and Mr Matt Casos. Add three enthusiastic and motivated gap students in Marcello Colombini, Michael Portnoi and Skye Sissing and you have a formidable team of staff who not only managed to work efficiently and effectively with the boarders but also were able to dominate the Masters versus Boarders sporting contests. Most notable performance for the year was our chef Adam Aitken's Herculean hitting in our Twenty Twenty Cricket match.

Apart from Adam's awesome axewielding batting his other talents in creating culinary delights once again tantalised our tastebuds on a daily basis. Adam's team of Sue, Di, Helen, Sharon, Carol and Caroline kept us well fed with healthy and hearty meals and spoilt with sweets and treats for breakfast, lunch and dinner. Our cleaning staff, Sharon and Tina and our laundry lady Sue helped us to complete the community care and made sure that our house was a home. Many thanks must also be extended to the Maintenance Crew who visited us on a daily basis to assist us in keeping the premises in good working order. Above all else we are all heavily indebted to Matron for her care, kindness and understanding when we are feeling a little bit of illness, stress or discomfort.

Boarding is about relationships and experiences and we have shared some great examples of both throughout 2010. We began the year with our annual Burbury House Camp at Southport where we marvelled at the magnificent moods of colour provided by the clothing of Matoom, Pun, Adrian and who could forget Jay's pink, fluffy slippers. We swam, we walked, we played cricket and spotlight and we ate way too many marshmallows.

Our Easter program was equally eventful with trips to a variety of Hobart's leisure centres, sightseeing and of course more of Horace's favourite pastime 'WALKING!' Richard Yang, Jason, James Kan and Fuhrmen were both delighted and then devastated to first feed the pigs at Mr Hanek's father's house and then to find out after further



FOURTH ROW: Mr Marcello Colombini, Riley Winter, Xiao Yuan (Allen) Liu, Matthias Umfahrer, Viet Hoang (Brian) Nguyen, William Fergusson, Alexander Hartl, Jack Fizelle, Anton Major, Sebastian Porth, Hoi Man (Herman) Cheng, Hyun Woo (Richard) Yang, William Fisher, Mr Skye Sissing THIRD ROW: Mr Adrian Finch, Mr Matt Casos, Yashovardhan Makharia, Akkrariksh (Pun) Krairiksh, Zhi Xiong (Mark) Loh, Ben Hartog, Archawin (Jay) Rungkitsawat, Nitiphat (Matoom) Montrisaet, Sorawis (Nont) Korananan, Ho Wai (Horace) Lee, Adrian Ip, Mrs Jane Wilson, Dr Peter Wilson, Mr Michael Portnoi

SECOND ROW: Thomas Downie, Harshvardhan Makharia, Neville Bates, Hugh Johnston, Jack Bignell, Taylor Sakaliuk, Samuel Fergusson, Isaac Denholm-McCredie, Chek Hui (Glenn) Tan, Edward Cotton, Ho Sum (Hils) Yeung, William Campbell, William Burbury, Fenn Gardner, Joseph Burbury FRONT ROW: Alex Geappen, Hoi Yuen (Fuhrmen) Lee, James Chew, Shun Yiu (Vito) Chan, Chun-yi (Jimmy) Lin, William Bowden, Samuel Downie (Captain), Mr Josh Hanek, Sarawood (Gab) Dejanipont (Vice Captain), Mrs Andrea Bester (Matron), Wen-Chuan (Frank) Sung, Minh (Mark) Vo, Myeong-Hae (James) Kan, Hong Yin (Wallace) Ling, Ning (Jason) Kong

## BURBURY House

enquiry that the same cute little porkers would be enjoyed by the whole Hanek clan at Christmas. Similar shock was experienced after feeding the kangaroos at Bonorong Park, the fish at the Salmon Ponds and the cows at Doc Wilson's farm. There isn't much we don't feed to eat in Tasmania. After a trip to Port Arthur and hearing the story of the last confession of Alexander Pearce, the boys strangely went off their food for a week.

The winter months saw many of the boarders utilising the gymnasium in the evenings and each of the boarders found their own gang. The Basketball Bandidos of James, Brian, Allan and Jack were often in competition for floor space with the Badminton Bloods of Mark Loh, Nont, Wallace and Jimmy while sometimes the Soccer Sharks of Herman, Vito, Marten, Michael and Alex Hartl would dominate the turf. The weights room was regularly attended by the big guns of Jack Fizelle, Delmurat, Will Bowden, Anton and of course Mohammed. At the same time you would find Gab, Yash, Mark Vo and Hils Yeung studying hard in order to maintain their impeccable academic records. Frank also claimed he was a part of this same study group but his studies seemed to be in the way of the woman, which I did notice was not listed in the TQA subject selection guide.

If you needed to know anything about your computer operation you could always access the resident 'Techies' in Riley, Taylor, Tim, Chester, John and Richard Kim. If you were hungry after dinner and in need of a sugar fix, Sam and Will would have the Boarders Roadhouse open right up until lights out and Isaac, Alex Geappen, Joe and Nifty Neville made sure that they spent all of their pocket money in one night and that their parents had to take on overdrafts to support their sugar habits.

Approaching the spring and summer months the focus turned to Cricket and as the Ashes was all over when Hilfy had his LBW appeal turned down late on day three in Brisbane, the Big Bash Twenty Twenty Boys of Harsh, Sam, Hugh, Will Campbell, Will Fisher, Will Burbury and Jack Bignell were to be seen on the South Oval under the watchful eye of third umpire and match referee Mr Warwick Dean every evening after prep. While this was all on we were impressed by Ben's new found work ethic and dedication to painting, Tom's practice on his trumpet, Hai's dedication to gaming and Ed's and Fenn's freelance work in adapting to and engaging in any activity available that took their fancy.

#### we have so many skills, talents, interests and abilities and we all have the chance to shine through the celebration of experiences, activities and events

Overall who could forget the fun of weeknight activities. Monday Cricket with Casos and the "Tuf" running squad, Doc's Documentaries and Tuesday Tutorials, Fun with Finchy on Wednesday, Hanek's Hardcore Homework on Thursdays, Hayward's Hollywood Friday Nights and of course Gym with the Gappies. We had movie nights, sports nights, quiz nights, bonfire nights, barbecues and banter amongst ourselves and with our sister schools Collegiate and Fahan. We attended performances, sporting events, exhibitions and parades. There was heaps of fun to be had and opportunities abounded for all who were available. As a community we have so many skills, talents, interests and abilities and we all have the chance to shine through the celebration of experiences, activities and events that we all share together.

The year has finished on a high with all of us knowing that we are going to experience a full refurbishment to Burbury House during 2011. Although logistically this will be a challenge, as a community we are all ready to tackle this change. Many thanks must go to the Headmaster, the School Board and parents for their support in providing such a wonderful opportunity and experience for us all.

Joshua Hanek

## Burbury House Valedictory Dinner Awards 2010

Burbury House Dash William Fergusson

Burbury House Sportsman William Bowden

Burbury House Academic Commendation Sarawood (Gab) Dejanipont

Burbury House Academic Achievement Yashovardhan Makharia

Burbury House Development Award Ho Wai (Horace) Lee

<mark>Burbury House Fellowship Award</mark> Akkrarksh (Pun) Krairiksh

Burbury House Service Award Samuel Downie

Alec Burbury Award William Fergusson







# DEBATING, Speaking and Writing

## Debating

This year has been very successful for Hutchins debaters and public speakers, from both participation and competitive perspectives. One of our Year 7 teams made it to the semi-finals and all three senior Hutchins debating teams won their section of the Tasmania Debating Union Southern Grand Finals. The Year 9 team: Timothy McQueen, Samuel Smeele, Oliver Johnson, Hugh Johnson, Yashovardhan Makharia, Jun Woo (Brian) Park, Rajat Rao and William Stephenson; Year 10 team: Samuel Johnston, Hudson Jones, Matthew Young, Jonathan Boadle, Nicholas McVilly and George Margvelashvili; and Years 11-12 team: Yuxiang (Allen) Chen, Joska Romero, Nanak Narulla, Matthew Allanby, Frank Burridge, Michael Titchen and Thomas Whiteley deserve our congratulations.

Thomas Whiteley, Frank Burridge and Yuxiang (Allen) Chen successfully argued against a team from Collegiate that sustainability is not only the responsibility of government but is shared by us all during the Tread Lightly Envirofest at the Botanical Gardens. Anniversary Debaters Michael Titchen, Joska Romero and Jordan Graney won back the trophy from old boys Joshua Munnings, Sam Thompson and David Ransley by proving that the roar of the Hutchins Lion is louder than ever. The standard of House Debating was impressive from Years 7 to12. Thorold was successful in the Middle School and School and Stephens were equal first in the Senior School.

Michael Titchen, together with debaters from Collegiate and Fahan, participated in a debate via video-conference as part of the Questnet Conference on the topic: 'That internet censorship is the responsibility of the Australian Government'. The debate, against a Canberra combined schools team, was co-ordinated by AARNet and chaired by Dr Karl Kruszelnicki.

Hutchins was represented by five students at the United Nations Youth Association State Conference. Thomas MacDonald and Nanak Narulla were selected to participate in the UNYA National Youth Conference in Perth involving 100 students from Australia and New Zealand. Thomas represented the Central African Republic and Nanak represented Laos and they debated resolutions, including assistance to Rwandan survivors and environmental refugees. The themes of the conference were 'Advocating for Change' and 'Empowering Minorities'. A major initiative was compiling a YOUth Change document containing messages for change in Australian society sent to the Minister for Education and other politicians.

#### Captain of Debating, Thomas Whiteley writes:

'Six Hutchins students competed in the Parliamentary Shield debating competition, from which the Tasmanian team is selected for the Australian Schools Debating Championships, which were held in Brisbane during August. I was lucky enough to be selected in this team along with three other Year 12 students from around the state. We competed in debates against every state and territory in Australia over topics ranging from banning the burga, to responses to the rise of China. We were the most successful Tasmanian team in six years and I thoroughly enjoyed the experience.

Another opportunity presented to students at Hutchins is a mock UN Security Council competition called the Ban-Ki Moon Medallion. Each team of two represented a country sitting on the current Security Council and debated a variety of resolutions about current world



issues. Thomas MacDonald and I won the competition and were invited to represent both Hutchins and Tasmania at the National Competition, the Evatt Trophy, held in Canberra in December.'

## Speaking

Senior Speech and Performance had a higher profile this year with an evening performance in the Drama Studio adjudicated by old boy, Mr Tim Munro, CEO of the Theatre Royal. Frank Burridge was the overall winner with his entertaining and unexpected answer to the question: 'Has modern communication methods killed the art of conversation?' Govinda Roser-Finch won the Senior Poetry recitation with 'Nightfall in Soweto' and Samuel Johnston won both Intermediate Poetry and Speech Prizes with 'The Road Less Travelled' and 'That our fast-paced society is becoming a problem'.

The performance standard in Middle School Poetry and Prose was exceptional. Year group winners were Thomas Clark-Hansen for 'The Ghoul' and James Burgess for an extract from *The Hobbit*. Max McLaughlin was the overall winner for a lively and entertaining rendition of 'Sister Ginger and the Cannibals'.

### Alliance Française prize winners for

2010 were: Samuel Besley (Poetry), Thomas Johnston (Conversation), Matthew Allanby (Conversation), Gautier Pavlovic-Hobba (Conversation, Listening Comprehension), and Charles Haward (Listening Comprehension).

Charles Haward and Matthew Allanby were awarded second and third places respectively in the Concours D'Entecasteaux, open to students from all schools studying pre-tertiary French. After a three hour exam involving aural and written comprehension and story writing, they were shortlisted for the conversation final.

## Writing

#### Extract from 'Ketsueki'

Night has fallen, and the breeze of the dark creeps: not blowing, not still. It crawls between the plates of his armour, and under the folds of his hitatare, chilling him to the bone. But it is not just the cold: there is something fouler afoot.

The breeze bears a message, of which his nose snares a trace – apprehension rises. Ina's ears prick at what could be the distant howls of men, though they are too faint to discern. There is a distinct taste of blood on the air, and the stench of death. Doubt rises also – his life has seen too much of such things, and now they live in his head. He is scarred inside and out; poisoned with regret.

His reason lingers; it is definitely tangible, and not of nightmares and phantoms; no craft of demons and dark spirits. He has seen his share of them; he knows their faces. Death truly does carry on the wind.

#### Winners in the Hutchins Short Story

Competition were: George Duckett for 'Ketsueki' and Timothy McQueen for 'Of Mice and Kids.' James Wheller won the Senior Poetry Prize for 'Lingering' and Jonathon Clark-Hanson won the Junior Poetry Prize for 'Sharks'. ICAS – English Medal winners this year were Johannes Peters and Thomas MacDonald.

#### Extract from 'Lingering'

Each journey, each new experience brings new wins and losses, new highs and new lows and for good or ill, I remember them.

"Don't linger, son. Don't leave yourself behind."

My father told me that, his face; sunburnt red as the dirt of Central Australia. Through cracked lips and experience, these words passed to me.

My mind lingers back to that day, to the sound of his voice and the warmth of the sun. I know I dwell there still.

#### Thank you to all the debaters, performers, poets and writers; coaches and teachers for your contributions in 2010.

#### **Alison Farmer**

Head of the Faculty of English and Modern Languages and Teacher in charge of Debating





# VISUAL & Performing Arts

o we really understand how much significance there can be in what we say, do, look

I have a tatty piece of ripped paper from a daily newspaper that was given to me over 20 years ago. This paper has accompanied me while teaching and sits proudly on my filing cabinet so I might be reminded of the power of the messages we receive and send. Looking at it today I am reminded and inspired by the diverse talents we have in this school. I have just assessed performance exams, viewed the 11-12 Art Exhibition and watched the dance troupes prepare for a major performance.

This faculty is about sending messages to our audience. We do this through the diversity of our creative talents which the staff nurtures and the students develop as they move through the School.

To our students and our dedicated and committed staff who are leaving us, it is with the words from that now tatty comic strip that I challenge you.

As Lucy says to Linus in the Peanuts Comic by Charles Schulz 'Reach for the stars, Linus. Reach for the stars!

Michelle Weeding Head of Visual and Performing Arts

## Drama Report

We spend much of our day pretending. Often we are convincing. We pretend we are not sad. We pretend we don't like others. We pretend there's nothing wrong etc. You would think then that it would be easy for Drama students to pretend they are other people! When our students come to their Drama classes we ask them to step into someone else's shoes. This might sound easy on the surface but it's one of the hardest acting skills to achieve. It's all about how you can convince others that the character you are portraying is different from yourself. Have you thought about gestures, voice, movement, emotions and their transitions, their objectives? WOW! This is much more complicated than anyone would ever imagine. Why is it then that when we pretend in daily life this often does not transfer onto the stage? The lights? The audience? Why isn't my performance as good as when I rehearse it or as good as I see it in my head? Quite simply, it's about technique. We can't teach talent but we can teach technique. All our Drama classes are about building a set of techniques and expressive skills. They don't just happen; they are build over a period of time. We see the development of skills culminating in performances and we have been very lucky to produce many and varied shows this year that have showcased where our students are on the technique building ladder. One of the best things about being a Drama teacher is watching our students' dramatic skill develop from Years 7 to 12. That is the true reward.

Michelle Weeding Head of Drama

## Years 11–12 Drama – Legend

This year the 11–12 senior Drama class presented three shows of Samuel A Taylor's western parody *Legend*. The cast of eleven students spent weeks researching the techniques used in spaghetti Westerns, to better understand their characters while the guidance of Director Michelle Weeding ensured that the play was of a high standard and hilariously entertaining for both audience and cast.

The show was also helped along by new teacher Jacquie Coad, who choreographed the opening and ending dance numbers. The show was a high energy piece involving a bank robbery, train bombing and dramatic final shootout, but was also very emotionally charged as the characters dealt with the ideas of expectation and courage.

A special mention must also go to Jack Weeding, the youngest member of our cast and crowd favourite, in his role as Judah Lymburner.

Jordan Graney Captain of Drama







### House Drama

House Drama was a great success. It would not have taken place without the constant support of Mrs Weeding and many others.

Our adjudicator was Billy Barnard, a former Hutchins Drama student and 2002 leaver who has since started a career in the music industry. There was a great variety of performances this year and the competition was tightly contested, with the audience enjoying all four of the house plays. In fourth place was Thorold House with an adaption of Richard Harrity's Hope is the Thing with Feathers, a story of a group of tramps and their efforts to catch a duck so they could eat it. In third place was Buckland House with the AA Milne play The Ugly Duckling, the story of a royal couple who go to extraordinary lengths to marry off their hideous daughter to an unsuspecting prince. Buckland had the consolation prize of winning the first annual 'most convincing woman' award, with



the honour going to Wilson Mure in his role as the Queen. Narrowly outscoring Buckland for second place was Stephens who performed a shortened version of *The Phony Physician* by Thomas S Hischak. This farcical play demonstrates the faith people have in people of authority even if they clearly are making it up on the spot and also ended with a stirring rendition of Monty Python's 'Lumberjack Song.'

Finally in first place was School House and their adaption of Mary Shelley's novel *Frankenstein*. School House employed dance numbers, creative lighting and the longest death scene in House Drama history; thanks Charles Haward. School House also relied on the strong relationships between their characters to create the humour and drama which resulted in a strong performance from all the cast.

The actors were great on the night but thanks must also go to the numerous people who worked behind the scenes and the house teachers who donated their time to supervise during rehearsal.

Jordan Graney Leader Performing Arts

## Middle School House Drama

Participating students practised and memorised lines for months, but it all paid off on the night. School did a puppet play about a farm boy who thought his mum didn't work hard enough, and was surprised when he gave housework a try. Thorold did an amazing performance about a man with a lump on his head, who travelled out into the countryside, and met a ghost who removed it for him at a cost. Stephens performed a play about a haunting child ghost who searched under the floorboards for a special shilling. Buckland's performance was about three young men moving into a house which was haunted. Although houses did amazing performances throughout the night, Thorold came out first with a flawless performance, even though they only had three actors. Stephens took second place, with an outstanding performance, supported by a fine accompanist. School, with the only puppetry play on that night, came third. Finally Buckland was last, but the students still tried their hardest.

Jock Mure and Gavin Yang

# VISUAL & Performing Arts

## The Errols

The Errols this year was without doubt a fantastic, fun-filled performance. The theme this year was flight, whether mechanical or of the animal kingdom. Presenting the awards for each category and introducing the acts were our hosts Bing Throsby and Bob Pope. Bing was a vain, accomplished and totally full of himself man while Bob was a total joker. This year they were played by Asher England and Daniel Himson.

We had four great acts this year. The first was from 7ILe. This was a film about a group of men searching through the Amazon jungle to find a Pterodactyl Rex, an ancient bird believed to be extinct, but after the professor of the group goes missing, the party begins to realise how much danger they are in. The class produced a fantastic live soundtrack.

After that it was 7GGe. They gave us a dance piece based on the movement of birds and the soundtrack was based on the sounds of them. At the end of the dance, each of the performers put on a hat with a sculpture of a bird on the top. Truly fantastic.

The next was from 7MSa. The motion picture *BUGS, from Outer Space* was their production. The soundtrack again was a

live performance from the class. In the film Hutchins is attacked by giant bugs from outer space. But is all lost? ... No. Up in the sky, is it a bird? Is it a plane? No, IT'S SUPER STUDENT!

The last act for the evening was from 7IAd *Frequent Fliers*, a black light puppet play with an incredible soundtrack by Lachlan Paul and Harrison Manton. This performance was all based on man-made flight. Each student produced their own puppet in Art.

All in all The Errols was a great night and was a good learning experience in the Arts for all the students.

Ziah Cooper 7MSa

## School of Performing Arts

Since its inception, the SPA has remained a small group of dedicated students who are working hard to further their skills and realise their dreams.

With 15 students in the program I am still amazed by their talents and commitment to rehearsals, performances and competitions.

Our students of SPA Music, Drama and Music Theatre have succeeded in all aspects of their performance skills and are well on their way to realising their full potential.



## SPA Drama

This year has been a busy year for SPA Drama. Our first project was the Spunky Squad Cabaret Night. With 70s style dance, music and costumes, this night was a rousing success. Based loosely on the TV show Funky Squad, we followed the story of a young, hip detective squad chasing down Chemistry Professor Irons, the jealous murderer of Dean Warwick. Sporting flares, platform shoes and afros, Spunky Squad set out to take down this devious professor. The show was complemented by live music courtesy of the SPA Bluenote Ensemble. With hits from Tom Jones, The Village People and Van McCoy's Hustle, this show had the crowd on their feet dancing and crying with laughter.

The next thing on the agenda was the Hobart Drama Eisteddfods. With performers across the age divisions,



# VISUAL & Performing Arts

Hutchins did extremely well. Govinda Roser-Finch came first in his age division and the other students all came close to victory. James Wheller won the Centertainment Award for the performer with the most potential U18, along with a cash prize. Not all students competed, but those who did, did the School proud.

SPA Drama also organised the performance item for Speech Night at the end of the year.

Alexander Colvin

## Music Theatre

This year has been a very successful year for Musical Theatre at Hutchins, with the size of the troupe increasing with new performers joining the Year 7–12 troupe. Performances this year have included the Southern Dance Eisteddfod, placing third in the Song and Dance U18 section and the SPA Spunky Squad Cabaret Night.

Musical Theatre met every Monday afternoon for an hour of dance training, along with a singing session during Friday lunchtimes. The level of commitment from the troupe has been outstanding, with weekend rehearsals often called during the lead up to major performances.

Thanks must go out to Michelle Weeding and Jacquie Coad for guiding the troupe through this year's performances, and also to our singing teacher, Lisa Roberts-Scott, without whom we wouldn't sing in key.

James Wheller



## Bluenote Ensemble

2010 continued to see this talented ensemble of both senior and junior musicians work on material that was recorded by artists who recorded on the famous Bluenote recording label in the 1950-60s.

Most of the material worked on this year, were tunes penned by the Bluenote heavy weights of Saxophonist Sonny Rollins, Trumpeter Miles Davis and Composer/ Keyboardists Horace Silver and Duke Ellington.

Performance highlights have included the SPA Spunky Squad Cabaret Night, and the Opening of the 2010 'Art of Christmas' Art exhibition at the Long Gallery for the Menzies Research Institute of Tasmania.

Scott Cashion



## Dance Troupes

This year has been a year of growth for the Hutchins Dance Troupe. Having lost our outstandingly talented Year 12 students from last year, everyone in the troupe has stepped up to a new level of performance and developed immensely. This year at the Southern Tasmanian Dance Eisteddfods, we competed once again in the Song and Dance group and the Jazz Group. We placed third performing a combination of Mama Says and Footloose in the Song and Dance section, and placed second performing Uprising by Muse in the Jazz section. These results are better than we have ever achieved in these two sections and are a credit to our dancers and especially to the Dance teacher Jacquie Coad, who finds music, choreographs the routines and puts an extraordinary amount of time into every one of our performances. Thanks should also go to Michelle Weeding, who is a big help in every aspect of the Dance Troupe as team manager.

We have a very strong base of young boys in the Junior Dance Troupe (Years 3–6), who are starting young and looking to become very promising performers in the future. Recently both the Junior and Senior Troupes took part in a workshop with the Justice Crew, winners of *Australia's Got Talent 2010.* Each of the troupes learnt a hip-hop routine, which are being combined for a Senior and Junior Dance Troupe performance.

We look forward to next year when the Dance Troupe will be taking 12 students to Singapore, and also possibly to Sydney once again to compete.

Frank Burridge Dance Co-Captain

## Visual Art

SENIOR SCHOOL

The learning of Art skills is an individual pursuit. Student's personal inquiry and ability to produce the outcomes they seek provides many challenges for the Art student.

So it is pleasing to state that the Art classes of 2010 have stimulated the creativity of all our students through an engagement which seeks personal problem solving as well as technical skill development. The Art area has been taken over by canvases, paper, mixed media sculpture, prints and visual diaries. Students have undertaken projects which challenge the visual and confront the mundane.

Year 7 Art students participated in The Errols, once again producing props for the occasion, which extended their Art skills and problem solving. They have concluded the year producing strong Albert Tucker-based paintings. Their efforts with their paintings have produced outstanding results, displaying a command of the brush and an awareness of composition.

The Year 8 students have developed their portfolios with drawing, painting, design projects and fine ceramics. Gargoyles guarded the Art room for some months.

Year 9 students have worked through projects covering printmaking, designing logos, building haunted house mirrors, as well as drawing and painting. The highlight for many students is the silkscreening unit which allows them to print original designs on t-shirts.

Year 10s have completed projects which prepare them for their Year 11-12 courses. Technical skill development is developed further through drawing, painting and block printmaking. The work produced by these students demonstrates the strength of their skills and capacity to creatively problem solve.

The work of the older students stands alone. Its vibrancy and diverse application of ideas and techniques keeps the Art area buzzing. Their examination exhibition is a testament to their creativity and high skill base.

We can all be proud of the students' achievements in 2010.

I thank the Art staff for their support and friendship. I have had a wonderful 12 years at Hutchins. It is now time to start another journey in my retirement.

Marja Bratt















## MUSIC

t Hutchins, so many of our students come through the Dudley Clarke Performing Arts Centre each day. Whether it is for a music class, a rehearsal, a private lesson or even simply to do some practise, you can be assured that there is always music being made. Even when the last students have left the building each afternoon, the music continues throughout the evening and through the weekend.

For many years, Hutchins has supported the musical education of many musicians within the Hobart community. Our facilities are available to many instrumental and choral ensembles. Hutchins has proudly supported such organisations as the Tasmanian Youth Orchestra and the Island Brass Academy along with many community-based choirs. We were happy to support the endeavours of the Tasmanian Music Teachers' Association with their 50<sup>th</sup> Anniversary Conference in March, along with their Annual Awards competition. I am pleased that this partnership will continue in 2011.

In March, a very successful choral workshop was held with the New Zealand Barbershop Quartet, Musical Island Boys. Ninety students from Hutchins, Collegiate, Mt Carmel, Ogilvie and New Town all worked together to look at the art of singing the barbershop genre, as well as general choral technique. The collaboration of the five schools working towards a common goal was genuinely pleasing to see by all Music teachers who were in attendance.

In August, we were very pleased to welcome the winner of the 2008 Sydney International Piano Competition of Australia, Konstantin Shamray, in a solo recital that was open to the general public. Performing a program of music by Beethoven, Schumann, Scriabin and Prokofiev in the Gershwin Room, his performance was described in a review in *The Mercury* as an 'astonishing privilege for his audience'. I would like to take this opportunity to thank Mr John Devine for his support in the production of this event and to Year 10 students, Samuel Johnston, Thomas Johnston, Melfred Lijauco and Jeremy Yang, for their assistance.

Throughout the year, the Faculty has been working hard to introduce a new curriculum in the Senior School along with reshaping the existing curriculum in the Junior School. This year saw the introduction of new courses for Year 11 and 12 in Audio Design, Music and Music Performance. Significant to this is the new Music Performance course developed and administered by the Conservatorium of Music at the University of Tasmania. Next year, we look forward to initiating a new instrumental program in Year 5 that will see all boys learning an orchestral instrument.

The Senior School House Music Competition always proves to be a popular event in the House Competition and 2010 was certainly no exception. From hard rock to jazz, barbershop quartet to rock bands, each house presented an array of musical talent. Through hard work, commitment and fine leadership from senior students, Buckland House were worthy winners.

Our Music Captains for 2010 have served us well. Macaulay Hagan and Thomas MacDonald have not only led our students by example through their own performances, they have also engaged the interest of our students to be actively responsible in both rehearsals and concerts.

2010 would not have been successful if it wasn't for the hard work of all Faculty of Music staff. I would like to express my sincere thanks to Mr Andrew Bainbridge, Mr Scott Cashion, Mrs Jean Moore and Mrs Robin Short for their endeavours, along with all of our visiting staff who put so much effort into their private teaching, assistance in the classroom and with rehearsals and performances. I also express my thanks to Mrs Rosemary Seddon for her valuable administrative assistance and to the Maintenance Staff who willingly help with moving equipment in preparing for performances.

Christopher Luke Head of Faculty of Music

## Senior String Orchestra

Senior Strings has increased its membership slightly this year, with the addition of Ayrton Rose on double bass, and Sam Johnston on viola. As expected, the group performed at both the Ensemble Showcase and Spring Concert, although we had to miss out on the Hobart Eisteddfod this year. They also joined the mini-tour to the Huon Valley with the members of the Symphonic Band.

A highlight for the orchestra was the Anniversary Concert on 6 August at St David's Cathedral. The students performed a short *Andantino* by Elgar, and were then joined by two horns and two oboes to play the first movement of Mozart's *Symphony No. 12* in G. This was a real highlight of the concert, with an excellent balance and blend, and lot of attention to detail and style from the students.

We are hopeful that the group will expand yet again next year, with the addition of another six players, either new to the School, or moving into Year 7. We are looking at a repertoire which includes some wind players, but it will be several



Th Qu at Pe

years before we have a full woodwind section of an adequate standard.

The students have been enthusiastic and attentive in rehearsals and have enjoyed their performances.

I would like to thank our highly experienced and skilled cello tutor Mr Brendan Conroy for all the help he gives, especially in choosing repertoire and dealing with the technical aspects of rehearsals and performances.

## Choirs

The Middle School Choir met for a few weeks during Term 3, with a small but enthusiastic membership, and a mixture of voices, both treble and 'changed.' Many of these students are keen to continue singing in 2011, with some moving into the Senior Choir.

The Hutchins Haircutters Barbershop Quartet made their debut performance at the Ensemble Showcase in May, and were a great success. Tenor Peter Humphrey, Lead Christopher Krushka, Baritone Daniel Westbury and Bass Melfred Lijauco have since put in many hours of rehearsal, and have performed at the Fahan Concert in August, Headmaster's Assembly, the Spring Concert and at the opening of the new Library Learning Centre. Further performances this year included the Huon Valley Mini-Tour, and music in the foyer prior to Speech Night. Close harmony singing requires great skill in listening and intonation, and I commend the students for the amount of enthusiasm and energy they put into their singing.

Late in 2009, five members of the Hutchins Senior Choir were invited to join the TSO Chorus to travel to Adelaide to perform Gustav Mahler's mammoth *Eighth Symphony* at the Adelaide Festival



*Mr* Andrew Bainbridge with choir members outside the Adelaide Entertainment Centre



Mr Andrew Bainbridge and choir members with TSO Chorusmaster June Tyzack

in March. Isaac Letchford, Thomas MacDonald, Peter Humphrey, Matthew De Hoog and Daniel Westbury began rehearsals with the Chorus in January, and worked with the choir for about three hours per week for two months. We then travelled to Adelaide for a week, with a gruelling schedule of up to six hours rehearsal per day. Fortunately, many of these rehearsals were not required, and so the students were able to spend their free time visiting the Art Gallery, Glenelg Beach and Rundle Mall, or enjoying the facilities at the Blue Galah Youth Hostel in Adelaide. The week culminated in a magnificent performance of the symphony in the Adelaide Entertainment Centre, with a combined choir of about 450, a combined orchestra (TSO and an Adelaide Symphony Orchestra), eight vocal soloists and conductor Arvo Vollmer, before a sold-out audience of over 5000. It was truly the experience of a lifetime, and we are very grateful to the management of the TSO and Chorusmaster, June Tyzack, for this unprecedented opportunity for our students. Since returning, several or our students have again joined the TSO Chorus for performances at the annual Festival of Voices, and a small group has again been invited to tour with the Chorus, this time to Western Australia in August 2011. I look forward to seeing this relationship with Tasmania's iconic orchestra continue to flourish.

The Senior Choir has been extremely busy this year, with performances at the Ensemble Showcase, Fahan Concert, Easter Service, Cathedral Service for the Opening of Parliament, Anzac Day, Service to Commemorate the Malayan Emergency, Anniversary Service, Fahan Winter Concert, and the Spring Concert. The choir will conclude the year with a combined concert with the Tasmanian Youth Choirs, performing Vaughan Williams' *Fantasia on Christmas Carols* on 13 December at St John's New Town.

The highlight of the year was combining with the Collegiate Singers to perform John Rutter's *Requiem* at the Anniversary Concert at St David's Cathedral in August. This required many hours of extra rehearsals over many weeks, and a totally different approach to repertoire, as the work is 40 minutes long. I commend the students for their efforts, in preparation and performance; it was truly an evening to be very proud of. I also want to thank Mrs Anne Morgan, Head of Expressive Arts at Collegiate, for the energy and detail she put into teaching the girls.

The Senior Choir continues to improve, in attitude, attendance, behaviour, technique and tone. It has been good to be able to tackle more challenging repertoire, and I have enjoyed finding more varied performance opportunities for the students. They have already received two invitations to represent Tasmania at interstate festivals in 2011.

Thank you to our accompanist Mr Ben Mackey for his assistance for most of the year.

I would like to thank and congratulate all choristers for their dedicated efforts, and especially Music Captains Macaulay Hagan and Thomas MacDonald for their untiring efforts and striving for excellence.

Andrew Bainbridge Director of Music Performance

## Hutchins Big Band

2010 has continued to see the Hutchins Big Band mature and develop into a versatile and exciting contemporary big band, with yet another busy and exciting year with numerous performances throughout the year. Term 2 saw the annual 'Jazz@

Hutchins' showcase concert. The night as usual, showcased all the Jazz-based ensembles that Hutchins has, including the Hutchins Guitar Ensemble, the Hutchins Brass Ensemble, the SPA Bluenote Ensemble and the Hutchins Big Band.

Special guest for this year was the multi-talented seven string guitarist Cary Lewincamp and Ziah Cooper on violin. The beginning of Term 3 saw the band perform as part of the Botanical Gardens Spring Community Festival, a chance to further our performance experience and expose the band to a new audience on a beautiful spring day



Mr Scott Cashion leads members of the Saxophone Quintet

## Hutchins Symphonic Band

The Hutchins Symphonic Band continues to develop in both size of ensemble and range of repertoire. This large ensemble has been developed to allow our increasing numbers of wind, brass and percussion players an ensemble to work within. The Band

is concerned with working on material across various genres of band literature, from the classics through to current pop music, and has close to 40 players from Years 7 to 12 involved. The success and growth of this ensemble are also due to the impressive work of Mr Glenn Schultz with the Hutchins Brass Ensemble and Mr Les Johnston with the Hutchins Trombone Ensemble.

**Scott Cashion** 



Mr Glenn Shultz directs the Symphonic Band

## BUCKLAND House

#### Head of House Mr Roy Servant

Administrator Mr Peter Crofts

#### Mentors

Mr Anthony Apted Mrs Rae Burch Mr Cameron Hudson Mr Michael Fishburn Mr Michael Thorne Mr Ross Towns

House Captain Andrew Isles

Vice Captain Edward Langdon

#### Prefects

Andrew Isles Shervin Aflatooni Simeon Thomas-Wilson Michael Short Ehsan Soltani

Award winners Ian Millhouse Waratah: Andrew Isles

#### Waratah Award Andrew Isles Simeon Thomas-Wilson

Buckland Red Hamish Killalea



### House Captain Report

The situation that we find ourselves in within each house is a unique one. It is something that we may not experience again in our years following school. In the Senior School there are 120 students, varying across four year groups. A great aspect of Buckland House is that nothing of that matters; we treat and respect everyone equally. Not everyone has the same interests and beliefs. But within the house we all believe in two simple words: courage and compassion.

The house system allows students to come together and form friendships that will inevitably last a lifetime. Students are interacting with not only their age group, but others above and below. This interaction allows everyone to grow and learn from a variety of people.

When performing for the house it is a great feeling. A feeling of no matter what happens nothing weighs up against giving it your best. You earn the respect of your fellow house mates and friends when you cross that finish line as a winner. A winner can be classed as many things, but my definition of a winner is someone who **puts all intimidation aside and rises above it**. The house atmosphere allows students to help fellow house mates to achieve that feeling.

2010 has been a year of hard work for Buckland, and eventually we have pulled through. Everyone has coped well with the construction site and made the best of a very hectic situation.

Aside from the distractions that 2010 had thrown our way, we had many stand out performances in both the athletic and the Arts areas. Alec Guerzoni, Rory Middleton and Beau Rogers give stand out performances in the Swimming Carnival. Cross Country had a new home at Tolosa, with a new hill, which proved to have many victims. It was a tough run, but the likes of Edward Langdon, Zachariah Lieutier, Wilson Mure and Tristan Cleaver conquered the run. House Music was a high for Buckland this year with us bringing home first place after much controversy. The last event of the year was the Athletics Carnival. It was a perfect day for the event and the performances from the students were even better.

At the end of the day we found ourselves comfortably in second place, with an extremely strong Thorold House running away with the win. We had many stand outs on the day, including David O'May and Lucas Hind finishing second and first in the Individual Champion's Medal. This year saw Buckland House finish third in the Cock House.

For the Year 12s, it has been a long road, a road that has had many twists and bends, but ultimately finishing at the top of the mountain. I thank each and every one of you for making my time here at Hutchins a highlight and a privilege. I can honestly say on behalf of the Year 12s, we thank all the people here in Buckland and at Hutchins who have made our time at this great school an experience that we will always carry with us. This year couldn't have run like it did if it wasn't for the tremendous effort from the Mentors, Mr Crofts and Mr Servant. So on behalf of the students we thank you for not just this year but for all the years that we have been in the Senior School. It has been a great experience. Just like the students who have come and gone, thank you for your guidance and friendship.

Andrew Isles House Captain



### Head of House Report

I ponder the word **reflection**. The process of going forward by looking back – and I wonder where to start.

The antique French sabre feels serenely comfortable in my hand, exquisitely balanced; but more significantly, charged with an eerie energy from the past. Since its fiery, forged birth into the world in 1845, it has witnessed the amazing vicissitudes of human society – born for the sole purpose of violent interaction. It seems very comfortable just resting on my lap. The sense of the past conflict remains encased within its cold soul, and so it is with all of us: the passage of time, together with its experience, will determine our future.

The recent elapse of time in Buckland has seen the 'forging' of many young men into adults, each with his own character, and after their departure, they will leave a lasting impression etched in our memory. This year we have had an exceptionally solid Year 11 and Year 12 group. Their sensible maturity reveals that we are doing things right in establishing a balanced, reflective approach to making life changing decisions 'Change is the law of life, and those who look only to the past or present, are certain to miss the future.' (John F. Kennedy)

For the first time in six years we didn't win Cock House; but again the spirit of competition has been outstanding, with an obvious sense of achievement, pride and disappointment providing the foundation for good character.

I feel a genuine sadness with the departing of the Year 12s, in that the path travelled has been a long one, mixed with the anticipation that these young men will realise their dreams in their transition into a very challenging world. A special mention must go to Andrew Isles, the Prefects and the Executive for their contribution this year and leadership in helping others to participate and to forge their own paths to a productive future

The Mentors' commitment and guidance have been significant factors in the welfare and development of all Bucks students. In particular, the outstanding dedication of Rae Burch and Mike Fishburn will be sorely missed. On behalf of the house, I wish them all the best in health and happiness for their retirement and extend our heartfelt thanks for their friendship and contribution over the years.

We continue to recognise the needs of the wider community with Ehsan Soltani and Mike Fishburn providing outstanding leadership in the Blood Challenge; and again, as a house initiative, we were able to make a significant contribution to the Leukaemia Foundation.

Putting a new face on things – I sacrificed my moustache for the cause – we will move into the future based on a solid past and anticipation of a successful 2011.

'We make a living by what we get, but we make a life by what we give'. (Winston Churchill)

It is with quiet confidence that I anticipate that these young men will proceed to a worthy future with the courage and compassion that is within them all.

Roy Servant Head of House

# BUCKLAND House

















SIXTH ROW: Rory Middleton, Daniel McQuillan, Andre Postma, Zachariah Lieutier, Jarrod Hibberd, Liam Palmer, Christopher Peterson, Asher Scobie, Jack Dikkenberg, Benjamin Dikkenberg, Justin Heatley-Hart, David Joscelyne, Marcus Negri, Angus Harvey, Todd Hind

FIFTH ROW: Chun-Yi [Jimmy] Lin, Luke Chamberlain, Declan West, Angus Balcombe, Alec Simpson, Sean Wilson, William Mollross, Beau Rogers, Shaun McMillan, Lucas Hind, Matthew Allanby

Samuel Smeele, Nathan McMillan, Archawin (Jay) Rungkitsawat, Mr Anthony Apted Jack Luck, David Lord, Sebastian Lopa, Hyun Woo (Richard) Yang, Samuel Williamson, Connor Bass, William Lord, David Marshall, Mr Ross Towns FOURTH ROW: Mr Michael Thorne, Mr Cameron Hudson, Gus Howe, Jordan Martin, Jacob Harris, Jang Woo (Charlie) Park, George Williams, Caleb Fife, Wilson Mure, Daniel Luck, Gun Woo (Jack) Park

Angus Davie, Mackenzie Clutterbuck, Samuel Crofts, Declan Martin, Joshua Roberts, Dae Hun Kang, Sean Willis, Lewis Noye, Mr Mike Fishburn THIRD ROW: Mrs Rae Burch, Matthew Respondek, Nicolas Schuecker-Rush, Seung Won Kim, Fraser McCreary, Ho Wai (Horace) Lee, Sorawis (Nont) Korananan, Hamish Elliott, Nicholas McFarland,

SECOND ROW: Connor Jimmieson, Kade Adermann, Timothy Craig, Oliver De Vriese, Sebastian (Basi) Thomas-Wilson, Thomas King, Hoi Yuen (Fuhrmen) Lee, James Chew, Xinhao Li, Lachlan James Hugh Balcombe, Daniel Hansen, Joshua Rathbone, Hamish Killalea, Elliot Hoysted

Ehsan Soltani, Thomas Misson, Benjamin Lieutier, Shervin Aflatooni, Alistair Cowles, Tarshi Hull FRONT ROW: Tristan Cleaver, Jhobin Aflatooni, Alec Guerzoni, Michael Short, Lachlan Poslek, Simeon Thomas-Wilson, Tobias Martin, Edward Langdon, Mr Roy Servant, Andrew Isles, Aaron Colles,

INSERTS: Luke Atlan, Tom Beadle, George Duckett, Charles Gabriel, Henry Goodfellow, Samuel Keating, Daniel King, Melfred Lijauco, Samuelu Lopa, Oliver Nelson, David O'May, Gautier Pavlovic-Hobba, Buddhaholy Siu ABSENT: Christopher Jones

BUCKLAND HOUSE

# SCHOOL House

#### Head of House: Mr M Chambers

Administrator: Mr S Nogajski

Captain: George Burbury

#### Mentors

Ms J Schafferius, Mr D Green, Mr T Turbett, Mrs S Malarski, Dr P Wilson, Mr C Luke

#### House Executive

Dale Ayres – Sport James Heron – Sport Jack Bishop – Whip Lachlan Meyer – Communications Cameron Burnett – Vice-Captain/ Assemblies George Burbury – Captain Jordan Graney – Drama/Cock House Co-ordinator William Bowden – Music David Readett – Socials Samuel Downie – Socials / House Activities Joseph McGrath – Community Service Jack McGrath – Chapel

Anniversary Tie Recipients Dale Ayres, Lachlan Meyer, Joseph McGrath, Jack Bishop, Jordan Graney

#### Golden Fleece Award

William Bowden, Jordan Graney, Joseph McGrath, Cameron Burnett, Jack McGrath, Samuel Downey, George Burbury

Chris Rae Academic Award for Excellence 2010 – Yashovardhan Makharia

The McQuilkin Award for Academic Excellence 2010 – Charles Haward

School House Light Blue Yashovardhan Makharia, William Ferguson, Nicholas Rowell, Benjamin Armstrong

School House Blue Charles Haward, Henry West, Anton Roberts, Govinda-Roser Finch

Beattie Trophy Winner: SMA

Blue Bowl Winner: Staff



### Head of House Report

It continues to amaze me how capable you School House boys are. In 2010 you have gone the extra mile over and over, regularly doing more than expected and rarely complaining. You have taken on all challenges presented and excelled whenever effort is asked for.

Teamwork and unity are two themes that really stood out this year. Year 9s in particular, you need special praise for getting us off to a flying start for your efforts in the Swimming Carnival. There was 100% attendance with many of you swimming in numerous events. What a great start to the year! Jack Bishop, Bart Kalmeijer lead our team with pride and David Fry's performance in the pool was nothing short of inspirational. We could tell that School House spirit was alive and well and that a big year was ahead.

The summer and winter Activity Days were both very successful, finishing in first and second place respectively. Thank you to all the individual captains in each activity for organising your teams and competing to the best of your ability. There were too many highlights to mention them all here, but watching the skills of our Mountain Bikers Eugene and William Smith was something to behold. The headgear that William Hume wore in the football was interesting to say the least and the rowers, lead by James Heron, were outstanding in winning even though they didn't even hit the water! Work that one out!

By this stage of the year, winter had definitely set in and our champion Chess Team from 2009 were ready to defend their title. In what I saw as one of the most passionate efforts this year by any School House student, Alexander Keech rallied his merry chess men and together they defended the title. What an effort! Benjamin Hudson's mind games brought him back from the brink of defeat and ice man Viet Hoang (Brian) Nyguen disposed of his opposition in record time. James Briant was merciless in his demolition of his opponents.

Time for our debaters to step up to the plate ... and did they do that indeed! Led by the Vice-Captain of School House, Cameron Burnett, the Debating team treated their rivals with contempt out debating them with logical argument and wit. Oliver Geale, Henry West and Callum Sinclair-Gibson were particularly brutal in the punishment of the opposing teams. Well done lads, once again we finished in first place.

Activities now swung over to the outdoors where a new Cross Country course was being tested. Ross Welling, Richard Giblin, William Fergusson, Henry West, Charles Haward, Sam Heron, Dale Ayres, Claude Alcorso and George Burbury handled it with ease, but by far my highlight of the day was seeing David Readett's final 30 metre sprint to the line. He had obviously run the race of his life and was clearly on rubber legs street coming into the home stretch but managed one last magnificent effort to beat the opposition across the line. He gave up everything for the house, including his breakfast! Well done David and everyone who pushed themselves to their limit. Finishing in second place was once again testimony to all of us working together as a team.

It was clear at this stage the Cock House trophy – something that had eluded the house since 1994 was ours to take if we could follow though in the remaining three events. Excitement was building in the camp!

Music and Drama were soon upon us and the efforts by our leaders, William Bowden and Jordan Graney respectively were sensational. The music men rocked the house with Nicholas Studley and Alec Shea in particular putting in solid performances. Likewise in the Drama, Govinda Roser-Finch was an outstanding deputy to Jordan in the School House production of *Frankenstein*. Cam, I hate to say it but you make a great monster! The final results were second in Music and a clear winner in Drama. Once again outstanding!

THE COCK HOUSE WAS NOW OURS! After 16 years of trying, it was finally ours!

Yes, with still the Athletics to go, we had managed to finish either first or second throughout the year in everything we entered giving us a winning lead in the Cock House competition. There was talk of setting up a marquee at the Athletics Carnival and gloating in our victory, but this is not the School House way. Instead, we took it right up to the opposition and gave it our best shot. Participation was exceptionally high across all age groups with top performances observed. Christopher Drummond was particularly dominant winning his age group and many other boys won their individual events. Well done boys and thank you to the other houses for competing in such good spirit.

The strange thing about 2010 was that, while winning the Cock House Trophy was magnificent, it wasn't the lasting memory I will take from the year. Instead, the way you all helped each other out, looked after your mates and worked together in all aspects of your schooling is what I will remember the most. The Winter Clothes Appeal was an outstanding success and Samuel Downie, Joseph and Jack McGrath and George Burbury were exceptional in co-ordinating this. Five large wool bags of clothes were distributed to the Salvation Army for 2010. This would have to be some sort of record, I would imagine.

The spirit you showed throughout the year – whether it was at the fish and chip night supporting the Drama Students; at the social with Collegiate early in Term 1 or even at the Blue Bowl in the final week of school, proved to me that you are a group of guys who care in what you do and have fun doing it. The inter-school activities were a huge success with many of the younger students learning from the example you set.

There are some people needing a particular thank you.

George, you have been a wonderful Captain and have set the bar very high for the Captains in the future. I have appreciated all the work you have done in front of the House and behind the scenes. It was inspirational to see the way in which you lead your Executive and inspired us all. Well done with all your efforts and good luck with your new career in the AFL at Geelong. Cam, you were outstanding running the assemblies and keeping us all focussed. Your positive outlook and fresh approach was extremely well received. Well done.

Samuel Downie (the 2010 Pak Wilson Award winner) was the essence of what it was to serve as a School House leader. Your tireless efforts week after week in helping the house run effectively were always appreciated and I with all the Mentors and students thank you for this. Great work Sam!

To the rest of the Executive: Dale, James, Jack B, Lachlan, Jordan, Will, David, Joe and Jack, I thank you for everything you did for the house and how you managed to run your portfolios as smoothly as you did. I have enjoyed really seeing your leadership flourish in such things as creating house spirit, the Beattie Trophy, Chapel or Community Service Coordination and I'm sure you will be able to take the skills learnt with after you leave Hutchins. Top job men.

A special thank you needs to go to Mr Nogajski, the School House Administrator, for all the work in keeping us organised and on top of the organisational side of running the house. Nothing was ever an issue for Mr Nogajski and without his constant support we would not be where we are today.

To the Mentors – Ms Schafferius, Mr Green, Mr Turbett, Mrs Malarski, Dr Wilson and Mr Luke – thank you for the endless hours you have devoted to mentoring the students this year. Your efforts go way and beyond what is expected and we are all grateful. Ms Schafferius will be very much missed next year on her well- deserved long service leave. We finally have the trophy so you can rest easy!

Lastly, a big thank you to each and every one of you in the house for making this such a memorable year. I am excited about what the future holds and feel strongly there is much more success ahead. Good luck to the leavers of 2010 and be sure to catch up with us again in the future.

Mr Martin Chambers Head of School House







# SCHOOL House



























FIFTH ROW: Julian Brown, Mitchell Dance, Jordan Huber, Isaac Hood, William Hughes, Ross Welling, George White, Anton Roberts, Alexander Hay, Griffin Windhurst, Benjamin Armstrong, Matthew Sonneveld

Christopher Drummond, Riley Winter, Newman Spurio, Edward Burrows-Cheng, Alexander Keech, Lyndon Cantwell, Henry Laskey, Bart Kalmeijer, Mr Sam Nogajski, Ms Jodie Schafferius THIRD ROW: Mr Thom Turbett, Mrs Sheree Malarski, James Francis-Smith, Hugh Jones, Daniel Drummond, Dylan Jarvis, Nicholas Rowell, William Smith, David Fry, Jamie Briant, John Lennard,

SECOND ROW: Samuel Harley, Joel Wheeler, Cameron Horner, Oscar Beattie, Cameron Chilcott, Alistair Chilcott, Yashovardhan Makharia, William Sander, Fergus Quealy, Ethan Gray, Ben Jones Kok-Chang (Gary) Chow, Akkrariksh (Pun) Krairiksh, Oliver Morris, Zhi Xiong (Mark) Loh, David Francis-Smith, Angus Pitt, Lachlan Crowder, Rhys Jenkins

Burbury, James Heron, David Readett, Jack McGrath, Lachlan Meyer, Nicholas Studley, Patrick Noonan, William Hume FRONT ROW: Cho Yan (Joseph) Wong, Hoi Man (Herman) Cheng, Cho Yan (Joseph) McGrath, Jordan Graney, William Bowden, Samuel Downie, Jack Bishop, Cameron Burnett, Mr Martin Chambers, George

Eugene Smith INSERTS: Nikolas Berechree, Thomas Bligh, Nathan Brown, Fletcher Caldwell, Matthew Clark, Nicholas Edwards, Oliver Geale, Hamish Ikin, Henry Jones, Jonathan Olivier, Jordan Reiss, Lincoln Reynolds, Jack Saul

SCHOOL HOUSE

# STEPHENS House

Head of House: Mr R McNamara

House Captain: Jamie Clark

House Administrator: Mr B Smith

#### Mentors

Dr J Abell Mr S Moore Mrs A Smithies Mr A Palfreyman Mr P Van Tienen Mr J Bush (Term 1 and 2) Mrs J Moore (Term 3)

#### School Prefects:

Jamie Clark – Captain Lewis Connor – Vice-Captain Charles Jackson – School and House Whip Nicholas Cannell – House Sport Portfolio

Michael Titchen – Second Prefect

#### Leaders

Thomas MacDonald – Academic Portfolio Aarron Headley – Cultural Portfolio Joshua Vasicek – Social Portfolio Thomas Whiteley – Spiritual and Pastoral Portfolio

James Roberts-Thomson – Special Project

#### Honoured House Members

House Lions: Jamie Clark, Michael Titchen, Thomas Whiteley House Guineas: Richard Sayers, James Wheller, Nicholas Cannell, Jamie Clark, Thomas MacDonald, James Roberts-Thomson, Michael Titchen, Joshua Vasicek, Thomas Whiteley

Anniversary Tie Recipients: Nicholas Cannell, James Roberts-Thomson, Aarron Headley, Thomas Whiteley, Matthew Keep, Thomas MacDonald House Colours: Jonathan Boadle, Huw Green, Nicholas McVilly, Bruno Almeida, Francis Pascal, Tobias Pitt, Richard Sayers, Owen Swain, David Titchen, Jackson Willows, William Wurf, Timothy Clark, Jamie Clark, Matthew Keep, Edward Roberts, Thomas Whiteley



## House Captain Report

It has been a successful year in Stephens House in 2010 with participation levels being high and always improving and this was shown with Stephens House being very competitive across the board. We came second in House Drama, third in House Music and Swimming and fourth in Athletics and Cross Country, leaving us in fourth position just behind Buckland. Hopefully this improvement will continue and we will finish in the first three next year.

Stephens House's main focus this year was **unity** which means coming together as a team to achieve a result. There was plenty of unity in the house in 2010 with many activities.

The House Executive has done an excellent job this year. I would like to thank those students who provided the house with its steady base which has made my job so easy with the entire executive willing to help out. Many activities were run including a house night called the Casino Royale. This provided new entertainment, with the Hutchins Auditorium turning into a games room with cards and movies on offer. Stephens House has a tradition of holding many fundraising activities throughout the years, and this year was no exception. Fundraising efforts in Stephens House resulted in large contributions to the Cancer Council through the Relay for Life and barbecues. Stephens House also ran Daffodil Day keeping the yellow daffodil association with the Stephens yellow.

I would like to thank all Mentors for their consistent effort in helping us from the start of Year 9, particularly Mrs Smithies, who is not only my Mentor but a friend as well. That is one of the great things about Hutchins; our teachers are more than our mentors, they are friends and we can talk to them about personal or school problems. Mr Mac, our Head of House, has provided the house with great energy bringing a new vibe to Stephens House. Without his efforts the house wouldn't be as successful as it is. I would also like to thank every member of Stephens House for making this house a unified success.

It has been a great honour to be House Captain of Stephens. I have enjoyed every minute and it is something I will never forget.

For those remaining in 2011 I wish you all the best and encourage you all to enjoy the rest of school life, make the most of your opportunities, have no regrets and just do your best.

Jamie Clark House Captain



## From the Head of House

I have had the best year! Now I know it's not about me, but you've got to admit that if the Head of House is happy, chances are that things must be progressing well in the house. So what makes a great year? Clearly winning the Cock House was not a factor, nor was coming second or third. Perhaps the productivity of the Executive, detentions not being issued too frequently, the enthusiasm of students to be involved, activities organised and supported by the students or mentors with smiles on their faces.

So much has happened this year and much of it under the direction of a proactive House Executive. For me, the stand out event was the Casino Royale House Night which was so well supported by our own Stephens House students as well as our sister houses at Collegiate. Testimony to its success was the fact that students were still talking about it at the end of the year. The Auditorium was set up as a Monte Carlo Casino with tables, croupiers, mocktales, music and the James Bond Casino Royale on the big screen. Some lost the chips they were given upon entry fairly quickly, while others managed to grow a nice little nest egg.

Other social events have included the traditional house barbecues, often combining these with the Leading Light Competition between mentor groups (this year won by APa), and assemblies where a mentor group was responsible for entertaining the rest of the house.

A great deal of time has been spent this year trying to ensure that students are rewarded for their involvement

in house activities. This involvement contributes to the attainment of House Colours, our own house Guinea (effectively a double colours badge) and the Stephens House top award, the Stephens House Lion. We have now put together a completely computerised system ensuring that as a student participates in an event it is immediately added to his points register and when he has amassed enough points for the next award I am informed and the presentation of his certificate and badge can take place at our next formal assembly.

In addition to attending weekly Chapels, Stephens House has continued its tradition of conducting a House Eucharist. We now do this once a term and this year commissioned a large candle with the house crest to be specially made in yellow and blue. This is lit at the start of each of the Eucharist Services, and provides an opportunity for us to reflect as a house.

To Jamie and his Executive, thank you, you have modelled for others the behaviour, the integrity and drive that will see you succeed as individuals away from the support offered by Hutchins. The life of a school is forever busy and I would like to thank each and every student in Stephens for the contribution they have made to the life of the house. It's always easy to put up your hand to do something you know you are good at, but it takes courage and a belief in the bigger picture to put your hand up when numbers are needed but you lack the requisite skills. In Stephens House this year we have seen an increased willingness for students to tackle something outside their comfort zone for the good of the house. This courage I hope students will take with them when they leave school. *Virtutis Amore* – for the love of virtue.

Roger McNamara Head of House





# STEPHENS House

















Tom Schwerkolt-Browne, Jeremy Coles FIFTH ROW: Daniel Westbury, Matthias Umfahrer, Samuel Gardner, Jack McMeniman, Owen Swain, Edward Roberts, Daniel Feeger, Huw Peacock, Jonathan Boadle, Matthew Huizing, Laurens Ahlring, Oliver Lane,

Timothy Clark, Tengxiao (John) Jiang, Cameron Brumby, Lewis Nettlefold, Riley Grining, Sam Hunnibell, Arjun Dubey, Spiro Fiotakis, Mr Jordan Bush FOURTH ROW: Mr Simon Moore, Mr Adam Palfreyman, Emmanuel Marios, Mitchell Farmer, Nanak Narulla, James Wheller, Benjamin Cretu, Andrew Flett, Jackson Willows, Jordan Stanwix, Christopher Krushka.

Andre Botha, Peter Humphrey, Rajat Rao, Sebastian Welch, Ryan McMann, Nitiphat [Matoom] Montrisaet, Sandy Woodcock, Mr Brett Smith THIRD ROW: Mrs Alison Smithies, Campbell Muskett, William Cui, Andreas Souvleris, Dwayne Fitzpatrick, William Wurf, Timothy McQueen, Alexander Colvin, Benjamin Thomas, Ben Hartog, William Stephenson,

SECOND ROW: Kaelan Durbin, David Summers, Taylor Sakaliuk, Samuel Padgett, Adrian Ip, Chek Hui (Glenn) Tan, Douglas Austin, Benjamin Watkins, Bruno Almeida, Nicholas McVilly, Alec Bailey, Nelson Brown, Tobias Pitt, Jeremy Yang, Samuel Johnston, Yuxiang (Allen) Chen, Vincent Ertl, Myeong-Hae (James) Kan, Richard Davidson-Lim, Nicholas Tabor

Joshua Vasicek, Thomas MacDonald, Denver James, Samuel Cleary, Matthew Keep, Manoli Marios FRONT ROW: Alan Rushworth, Conor Westbury, Joshua Coles, Nicholas Cannell, Aarron Headley, James Roberts-Thomson, Thomas Whiteley, Michael Titchen, Mr Roger McNamara, Charles Jackson, Lewis Connor,

ABSENT: Dilimulati Duolikum INSERTS: Ashley Ahokas-King, Jamie Clark, Alexander Colbert, Samuel Counsell, Patric Hindle, Hudson Jones, Jarrod Midson, Harrison Pascoe, Joseph Paul, Lucas Sims, James Sly, Aaron Zantuck

STEPHENS HOUSE

## THOROLD House

## Thorold Awards, Leaders and Executive Members 2010

Golden Antlers Oliver Burke, Harrison Hughes, Lawrence (Larry) Owen, Richard Pearce, Thomas Squires, Alexander Elford

Tom Kibbey Award Thomas Squires

<mark>Richard Hewson Award</mark> Nathan Holloway

Webber Award for Service Tomos Lelong

#### Anniversary Ties

Timothy Cannon, Harrison Hughes, Nathan Holloway, Thomas Squires, Tomos Lelong

### Head of House Award

Lawrence (Larry) Owen, Richard Pearce, Alexander Elford

#### House Leaders

House Captain: Richard Pearce Vice-Captain: Alexander Elford

#### **Executive Members**

Year 12 Lawrence (Larry) Owen Alexander Elford James Waldron Oliver Burke Timothy Cannon Sarawood (Gab) Dejanipont Macaulay Hagan Nathan Holloway Harrison Hughes Tomos Lelong Richard Pearce Thomas Squires Year 11 George Gavalas Bradley Tilbury Thomas Whitton William Polglase Thomas Dobie Year 10 Joshua Symonds



## House Captain's report

When I arrived at Hutchins in 2001, I had an interview with Mr Brammall. He told me that to succeed at Hutchins, you had to do three things: have a go, do your best and have fun. Thorold House in 2010 managed to achieve those three things, showing the two key factors in our success over the recent years: participation and spirit. The Thorold students had the highest participation rates of any house at a number of house events, going a long way in our victories in many of the inter-house competitions. The house also excelled in academics, with a very large number of students receiving school, state and national awards.

After a close swimming carnival in which we finished second, everyone knew it was going to be a tight race for the Cock House flag. The Thorold students showed their spirit and their desire to have a go in the next few competitions, winning summer sports day, Cross Country and Athletics. We had great individual performances from Hugh Nichols, Bon and Max MacMillan, George Gavalas, Matthew (Max) Waldron and Lawrence (Larry) Owen, who led the way and set an example for our house.

Participation in the Athletics Carnival, both in events and organisation, was this year's highlight for me, and it showed what it means to be in Thorold. The event was a dead rubber, with School House having an insurmountable lead in Cock House. This did not stop the boys, and the athletes were fantastic, assisted by a huge number of students who were marshalling and organising events, so much so that a number of executive members found themselves wandering around with nothing to do but cheer on the rest of the house. This culminated in our outstanding victory on the day, winning by a huge margin and having seven out of ten students participating in the champion's race for the fastest student.

House Drama, organised by Oliver Burke and Frank Burridge, and House Music, organised by Thomas Jenkins and Macaulay Hagan, were also highlights in the year, with an hilarious performance from George Gavalas in the Drama and a brilliant acapella rendition of the Beatles Classic 'Eleanor Rigby' in the Music, performed by Macaulay Hagan, Sean Gressie, Isaac Letchford and Thomas Johnston.

This year the Executive organised a large number of events, including House lunches and mentor group competitions. A great House Night with Monty and Reiby was hosted in the Auditorium, and had a very good turn out, with everyone enjoying themselves in a quiz and a number of activities based on the television show, 'Minute to Win It'. The night was a great achievement for the Executive, and came together from a combined effort, but Thomas Squires and Nathan Holloway should be recognised for their work that went towards the event.

2010 was another successful year for the boys in green, and it was an honour to be House Captain for such a committed and passionate group of students. The participation and enthusiasm of the students this year made my role very easy. I would like to thank the Mentors for their tireless dedication to the house, the Executive for working non-stop behind the scenes and Mr McLeod for once again leading the house to success.

To the Thorold leavers of 2010, you set a fine example of how true Thorold students conduct themselves, and I thank you for your efforts. To the boys who come back next year, unlucky, but I wish you all the best and hope you put in as much as you get out of this great house.

Richard Pearce House Captain



K-12 Assembly James Thomas and Lloyd Kacic-Midson

## From the Head of House

The prestigious Gumley Shield is awarded to the Senior School House with the highest academic achievement and effort. In an excellent result for Thorold House, we have been awarded this shield for the third year in a row. This reflects very well on the cumulative efforts of each and every student in the house. As well as that, the winning margin was unprecedented and it does reveal that the house is chock full of students who are attending to the primary purpose of their being at school: their academic endeavours. The house performance in the other areas of competition has been excellent and this indicates that we are achieving a satisfactory balance between work and play.

I pay tribute to House Captain Richard Pearce and his hard working executive. They have done a fantastic job with assemblies, lunches, social program, social night with sister houses Reiby and Monty and with befriender work in other areas of the School. We were not able to win the Cock House Shield this year, but did exceptionally well in all the events that involved the whole house competing. Fantastic wins at the Athletics, Cross Country and summer sports day and close seconds in Swimming and winter sports day were great results. These events saw Thorold reaching almost full participation in all events. Never has the combination of the capabilities and the teamwork been highlighted as much as with the relay events at the Athletics when Thorold House won every relay event in every age group. Stunning depth of physical talent!

Competition aside, a highlight for the year was the K-12 House Assembly. This is a wonderful occasion where the whole house, from Kinder to Year 12, meets for an assembly. This year's began with important formalities and we were brought up to speed on the progress of Thorold in each part of the School. The senior boys then put on an hilarious 'morality play' highlighting the importance of being diligent, honest and trustworthy. The characters were sent on a quest which involved a treacherous crossing of the 'lake of integrity' and a dangerous hike through the 'forest of truth' to find the 'Goblet of Thorold'. It



James McLeod presenting Richard Pearce with a Head of House Award

was the Green character who proved most righteous as he passed all tests of character and finished with the prize. We then dispensed with the chairs and got down to the important pastime of paper folding. The older students (who had practised the art earlier) taught the younger students how to fold a green paper frog. It was a wonderful shared experience for all concerned and a great reminder of the reason we place so much emphasis on the House System.

James McLeod Head of Thorold House

William Polglase and Richard Pearce reading with Sebastian Giannis and Lachlan Marriott



## THOROLD House



Thorold Barbershop Quartet: Thomas Johnston, Macaulay Hagan, Isaac Letchford and Sean Gressie



Thomas Squires flying high for Thorold House



Thomas Squires receiving the Tom Kibbey Award for House Spirit



K-12 Assembly folding green frog





SECOND ROW: Callum Norris, Ho Sum (Hils) Yeung, Vinesh Logantahan, Damon Heather, Costa Patiniotis, Ning (Jason) Kong, Lachtan Fraser, Harry Nichols, Alexander Gall, Junwoo (Brian) Park, Connor Dobie

Samuel Fahey, Brendan Hay, Max MacMillan, Richard (Zac) Bury, Reuben Hore-Waterhouse, Dimitri Ross, Thomas Jones, Henry Forbes-Smith, Harry Purdon

Thomas Squires, Tomos Lelong, Sarawood (Gab) Dejanipont, Bon MacMillan, Tom Howard FRONT ROW: Richard Crotty, Thomas Dobie, James Thomas, Oliver Burke, Macaulay Hagan, Harrison Hughes, Timothy Cannon, Alexander Elford, Mr James McLeod, Richard Pearce, Nathan Holloway, James Waldron,

INSERTS: Eli Barrett, Conrad Beckett, Eric Heinonen, Tim Hooks, Harrison King, Isaac Letchford, Jack McCullum, Lawrence (Larry) Owen, Max Rowan, Dylan Sault, Jack Sheahan, Lachlan Smith, Tobias Tenbensel Matthew (Max) Waldron, Harrison Woo

THOROLD HOUSE

## SPORT

### Co-curricular 2010

From the sports arenas, drama studios, music halls, and debating and public speaking competitions, our young men have travelled a path of self expression, gaining life time experiences.

Notable performances include: Athletics Aggregate Boys Champions at SSATIS and SATIS

- Australian Rules Football SATIS state premiers First XVIII
- Australian Rules Football SATIS state premiers Second XVIII

Awards Assembly six Honour Badge recipients

First Basketball southern finalists Badminton Ampol Cup Champions Successful introduction of Boxing at

PCYC with Adam Palfreyman

SSATIS and SATIS First XI cricket premiers

SSATIS finalists in Second XI cricket Cross Country Junior, Senior and

Aggregate boys champions

Cycling – successful program implemented by Michael Thorne – Henry West a stand out

Dance Troupe State Dance Eisteddfods and commendable mention in the Sydney Dance Eisteddfod

Drama productions

Debating Champions in Year 9, Year 10 and 11–12. First time a clean sweep

Hockey Second XI SATIS state premiers Finalists in First XI Hockey Southern

Championship Music success in the Clarence and

Hobart Music Eisteddfods Rowing winning all Head of River races with the exception of one. Australian

Champions in U19 8, U19 Coxless four, U17 Single Scull and U17 Double Scull. Most successful school at the National Championships

Rugby U14 champions and U18, First XV state premiers

Sailing – State Champions – Success for Alec Bailey YT Sailor of the Year and Third in the World. Winners of the Youth Achievement Award.

Soccer First XI SATIS state semifinalists

Soccer Second XI SATIS State Premiers Sport Shooting State Invitational winners

Swimming – SSATIS and SATIS College Champions and Boys Aggregate Champions

Tennis tour to Cairns for the Davis Cup Water Polo Southern Schools finalists

Thanks must go to our coaches, managers and assistants, and especially to our dedicated teaching staff.

#### Mr Wayne Brown Director of Co-curricular and Sport



chosen sport. One of these was James McMahon, who ran a brilliant race in the Open boys 1500m.

The following weekend the team headed to Launceston to take part in the State SATIS Carnival. The day started with a solid run by Charles Haward in the Open 3000m. This set the tone with everyone doing their best to ensure that the team had every chance of success. The boys U14 team were again outstanding, with Rajat Rao stepping up to add the 400m to the list of events they were able to dominate. Brendan Hay and Edward Burrows-Cheng gave their all in the U15 age group, George Burbury and James McMahon gave classy performances and Matthew (Max) Waldron was again a stand out performer, particularly his 400m at the end of the day. The carnival was capped off with a win in the last event of the day by the School Captain, Lawrence (Larry) Owen in the Open 400m. At the completion of the

event, Hutchins finished second in both the Junior and Senior divisions and was again successful in taking out the Aggregate Shield.

The final commitment of the year was the National Schools Knockout Final, held in Melbourne on 6 December. The School sent Intermediate and Senior teams to the event. Both performed well with the Intermediate team managing fifth out of a total of 16 teams. Yet again, Matthew (Max) Waldron was a standout, winning the 100m and 200m. His final leg of the Swedish relay had to be seen to be believed, running down a 30m lead to take out the final event of the program.

Thanks must go to both Mr Adrian Finch and Mr Michael Conacher for their continued dedication and commitment to Hutchins Athletics.

Huw Peacock Athletics Captain 2010

## Athletics

It was another successful year, with many outstanding individual and team performances in the Southern, State and Knockout Competition carnivals.

Following a return to the training track at the completion of the Term 2 school holidays, the short School Athletics season kicked off with the Southern Independent Schools Carnival at the Domain Athletics centre with a Wednesday twilight carnival held for the first time. Captained by both George Burbury and Huw Peacock, the team went into the event with high hopes of performing well in both the Junior and Senior competitions. Overall it was a successful day for the team, finishing a close second in the Junior and Senior divisions and taking out the Aggregate Shield.

There were many outstanding individual performances, in particular the U14 team who were able to take out the 100m/200m (Jesse Usoalli), 800m/1500m (Ben Robinson), Hurdles (Oliver Jones) and the 4x100m relay (Jesse Usoalli, Thomas Farmer, Benjamin Robinson, Rajat Rao). In the Senior age groups, Matthew (Max) Waldron showed his class, winning the 100m, 200m and 400m, and there were many other quality efforts from boys for whom Athletics was not their

## Australian Rules Football

2010 was a terrific year for Hutchins, with the School collecting both the First and Second XVII premierships. This coincided with a tremendous tour of Queensland during the Term 1 break where we played three hard fought matches against quality opposition.

The First XVIII once again had a very successful season under the guidance of our newly appointed coach Mr Josh Hanek. Josh took the reins from Mr Adrian Finch, due to his footballing commitments, and took his new team to the premiership, to give himself an impeccable track record.

Unlike previous years the season started relatively early so that it could give its team members the greatest chance of pressing for finals spots in the club competitions. This meant that training started extremely early in the year so we could give ourselves the best shot at back-to-back premierships. This task was made easier through the number of senior students playing; in 2010: 15 of the 22 players were Year12s which meant that leadership within the group was extremely strong.

Since the introduction of the Second XVIII league last year, Hutchins has showed its depth and quality at the most crucial times of the season. The Second XVIII's season had its ups and downs, and they were not expected to win the flag. However, through the guidance of coaches lain Burbury and Mike Hunnibell, and the leadership of Captain Emmanuel Marios, the team managed to blow away their counterparts and secure the 2010 flag.

The season got off to a flying start, with the team proving to be too strong for last year's main rivals St Patrick's College. This gave the boys a positive mindset and the confidence that we thought could secure the premiership. However, this positive thinking was dealt a serious blow the following week when Scotch Oakburn College gave the boys a footballing lesson to the tune of 34 points. From this point forward everybody's attitude towards football changed and we focused on redeeming ourselves. We did this, not dropping a game for the rest of the year. On 6 June both the First and Second XVIIIs were preparing to take on their opposition on home soil at the War Memorial Oval in the 2010 state final. The Seconds set the standard with a 60 point thrashing of St Patrick's College. The Firsts game started as a real arm wrestle and it wasn't until midway through the second term that Hutchins hit their straps and played the best football of the season to take the 2010 premiership by 50 points.

The success of both sides would not have been achieved without the help

and support of a number people: Firsts' Manager – Gerry Clark and Wayne Brown; Seconds' Manager – Mike Hunnibell; Firsts' Trainer – Craig Bishop; Firsts' Runner – Mr Andrew Prior; Seconds' Runner – Scott Howard; Firsts' Assistant Coaches – Mr Chris Rae and Mr Adrian Finch; Second XVIII Coaches – Iain Burbury and Mike Hunnibell; First XVIII Coach – Josh Hanek.

Adrian Finch, Josh Hanek and Anthony Prior Coaching Staff Australian Rules Football



The First XVIII premiership team



The Second XVIII celebrating their premiership

## SPORT

### Badminton

The 2010 Badminton season was one of the most successful in recent years. Hutchins entered eight teams across Years 7-12 and passion, pride, bonding, team work and sportsmanship were displayed by all players. Hutchins did extremely well throughout the season of rostered matches and played in the finals of the Year 8, 9, 10, College A and College B divisions. The Most Successful Team Award was won by the Year 10 team, coached by Mr Cameron Hudson, as they completed the roster season undefeated. Winning their respective grand finals were the Year 8s, Year 9s and College B Team A. Due to Hutchins' strong participation throughout the season, we were awarded The Ampol Cup for the most successful school. This is the third time since 2006 that Hutchins has won The Ampol Cup which shows recent strength which we aim to continue. Along with team efforts during the season, much success was achieved in the Southern Schools Badminton Championships. Trophies were won by Nitiphat (Matoom) Montrisaet, Alexander Elford, Chek Hui (Glenn) Tan, Sorawis (Nont) Korananan, Hugh Johnson and Wesley Rietveld. Thanks must go to the

coaches: Yuxiang (Allen) Chen (Year 7), Mr Chris Berndt (Year 8), Mr Kent Moore (Year 9) and Mr Cameron Hudson (Year 10) along with Ms Jodie Schafferius and Mr Wayne Brown for the spectacular year. Badminton at Hutchins is strong and our success this year will continue in the years to come.

Alexander Elford Co-captain of Badminton

### First Basketball

2010 has been a hard fought season for the First Basketball team. With just three teams entered in this year's roster, both Guildford Young and Friends' proved to be strong opponents resulting in a competitive year. Many players played above their age group, adapting to the level of competition and proving to be vital and efficient players for the team.

Throughout the season there were many good individual performances which helped the team reach the southern state final. The team ended up coming second in the southern schools competition, losing to a strong Guilford Young team, by just 8 points in the grand final. This meant that we were unable to travel north to participate in the state championships, which was achieved last year by many members of the team.

The Hutchins Firsts competed in the division 1 state schools' championships



Team members with Yuxiang (Allen) Chen, Co-captain of Badminton, and The Ampol Cup

held in Devonport. This tournament was extremely competitive with no easy matches encountered by the team. Unfortunately the team struggled, going down in many close matches, in most cases of fewer than 5 points. This was largely due to our team being restricted through the unlucky string of three key players being injured.

Many thanks go to Mr Brown who coached the boys throughout the season, Mrs Malarski for all her administration and support of the team and to Mr Fishburn for refereeing home games.

James McMahon and Jordan Stanwix Co-captains of Basketball

## Cricket

The past two seasons have been really frustrating as we were unbeaten but, in both cases, lost the state final to Grammar. The team did not let this one slip away as it recovered from being in danger at 6-157. Skipper Matthew Clark top scored with an excellent 70. He was well supported by Declan West with 66 and Rory Middleton with 52. Sean Willis scored 33 in 158 minutes to keep the innings together. The vital 8th wicket partnership of 67 between Declan West and Jamie Clark enabled us to post a competitive 277.

Lively bowling from Aarron Headley and Jamie Clark saw us claim four Grammar wickets before the close of play on the first day.

Grammar offered their usual stout resistance at the start of day two. They made us fight for every wicket. Francis Pascal made the vital breakthrough to snare three wickets with his aggressive seamers. Jack Luck chipped in with two vital wickets and Jamie Clark came on to wrap up the tail, with Grammar all out for 196. Wicket keeper Tom Green took four catches and only allowed a single bye in an excellent display behind the stumps. It was nice to have a victory against Grammar, especially as it gave new coach Damian Green his first state premiership.

This win snared us all trophies other than The Boot, which the Peninsula School re-claimed after a strong batting performance in Melbourne.


Outstanding performers throughout the year were: Leading run scorer Matthew Clark (276 runs), Harry Nichols who scored 258 runs in his first season, Jamie Clark, winner of the Richardson Award and the bowling averages with 17 wickets at 16.1 and Aarron Headley won the batting averages with 213 runs at 35.5, as well as taking 12 wickets.

Thanks must go to Mr Irons for his unyielding support and organisation as well as the mothers (led by Jenny Middleton) for the work done in providing great lunches and afternoon teas.

Matthew Clark First X1 Captain

### Cross Country

After the delay of the school carnival due to inclement weather, the Hutchins Cross Country team was ready and waiting for the yearly pilgrimage to Tasmania's biggest school sports event on the calendar: the Tasmanian All Schools Cross Country. The race would be run no matter how atrocious the weather was on the day. The Symmons Plains course demands. You get filthy even on the best of days, so waking up to pouring rain and forecasts of fog and more rain in the north of the state meant only one thing: it was to be a wet and wild race this year.

The open men got the best of the course being the first onto it and hence having no muddied corners or horrendous creek crossings. Andrew Isles was the first home from the team in what was a very fast race. Following that race, the course deteriorated rapidly and the rain only kept coming. This lead to slower times and numerous falls were had on the more technical sections of the route which included the infamous mud creek crossings that swallowed more than its yearly shoe quota. Standout performances throughout the day went to Benjamin Robinson in the U15 event, placing 4th in a very close finish. In the U16s Brendan Hay completed a great race to achieve 7th place in what was another of the fast races, while the most consistent race of the day was the U18s with Charles Haward displaying his form to place 6th, five places ahead of fellow team Co-captain Henry West. In the team event that is run for each age group, the U18s were second behind the strong Scotch Oakburn College squad, an admirable performance for a team missing some of its usual competitors through illness and injury.

Two weeks later, a slightly larger team of 47 students headed out to Pontville for the SSATIS Cross Country event. It was the first year that the event was held at Pontville, moved from its previous home at the Rokeby Police Academy. With not a breath of wind and a beautiful running track, the team was keen for some fast times.

The U13 age group included ten Hutchins students, all finishing in the top half of

the total field of 60. Great performances came from Robert Law (5th), James Schmidt (9th) and Benjamin Johnston (10th), all finishing in the top ten.

The performance of the day was run in the U14 age group, with Benjamin Robinson winning the 4km event in a powerful time. Strong runs also came from Gerald Evans (6th) and Jock Mure (7th).

The U15 age group was the smallest from Hutchins, with only five students competing, however they all ran good times, with Brendan Hay (6th) running a great race, even with a knee injury.

The U16 5km race was a hotly contested event, with Ross Welling (6th) and Tristan Cleaver (9th) recording top ten finishes for the School.

A mammoth Hutchins field contested the Open boys event, looking to take out the College Boys title that had eluded the team for six years. In the last race of the day the Hutchins contingent ran strongly. Charles Haward ran to finish 2nd on the 6km course, with Henry West (5th) coming home with fellow Hutchins competitors James McMahon (6th) and Lawrence (Larry) Owen (7th).

The strong performances from all runners resulted in Hutchins coming away from the event with the College Boys Shield and the Aggregate Boys Shield, narrowly missing out on the Junior Boys Shield.

Thanks must go to Mr Brown and Mr Prior for managing the team.

Charles Haward and Henry West Co-captains of Cross Country



# SPORT

### Cycling

The Hutchins School Cycling team has had a great season. The mountain bike squad competed in the Kellevie 24 hour Mountain Bike race early in the year. Riding as two teams of four and equipped with powerful lights, sleeping bags and an array of energy drinks, the boys rode a challenging course continuously for twenty four hours straight. Sleeping in two hour shifts, the boys held up well to complete the challenge successfully.

Flinders Johnston and Eugene Smith have continued to achieve in downhill racing, riding strongly on the national circuit, with Flinders claiming the state U17 title along the way. Marking his advance within the sport, Eugene was also selected to participate in a 5-day Australian Institute of Sport development camp at Mt Stromlo, Canberra. Eugene found the experience rewarding and has now set about pursuing his goals in the sport.

Although the road team remains the smaller of the two Hutchins cycling





squads, considerable improvement in competition and training has came from within the ranks of the road riders. Captain of Cycling, Henry West, joined the National Talent Identification team in 2009 and enjoyed his first full year of competition in the 2010 U19 National Series. Racing all the major events on the calendar, Henry put in respectable results in all of his races. Earning a top twenty placing in both road race and time trial at the national championships in Murwillumbah NSW was an excellent result for a first year rider.

Henry also joined the TIS/Pure Tasmania team to ride in the weeklong Tour of Tasmania during September. The racing was fierce and provided Henry with the chance to race the highest level available within Australia. The hail. snow and bitter winds of the West Coast of Tasmania provided the toughest conditions ever seen in a National Road Series event. Despite this, Henry's staunch performance allowed him to remain competitive throughout the tour, when much more experienced riders were ending their tours early in favour of the tempting warmth and banter from within the team vehicles.

With the inclusion of Hutchins students Gerald Evans and Hugh Mathys in the National Talent Identification and Development squad, the School is well positioned for future success. Congratulations must go to all boys who participated in cycling as it is a particularly demanding sport option to undertake. The squads would like to thank the teachers in charge, Mr Michael Thorne and Mr Paul van Tienen.

Henry West Captain of Cycling



### Hockey

In 2010, the Hutchins First XI was keen to repeat its successful 2009 campaign. Competing against Rosny College and The Friends' School, it was a new look Hutchins team, with five senior players, and nine players making their First XI debut.

The season got off to a promising start, with a comprehensive victory against a depleted Rosny. This game set the trend against Rosny for the rest of the season, with decisive victories for Hutchins in every meeting. Friends', however, were a quality opposition with sound basic skills and good depth throughout their team. Hutchins, despite playing some quality Hockey, went through the season unable to defeat Friends', and came away with two draws from four meetings.

The southern final saw a rematch of the 2009 final, with Friends' going in as slight favourites. Friends' came out firing, catching Hutchins off guard and quickly opening the scoring early in the first half. Hutchins wasted little time in responding, with Andrew Isles displaying some superb individual skills and levelling the game at 1 goal all. The match continued to be closely battled, with Friends' scoring their second goal to put them back in front. Just prior to the half time break, Dylan Sault was able to finish off some impressive team play with a clinical penalty corner flick that again brought the game back to level pegging. The second half remained closely battled, with James Thomas working hard in both defence and attack. Friends', however, gained the upper hand towards the end of the second half, and put the Hutchins' defence under relentless pressure. Hutchins was clearly missing the combination of striker Rory Middleton, absent because of representative duties, and defender Jackson Willows, absent because of injury. Despite the efforts of everyone on the field, the Hutchins defence was unable to withstand the offensive pressure of Friends', and eventually succumbed to a 4-2 defeat. Despite not being able to capture consecutive southern and state premierships, the team performed admirably during the 2010 season and competed well in every game. The First XI would like to recognise the efforts

of Coaches James McLeod and Ian Addison, and Sports Co-ordinator Wayne Brown for the work they put into the team throughout the year.

The Hutchins Div 2 team completed a successful year of competition, winning the Division 2 southern and state independent schools' premierships. They played Launceston Grammar in the state final and defeated them 6-0. Cameron Chillcot, Oliver Lane and Shaun McMilllan scored the goals. Throughout the year they competed in the all-schools competition and enjoyed a good deal of success. They were unlucky to narrowly miss out on the final. Throughout the year, Oliver Lane, Denver James, Oliver Prero-Wilson and Henry Forbes-Smith all rose to the challenge of playing in most matches against older and larger opposition. Coach Anthony Hyland is to be congratulated on two more premierships.

Hutchins entered one team in the southern all schools Division 4 roster. The season was successful in that the team qualified for the grand final by finishing second in the 10-match roster. This was especially rewarding given that the team completed a preliminary threematch grading series without a win. The roster season resulted in 5 wins, 1 draw and 4 losses. In the grand final, after a tense contest, the unbeaten St Virgil's College team drew away from Hutchins to register a 3-0 victory. Considering that in the roster season Hutchins had lost to SVC by as much as 0-8, the



Lachlan Crowder on the move during the state final



Hockey state final: Ross Welling vs Launceston Grammar

improvement shown by our team was highly creditable. Jackson Turner is to be congratulated for winning the James Carolyn Trophy. Mitchell Haines, Edward Jeanneret, Oscar Wyatt, Lochlan Fraser and Charles Lane all had good seasons. Tobias McShane and William Colbert are to be congratulated on their excellent efforts in goals. The team was coached by Mr Ian Addison, with excellent support provided by First Xl players, James Thomas and Thomas Whitton.

# State and National Hockey representatives:

Australian U17 Youth Olympic Gold Medalist: Rory Middleton

Tasmanian U18: Rory Middleton, James Thomas, Andrew Isles, Dylan Sault, Jackson Willows

Tasmanian U16: Samuel Keating

Tasmanian U15: Oliver Lane

Tasmanian U012: Samuel McCulloch

Tasmanian Senior Indoor: Rory Middleton

Tasmanian U18 Indoor: James Thomas, Rory Middleton, Charles Haward

Tasmanian U15 Indoor: Henry Forbes- Smith

Dylan Sault Captain of Hockey

Mr McLeod Teacher in charge



Rory Middleton, Youth Olympics Gold Medal winner. Photo courtesy of EMB Photographics



Charles Haward defending against Friends'

### Orienteering

Orienteering is a sport demanding individualism and determination as competitors attempt to achieve the fastest time plotting and racing their way across the varying terrain. In 2010 our boys who competed showed both of these character traits in abundance. Hutchins students competed in Term 1 in Orienteering Tasmania's Southern Schools' events at locations as diverse as Mt Nelson College, Waterworks Reserve and Risdon Brook Dam. While the numbers competing this year were low, we achieved some fantastic results. Benjamin Jarvis and Andrew Mackay went on to compete at the Tasmanian School's Championships at Evandale on Sunday 14 April. Benjamin established himself as a rising star of the sport. He came third at the championships for Year 7–8 boys. A fantastic result for a boy in his first year of Orienteering. Well done, Benjamin!

**Rev Mark Holland** 

### Rowing

The 2009/2010 Rowing season was very successful for the Hutchins Rowing Club. The season saw rowers from the Boat Club compete at all levels, from state pennants and numerous school regattas through to the National Championships in Victoria.

#### Under 13

The U13s were very eager to hit the water for competition in February due to their long season without many regattas. The big group of boys had a wonderful start to their Rowing careers managing to boat five quad sculls with great success. This was also evident in the single scull race at the Tasmanian Schools Regatta when they occupied seven of the eight lanes in the final. Overall the U13s enjoyed their season very much and can't wait to begin racing next season.

#### Under 14

The large number of boys from the previous season returned to competition again in the 2009–2010 season. This saw for the first time the U14s competing in the club season gaining valuable knowledge and experience. This enabled the U14s to show great dominance

# SPORT

across all boat classes. Their success was evident when they capped off a stellar season by taking out the quad scull, double scull and single scull events at the Head of the River regatta.

#### Under 15s

SPORT

The season was a great success for the U15s who competed in their first club regatta season. These races were conducted over 2000m and 1500m courses which made for excellent preparation for the season. The U15s represented the Boat Club very successfully, placing in most races. The season was capped off with great performances at the Tasmanian Schools Championships by the entire group.



U16 VIII receiving Silver Medals at the National Championships

### Under 16s

The U16s were without doubt one of the strongest age groups within the Boat Club this season. The strong group crewed two eights throughout the whole school season which lead to them achieving first and second in almost every race, which was a fantastic accomplishment. The highlight of the season for this age group was competing in the National Championships held at Lake Nagambie. This regatta saw the age group achieve gold in both the U17 Single Scull and U17 Double Scull as well as silver in the U17 Schoolboys Eight.

#### Open Squad

Unlike previous years the Open Squad had well over twenty rowers indicating that it was shaping up to be a very competitive season. The strong competition for places resulted in the First VIII only being finalised a few weeks before the National Championships. The appointment of Roger Drummond as Senior Coach gave the boys the opportunity to be coached at the highest level. Roger enabled the boys to compete to the best of their abilities throughout the season in all boat classes. At the State Championships the group came away with the Skinner Cup for the Men's Four – the first time a school crew has won the race and the Clarke Shield for the School Boys Four which has been raced since 1904. The squad then focused on the National Championships where the First VIII achieved gold medals in both the U19 Eight and U19 Four. Due to the depth of talent in the Open



First VIII with Roger Drummond giving a debrief after winning gold at the National Championships

Squad the School was also able to crew a Second VIII and a senior quad scull. The Second VIII performed fantastically and had a victory over the Scotch Oakburn First VIII at the Launceston Regatta. The Head of the River regatta saw the School's most impressive victory for many years with the Hutchins Boat Club taking out all the Open events on the day and securing the Open Aggregate Shield.

Overall the Hutchins Boat Club had a stellar season that was only made possible by the amazing effort from all boys and coaches involved.

Charles Jackson Captain of Boats

## Rugby

#### U18

The Hutchins School First XV began their 2010 Rugby season as non-contenders for the premiership. Our attacking play was hesitant, our defence was weak and our scrum was non-existent. But, thanks to the confidence and patience that Mr Devine and Mr Warlters had in the players, we were able to stick out those first few games, always knowing that the premiership was still well within our reach. In order for that to happen though, our game, our attitude and our trust in each other needed to be built. The team's tour of Sydney was a pivotal point of our season, and there is no doubt that it had the intended effect on our boys. The tour gave the boys a great opportunity to unite; the highlight was a match against one of Shore's senior teams. The match was played in the true spirit of schoolboy Rugby, and it illustrated the trust and strength that we as a team had found in the preceding days. The final score was 19-19 after Hutchins tirelessly worked the ball up the length of the field, after well over ten phases. And, in the final seconds, Hutchins tied the game. But the score was not important. What was important was that we were ready to make our bid for a grand final spot. On the first Saturday of September, the First XV gathered at Hutchins and boarded the bus for Rugby Park to play in some of the wettest conditions any of us had ever seen. The grand final against 'Quins was a test in which our team was prepared to work harder in the scrappy conditions

and because of the preparation that we made through morning fitness training and our maintenance of a good frame of mind, we took the premiership 26-22, breaking the six-year premiership drought for Rugby at Hutchins. If it were not for the composure, humility and quiet aggression that Mr Warlters and Mr Devine had instilled in each of us, we are sure the game would have gone another way. Many thanks must go to them. Likewise if it were not for the parents, Mr Smith and Mr Brown, we would not have been so successful. The boys of First XV all know how much their mateship, commitment and support for each other has been improved and appreciated in 2010. Let's hope that this is the beginning of great things for Rugby at Hutchins

#### Oliver Burke and William Bowden Captains of Rugby



Rev Matt and Michael Portnoi brief the U14s

#### U16

Even though the Hutchins U16 team didn't have the best Rugby season in terms of points, we showed courage and spirit during our games. The team got along very well and we worked together while playing our games. We improved our skill sets greatly, developing many new good Rugby players for the next season. These players will have a great contribution to the next year's U16 team, and also the First XV. All of the players worked hard and didn't give any ground easily to our opposition. Thanks go out to our Coaches, Luke Wilson and Brett Smith and the parents, who supported our team.

Sean Wilson Captain

#### U14

Rev Matt's comment at the end of our first round robin game summed up our thoughts perfectly. He said 'if that is the worst you ever play, you're going to have a very good year'. And what a year it turned out to be: winning every game bar one and even that was only a 1 point loss



The Hutchins First XV scrum demolishing North's scrum



Premiership winning Hutchins First XV

at Launceston. The folding of Glenorchy made 6am starts more common but we managed for nearly every trip up the highway, to come back down winners. To finish the season as victors on the WMO was a fitting way to end. North threw everything they had at us that day but there was no way it would be enough. The Gala Day was a resounding success with many spectators watching Hutchins Rugby in action on our home ground. Thanks to Rev Matt's invaluable training and guidance, our team had the first of what we hope will be many great seasons of Rugby. Also thanks to our Rent-a-Boks, Michael Portnoi and Skye Sissing, who both made a substantial contribution to the team's training and performance. Thank you also to the very supportive band of parents who ensured that the boys could enjoy their season.

**Thomas Farmer** 

#### Award Winners:

#### U18

Captain's Award – William Bowden, Oliver Burke

Most Improved Player – Julian Brown Best Forward – Timothy Kadziolka Best Back – Lucas Hind The Webber Award for First XV Best

and Fairest – Jack Fizelle Damien Arnold Memorial Shield for Rugby Best Clubman – Edward Langdon

#### U16

Captain's Player – Jordan Reiss Most Improved Player – Riley Winter Best Forward – Sean Wilson Best Back – Benjamin Jones Lion Heart Award for courage on the field – James MacLeod The Pak Wilson Memorial Cup for U16 Coach's Player – Selwyn Hagan

#### U14

Captain's Player – Thomas Farmer Most Improved Player – Harrison Paine Best Forward – Samuelu Lopa Best Back – Ziah Cooper Lion Heart Award for courage on the field – Liam Fitzgerald Coach's Player – Jesse Usoalii The Hook Trophy for Best Middle School Rugby Player – Thomas Farmer

111

SPORT

# SPORT

#### **State Representatives**

#### U14

Samuelu Lopa, Ned Howe, Asher Scobie, Wesley Rietveld, Thomas Farmer, Harrison Paine, James Mellor, Jesse Usoalii, Ziah Cooper, Oliver Mathot-Dewis

U16

Sean Wilson, Miles Franklin

#### U18

SPORT

William Bowden, David Fry,Sebastian Lopa, Jack Fizelle, Lucas Hind

Coaching Staff U18 John Devine, Duncan Warlters

**U16** Luke Wilson, Brett Smith

**U14** Matt Gray

Gap Students Michael Portnoi, Skye Sissing



U16 charge at the kick-off



U14s scrum against North on the WMO



### Sailing

Hutchins continued its strong performances in school sailing events during 2010.

In the first term school team sailing roster, our three teams finished second, fourth, and sixth in A Division. This was an encouraging performance given that we had spread our experienced team racers across the three teams rather than pick a number one team. This provides the opportunity for more boys to experience good quality competition.

Our House Sailing Day was won convincingly by Bucks (Christopher Jones, Lewis Noye, Thomas Kennedy, Henry Goodfellow, Angus Davie, Nathan McMillan) for the third straight year.

Using these events as a guide, three teams were selected to represent the School at the Tasmanian Schools Team Racing Championship. Team Captain Christopher Jones was injured and was unable to sail. Despite his loss, our teams sailed very well to finish second, third, and fourth in some high quality sailing. In doing so, we qualified for an unprecedented eighteenth time to represent Tasmania at the Australian Schools Team Racing Championships to be sailed in Adelaide.

As reigning Australian Champions, Hutchins was expected to be a strong contender in this event, but it was not to be. Two lightweight teams from WA, Christchurch Grammar and Scotch College finished first and second, and our local training partners, Guilford/ St Virgil's, were narrowly beaten in the semi-finals. We ended up sixth which, while disappointing, needs to be seen in the context that several hundred schools start the path each year towards qualifying for this event. It was also pleasing to see old boy Blair Spaulding, who is studying in Perth, doing a great job in coaching a Scotch College team. The other positive was the much appreciated cooking expertise demonstrated by Team Manager Michael Conacher!

Our team (Christopher Jones, Lewis Noye, Alec Bailey, Jack McCullum, Henry Goodfellow, Oliver Burnell and Charles Connor), never gave up but in the end a couple of narrow losses cost us a place in the semi-final. Our sailors also did well in the Tasmanian Schools Yardstick Regatta, winning the overall top school shield as well as winning the Sabots (Jock Calvert) and 420s (Alec Bailey and Henry Goodfellow), and coming second in the Cadets (Oliver and Toby Burnell).

Another highlight for the year was Alec Bailey finishing 3<sup>rd</sup> in the World Cadet Championships in Poland after also finishing 3<sup>rd</sup> last year in Argentina. Alec has now moved onto the 420 class, sailing with Henry Goodfellow.

Murray Jones Sailing Coach



Lewis Noye and Nathan McMillan (3) lead as Christopher Jones and Angus Davies (2) cover Alec Bailey and Flinders Johnston



Close work at the start of a team race. Nelson Brown (6) covers Jack McCullum (3)

### Soccer

#### Second XI Soccer

This year has been very successful with the Second XI squad winning both the Southern SATIS Competition and the State SATIS Final. The year started off with the boys being split into what were essentially a Year 11 team (Magenta) and a Year 12 team (Black).

The Seconds Black team had a very successful Southern SATIS Competition only losing one game the entire season to a strong Guilford Young College side, going down 5-4 just before the final

James MacLeod sights the opposition defence before picking a gap

whistle. The rest of our games were comfortably won by at least 2 goals and Hutchins entered the Southern SATIS Final ready for the challenge ahead.

The Seconds Magenta side had a tougher time, winning few games but coming close on numerous occasions only to be beaten by the whistle. Unfortunately, despite their commitment and consistent team efforts they missed out on making the Southern SATIS Final.

The southern final was against our strongest opposition, Guilford Young College, but the boys from Hutchins Black were confident and ready to put on a show for the crowd that turned up to support us. The game didn't disappoint. It was a tight affair; a fast paced game of attack and counter attack, with Hutchins triumphant after a hard fought 5–4 win. Goals came from Benjamin Lieutier, David Fry, Hoi Man (Herman) Cheng, Conrad Beckett and Macaulay Hagan. With this victory behind us, the Hutchins Black team turned their attention to the state final and the challenges that would bring.

In the state final Hutchins came up against the Northern SATIS Competition winners, Launceston Church Grammar, who were very much in form, having comfortably won their final. It was a fantastic game with both sides producing some brilliant football, but Hutchins Black were able to dominate possession and came away with a decisive win, with the final score a convincing 7-2. Scorers were David Fry (2), Costa Patiniotis, Benjamin Lieutier, Nanak Narulla, Conrad Beckett and Hoi Man (Herman) Cheng.

There were some outstanding individual performances during the season and finals campaign, but it was undoubtedly the team work and team spirit that delivered us such success and the state title.

We would like to thank all our coaches, Mr Carr, Mr Patiniotis and especially Mr Apted, without whom this season would not have been as great a success as it turned out to be. We would also again like to thank all the boys of both Seconds teams who put in a monumental effort throughout the entire season. Congratulations on the win and hope to see all of you continuing to play soccer in the future.

Macaulay Hagan and Benjamin Lieutier Co-captains of Hutchins Black Second XI

#### Year 10 Hutchins Magenta Soccer

Although the Year 10 Hutchins Magenta Soccer team went through the season without a win due to lack of players caused by sickness and injury, the team improved as a whole from day one to the end of the season. This improvement was showed in one of our last games where the Magenta team managed to defend off St Virgil's College with only a 2-0 loss compared to one of the early games in the season in which we lost 5-1 against the same team. Quite a few brilliant goals were scored by our two main attackers Samuel Williamson and Edward Heath, and some spectacular runs up the entire field with the ball by Reuben Hore-Waterhouse. Another impressive player on the team was goalkeeper Timothy McKay who made some awesome saves when he remembered his shoes. Many thanks to Mr Wayne Brown for coaching the Magenta team, all the Hutchins boys who filled in this year when numbers were low, and especially all the Hutchins Magenta players who made up the team this season.

Nick Rowell

#### Year 10 Hutchins Black

It was an interesting season for Hutchins Black this year. Although hit badly by lack of numbers in the beginning, which resulted in a few hard fought losses, we managed to improve towards the end of the season. We had consistent wins against the other Hutchins team, but early on struggled to get good results in our away games.

However, around June, we really started to pull together as a team, and with the added bonus of consistent numbers, were able to win games against Dominic College and St Virgil's, both very intense and exciting games.

Some of our players really came to the fore during the season, including our two strikers, Oliver Geale and Nicholas McVilly, who both racked up over four goals apiece, and our two international imports from Germany and Hong Kong, Ning (Jason) Kong and Alexander Hartl, who performed brilliantly upon joining the team half way through the season.

Our team was held together in the middle of the field by the combined forces of Jacob Harris and Samuel Crofts, and our defensive line was always enthusiastic. A whole heap of praise needs to be given to Tom Beadle, our goalkeeper, who saved many certain goals and was the foundation of the team.

Unfortunately we lost to Dominic in the final. They scored early in the first half, and even though we played very skilful soccer in the second half, were just unable to convert, which was a shame as we outplayed them all game. Nevertheless it was a successful year for Hutchins Black.

Thanks must go to Mr Geale for being a brilliant coach and running the team extremely efficiently for the season, and also to Mr Brown for co-ordinating the rosters, games, and transport.

Lachlan Smith

#### Year 9 Soccer

Our first game of the season was a great one, winning 5-0, and we all thought what a fantastic season we would have. This was soon brought to an end after the next game which we lost 4-3 to Dominic. Throughout the rest of the season the results continued in this form, alternating between a win and a loss. Overall we had not a bad season with four wins and three losses. We would all like to thank Mr Turbett for his great coaching during the season.

#### Middle School Soccer

Another season beckoned and another set of important decisions needed to be made. After much thought and consideration the choice was made to enter school teams in SATIS midweek competitions and leave the Football Federation of Tasmania weekend competitions. Boys were still free to play at weekends but would be required to represent a local club, a decision which brought Soccer into line with other sports in the School.

Within the Middle School five teams competed: an 'emerging' team comprising of Year 7 and 8 boys which played in the Year 9 league and two teams in the Year 7 and Year 8 leagues.

The most successful team proved to be Year 7 Black who went remained undefeated all season and finished top of the league. Confidently coached by Marcello Colombini, they won seven of their eight fixtures, the only blemish

# SPORT

being a draw against their peers in the other Hutchins team. They easily qualified for the grand final but were denied the opportunity of being crowned champions by the only rains of winter. Year 7 Magenta narrowly missed out on being the other team in the final; two early defeats in the season proved to be costly and they failed to qualify for the final on goal difference to Friends'.

The Year 8 teams acquitted themselves well but both teams had slow starts to the season which were to prove costly. Year 8 Black lost their first three games which made gualifying for the final difficult and although they finished the season strongly they were placed in mid-table. Year 8 Magenta finished the season strongly with four wins and a draw but like Year 7 Magenta failed to qualify for the final on goal difference. Special thanks need to be expressed to James Burgess, Alexander Bessell and Jock Mure who played for the combined Year 7-8 team and also played weekly for the Year 8s

The combined Year 7-8 team had an exciting season and went into the last game of the season against Dominic knowing that a victory would see them into the grand final. Sadly the team was depleted by a number of players due to the Year 8 camps and they lost the fixture 3-0.

The year also saw the introduction of the David Hoskins Award for Soccer which was presented to Harrison Thomas for his efforts with the combined Year 7-8 teams. Merits for the 2010 season were awarded to Zachary Vassallo, Jock Mure, David McKay and Jack Bastick.

Having reviewed the season once again a very special thanks needs to go to the coaches who gave up so much of their time to enable the boys to play. Year 7 Coaches – Marcello Colombini and Bart England; Year 8 – Brett McKay and Brian Green; and Year 7-8 Gary Slicer. Without their efforts there would be no soccer. On behalf of all the boys, thank you.

Ivor Leonard and Anthony Apted

### Sport Shooting

Our Sport Shooters have enjoyed another successful year under the encouragement and guidance of our Senior Coach Mr Ray Williams. Ray's commitment and professionalism are exceptional and provide our students with a supportive environment to enjoy success. Clay target shooting is a very competitive sport requiring exceptional skills and professionalism. It is conducted in all states and territories within Australia with Australia enjoying global respect to Olympic standard.

Our supportive parents ensure our Sport Shooting team is always together and participating as often as possible. Participation from a group of fathers is wonderful as there are not many sports where father and son can participate/ compete regardless of age. Thank you to Mr Stuart Headley, Mr Tim Jenkins and Mr Andrew Pitt for supporting and supervising on occasions throughout the year and supporting both Ray and me in running the sport at Hutchins.

Our Captain Thomas Jenkins (Year 12) and brother Christopher Jenkins (Year 10) with Thomas King (Year 10) were selected from the State Titles to join the Tasmanian Junior Team and participated at the National Competitions held at Wagga Wagga during the year. Christopher and Thomas Jenkins enjoyed very promising results.

Thomas Jenkins:

- C grade 3rd National 20 Gauge Championship
- C grade 2nd National Skeet Champion of Champions
- C grade 2nd National Skeet Championship C grade Overall High Gun

Tom was also named in the Australian Junior MacIntosh Team.

Christopher Jenkins:

C grade 1st National Skeet Doubles C grade 3rd National Championship

When representing Tasmania in the National Skeet Championship the team came second to Victoria, being beaten by only 1 point.

Christopher also applied and was successful in attending the National Junior Training Camp with one other Tasmanian representative.

Again we have won both the Hutchins/ Launceston Church Grammar invitational



Inter-School Sport Shooting team



Inter-School Winners 2010: Ryan McMann, Oscar Beattie, Aarron Headley, Anton Roberts, Thomas Jenkins (Captain), Christopher Jenkins, Thomas King, Angus Pitt.

sport shooting event held at the Northern Midlands Field and Game and the All Schools Championships at Evandale seeing us retain the John Lord Shield.

Our awards this year include:

First Colours to Thomas King and Christopher Jenkins.

Cap awards to Anton Roberts (Year 11), Thomas Jenkins (Year 12) and Aarron Headley (Year 12)

Our most successful shooter over the year and winning the Christian Roberts (Old Boy) Perpetual Trophy was Aarron Headley.

One special event we held this year was our parents, staff and student compact sporting clays day. Mr Warwick Dean, our very supportive Headmaster, attended and reflected with us on his military background and quickly realised the challenge of shooting with shotguns and moving clay targets.

Service to the sport this year has been very strong and greatly appreciated. Thomas King with assistance from many of the other students ran most successful barbecues at the School and raised \$500 to donate to Derwent Valley Field and Game who continue to provide us with fantastic support. Graeme Jarvis and Ray Williams are most generous in their support of our team. Anton Roberts put together a wonderful information manual for students new to the sport and we will roll that out in 2011.

Kent Moore Teacher in charge

### Surfing

We have had another excellent year of Surfing competition. As usual, we began the year with our inaugural trip to Marrawah. It never fails to deliver a great adventure and excellent waves. During the three days of competition, we experienced all sorts of conditions. The highlight was an afternoon of excellent surf at Lighthouse Beach. Watching the best surfers in Tasmania battle it out in excellent conditions inspired us all.

We had some great free surfing sessions at Kelpies and Nettle Bay. It was great to see all members of the squad get some great waves. Oscar Wyatt joined Bon MacMillan, Denver James and Maxim Devine on their first trips to the West Coast Classic. I hope to see them take it on again next year.

Our next major competition was the School Surfing Championships at Clifton. This year Mr Alex Mirowski was the Team Manager. The team was smaller than previous year's teams. Despite having a small team in both College and High School Division A competitions, Hutchins ranked in the top five for both.

We are hoping to work hard next year to develop a competitive First team over the next two years. Our quickly improving surfers include Bon and Max Macmillan, Fergus Quealy, Nelson Brown and Oscar Wyatt. This year has seen a national push for State Tag-Team competitions. Should this format take-off we could see a Hutchins team vie for a spot in the Australian Championships in the future.

Thanks must go to our Coaches, Mr Rob McCammon and Mr Alex Mirowski. While these coaches love surfing, it is not always an attractive job to get changed in the pouring rain and howling on-shore winds to surf tiny close-outs at Clifton. I also must thank our Captain, William Polglase. It will be great having his experience in the team again next year.

I look forward to 2011. I hope summer sees swells, sunshine and plenty of waves for our surf team.

Ken Kingston Teacher in charge

### Swimming

The SSATIS Swimming Carnival was held on 10 March at the Hobart Aquatic Centre. The state-drawn final on 23 March was held at the Launceston Aquatic Centre. Despite a long day of travelling north to the final carnival, the School's Swimming team still brought home two out of the possible three trophies – the College Boys and the Aggregate Boys Trophy, as well as winning the Open Team Pennant. With limited time for preparation, the squad worked brilliantly together to propel each other to some exciting race finishes and represented the School with outstanding team sportsmanship. Alec Guerzoni broke his third record for the season with the 50m Breastroke event and achieved some great first placings with Nicholas Cannell in their respective races. All relay teams did the same with their placings: U14 50M Medley Relay

2nd place; U16 50M Medley Relay 1st place; Open 50M Medley Relay 2nd place; U13 50M Freestyle Relay 3rd place; U15 50M Freestyle Relay 2nd place; U15 50M Freestyle Relay 2nd place; U16 50M Freestyle Relay 1st place and the Open 50M Freestyle Relay 1st place. At the finish of the Carnival as swimmers left to board the coach home, a very measured Hutchins War Cry kept the challenge alive for team next year.

Alec Guerzoni was the recipient of the ' WA Webster Cup for the Most Improved Swimmer in Senior School' and Benjamin Robinson was the recipient for the 'J S Anderson Cup for the Most Improved Swimmer in Middle School'. Alec Guerzoni had impressive swims on the national stage, improving his Tasmanian record at the Australian Age Swimming Championships and participating in the Australian youth team in the Trans Tasman Series.

Thanks to Nicholas Cannell (Terms 1-3), Jack Bishop and James Waldron (Term 1) and Rory Middleton and Bruno Almeida (Term 3) for their generous allocation of training time with the weekly summer sports program for stroke improvement as well as team leadership for the carnivals.

School Swimming Captain and very experienced national swimmer, Nicholas Cannell, continued his outstanding leadership for his last season. His peer coaching over the last three years has been appreciated by all swimmers.

#### U13

Daniel Himson, Christopher Boult, Henry Johnstone, Lachlan Brumby, William Lambert, James Schmidt

#### U14

Rajat Rao, Mitchell Hibberd, Jock Stalker, Benjamin Robinson, Benjamin Shea

#### U15

Alex Guerzoni, Cameron Brumby, Edward Burrows-Cheng, Thomas Avery, Benjamin Watkins

#### U16

Jarrod Hibberd, Max Macmillan, Hugh Nichols, Bon MacMillan, Seung Won Kim, Jack McMeniman

#### Open

Nicholas Cannell (Captain), Bart Kalmeijer, Jack Bishop, Rory Middleton, Alexander Hay

Dr J Abell Teacher in charge

# SPORT

### Tennis

The Hutchins Tennis program ranges from participation in the Open SATIS rosters at the First, Seconds and Thirds level, down to skills tuition for raw beginners, mainly at the Year 7-8 level. There are internal pennants for Years 7-10 in Term 1 to give players experience in competitive play, and interclub rosters in Term 3.

One Tennis Cap was awarded this year, to James Roberts-Thomson. James was also the Senior School Tennis Champion and the Captain of the Tasmanian Schools Pizzey Cup team.

This year saw the inaugural Hutchins Tennis tour. Six Hutchins students travelled to Cairns to play and watch the Australia-Belgium Davis Cup tie. The Hutchins squad was based at the Palm Royale Hotel which provided rooms with a view, a pool, and good breakfasts. The squad's training was held at the Cairns Tennis Centre, the venue of the Davis Cup tie. The boys underwent a program aimed at improving their mental approach, fitness, tactics and technique. The Hutchins students also had the opportunity to watch some of the Australian players train (such as Lleyton Hewitt, Carsten Ball and Peter Luczak), in addition to watching some older players such as Todd Woodbridge and Pat Rafter play practice matches against the current Australian team.

The boys watched two great days of Tennis – the opening singles matches and the doubles match. Sadly Australia could not win any of the reverse singles and lost the tie. The last day of the trip was spent on the reef, a fantastic way to end an intense four days of tennis training. We hope that this tour can provide the framework for future 'immersion' tours.

Matthew Allanby

#### The Open Squad

The Hutchins open squad consists of the open firsts and seconds combined into one squad. Players worked hard throughout the season with hitting



Cairns Tennis squad at the airport: L-R Mitchell Dance, Matthew Allanby, Nicholas McVilly, Jamie Briant, Samuel Crofts, Mr Peter Crofts, Patrick Noonan (at front).



The squad getting the lowdown from the coach in Cairns

practice once a week with the help of Mr Ray Harrison. In Term 3 Mr Brad Trost has also taken a session, giving further opportunities for the squad to develop their game.

#### Firsts

The 2010 Hutchins First IV consisted of James Roberts-Thomson (Captain), Jack McMeniman, Bruno Almeida and Aarron Headley, with Samuel Crofts as reserve. Aarron and James performed consistently throughout the season in both singles and doubles, as the team's top doubles pairing. GYC were defeated convincingly during the roster but Friends' were the favourites to win the roster.

In the southern final played against Friends', doubles matches were played first, with Aarron Headley and Samuel Crofts starting well with a 6-3 win in the second doubles in a high standard match. In the first doubles, Friends' were too strong defeating James Roberts-Thomson and Bruno Almeida 6-3.

In the singles, each match consisted of some strong hitting. At line 1, James Roberts-Thomson held an early break of



*Tour squad get ready to hit the Great Barrier Reef* 

serve to win 6-3. Aarron was playing at line 2 and faced a tough opponent, going down 1-6. However, the match was much closer than the score line suggested with many long rallies and aggressive play. Bruno played hard at line 3 but came up against a brick wall in his Friends' counterpart. The final score was 2-6. Sam played at line 4, due to the absence of Jack McMeniman, and put in a strong performance against a much older opponent. He went down 3-6. Hutchins lost the southern final 2 rubbers to 4. Despite this, all members of the team gained a lot of experience and had an enjoyable tennis season. The boys are looking forward to a rematch in 2011 and hopefully a different result!

James Roberts-Thomson Captain of Tennis

#### Seconds

Hutchins entered two teams in the SSATIS seconds roster. Both teams performed well and met in the southern final. The winning team, Hutchins Magenta, of Samuel Crofts, Jamie Briant, Nicholas McVilly, Mackenzie



*Open Firsts L-R Bruno Almeida, James Roberts-Thomson, Aarron Headley, Samuel Crofts (absent Jack McMeniman)* 



Tennis Seconds L-R Samuel Crofts, Nicholas McVilly, Jamie Briant, Mr Ray Harrison, Mackenzie Clutterbuck, Justin Heatley-Hart.

Clutterbuck and Justin Heatley-Hart won and progressed to the state final, played at Scotch Oakburn College. The Scotch team was one of the strongest seconds teams in years, and was far too strong for Hutchins on the day. However, all of the Hutchins boys played hard to the very end. The best Hutchins performances were from Jamie Briant, who lost his singles in a third set super tie-break, and Justin and Nicholas who went very close to winning the second set in their doubles match. Thanks to Mr Ray Harrison for again travelling up with the team to provide advice courtside during the match.

#### Friday Twilight Pennant

Hutchins entered 12 teams in the Junior Twilight Pennant across three divisions. Hutchins performed extremely well in all three divisions.

Peter Crofts Teacher in Charge

### Water Polo

Both Year 7-8 teams enjoyed success this year reaching the semi final stage of the competition. Hutchins Black, coached by Alexander Hay and William Polglase, had some new players who showed a great deal of improvement over the season. Stronger players were Lachlan Brumby, Henry Garrett, Jock Mure, John (Jack) Pereira and Lockie Manning.

Hutchins Magenta coached by David Joscelyne, Sebastian Lopa, Wilson Mure and Bart Kalmeijer, also had a combination of new and experienced players. Stronger team players were Oscar Wyatt, Jock Stalker, and James Thompson. Thanks to Mrs Smithies for overseeing the teams.

The Year 9-10 Water Polo team, coached by Year 12 students Jack Bishop, James Waldron and James Heron, drew their first two matches but then went on to have an exciting season, winning during the first week of finals against a competitive New Town. The following week they narrowly went down to the top St Virgil's side, who went on to win the flag.

The Firsts began the year with a strong victory over arch rivals Guilford. From here on in the tone was set for a strong season. This was helped by the introduction of the Seconds to further strengthen the Water Polo fraternity.

The Firsts fought hard throughout the year with strong performances from Alexander Hay, Andre Postma, Nicholas Cannell and Bruno Almeida. Many games could have been lost had it not been for the small Brazilian goalkeeper who won us games that could have been easily lost. Rosny College and Friends' provided heated competition at times however with a strong starting seven, as well as a skilled bench, we often found our rhythm to come out on top. Lacklustre performances against Guilford mid-way through the season saw us drop our only two games for the rostered season.

Our first finals match was against GYC which we lost 5-3. The following week we took on an undermanned Friends' side and came away with a comfortable victory. We were then to take on Guilford again in the grand final. A disappointing start saw us fall to a 3-1 deficit at half time. A rigorous speech by Scott and Nat saw us fire in the second half but eventually we went down 4-5 at the final siren.

A special mention must go to Alexander Hay for an outstanding season winning the Most Valuable Player Award for the College Boys 2010 Competition.

Thanks must go to Scott Wilson and Nathanial Symmons for another outstanding coaching season. Thanks also to Mr McNamara for another impressive co-ordination of Water Polo in 2010.

Congratulations boys on another stellar season – unfortunate on the end result, but next season will be our season.

Jack Bishop Captain of Water Polo

### Junior School Prize List 2010

#### Year 3

# Certificates for Commitment and Participation

Year 3M Yianni Anagnostis Year 3R Miles McTaggart Year 3V Oliver Burrows-Cheng and William MacMichael

### Certificates for

Most ImprovedYear 3MKael FishwickYear 3RMitchell<br/>WarringtonYear 3VSamuel Kokkoris

#### **Certificates for Character**

Year 3M Bradley Lakoseljac and Nathan Plunkett Year 3R Alexander Mackay Year 3V Spencer Reid

#### Certificate of Academic Merit

Year 3R Luca Gentile

#### Year 4

Certificates for Commitment and Participation

Year 4B James Browne Year 4Mc Samuel Carmichael

#### Certificate for Most Improved Year 4Mc Mitchell Rickards

**Certificates for Character** Year 4B Thomas Davie and

Finian Macrossan Year 4Mc Fergus Charles

### Certificates of

Academic Merit Year 4B Koh Kawaguchi Year 4Mc Kade Rossiter

#### Year 5

Certificates for Commitment and Participation Year 5K Thomas Young and Patrick Kearney Year 5W Thomas Baddiley and Jeremy Reid

Certificate for Most Improved Year 5W Samuel Caccavo

#### **Certificates of Academic Merit**

Year 5K Thomas Dunbabin and James Tucker Year 5W Matthew Burgess

#### Year 6

#### Certificates for Commitment and Participation Year 6B Roan Gillam and Sean Lowrie

Sean Lowrie Year 6E James McNeill and Andonis Pavlides

#### Certificate for Most Improved

Year 6B George Grover

#### **Certificates for Character**

Year 6E	Josh Brown
Year 6P	Charlie Greenwell
	and Theo Kessler

### Certificates of

Academic Merit Year 6B Rainjan Blakers Year 6E Henry Moss Year 6P Jayden Stevenson and Jack Reid

Accepting on behalf of Thorold House the shield for Cock House of the Junior School Edward Johnstone

The Hutchins Prize for character, commitment and involvement in the life of the Junior School William Burgess Toby Burnell James MacMichael Rainier Roberts Ben Speakman

James Taranto

The Parents' Association Prize for the boy who demonstrates compassion, humility and quiet achievement in the life of the School Thomas Skalicky

**The Junior School Music Prize** Benjamin Lienert The John Bednall Centre for Learning Support Prize for Outstanding Work Patrick Alcock

**The Junior School Sportsman Prize** Nat Franklin Connor Schmidt

The Robert Swan Memorial Prize for character and leadership Jack Green

The Prize for the Dux of Junior School Stewart Jackson

### Middle School Prize List 2010

Announced by the Head of Middle School

#### Certificates for Academic

**Commitment in Year 7** Christopher Boult Liam Johnston William Scott Zachary Vassallo Nicholas Welling

#### Certificates for Academic Merit in Year 7

Jonathon Clark-Hansen Henry Johnstone Harshvardhan Makharia Ayrton Rose Michael Young

The SRC Prize for Academic Excellence in Year 7 Ziah Cooper

The Middle School Prize for Academic Excellence in Year 7 Benjamin Jarvis

The Prize for Dux of Year 7 Lachlan Paul

### Certificates for Academic Commitment in Year 8 Cameron Allen Li Wei (Nicholas) Chu

Li Wei (Nicholas) Ch Thomas Farmer Jock Mure Matthew Scaife

#### Certificates for Academic Merit in Year 8

Lochlan Fraser Henry Garrett Andrew Mackay Stipe Mamic Johannes Peters

Sharing the Tony WRP Salisbury Prize for development through Drama Jesse Usoalii

The Parents' Association Prize for the student in Middle School who shows compassion and quiet achievement Mark Astley

Sharing the Tony WRP Salisbury Prize for development through Drama and the 'Rusty' Butler Memorial Prize for service to the Middle School John Pereira

The RM and RA Swan Memorial Prize for the student who demonstrates determination, courage and enthusiasm lan Fulton

The RE Richardson Memorial Trophy for the best sportsman of the Middle School and the SRC Prize for Academic Excellence in Year 8 Benjamin Robinson

The Middle School Prize for Academic Excellence in Year 8 Daniel Larratt

The Ramsay Prize for Dux of Middle School James Burgess

The Hutchins Middle School Shield for Cock House Academic Effort School House

### Senior School Prize List 2010

Announced by the Head of Senior School

#### Certificates for Academic Commitment in Year 9 Oscar Beattie

Mackenzie Clutterbuck Richard Davidson-Lim Yashovardhan Makharia Junwoo (Brian) Park Samuel Smeele

**Certificates for Academic Merit in Year 9** Tarshi Hull Oliver Johnson Sam Newton Samuel Padgett

Sharing the Prize for Dux of Year 9 Hugh Johnson

Sharing the Prize for Dux of Year 9 Timothy McQueen

Certificates for Academic Commitment in Year 10 Arjun Dubey Jarrod Hibberd Nicholas McVilly

#### Certificates for Academic Merit in Year 10 Benjamin Armstrong Aden Crocker Samuel Johnston

Jeremy Yang

A certificate for Academic Commitment and the Parents' Association Prize for a student in Year 9 or 10 who shows character, humility and quiet achievement Tom Beadle

A certificate for Academic Commitment and the Buckland Memorial Prize for European Languages in Year 10 Thomas Johnston A certificate for Academic Merit and sharing the prize for Scientific Inquiry in Years 9 and 10 Michael Manthey

The Westpac Prize for the Most Outstanding Student in Business Studies Calum Mitchell

The John Bednall Centre for Learning Support Prize for outstanding work Lucas Sims

A Certificate for Academic Commitment and the FM Young Memorial Prize for Geography in Year 10 Joshua Symonds

Sharing the prize for Scientific Inquiry in Years 9 and 10 and the Prize for Dux of Year 10 Samuel Crofts

Certificates for Academic Commitment in Year 11 Thomas Dobie Constantine Patiniotis Anton Roberts Matthew Waldron Ryan Ward

### Certificates for Academic Merit in Year 11

Zachariah Lieutier Callum Sinclair-Gibson David Titchen George Vafakos James Wheller

A certificate for Academic Commitment, sharing the Buckland Memorial Prize for European Languages and sharing the Watchorn Memorial Prize for English Studies

Matthew Allanby

The Harry D Hewer Memorial Prize for Accounting Andre Botha

The Edward Webster Senior Orator Prize and the prize for Housing and Design Frank Burridge The Harrison Prize for Economics and the Economic Society of Australia – Tasmanian Branch Book Prize Yuxiang (Allen) Chen

The Joe Cowburn Memorial Prize for Outstanding Literary Achievement George Duckett

Sharing the Watchorn Memorial Prize for English Studies, the prize for Physical Sciences, sharing the Buckland Memorial Prize for European Languages, the NMD Jack Memorial Prize for application, achievement and conduct in Year 11 and the John Cameron Prize for Academic Interest at Year 11

Charles Haward

The Old Boys' Lodge Prize in Memory of Wynne Hay for Craftsmanship in Design in Metal David O'May

**The prize for Music** Gautier Pavlovic-Hobba

Sharing the Bruce Lachlan Brammall Memorial Prize for English Communications Harrison Virs

A Certificate for Academic Merit and the Jim Wilkinson Prize for Sport Science Isaac Woo

The OH Biggs Memorial Prize for Mathematics Methods 3 and the prize for Dux of Year 11 Nanak Narulla

A Certificate for Academic Merit, graduating with High Distinction, the Class of 1994 Prize for English Writing and an A L Butler Memorial Prize for History Oliver Burke A Certificate for academic commitment and graduating with High Distinction Cameron Burnett

Graduating with High Distinction and the prize for Mathematics Applied 3 Nicholas Cannell

Graduating with High Distinction Timothy Cannon

The prize for Craft Luke Chamberlain

The prize for Excellence in Vocational Education and Training and the HMAS Tasmania Award for a student undertaking Maritime Studies Timothy Clark

The prize for Manufacturing Studies and sharing the prize for Health Studies Lewis Connor

A certificate for academic merit, graduating with High Distinction, a Special Hutchins Prize for Service to the International Student Community and sharing the prize for Health Studies Sarawood (Gab) Dejanipont

A certificate for academic merit, graduating with High Distinction, an A L Butler Memorial Prize for History and a Special Hutchins Prize for Service to the Chapel Alexander Elford

A Certificate for Academic merit, the Elise Archer Prize for Drama and the prize for Best All-Round Arts Student of the School Jordan Graney

Graduating with High Distinction and the Gedye Prize for Asian Languages Macaulay Hagan

The George Rowntree Memorial Prize for Design Graphics

Michael Healy

A Certificate for Academic Commitment, graduating with High Distinction and sharing the D A Wilson Prize for Computer Graphics and Design

Matthew Keep

The Old Boys' Lodge Prize in memory of Wynne Hay for Craftsmanship in Design in Wood Daniel King

A Certificate for Academic Merit and graduating with High Distinction Edward Langdon

The Prefects of 1989 Art Award and sharing the prize for Art Production Henry Law

A Certificate for Academic Commitment Xinhao Li

**The prize for ESL** Chun-Yi (Jimmy) Lin

Graduating with High Distinction, the prize for Religion and Philosophy and the Rev Dr Geoffrey Stephens Memorial Prize for the Best Graduation Essay in Religious Philosophy Thomas MacDonald

**Graduating with High Distinction** Lachlan Meyer

The prize for Music Performance Thomas Misson

Sharing the prize for Art Production Campbell Muskett A Certificate for Academic Merit, sharing the OH Biggs Memorial Prize for Mathematics Specialised 3, sharing the Henry Martin Memorial Prize for Chemistry and sharing the Henry Martin Memorial Prize for Physics Lachlan Poslek

Graduating with High Distinction and sharing the Bruce Lachlan Brammall Memorial Prize for English Communications James Roberts-Thomson

A Certificate for Academic Commitment, graduating with High Distinction and sharing the F M Young Memorial Prize for Geography (Senior) Max Rowan

A Certificate for Academic Merit and sharing the O H Biggs Memorial Prize for Mathematics Specialised 3 Christopher Ryba

**The prize for Australia in Asia and the Pacific** Dylan Sault

Graduating with High Distinction, sharing the FM Young Memorial Prize for Geography (Senior) and a Special Hutchins Prize for Service to the Student Tribunal Michael Short

Graduating with High Distinction

Ehsan Soltani

A certificate for Academic Commitment, graduating with High Distinction and sharing the Henry Martin Memorial Prize or Chemistry James Waldron The prize for Information Technology and Systems Not awarded

The prize for Sociology Not awarded

The Sinclaire Trust Prize for Entrepreneurship Not Awarded

The Minty Johnson Memorial Prize for Business and Finance Not awarded

The McDougall Prize for Legal Studies Not awarded

### The Scholars' Roll 2011

Announced by the Director of Teaching and Learning

**The DH Harvey Scholarship** James Tucker The Hutchins Junior School

**The PH Rockett Scholarship** Thomas Dunbabin The Hutchins Junior School

**The LF Giblin Scholarship** Thomas Maughan Rosetta Primary School

**The CHE Knight Memorial Science Scholarship** Fergus Smith Princes Street Primary School

The FRS Dawes Scholarship Daniel Croser Goulburn Street Primary School

**The CHE Knight Scholarship** Tom Beadle The Hutchins School The prize for Theatre Performance Not awarded

The Geoffrey T Stilwell History Prize Not awarded

The Geoffrey T Stilwell History Prize Certificate of Merit (Year 9 and 10) Not awarded

The prize for Computer Science Not awarded

A School of Performing Arts Scholarship Thomas Johnston The Hutchins School

A School of Performing Arts Scholarship Thomas Harrison The Hutchins School

A School of Performing Arts Scholarship Nikolai Sakov International School of Bergen, Norway

A School of Performing Arts Scholarship Callum Gugger Taroona High School

**The Peter Komlos String Scholarship** Damien Messmer Tarremah Steiner School

**The Jeffery Molesworth Boyes Choral Scholarship** Ayrton Rose The Hutchins School

### School of Performing Arts

# Boys selected for entry in 2011

Campbell Braithwaite Samuel Casey Max McLaughlin Ayrton Rose Nicholas Rowell

#### Stephen Gumley Shield for Cock House Academic Effort

(Announced by the Director of Teaching and Learning) Thorold House

The Ben Chuck Award (Announced by the Deputy Headmaster) Richard Pearce

### Awards of Special Distinction

Announced by the Deputy Headmaster

Sharing the PK Rogers Memorial Prize for best all-round sportsman in the School Aarron Headley

Sharing the PK Rogers Memorial Prize for best all-round sportsman in the School James McMahon

A certificate for academic commitment, graduating with High Distinction and the Alan Field Payne Prize for loyalty and leadership Jamie Clark

A certificate for academic commitment, graduating with High Distinction, the prize for Student Directed Inquiry, the prize for Audio Design, sharing the DA Wilson Prize for Computer Graphics and Design, a Special Hutchins Prize for Service to ICT and the Hutchins Old Boys' Lodge Prize for Service to the School Shervin Aflatooni

Graduating with High Distinction, the prize for Environmental Science and the Stuart Galbraith Memorial Prize for a student who at Year 11 or 12 shows endeavour and achievement in the life of the School George Burbury

Graduating with High Distinction, the Hutchins Old Boys' Association Prize for a student who at Year 12 is held in high respect by his peers and teachers for the quality and extent of his efforts and involvement in the total life of the School Michael Titchen

The Sam Beattie Prize for effort and achievement Samuel Downie

### The Graduation Roll 2010

Graduating with High Distinction Shervin Aflatooni George Burbury Oliver Burke Cameron Burnett Nicholas Cannell Timothy Cannon Jamie Clark Sarawood (Gab) Dejanipont Alexander Elford Macaulay Hagan Matthew Keep Edward Langdon Tomos Lelong Thomas MacDonald Lachlan Meyer Lawrence Owen Richard Pearce James Roberts-Thomson Max Rowan Michael Short

Graduating with High

Distinction, the prize for

Psychology and the John

Player Memorial Prize

for character, courage,

Graduating with High

Distinction, sharing the

Henry Martin Memorial

the OH Biggs Memorial

Prize for Mathematics

to ICT, the Parents'

Association Prize for a

and quiet achievement

the School

Tomos Lelong

Specialised 3. a Special

Hutchins Prize for Service

student in Year 11 or 12 who

shows character, humility

and sharing the E M Lilley

Memorial Prize for Dux of

Prize for Physics, sharing

and example

**Richard Pearce** 

leadership, determination

Graduating with High Distinction, the CI Wood Memorial Prize for Biology, the Westpac Endeavour Award for the student in Year 12 who shows significant performance and commitment to the academic, house and co-curricular programs and to the values of the School, the Arthur Walch Memorial Prize for true sportsmanship, leadership, character and example, the Bishop's Presentation to the Captain of the School and sharing the E M Lilley Memorial Prize for Dux of the School Lawrence Owen

Ehsan Soltani Michael Titchen James Waldron

Graduating with Distinction

Samuel Downie Harrison Hughes Andrew Isles Harrison King William Mollross Thomas Squires Simeon Thomas-Wilson



Name	Year	House	BASTICK Jack	8	SC	BROWNING Henry	K	ST	CHU Li Wei (Nicholas)	8	BU
ADAMS Finlay	K	TH	BATES Neville	7	BU	BRUMBY Fraser	4	ST	CHURCH Zacherry	K	ST
ADAMS Timothy	9	SC	BEADLE Tom	10	BU	BRUMBY Lachlan	7	ST	CLARK Huon	P	BU
ADERMANN Kade	9	BU	BEATTIE Maxwell	3	SC	BRUMBY Cameron	9	ST	CLARK Jamie	12	ST
AFAMASAGA Tyson	1	ST	BEATTIE Oscar	9	SC	BURBURY William	7	SC	CLARK Matthew	12	SC
AFLATOONI Jhobin	10	BU	BECKETT Gregory	3	TH	BURBURY Joseph	8	SC	CLARK Timothy	12	ST
AFLATOONI Shervin	12	BU	BECKETT Karl	7	TH	BURBURY George	12	SC	CLARK-HANSEN		0.
AHLRING Laurens	12	ST	BECKETT Conrad	12	TH	BURGESS Matthew	5	SC	Jonathon	7	SC
AHOKAS-KING Ashley		ST	BELL Hugh	8	ST	BURGESS William	6	SC	CLEARY Samuel	9	ST
AKL Jack	K	ST	BENNETT Thomas	2	TH	BURGESS James	8	SC	CLEAVER Tristan	10	BU
AINIWA Ainikaer	10	SC	BENNETT Jackson	7	TH	BURKE Oliver	12	TH	CLIFFORD Joe	2	ST
ALCOCK George	3	TH	BENT Thomas	3	TH	BURNELL Toby	6	ST	CLUTTERBUCK		
ALCOCK Patrick	3	TH	BERECHREE Nikolas	9	SC	BURNELL Oliver	7	ST	Mackenzie	9	ΒU
ALCORSO Claude	10	SC	BERRIMAN Caleb	7	SC	BURNETT Cameron	12	SC	COAD Jonty	К	ST
ALEXANDER Layne	5	BU	BESLEY Samuel	11	SC	BURRIDGE Frank	11	TH	COAD Jackson	3	ST
ALLAN Hamish	4	SC	BESSELL Alexander	8	SC	BURROWS-CHENG			COLBERT William	8	ST
ALLAN Luke	11	BU	BESTER Thomas	5	TH	Oliver	3	SC	COLBERT Alexander	12	ST
ALLANBY Matthew	11	BU	BETHUNE-WATKINS			BURROWS-CHENG			COLE William	7	ST
ALLARDICE Nicholas	3	SC	Мас	7	ΒU	Edward	9	SC	COLE Louis	8	ST
ALLEN Selby	3	TH	BETTS Alexander	2	SC	BURY Richard (Zac)	9	TH	COLES Joshua	10	ST
ALLEN Cameron	8	TH	BETTS Hamish	2	SC	BUSCH Xavier	Κ	SC	COLES Jeremy	12	ST
ALLISON Hugo	Ρ	ST	BETTS Patrick	4	SC	CACCAVO Samuel	5	ΒU	COLEV Tyler	К	ST
ALLISON Jack	2	ST	BIGNELL Jack	8	SC	CALDER Callum	3	ST	COLLES Aaron	12	ΒU
ALMEIDA Bruno	11	ST	<b>BIGNOLD</b> Harrison	5	TH	CALDWELL Fletcher	11	SC	COLVIN Alexander	11	ST
ANAGNOSTIS Petro	3	SC	BIRD Oliver	1	SC	CALVER Evan	11	SC	CONN Dean	3	BU
ANAGNOSTIS Yianni	3	SC	BIRD Mason	4	SC	CALVERT Angus	5	SC	CONNOR Charles	7	ST
ANDERS William	1	BU	BISHOP Jack	12	SC	CALVERT Jock	7	SC	CONNOR William	7	ST
ANDERSON James	4	SC	BLAKERS Rainjan	6	SC	CAMPBELL Jack	2	ΒU	CONNOR Lewis	12	ST
ARKLEY-ANDERSON			BLEATHMAN Elliot	5	BU	CAMPBELL William	8	SC	COOPER Ziah	7	ΒU
Hudson	2	TH	BLIGH Thomas	9	SC	CANNELL Nicholas	12	ST	COTTIER William	3	SC
ARMSTRONG Benjami	n 10	SC	BLIGH Daniel	11	SC	CANNON Timothy	12	TH	COTTIER Thomas	8	SC
ARTLEY Ollie	Ρ	SC	BLUE Liam	10	SC	CANNY Liam	1	ST	COTTON Edward	8	SC
ASHTON-JONES			BOADLE Jonathan	10	ST	CANNY Sam	4	ST	COUNSELL Samuel	12	ST
Geoffrey	9	SC	BODACH Michael	10	BU	CANTWELL Lyndon	9	SC	COUSINS Reuben	Κ	TH
ASTLEY Mark	8	BU	BOMAN Benjamin	1	TH	CARELSE Gabrial	3	ΤH	COUSINS Ayden	3	TH
ATKINS James	1	BU	BOTHA Andre	11	ST	CARMICHAEL Samuel	4	BU	COWLES Alistair	12	ΒU
AUSTIN Douglas	9	ST	BOTTE Samuel	3	ST	CARMONA Michael	1	ΒU	CRAIG Timothy	9	ΒU
AVERY Thomas	8	TH	BOULT Christopher	7	ST	CARNE Henry	Ρ	SC	CRAWFORD Baxter	4	ΤH
AYRES Dale	12	SC	BOVILL William	Κ	SC	CARNE James	3	SC	CRETU Benjamin	10	ST
BACKMANN Max (Mar	ten)		BOWDEN William	12	SC	CARR Daniel	11	TH	CROCKER Aden	10	TH
	10	BU	BRADSHAW Donald	7	ST	CASEY Samuel	8	BU	CROFTS Samuel	10	ΒU
BADDILEY Thomas	5	BU	BRAITHWAITE Campbe	ll 6	BU	CENIN Nicholas	9	ΤH	CROTTY Richard	10	TH
BAE Jun Il	12	TH	BRAY Ken	6	TH	CHAMBERLAIN Luke	12	BU	CROWDER Lachlan	11	SC
BAILEY Joseph	4	SC	BAZENDALE Joshua	Ρ	ST	CHAMBERS Henry	4	TH	CUI William	9	ST
BAILEY Alec	10	ST	BRIANT James	10	SC	CHAN Aden	K	TH	CUMMING Gilbert	K	SC
BAKKER Allan	7	ST	BRISTOW Harry	8	BU	CHAN Shun Yiu (Vito)	12	TH	CUMMING Fraser	1	SC
BALCOMBE Hugh	9	BU	BRITTON Charley	7	TH	CHARLES Fergus	4	SC	DABAN Mohammed	9	BU
BALCOMBE Angus	10	BU	BROADBY Edward	K	BU	CHAU Oscar	4	TH	DAENGDEJ Tasman	5	SC
BALL Patrick	7	BU	BOARDBY Angus	Р	BU	CHEN Yuxiang (Allen)	11	ST	DAGLAS Spiros	7	SC
BALSLEY-POLLEY	0	6.0	BROCKLEHURST Jobe		BU	CHENG Hoi Man	11	60	DANCE Mitchell	9	SC
Broden	8	SC	BROOKS Braidon	7	BU	(Herman)	11	SC	DARGAVILLE George	11	SC
BANNON Lachlan	7	ST	BROWN Byron	K	ST ct	CHEW James Leonard		BU	DARKO Trent	11 4	TH ST
BANNON Richard	9	ST	BROWN Josh BROWN Nelson	6 9	ST ST	CHILCOTT Alistair CHILCOTT Cameron	9 9	SC SC	DAVEY Nicholas DAVIDSON-LIM	4	21
BARKER Benjamin	1 12	SC TLI			SC		7	36		4	ст
BARRETT Eli	12	TH	BROWN Nathan BROWN Julian	11 12	SC	CHOW Kok-Chang	12	SC	Harrison DAVIDSON-LIM Richard	6	ST ST
BASS Connor	10 7	BU SC	BROWN Julian BROWNE James	4	SC ST	(Gary) CHRISTIE Angus	12	BU	DAVIDSON-LIM Richard DAVIE Benjamin	1	BU
BASTICK Alec	/	30	DITOWINE JUILIES	4	JI	GHINGTIL Allyus	I	00	DAVIL Delijanili	I	00

DAVIE Thomas	4	BU	FEEGER Benjamin	5	ST	GEAPPEN Alex	8	SC	HARRIS William	5	ΒU
DAVIE Angus	9	ΒU	FEEGER Daniel	9	ST	GEARY David	6	TH	HARRIS Jacob	10	ΒU
DAVY Samuel	8	SC	FERGUSSON Ben	Ρ	SC	GEASONS William	7	ST	HARRISON Charles	Κ	ΒU
DE LACEY Nicholas	11	SC	FERGUSSON Samuel	7	SC	GENTILE Luca	3	SC	HARRISON Thomas	8	TH
DE VRIESE Oliver	9	ΒU	FERGUSSON William	10	SC	GENTILE Michael	6	SC	HARRISON Jack	10	TH
DEANE Perri	7	TH	FIELD Jack	6	TH	<b>GIANNIS</b> Sebastian	Ρ	TH	HARTL Alexander	10	TH
DEJANIPONT	-		FIFE Hamish	7	BU	GIANNIS James	1	TH	HARTOG Ben	11	ST
Sarawood (Gab)	12	TH	FIFE Caleb	9	BU	GIANNIS Samuel	3	TH	HARVEY Angus	12	BU
DENDUANG Benjamin	6	BU	FIOTAKIS Nicholas	8	ST	GIBLIN Richard	10	SC	HAWARD Charles	11	SC
DENEHEY Max	2	TH	FIOTAKIS Spiro	10	ST	GIBSON Thomas	P	BU	HAY William	7	SC
DENEHEY Jock	7	ТН	FISHER Brandon	3	BU	GILLAM Roan	6	TH	HAY Brendan	9	TH
DENG Ryan	2	ST	FISHER William	8	SC	GILMOUR Declan	1	BU	HAY Alexander	11	SC
DENHOLM-MCCREDIE		51	FISHWICK Kael	3	ST	GODDARD Jeremy	7	BU	HAYES Jack	5	SC
Isaac	7	SC	FITZGERALD Liam	3 7	SC	GOH Won	, 12	SC	HAYES-NEWINGTON	J	30
	9						. –			П	
DEVINE Maxim		TH	FITZPATRICK Dwayne	12	ST	GOODFELLOW Henry	11	BU	Arthur	P	BU
DIKKENBERG Benjami		BU	FIZELLE Jack	11	TH	GOODWOLF	-	DU	HAYWOOD Jack	6	BU
DIKKENBERG Jack	11	BU	FLETCHER Michael	8	BU	Augustus (Gus)	7	BU	HE James	6	BU
DINE Joshua	3	BU	FLETT Andrew	11	ST	GRANEY Jordan	12	SC	HEADLAM Harry	Р	SC
DIXON Xavier	5	SC	FLOWERS Tallis	Ρ	TH	GRAVES Samuel	12	ST	HEADLEY Aarron	12	ST
DOBIE Connor	9	TH	FOALE Nelson	K	TH	GRAY Ethan	10	SC	HEALY Michael	12	ΤH
DOBIE Thomas	11	TH	FOLVIG Sebastian	2	TH	GREEN Benjamin	4	ΤH	HEATH Edward	10	ΤH
DOBSON William	6	ΤH	FOLVIG Aleksander	6	ΤH	GREEN Jack	6	TH	HEATHER Johan	6	ΤH
DOUGLAS Isaiah	1	TH	FOOTE Callum	7	TH	GREEN James	8	TH	HEATHER Damon	11	ΤH
DOWNHAM Morgan	5	ST	FOOTE Elliot	10	TH	GREEN Samuel	8	SC	HEATLEY-HART Brend		ΒU
DOWNIE Thomas	7	SC	FOR Cheuk Chun			GREEN Huw	10	ST	HEATLEY-HART Justin	10	ΒU
DOWNIE Samuel	12	SC	(Chester)	10	SC	GREEN Tom	10	TH	HEINONEN Eric	11	ΤH
DOYLE Thomas	1	ST	FORBES-SMITH Henry	9	ΤH	GREENAWAY James	Κ	ST	HENNESSY Justin	11	ΤH
DRUMMOND James	7	SC	FORREST Verity	Ρ	TH	GREENWELL Charles	6	SC	HENNING Thomas	8	ΒU
DRUMMOND			FORREST Dashan	1	TH	GRESSIE Sean	10	TH	HERON Sam	10	SC
Christopher	11	SC	FOSTER Zane	3	ST	GRIBBLE Nicholas	8	TH	HERON James	12	SC
DRUMMOND Daniel	11	SC	FOSTER Jordan	7	ST	GRIERSON William	1	ST	HEYWARD William	8	ΒU
DRURY Lewis	3	SC	FRANCIS William	1	SC	GRIFFITHS Jack	Κ	SC	HIBBERD Mitchell	8	ΒU
DUBEY Aryan	1	ST	FRANCIS-SMITH			GRIFFITHS Tom	1	SC	HIBBERD Jarrod	10	ΒU
DUBEY Arjun	10	ST	Jonathan	8	SC	GRINING Alex	5	TH	HICKIE Alex	7	ΤH
, DUCKETT Louis	6	ΒU	FRANCIS-SMITH David	11	SC	GRINING Jack	8	TH	HILDER Fletcher	2	SC
DUCKETT George	11	BU	FRANCIS-SMITH Jame	s11	SC	GRINING Riley	9	ST	HIMSON Daniel	7	TH
DUNBABIN Thomas	5	ST	FRANKLIN Nat	6	SC	GROVER George	6	TH	HIND Lucas	12	BU
DUOLIKUM Dilimulati	11	ST	FRANKLIN Miles	10	SC	GRUEBER Lachlan	8	BU	HIND Todd	12	BU
DURAND Will	1	BU	FRANKLIN John	12	SC	GUERZONI Alec	9	BU	HINDLE Patric	9	ST
DURBIN Kaelan	9	ST	FRARACCIO Luca	9	TH	HAGAN Selwyn	9	TH	HINE Cale	P	SC
EASTMENT Peter	8	BU	FRARACCIO Michael	9	ТН	HAGAN Macaulay	, 12	ТН	HINE Ethan	3	SC
EBERHARD Patrick	6	TH	FRARACCIO Luigi	10	ТН	HAINES Mitchell	8	BU	HOANG Hai Le	9	BU
EDWARDS Nicholas	11	SC	FRASER Lochlan	8	BU	HALE William	P	BU	HOCKING Matthew	1	TH
	8	TH	FRASER Lachlan		тн	HALL Alexander	г 8	SC	HODGE William	11	ST
ELFORD Elijah				9							
ELFORD Alexander	12	TH	FRIBERG Dane	5	SC	HAMILTON Alan	P	ST	HOLLOWAY Thor	7	TH
ELLIOTT Hamish	9	BU	FROELICH Max	6	BU	HAMILTON lan	6	ST	HOLLOWAY Donald	10	TH
ELLIS-WICKHAM Darcy	,	TH	FRY David	12	SC	HANSEN Carter	7	TH	HOLLOWAY Nathan	12	TH
ELRICK Oliver	1	SC	FULTON James	2	SC	HANSEN Daniel	10	BU	HOOD Isaac	10	SC
ENGLAND Asher	7	SC	FULTON lan	8	ST	HARDHAM Aaron	Ρ	ST	HOOKS Tim	10	ΤH
ERTL Jonathon	7	ST	GABRIEL Charles	12	BU	HARDHAM Ethan	Ρ	ST	HORE-WATERHOUSE		
ERTL Vincent	9	ST	GALL Alexander	9	TH	HARDIKAR Sudhaunshu	13	ΤH	Reuben	10	ΤH
EVANS Gerald	8	ΤH	GARDNER Fenn	6	SC	HARDIKAR Himaushu	7	TH	HORNE Sebastien (Bas	3) 4	ΒU
FAHEY Samuel	9	TH	GARDNER Lachlan	6	ST	HARDY Ronan	1	ST	HORNER Cameron	10	SC
FARID Oliver	5	BU	GARDNER Samuel	12	ST	HARGRAVE Jordan	7	SC	HORSHAM Benjamin	1	ST
FARMER Thomas	8	TH	GARRETT Henry	8	SC	HARLEY Samuel	9	SC	HORTON Samuel	6	ST
FARMER Mitchell	11	ST	GAVALAS George	11	TH	HARRIS Luke	Κ	BU	HOWARD Tom	10	TH
FAVRETTO Ewan	6	SC	GEALE Oliver	10	SC	HARRIS Samuel	2	BU	HOWE Gus	12	ΒU

SCHOOL ROLL

HOWE Ned	7
HOYSTED Elliot	9
HUBER Jordan	11
HUDSON Julian	6
HUDSON Andrew	7
HUDSON Benjamin	12
HUGHES William	10
HUGHES Gareth	11
HUGHES Harrison	12
HUIZING Matthew	12
HULL Tarshi	9
HUME William	12
HUMPHREY Nelson	Κ
HUMPHREY David	Ρ
HUMPHREY David	5
HUMPHREY Philip	5
HUMPHREY Peter	10
HUNNIBELL Sam	11
HURST Ethan	Ρ
HURST Mitchell	4
IKIN Hamish	10
IP Adrian	10
ISLES Andrew	12
JACKSON Stewart	6
JACKSON Charles	12
JAGER Nicholas	K
JAMES Reuben	5
JAMES Liam	6
JAMES Lachlan	9
JAMES Denver	10
JARVIS Benjamin	7
JARVIS Dylan	9
JEANNERET Edward	8
JENKINS Rhys	9
,	
JENKINS Christopher	10
JENKINS Thomas	12
JIANG Robert	5
JIANG Tengxiao (John)	12
JIMMIESON Connor	9
JOHNSON Eden	7
JOHNSON Hugh	9
JOHNSON Oliver	9
JOHNSON Jack	11
JOHNSTON Hamish	4
JOHNSTON Benjamin	7
JOHNSTON Liam	7
JOHNSTON Henry	8
JOHNSTON Hugh	8
-	
JOHNSTON Flinders	10
JOHNSTON Samuel	10
JOHNSTON Thomas	10
JOHNSTONE Edward	6
JOHNSTONE Henry	7
JONES Samuel	3
JONES Torin	3
JONES Samuel	7
JONES Andrew	
JOINES AHULEW	8

BU	JONES Benjamin	8
	-	
BU	JONES Oliver	8
SC	JONES Hugh	9
ST	JONES Thomas	9
ST	JONES Ben	10
SC	JONES Hudson	10
SC	JONES Henry	11
SC	JONES Christopher	12
TH	JOSCELYNE David	11
ST	JUBB Hugh	4
BU	JURY Connor	8
SC	KACIC-MIDSON Lloyd	Κ
BU	KACIC-MIDSON Quinn	1
ΒU	KADZIOLKA Timothy	11
ST	KALMEIJER Bart	12
ST	KAN Myeong-Hae	
	, ,	~
ST	(James)	9
ST	KANG Dong Hun	Ρ
TH	KANG Dae Hun	10
ТН	KAWAGUCHI Koh	4
SC	KEARNEY Patrick	5
ST	KEARNEY Jonathon	8
BU	KEATING Samuel	11
SC	KEECH Alexander	11
ST	KEEP Matthew	12
SC	KELLEHER Daniel	5
BU	KELLEHER Liam	7
ST	KELLY Alec	5
BU	KELLY Duncan	8
ST	KEMP James	1
ТН	KEMP Andrew	3
SC	KENNEDY Thomas	11
		11
ST	KENWORTHY-NEALE	
SC	Alexander	11
TH	KESSELING David	7
ТН	KESSLER Oscar	2
ST	KESSLER Theo	6
ST	KIDDLE Timothy	12
BU	KILBY Elijah	9
TH	KILEY Jordan	3
TH	KILLALEA Hamish	10
ΤН	KIM Kun Woo (Kevin)	7
ТН	KIM Jung Wook (James)	
	-	
BU	KIM Kyun-Won (Richard)	
ST	KIM Seung Won	10
ΒU	KING Thomas	9
TH	KING Daniel	12
SC	KING Harrison	12
SC	KINGSTON Samuel	8
ST	KINNANE Rowan	10
TH	KINNE Alistair	4
TH	KNEVETT Sebastian	7
ΤН	KNEVETT Jacob	8
ST	KOKKORIS Samuel	3
ST	KOKKORIS Maxillanos	5
SC	KOKKORIS Harry	7
SC	KONG Ning (Jason)	10

10

10

11

12

11

11

12

10

11

11

12

11

12

10

10

12

12

10

10

ΤH

ΤH

SC

ΤH

SC

ST

SC

ΒU

ΒU

ST

SC

ΤH

ΤH

ΤH

SC

ST

ΒU

ΒU

SC

SC

SC

ΒU

SC

ST

SC

SC

ΒU

ΒU

ΒU

ΒU

ΒU

ΤH

ST

ΤH

ΤH

ΤH

ΤH

ΒU

ΒU

ΤH

SC

ST

ΒU

ΒU

ΒU

ΤH

ΤH

ΤH

ΤH

ST

ST

ΤH

ΤH

ТΗ

ΤН

KOPFSTEIN Riley	1	BU	LORKIN Liam	5
KORANANAN			LOVELL Richard	11
Sorawis (Nont)	10	BU	LOWRIE Sean	6
KRAIRIKSH Akkrariksh			LOWRIE Jack	8
(Pun)	11	SC	LUBIANA Marco	8
KROON Troy	2	BU	LUCAS James	Ρ
KRUEGER Anthony	8	SC	LUCAS Lloyd	1
KRUSHKA Lachlan	Κ	SC	LUCK Daniel	9
KRUSHKA James	Ρ	SC	LUCK Jack	11
KRUSHKA Christopher	10	ST	LUDEKE Lachlan	Κ
KUMALA Oliver	7	BU	MACDONALD Thomas	12
KUMAR Xabi	К	ТН	MACKAY Alexander	3
KWAN Zheng (Aaron)	3	BU	MACKAY Andrew	8
LAKOSELJAC Bradley	3	ST	MACLACHLAN Thomas	2
LAMB Oliver	4	TH	MACLACHLAN Timothy	4
LAMBERT William	7	ТН	MACLEOD James	10
LANE Charles	, 7	ST	MACMICHAEL William	3
LANE Oliver	9	ST	MACMICHAEL James	6
LANGDON Edward	12	BU	MACMILLAN Bon	10
LARKIN Henry	K	ST	MACMILLAN Max	10
LARKIN Jack	K	ST	MACROSSAN Finian	4
LARKIN Jack	n 1	ST	MACROSSAN FINIAN MACROSSAN Thomas	
	8	TH	MAGNUSSON Sean	6
LARRATT Daniel	-	SC		2
LASKEY Henry	9		MAIHEMUTI	1 1
LAU Tik Wai (Eugene)	10	BU	Nuermaiyingjiang	11
LAW Owen	5	BU	MAJOR Anton	10
LAW Robert	7	BU	MAKHARIA	_
LAW Henry	12	ST	Harshvardhan	7
LEE Declan	4	TH	MAKHARIA	0
LEE Ho Wai (Horace)	9	BU	Yashovardhan	9
LEE Hoi Yuen (Fuhrmen	,	BU	MAMIC Stipe	8
LEE Tae-Heon	12	TH	MANNING Toby	Κ
LELONG James	8	TH	MANNING Lockie	8
LELONG Tomos	12	TH	MANNS Luke	1
LEMON Raiden	3	ST	MANTHEY Michael	10
LENNARD John	10	SC	MANTON Harrison	7
LENNON David	6	BU	MARGVELASHVILI	
LETCHFORD Isaac	12	TH	Georgiy	10
LI Xinhao	12	BU	MARIOS Jack	2
LICKISS William	2	BU	MARIOS Manoli	9
LICKISS Karl	3	BU	MARIOS Emmanuel	11
LICKISS Patrick	7	BU	MARRIOTT Lachlan	Ρ
LIENERT Benjamin	6	BU	MARSH Roman	11
LIEUTIER Zachariah	11	BU	MARSHALL Ryan	4
LIEUTIER Benjamin	12	BU	MARSHALL Oskah	6
LIJAUCO Melfred	10	BU	MARSHALL David	9
LIN Chun-Yi (Jimmy)	12	BU	MARTIN Jordan	10
LING Hong Yin (Wallace	) 8	ST	MARTIN Declan	11
LIU Xiao Yuan (Allen)	10	SC	MARTIN Tobias	12
LOGAN Campbell	Ρ	TH	MATHOT-DEWIS William	۱4
LOGANTAHAN Vinesh	10	TH	MATHOT-DEWIS Oliver	8
LOH Zhi Xiong (Mark)	11	SC	MATHYS Hugh	10
LONGMAN Sebastian	2	ТΗ	MAUMILL Jake	1
LOPA Samuelu	9	BU	MAXWELL Charles	2
LOPA Sebastian	11	BU	MAYNE Dylan	8
LORD William	10	BU	MAZENGARB George	3
LORD David	11	BU	MCCREARY Fraser	10

ST

ΤH

ST

ST

ΤH

ΤH

ΤH

ΒU

ΒU

SC

ST

SC

SC

ST

ST

SC

ST

ST

ΤH

ΤH

ΒU

ΒU

ST

ST

ST

SC

SC

ΒU

ΒU

ΒU

SC

ΤH

ΒU

ΤH

ST

ST

ST

ΤH

SC

SC

ST

ΒU

ΒU

ΒU

ΒU

ΒU

ΒU

ST

ST

SC

ST

ST

ΒU

MCCULLOCH Hamish	5	SC	MONTRISAET			PASCAL Francis	11	ST	REID Jeremy	5	ST
MCCULLOCH Samuel	5	ΒU	Nitiphat (Matoom)	11	ST	PASCOE Harrison			REID Angus	6	SC
MCCULLUM William	6	TH	MOORE Axel	2	BU	(Harry)	11	ST	REID Jack	6	ΒU
MCCULLUM Jack	11	TH	MORGAN Felix	1	TH	PATEL Shifan	6	ST	REISS Hayden	8	SC
MCFARLAND Alexander	r 7	BU	MORGAN Jake	7	TH	PATINIOTIS Julius	K	TH	REISS Jordan	11	SC
MCFARLAND Nicholas		BU	MORONEY Fraser	5	BU	PATINIOTIS Lucien	1	TH	REISZ Oscar	1	ST
MCGRATH Thomas	10	SC	MORONEY James	5	BU	PATINIOTIS Constantine			RESPONDEK Matthew		BU
MCGRATH Jack	12	SC	MORRIS Oliver	11	SC	(Costa)	11	TH	REYNOLDS Lincoln	12	SC
MCGRATH Joseph	12	SC	MOSS Toby	P	TH	PAUL Lachlan	7	TH	RHODES Sam	9	TH
MCINTYRE Jacob	5	TH	MOSS Charles	4	TH	PAUL Sanchit	8	BU	RICHARDSON Lachlan		SC
MCINTYRE Nicholas	5	TH	MOSS Henry	6	TH	PAUL Joseph	11	ST	RICHARDSON Jack	6	BU
MCKAY David	8	SC	MUIR Brentyn	4	SC	PAVLIDES Andonis	6	SC	RICHARDSON Fergus	8	ST
MCKAY Timothy	10	SC	MUNDY Sebastian	K	SC	PAVLOVIC-HOBBA	0	00	RICKARDS Mitchell	4	BU
MCKAY Luke	12	SC	MUNRO Alec	5	SC	Gautier	11	BU	RIETVELD Wesley	8	ST
MCLAREN Oscar	K	TH	MURE Jock	8	BU	PEACOCK Lachlan	4	BU	RILEY Harrison	2	TH
MCLAUGHLIN Max	7	SC	MURE William	11	BU	PEACOCK Huw	12	ST	ROBERTS Luke	6	ТН
MCMAHON James	, 12	ST	MUSKETT Campbell	12	ST	PEARCE Richard	12	TH	ROBERTS Rainier	6	SC
MCMANN Ryan	9	ST	NARULLA Nanak	11	ST	PENNICOTT Brayden	8	BU	ROBERTS Anton	11	SC
MCMASTER Andrew	8	TH	NDIMANYI Phelin	5	TH	PEREIRA John (Jack)	8	ST	ROBERTS Joshua	11	BU
MCMENIMAN John	10	ST	NDIMANYI Ghislain	7	ТН	PETERS Johannes	8	SC	ROBERTS Edward	12	ST
MCMILLAN Shaun	9	BU	NDIMANYI Lievin	8	TH	PETERSON Christopher	-	BU	ROBERTS-THOMSON	ΙZ	51
MCMILLAN Nathan	, 12	BU	NEAL Ryan	9	SC	PHAIR Zachary	1	BU	James	12	ST
MCNEILL James	6	BU	NEGRI Marcus	11	BU	PHILLIPS Luke	8	TH	ROBINSON Benjamin	8	ST
MCQUEEN Timothy	9	ST	NELSON Oliver	11	BU	PHUNTSOK Tenzin	4	ST	ROBOTTOM Lewis	7	ST
MCQUILLAN David	8	BU	NETTLEFOLD Lewis	10	ST	PITT Angus	4	SC	RODRIGUES CSOKAS	/	51
MCQUILLAN David	11	BU	NEWTON Sam	9	TH	PITT Tobias	11	ST	Oliver	7	ST
MCGOILLAN Damet	6	SC	NGUYEN Viet Hoang	7	П	PLUNKETT Nathan	3	BU	ROGERS Beau	, 12	BU
MCSHANE Tobias	8	SC	(Brian)	11	SC	POLGLASE William		TH	ROMERO Joska	12	TH
MCTAGGART Miles	о З	BU	NICHOLS Harry	10	TH	POLLEY Will	4	TH	ROOKE Campbell	P	ST
MCTAGGART Benjamin		TH	NICHOLS Hugh	10	TH	PORTH Sebastian	4	SC	ROSE Ayrton	г 7	ST
MCTAGGART Benjamin MCTYE Jack	4	ST	NOBLE Connor	4	BU	POSLEK Tasman	K	BU	ROSER-FINCH Govinda		SC
MCTYE Tom	4 5	ST	NOBLE Eden	4	BU	POSLEK Tasman POSLEK Lachlan	n 12	BU	ROSS Dimitri	9	TH
MCVILLY Nicholas	10	ST	NOOLE Eden NOONAN Patrick	9	SC	POSTMA Andre	11	BU	ROSSITER Jack	7	SC
MEAD Finn	P	SC	NORRIS Callum	7 9	TH	POWELL Nicholas	3	ST	ROSSITER Jack ROSSITER Kade	4	SC
MEDWIN Oliver		BU	NORRIS James		ST		3 9	TH	ROSSITER Aidan	4 7	ST
MEDWIN Oliver MEDWIN Ethan	K 2	BU	NOYE Lewis	11 10	BU	PRERO-WILSON Oliver PRESCOTT Lachlan	9 3	TH	ROSSITER Aldan ROWAN Erik	11	TH
	2	во ST	NUNN Luca	K	во SC		3 K	TH		12	ТН
MELLAS Yiorgo						PULLIN Benjamin			ROWAN Max ROWBOTTOM Dylan	12	
MELLOR James MERCADO Peter	8	BU	ODDIE Henry	1	ST ST	PULLIN Thomas	P	TH	,		TH
	5	TH	ODDIE Michael	5		PULLIN Angus	3	TH	ROWELL Nicholas	10	SC
MEYER Lachlan	12	SC	ODGERS George	1	ST	PULVER Zachary	3	SC	ROY-CHOWDHURY		ст
MIDDLETON Rory	11	BU	OLDMEADOW Harrison		ST	PURDON Harry	9	TH	Jefferson	P	ST
MIDGLEY Thomas	2	ST	OLIVIER Jonathan	11	SC	QUEALY Fergus	9	SC	RULKER Florian	11	SC
MIDSON Jarrod	12	ST	O'MAY David	11	BU	RALPH Josiah	3	TH	RUNGKITSAWAT	1 1	
MILLHOUSE Flynn	1	SC	OWEN Lawrence (Larry)		TH	RANKIN Kilian	1	TH	Archawin (Jay)	11	BU
MILLHOUSE William	7	BU	OXBROUGH Hugh	4	ST	RANKIN Alden	2	TH	RUSHWORTH Alan	10	ST
MISON Timothy	4	ST	PACE Alexander	6	BU	RANKIN Alexander	2	SC	RUSSELL Nicholas	8	ST
MISON Toby	4	ST	PADGETT James	7	ST	RAO Sajiv	3	ST	RYAN Samuel	4	BU
MISSON Thomas	12	BU	PADGETT Samuel	9	ST	RAO Rajat	9	ST	RYBA Christopher	12	TH
MITCHELL Charles	K	BU	PAINE Lincoln	7	SC	RASMUSSEN Jack	7	BU	SAKALIUK Taylor (Tay)	10	ST
MITCHELL James	1	BU	PAINE Harrison	8	SC	RATHBONE Joshua	10	BU	SANDER William	9	SC
MITCHELL Luke	1	SC	PALMER Liam	10	BU	READ Charles	5	ST	SARGENT Elijah	P	TH
MITCHELL Henry	4	BU	PARK Jun Woo (Brian)	9	TH	READETT David	12	SC	SARGENT Noah	2	TH
MITCHELL Calum	10	TH	PARK Jang Woo (Charlie		BU	REDBURN Lachlan	1	TH	SARGENT Isaac	5	TH
MOHAMAD Hassan	7	BU	PARK Gun Woo (Jack)	12	BU	REEVE Henry	2	BU	SAUL Jack	10	SC
MOHAMAD Ibrahim	7	BU	PARSONS Jack	Ρ	SC	REEVE Hamish	7	BU	SAULT Dylan	12	TH
MOLL Frederic	8	ST	PARSONS-LUCAS	,		REEVES Thomas	3	BU	SAYERS Richard	11	ST
MOLLROSS William	12	BU	Abraham	6	BU	REID Spencer	3	ST	SCAIFE Matthew	8	ST

SCHOOL ROLL

SCHIWY William	8	ST	STEPHENSON William	9	ST	VICKERS Jack	12	SC	WOLDEMICHAEL	-	CT.
SCHMIDT Connor	6	ST	STEVENSON Finn	1	BU	VIRS Harrison	11	TH	Nazrwi	7	ST
SCHMIDT James	7	ST	STEVENSON Declan	6	SC	VO Minh (Mark)	12	SC	WONG Cho Yan (Joseph		SC
SCHUECKER-RUSH	10		STEVENSON Jayden	6	SC	VOSS Hilton	Р	BU	WOO Harrison	9	TH
Nicolas	10	BU	STEWART Archie	K	BU	WAKE Gabriel	P	ST	WOO Isaac	11	TH
SCHWERKOLT-BROWN			STONE Samuel	K	ST	WALCOTT Thomas	6	SC	WOOD Lewis	5	SC
Tom	10	ST	STUDLEY Nicholas	11	SC	WALDRON Matthew	11	TH	WOOD Samuel	8	ST
SCOBIE Asher	9	BU	SUBBARAYALU Rohan	K	TH	WALDRON James	12	TH	WOODCOCK Angus	7	ST
SCOTT James	K	SC	SUMMERS David	9	ST	WALLACE Harrison	5	ST	WOODCOCK Sandy	11	ST
SCOTT Jack	3	BU	SUNG Wen-Chuan			WALLACE Jack	6	ST	WRIGHT Saxon	2	SC
SCOTT Liam	4	ST	(Frank)	12	TH	WALTERS James	Ρ	SC	WURF William	11	ST
SCOTT William	7	SC	SWAIN Owen	11	ST	WANG Collins	3	BU	WYATT Albert	5	TH
SEAMAN Joshua	3	SC	SYMOND Joshua	10	TH	WANG Xishen (Jack)	10	TH	WYATT Oscar	8	TH
SEAMAN Jayson	7	SC	TABOR Nicholas	9	ST	WARD Ryan	11	TH	YANG Gavin	8	ST
SHARMAN William	3	ΤH	TAGLIERI Tom	4	TH	WARRINGTON Mitchell		ST	YANG Jeremy	10	ST
SHEA Benjamin	8	SC	TAIB Russel	6	BU	WATKINS Benjamin	9	ST	YANG Hyun Woo		
SHEA Alec	11	SC	TAN Chek Hui (Glenn)	10	ST	WATSON Dustin	10	TH	(Richard)	11	BU
SHEAHAN Jack	9	TH	TAN Mitchell	10	TH	WATSON Max	11	TH	YELLAP Arjun	K	TH
SHEPPERD Maxwell	6	ST	TAPLIN Lochie	1	BU	WEEDING Jack	4	TH	YEUNG Ho Sum (Hils)	9	TH
SHORT Michael	12	BU	TARANTO James	6	TH	WEIR James	5	TH	YOUNG Thomas	5	ST
SIMONDSON Archie	Κ	TH	TAURIAN Jarra	8	ST	WELCH Sebastian	9	ST	YOUNG Michael	7	ST
SIMPSON Benjamin	8	BU	TAYLOR Ethan	2	SC	WELLING Nicholas	7	BU	YOUNG Samuel	8	SC
SIMPSON Alec	11	BU	TAYLOR Dylan	3	BU	WELLING Ross	10	SC	YOUNG Matthew	9	SC
SIMS Lucas	10	ST	TAYLOR Hamish (Jock)	6	SC	WEST Robert	6	ST	YOUNG Matt	10	ST
SINCLAIR-GIBSON			TENBENSEL Tobias	11	TH	WEST Declan	11	BU	ZANTUCK Aaron	11	ST
Callum	11	SC	TERRY William	8	SC	WEST Henry	11	SC	ZEEMAN Matthew	K	SC
SIU Buddhaholy	9	BU	THOMAS Nicholas	6	TH	WESTBURY Conor	10	ST	ZEEMAN Robert	Κ	SC
SKALICKY Thomas	6	ST	THOMAS Harrison	8	TH	WESTBURY Daniel	10	ST			
SLICER Tazmyn	7	TH	THOMAS Benjamin	9	ST	WHEELER Joel	9	SC			
SLY James	11	ST	THOMAS James	11	TH	WHELLER James	11	ST			
SMART Alexander	K	SC	THOMAS-WILSON	10		WHERRETT Callum	K	BU			
SMART Nicholas	3	BU	Sebastian (Basi)	10	BU	WHITBREAD William	Ρ	ST			
SMEE William	6	BU	THOMAS-WILSON	10		WHITE George	9	SC			
SMEELE Samuel	9	BU	Simeon	12	BU	WHITE William	9	TH			
SMITH William	9	SC	THOMPSON James	8	ST	WHITEHEAD Thomas	9	BU			
SMITH Eugene	10	SC	TILBURY Bradley	11	TH	WHITELEY Campbell	11	ST			
SMITH Lachlan	10	TH	TITCHEN Alexander	4	ST	WHITELEY Thomas	12	ST			
SO Wun Cheung (Tom)	6	BU	TITCHEN David	11	ST	WHITTON Harry	2	ST			
SO Wun Lim (John)	8	BU	TITCHEN Michael	12	ST	WHITTON Jack	2	ST			
SO Man Hon (John)	10	BU	TITHER Ben	10	SC	WHITTON Thomas	11	TH			
SOLTANI Ehsan	12	BU	TOOMBS Oliver	9	BU	WICKHAM Samuel	P	BU			
SOMERVILLE Jack	10	ST	TOWNS Jonathon	4	SC	WIESE Joshua	1	TH			
SONG Tea Yun (Jason)	7	BU	TRAILL Oliver	P 10	TH	WIGGINS Rhett	4	SC			
SONNEVELD James	7	SC	TSIAKIS Thomas	10	TH	WIGHTON Cody	K	SC			
SONNEVELD Thomas	7	SC	TSOI Kin San (Kevin)	6	SC	WILKINSON Jake	1	SC			
	10	SC	TUCKER James	5	BU	WILLIAMS Montgomery		ст			
SOUVLERIS Andreas	9	ST	TURNBULL Lewis	K	ST	(Monty)	P	ST			
SPAULDING Connor	7	TH	TURNER Darian	8	TH	WILLIAMS George	11	BU			
SPEAKMAN Ben	6	SC	TURNER Jackson	8	TH	WILLIAMSON Josh	8	BU			
SPENCE Hamish	5 9	BU	UMFAHRER Matthias USOALII Jesse	10 8	ST	WILLIAMSON Samuel	10 10	BU			
SPURIO Newman		SC тц			SC TLI	WILLIS Sean	10 11	BU ст			
SQUIRES Thomas STADLER William	12 4	TH	VAFAKOS Matthew	7 11	TН тц	WILLOWS Jackson	11 11	ST BU			
STALKER Jock	4 8	BU ST	VAFAKOS George VALLANCE Jack	11 2	TH SC	WILSON Sean WINDHURST Griffin	11 12	во SC			
			VALLANCE Jack VASICEK Joshua	2 12	SU		12 9	SC			
STANWIX Jordan STEPHENS Trent	12 2	ST ST	VASICEN Joshua VASSALLO Zachary	1Z 7	TH	WINTER Riley WISE Joshua	9 K	BU			
STEPHENS Bryan	2	ST	VASSALLU Zachary VAVRA Keiron	, 11	TH	WISE Joshua WITHERS Sebastian	n 8	SC			
JILI IILINJ ULYdii	J	JI		11	111	WITTIENS SENGEIGH	U	50			



Shervin Aflatooni February 1997 to December 2010 Graduated with High Distinction Prefect 10 Senior School Leader: 07, 08, 09 Senior School Leader: 10 Leavers' Dinner Committee House Leader 09, 10 Academic Excellence 10 The Prize for Student Directed Inquiry 10 The OB's Lodge Prize for service to the School 10 A Special Hutchins Prize for Service to ICT 10 Tony W R P Salisbury Prize for Development through Drama 07 Buckland Eagle Award 10 Buckland House Commendation Certificate 10 Buckland House Colours 10 Community Service Learning

09, 10 Senior School Service Award 09 International Student Science Conference HM-07

Chemistry Competition HD 09



Laurens Ahlring June 2009 to December 2010 Academic Effort 10



Ashley Evan Ahokas-King February 2005 to December 2010 Cap Award: Basketball 09, 10 1st Colours: ARF 09 ASX Schools Sharemarket Game PA-07 Year 9 Challenge 07



Dale Lee Ayres February 2009 to December 2010 House Leader: School House Executive 10 Academic Effort 09 1st Colours: ARF 09 Cap Award: ARF 10 ASX Schools Sharemarket Game PA-09, 10



#### Jun Il Bae

February 2007 to December 2010 Senior School Leader: SRC 09 Academic Effort 07, 10 2<sup>nd</sup> Colours: Soccer 09 Year 9 Challenge 07 Australian Mathematics Competition D-08 ASX Schools Sharemarket Game P-08, 09

RACI Tritration Competition M-10



**Eli William Barrett** February 2005 to December 2010 Year 9 Challenge 07



Conrad James Beckett February 2005 to December 2010 Academic Achievement 07 Academic Effort 07, 08 Merit Award: Debating 07 Colours: Soccer 10 CHE Knight Scholarship Australian Mathematics Competition D-06, 07, HD-08 ICAS UNSW English Competition: D-07, C-09

ICAS UNSW Science Competition D 07

Tasmanian Debating Union D-07, P-08 International Student Science

Conference PA-07 Year 9 Challenge 07



#### Jack Mudford Bishop

February 2008 to December 2010 School Leader Badge SRC 09 House Leader: School House Executive - Whip 10 State Representative: Water Polo 08 Captain of Co-curricular Award: Water Polo 10 Cap Award: Water Polo 09, 10; ARF 10; Swimming 10 The Symmons-Wilson Cup for Water Polo 10 Anniversary Tie 10 Honour Badge 10 SATIS Swimming Carnival PA-10 RACI Tritration Competition PA-10



Chemistry Competition PA-10

William John Bowden February 2005 to December 2010 House Leader: School House Executive 10 Merit Award: Rowing 08 Burbury House Development Award 07 State Representative: Rugby 07, 08,09,10 Captain of Co-curricular Award: Rugby 10 Cap Award: Rugby 10 School House Colours 10 Golden Fleece Award 10 CPA Australia Plan Your Own Enterprise SF-10 PricewaterhouseCoopers Business Studies Competition PA-09



Julian Marc Brown

February 2007 to December 2010 Senior School Leader: Year 10 SRC Representative 08;

Tribunal 10 Academic Excellence 08, 10 Academic Achievement 09 The Hutchins School Poetry Writing Award (Snr Div) 09 Cap Award: Rugby 10 1<sup>st</sup> Colours: Water Polo 09 School House Colours 09 Community Service Learning 09 ICAS UNSW English Competition D-07

Tasmanian Debating Union PA-08 Webber Lecture PA-10



#### George Thomas Maxwell Burbury

February 2004 to December 2010 Graduated with High Distinction Prefect 10

House Leader: School House Executive: House Captain 10 Senior School Leader: JS Camp Leader 07; Year 10 SRC Representative 08; JS Lunchtime Assistant 08 Academic Excellence 10 The Stuart Galbraith Memorial Prize 10 Captain of Co-curricular Award: Athletics 10

Cap Award: ARF 09, 10; Rowing 09, 10; Athletics 10

The Denis Butler Prize for Best Sporting Performance:

Rowing 10 The Roy Barnett Memorial Shield for Australian Rules Football 10 The Hutchins School Boat Club Best Clubman 09

Burbury House Sportsman Award 09 State Representative: Touch

Football 07; ARF 08

127

Honour Badge 10 Community Service Learning 09, 10 Senior School Service Award 10 Webber Lecture PA-10



Oliver John Burke February 2004 to December 2010 Graduated with High Distinction School Leader: Tribunal 10 House Leader: House Executive Member 10

School Leader Badge: SRC 09 Academic Excellence 07, 09, 10 The Class of 1994 Prize for English Writing 10 Captain of Co-curricular Award: Rugby 10 2<sup>nd</sup> Colours: Tennis: 08, 09 The Buckland Memorial Prize for European Languages 09 Thorold House Colours 10 Golden Antlers 10 Anniversary Tie 10 Community Service Learning 10 Senior School Service Award 09 ICAS UNSW English Competition C-07,08 Australian Geography

Competition D-10 UTAS Public Lecture Series PA-10 Webber Lecture PA-10



Cameron Thomas Burnett February 1997 to December 2010 Graduated with High Distinction Prefect 10 House Leader: School House Executive: Vice Captain / Assemblies 10 Academic Achievement 09 Academic Excellence 08, 10 The McQuilkin Award Academic Excellence 11/12 09 School House Colours 09 Golden Fleece 10 Community Service Learning 09, 10 Senior School Service Award 09 ICAS UNSW Mathematics Competition C-09 Australian Mathematics Competition D-08, PR-09 Career Specialist Investigation PA-08 Chemistry Competition C-10 Webber Lecture PA-10



Nicholas Craig Cannell February 1997 to December 2010 Graduated with High Distinction Prefect 10 House Leader: Sport 10 Academic Merit 09 Academic Excellence 09, 10 The Prize for Mathematics Applied 3 10 Merit Award: Water Polo 07, 08; Swimming 07 Cap Award: Swimming 08, 09, 09, 10; Water Polo 09, 10 Captain of Co-curricular Award: Swimming 09, 10 State Representative: Swimming 08 The WA Webster Prize for Most Improved Swimmer in Senior School 09 Stephens House Colours 09 Stephens Guinea 10 Community Service Learning 09.10 Senior School Service Award 09

Senior School Service Award 09 SATIS Swimming Carnival PA-10 Webber Lecture PA-10



Timothy (Tim) Malcolm Durham Cannon

February 2003 to December 2010 Graduated with High Distinction Academic Effort 08, 09, 10 1<sup>st</sup> Colours: Cricket 09 Cap Award: Cricket 10 Thorold House Colours 10 Anniversary Tie 10 Community Service Learning 09, 10 Senior School Service Award 10 ICAS UNSW Science Competition C-07 ASX Schools Sharemarket Game PA-10

Year 9 Challenge HM-07 Webber Lecture PA-10



Luke Christopher Chamberlain February 2002 to December 2010 The Prize for Craft 10 Academic Effort 07, 08, 09 Year 9 Challenge HM-07



Shun Yiu (Vito) Chan February 2008 to December 2010 Academic Effort 10 Colours: Soccer 10 CPA Australia Plan Your Own Enterprise Competition PA-08 ASX Schools Sharemarket Game PA-09



Kok-Chang (Gary) Chow February 2003 to December 2010 Academic Effort 10 ASX Schools Sharemarket Game PA-10 Chemistry Competition D-10



Jamie Philip Clark February 2003 to December 2010 Graduated with High Distinction Senior School Leader: JS Camp & Year 9 Leader 07, Year 10 SRC Representative 08 School Leader Badge: SRC 09 Prefect: Stephens House Captain 10 Academic Excellence 07, 09, 10 The Alan Field Payne Prize for loyalty and leadership 10 State Representative: ARF 08, 09,10 Cap Award: Cricket 08, 10; ARF 09, 10; Merit Award: ARF 07 The C W Butler Prize for 1st XI Cricket (Bowling Average) 10 L W Richardson Memorial Prize for Cricket 10 Stephens House Colours 10 Stephens Guinea 10 Community Service Learning 09.10 Senior School Service Award 10 Career Specialist Investigation PA-08 Webber Lecture PA-10



Matthew (Matt) Brendan Clark February 2007 to December 2010 Merit Award: ART 07 Cap Award: Cricket 08, 09, 10; ARF 09, 10 Captain of Co-curricular Award: Cricket 10 State Representative: Cricket 09, 10 CPA Australia Plan Your Own Enterprise PA 10 Webber Lecture PA-10



Timothy (Tim) Peter Clark February 2003 to December 2010 The HMAS Tasmania Award for a student undertaking Maritime Studies 10 The Prize for Excellence in Vocational Education and Training 10

Stephens House Colours 10 Career Specialist Investigation PA-08

Webber Lecture PA-10



Alexander Barrington Colbert February 2005 to December 2010 Academic Achievement 07 Academic Effort 07, 08 Merit Award: Squash 07 Stephens House Colours 09 Colours: Real Tennis 10 Orchestra PA-07 Rock Challenge PA-08



Jeremy Luke Coles February 2003 to December 2010 Senior School Leader: JS Camp Leader 07

The Denis Butler Prize for Best Sporting Performance: Sailing 07 State Representative: Sailing 07 Cap Award: Sailing 10

Science & Engineering Challenge PA-07

ASX Schools Sharemarket Game PA-07

Art Rage PA-09



Aaron James Colles February 2001 to December 2010 Senior School Leader: JS Hockey Coach 08

House Leader: Competitions 10 Southern Representative: Hockey 08, 09

Buckland House Colours 10 Buckland House Eagle Award 10 Buckland House B Badge 10 Science & Engineering Challenge

PA-07 ASX Schools Sharemarket Game PA-07

Active After-School Communities Program (ASC) PA-08



Lewis Albert Connor February 2007 to December 2010 Prefect 10 House Leader: House Vice-Captain 10 Academic Achievement 08, 09 Academic Excellence 10 The Prize for Manufacturing Studies 10 Merit Award: ARF 07 Cap Award: ARF 10

Stephens House Colours 10 ASX Schools Sharemarket Game PA-07, 10 CPA Australia Plan Your Own Enterprise Competition 09



Samuel (Sam) Alexander Counsell February 2006 to December 2010 1<sup>st</sup> Colours: Water Polo 09 Stephens House Colours 10 ASX Schools Sharemarket Game PA-07 Rock Challenge PA-08



Alistair Robert Cowles February 2004 to December 2010 2<sup>nd</sup> Colours: ARF 09 Colours: ARG 10 Year 9 Challenge HM-07



Sarawood (Gab) Dejanipont June 2003 to December 2010 Graduated with High Distinction Prefect 10

Senior School Leader: 2010 Leavers' Dinner Committee House Leader: House Executive 08, 09, 10

School Leader Badge: SRC 09; Thorold House Executive 10 Academic Excellence 08, 09, 10 Service to the International Student Community 10 Burbury House Academic Achievement Award 07, 08 Burbury House Academic Commendation Award 09 The Alec Burbury Award 08 Justice Clark Boarding Scholarship

Community Service Learning 09. 10

Senior School Service Award 09 Year 9 Challenge HM-07 International Student Science Conference PA-07 Chemistry Competition HD 09 Webber Lecture PA-10



Samuel (Sam) Mark Downie February 2005 to December 2010 Graduated with Distinction Prefect: Burbury House Captain 10 House Leader: School House Executive 10 The Sam Beattie Prize for Effort and Achievement 10 Burbury House Service Award 80.09 School House Colours 09 Golden Fleece Award 10 Pak Wilson Award 10 Community Service Learning 09,10 Senior School Service Award 09 Year 9 Challenge HM-07 CPA Australia Plan Your Own Enterprise Winner SW-08 Webber Lecture PA-10



Alexander Thomas Elford February 2005 to December 2010 Graduated with High Distinction Prefect 10 Senior School Leader: Chapel Warden 10 House Leader: House Executive Member / Thorold Vice-Captain 10 Academic Excellence 08, 09, 10 Academic Merit (Year 10) 08 A Special Hutchins Prize for Service to the Chapel 10 Academic Commitment Certificate 09 Captain of Co-curricular Award: Badminton 10 Thorold House Colours 10 Golden Antlers 10 Special Head of House Service Award 10 Community Service Learning 09,10 Senior School Service Award 10 Year 9 Challenge HM-07 CPA Australia Plan Your Own

Enterprise Winner SF-08 Australian Mathematics Competition D-07, 08, 09, 10 National Youth Science Forum PA-10



Dwayne Alan Fitzpatrick February 2008 to December 2010 House Leader 09 Merit Award: Swimming 08 1<sup>st</sup> Colours: Swimming 09 Stephens House Colours 09 CPA Australia Plan Your Own Enterprise Winner PA-08

VALETE 2010



John Hugo Franklin February 2003 to December 2010 2<sup>nd</sup> Colours: Surfing 09 Colours: Rugby 10 Year 9 Challenge PA-07 Webber Lecture PA-10



David James Fry February 2003 to December 2010 Academic Effort 09, 10 Merit Award: Rowing 08 Colours: Rugby 10; Soccer 10 Cap Award: Rowing 10 ASX Schools Sharemarket Game PA-07 CPA Australia Plan Your Own Enterprise Winner PA-08



Charles Joseph Gabriel February 2005 to December 2010 State Representative: Sailing 07 Anniversary Tie 10 Year 9 Challenge HM-07



Samuel (Sam) Michael Gardner February 2001 to December 2010 House Leader: Stephens House Leader 09 Stephens House Colours 09 Webber Lecture PA-10



Won Kee Goh September 2008 to December 2010 Academic Effort 10 RACI Tritration Competition M-10 Chemistry Competition PA-10



Jordan Samuel Graney February 2005 to December 2010 Prefect 10 House Leader: School House Executive: Drama / Cock House Coordinator 10 Academic Excellence 07, 10 The Elise Archer Prize for Drama 10 Cap Award: Dance 10, Drama 10, Musical Theatre 10 Captain of Co-curricular Award: Drama 10 School House Colours 10 Golden Fleece Award 10 Honour Badge 10 SPA Scholarship ICAS UNSW Science Competition D-07 Hobart Dance Eisteddfod F-08, 09 Anniversary Debate F-10 McDonald's Performing Arts Challenge HM 09 Southern Tasmanian Dancing Eisteddfod BM-09



Samuel Stewart Graves February 1997 to December 2010 State Representative: Rugby 07, 09, 10 Stephens House Colours 10 Colours: Rugby 10

Colours: Rugby 10 Year 9 Challenge PA-07 SATIS Swimming Carnival PA-10



**Macaulay Britannicus** Fitzroy Hagan February 2004 to December 2010 Graduated with High Distinction Prefect 10 Senior School Leader: Tribunal 10 Academic Excellence 07, 10 The Gedye Prize for Asian Languages 10 State Representative: Sailing 07 Colours: Soccer 10; Music Instrument 10 Cap Award: Music Vocal 10; Real Tennis 10 Captain of Co-curricular Award: Real Tennis 10; Music Achievement 10 Community Service Learning 09,10 Senior School Service Award 10 Hutchins Big Band PA-07, 09, 10 Clarence Eisteddfod F-08 Senior Choir PA-08, 09, 10 Year 9 Challenge HM-07 Webber Lecture 10



Angus Charles Harvey February 2000 to December 2010 House Leader: Support Whip 10 Academic Effort 09, 10 Colours: Music Instrumental 09, 10 Cap Award: ARF 10 Hutchins Big Band PA-09, 10 Clarence Eisteddfod F-08 Webber Lecture 10



Aarron St Clair Headley February 2005 to December 2010 House Leader Badge: Cultural Portfolio 10 Academic Effort 07, 09, 10 Sharing the P K Rogers Memorial Prize for best all-round sportsman in the School 10 The George Rowntree Memorial Prize for Design Graphics 10 Colours: Tennis 10 Cap Awards: ARF 10; Cricket 10; Sport Shooting 10 The C W Butler Prize for 1st XI Cricket (Batting Average) Anniversary Tie 10 Honour Badge 10 Stephens House Colours 09 Year 9 Challenge HM-07 Career Specialist Investigation PA-08 Australian Geography Competition C-10



Michael Robert Healy February 2001 to December 2010 Academic Effort 10 Academic Achievement 07, 09 ICAS UNSW Science Competition D-07

CPA Australia Plan Your Own Enterprise Competition PA-08 Chemistry Competition D-10



#### James Richard Heron

February 2005 to December 2010 House Leader: School House Executive: Sport 10 Colours: Water Polo 10 Cap Award: Rowing 09, 10; Water Polo 09; ARF 10 The Denis Butler Prize for Best Sporting Performance: Rowing 10

CPA Australia Plan Your Own Enterprise Competition PA-09 PricewaterhouseCoopers

Business Studies Competition PA-09

Australian Geography Competition PA-10



Lucas Charles Hind February 2001 to December 2010 Merit Award: Rowing 07, 08 Colours: Rugby 10; Rowing 10 ASX Schools Sharemarket Game PA-07 Year 9 Challenge HM-07



**Todd Andrew Hind** February 2001 to December 2010 Merit Award: Rowing 07, 08 Colours: Rugby 10; Rowing 10 Year 9 Challenge PA-07



Nathan Lawrence Holloway February 1997 to December 2010 House Leader: House Executive Member 10 Academic Effort 10 Cap Award: Rowing 09, 10 State Representative: Rowing 09 The Denis Butler Prize for Best Sporting Performance: Rowing 10 Thorold House Colours Richard Hewson Award 10 Anniversary Tie 10 Year 9 Challenge HM-07 Pricewaterhouse Coopers

Business Studies Competition PA-09

Australian Geography Competition PA-10



Gus Finley Howe February 1999 to December 2010



**Benjamin (Ben) Robert Hudson** June 2007 to December 2010 Academic Effort 10 Colours: Rugby 10 Year 9 Challenge PA-07 Webber Lecture PA-10



#### Harrison Rex Hughes

February 2005 to December 2010 Graduated with Distinction School Leader Badge: SRC 09 Senior School Leader: Asst Sports Co-ordinator 10 House Leader: House Executive Member 10

Community Service Learning 09, 10

Senior School Service Award 10 ASX Schools Sharemarket Game PA-07

Year 9 Challenge HM-07 Australian Geography Competition PA-10 Webber Lecture PA-10



Matthew John Huizing September 1996 to December 2010 Merit Award: Soccer 07 Colours: Soccer 10 CPA Australia Plan Your Own Enterprise Competition PA-08



#### William (Will) Gregory Hume

February 2004 to December 2010 Senior School Leader: JS Camp Leader 07 Cap Award: Rugby 09, 10 State Representative: Touch Football 07 Science & Engineering Challenge PA-07

Year 9 Challenge HM-07



February 1997 to December 2010 Graduated with Distinction Prefect: Buckland House Captain 10 Senior School Leader: JS Camp Leader 07; JS Hockey Coach 08 House Leader: Executive House Member 09, 10 Academic Effort 09, 10 State Representative: Hockey 07, 08 09 Colours: Water Polo 10 Cap Award: Hockey 10 Buckland House B Badge 09, 10 Buckland House Colours 09, 10 Buckland House Eagle Award 09,10 Buckland House Ian Millhouse Waratah Award 10 Community Service Learning 09,10 Senior School Service Award 10 CPA Australia Plan Your Own Enterprise Competition PA-08 Active AfterSchool Communities Program (ASC) PA-08 Webber Lecture PA-10



Charles (Charlie) Timothy Sandford Jackson

February 2003 to December 2010 Prefect: School Whip 10 House Leader: House Whip 10 Academic Effort 10 Captain of Co-curricular Award: ARF 10; Rowing 10 Stephens House Colours 09 Pricewaterhouse Coopers Business Studies Competition D-09

Year 9 Challenge HM-07



Thomas Henry Jenkins February 2005 to December 2010 Academic Effort 09 2<sup>nd</sup> Colours: ARF 09 Captain of Co-curricular Award: Sport Shooting 09, 10 State Representative: Sport Shooting Junior Skeet Team 10; Sport Shooting Junior Trap Team 10 Australian Representative: Sport Shooting 10

Christian Roberts Sport Shooting Perpetual Trophy 09



Tengxiao (John) Jiang February 2008 to December 2010 Academic Effort 10 Australian Mathematics Competition D-09 Chemistry Competition PA-10



Christopher Graham Jones February 2005 to December 2010 House Leader: Whip 10 Colours: ARF 09, 10 Captain of Co-curricular Award: Sailing 10 Buckland House B Badge 09, 10 State Representative: Sailing 07, 08, 09 Australian Representative: Sailing 09 The Denis Butler Prize for Best Sporting Performance: Sailing 07



**Bart Kalmeijer** February 2010 to December 2010 Colours: Water Polo 10 SATIS Swimming Carnival PA-10



Matthew Lawrence Keep February 2005 to December 2010 Graduated with High Distinction Academic Commitment

Certificate 09 Academic Achievement 08, 09 Academic Excellence 10 Sharing the D A Wilson Prize for Computer Graphics and

Design 10 1st Colours: Squash 09 Colours: Badminton 10 Anniversary Tie 10 Stephens House Colours 10 Community Service Learning 09, 10

Senior School Service Award 10 RACI Tritration Competition HC-09 Chemistry Competition HD-09, D-10



**Timothy (Tim) Robert Kiddle** February 1999 to December 2010 Wrest Point Economics Challenge SW-10



Daniel Rodney King August 2004 to December 2010 The OB's Lodge Prize in memory of Wynne Hay for Craftsmanship in Design in Wood 10 Year 9 Challenge PA-07



Harrison Nelson King October 1999 to December 2010 Graduated with Distinction Senior School Service Award 10 Community Service Learning 10 Webber Lecture PA-10



Edward Henry Langdon

February 2005 to December 2010 Graduated with High Distinction House Leader: Secretary / Admin Assistant 10

Senior School Leader: Year 10 SRC Representative 08 School Leader Badge: SRC 09 Academic Excellence 08, 09, 10 Academic Merit 07, 10 Buckland House Colours 09, 10 Buckland House Eagle Award 09,10 Buckland House B Badge 09, 10 Buckland House Commendation Certificate 10 Colours: Rugby 10 Cap Award: Rugby 09 Anniversary Tie 10 Damien Arnold Memorial Shield for Rugby Best Clubman 10 Senior School Service Award 10 Community Service Learning 09, 10 Webber Lecture PA-10 Year 9 Challenge HM-07



Henry Charles Law February 2005 to December 2010 The Prefects of 1989 Art Award 10 Academic Effort 10 ICAS UNSW English Competition D-07 Art Rage 10 Year 9 Challenge PA-07



Tae-Heon (Tae) Lee February 2009 to December 2010 Academic Effort 10 Australian Mathematics Competition PA-10



Tomos Andrew Lelong February 2004 to December 2010 Graduated with High Distinction House Leader: House Executive Member 10 Senior School Leader: IT Leader 07,08,10 Alan Field Payne Scholarship Academic Merit 07, 08 Academic Excellence 09, 10 Sharing the E M Lilley Memorial Prize for Dux of the School 10 Sharing the OH Biggs Memorial Prize for Mathematics Specialised 10 The Prize for the Dux of Year 11 09 The Watchorn Memorial Prize for English Studies 09 The Prize for Computer Science 09 Anniversary Tie 10 Thorold House Colours 10 Webber Award for Service 10

2<sup>nd</sup> Colours: Badminton 09 Senior School Service Award 10 Community Service Learning 09, 10 Chemistry Competition HD-09, 10 Australian Mathematics Competition D-07, 08, 09, HM 10 Gifted and Talented Conference PA-10 Webber Lecture PA-10



### Isaac Christopher Letchford

June 2007 to December 2010 Melanie Godfrey-Smith Prize 10 Cap Award: Music Instrumental 10; Music Vocal 10 Clarence Eisteddfod M-09; S-10 Hobart Eisteddfod PA-10

Senior Choir PA-08, 09, 10

Xinhao Li February 2005 to December 2010 Academic Excellence 09, 10 Academic Commitment Certificate 08, 09, 10 Colours: Badminton 09, 10, Basketball 09 Anniversary Tie 10 Buckland House B Badge 10 Buckland House Colours 10 Year 9 Challenge HM-07 **RACI** Tritration Competition HC-09 Chemistry Competition D-10 Australian Mathematics Competition D-08; D-09; C-10



#### Benjamin (Ben Hamilton) Lieutier

April 1997 to December 2010 Senior School Leader: 2010 Leavers' Dinner Committee Academic Effort 09 The Prefects of 1989 Award 09 Colours: Soccer 09, 10 Buckland House B Badge 10 Buckland House Colours 10 Buckland House Eagle Award 10 Community Service Learning 09 Art Rage 09



Chun-Yi (Jimmy) Lin February 2008 to December 2010 Academic Effort 09 Academic Achievement 09 The Prize for ESL 10 1<sup>st</sup> Colours: Badminton 08 RACI Tritration Competition M-10



Thomas Stuart Charles MacDonald February 2004 to December 2010 Graduated with High Distinction

Senior School Leader: 10 Leavers' Dinner Committee Senior School Leader: IT Leader 08 House Leader Badge: Academic and Information 10 Academic Excellence 08, 10 The Rev Dr Geoffrey Stephens

The Rev Dr Geoffrey Stephens Memorial Prize for the Best Graduation Essay in Religious Philosophy 10

Cap Award: Music Instrumental 09, 10; Music Vocal 10

Captain of Co-curricular Award:

Music Achievement 10 Stephens House Colours 10 Stephens Guinea 10 Anniversary Tie 10 PH Rockett Scholarship Community Service Learning 09, 10

Clarence Eisteddfod F-08, S-08; F-09, M-09; F-10, S-10 Chemistry Competition MW-10 Australian Mathematics Competition D-07, 09, 10



Tobias (Toby) Robert Laughland Martin February 2005 to December 2010 Senior School Leader: JS Camp Leader 07 House Leader: Deputy: Music & Performing Arts 10 Webber Lecture PA-10



#### Jack William McGrath

February 2005 to December 2010 Prefect 10 House Leader: School House Executive 10 Academic Effort 08, 09 State Representative: Rugby 07, 08,09 The OB Lodge Prize in memory of Wynne Hay for Craftsmanship in Design in Metal 09 Colours: Rugby 10 School House Colours 10 Golden Fleece Award 10 Year 9 Challenge HM-07 Webber Lecture PA-10



Joseph Angus McGrath February 2005 to December 2010 Prefect 10 House Leader: School House Executive 10 School Leader Badge: Flight Club 10 School House Colours 09 The OB Lodge Prize in memory of Wynne Hay for Craftsmanship in Design in Wood 09 Golden Fleece Award 10 Anniversary Tie 10 CPA Australia Plan Your Own

**Enterprise Competition SF-08** 



Luke William McKay May 2003 to December 2010 Academic Effort 09, 10 2<sup>nd</sup> Colours: Tennis 09 Year 9 Challenge HM-09 Chemistry Competition C-09



James Alfred McMahon February 2005 to December 2010 Academic Effort 07, 10 Sharing the P K Rogers Memorial Prize for best all-round sportsman in the School 10 Honour Badge 10 Cap Award: Basketball 09, 10; ARF 10; Athletics 10 Captain of Co-curricular Award: Basketball 10 State Representative: Basketball 09 Stephens House Colours 09

World Challenge PA-08



Nathan Paul McMillan May 2009 to December 2010 Academic Achievement 09 Colours: Hockey 10; Sailing 10



Lachlan Edward McRae Meyer February 2003 to December 2010 Graduated with High Distinction House Leader: School House

Executive 10 Academic Excellence 07 Anniversary Tie 10 Webber Lecture PA-10



Jarrod Tim Midson February 2009 to December 2010 Senior School Leader: Tribunal 09 2<sup>nd</sup> Colours: ARF 09 Community Service Learning 09 Webber Lecture PA-10



Thomas James Misson February 2005 to December 2010 House Leader: Music & Performing Arts 10 Academic Commitment Certificate 08 Academic Effort 09, 10 The Prize for Music Performance 10 Colours: Tennis 09; Badminton 10 Anniversary Tie 10 Buckland House B Badge 01 Buckland House Colours 10 Buckland House Eagle Award 1 Buckland House Commendation Certificate 10 Hobart Eisteddfod PA-10



William Oscar Mollross February 1997 to December 2010 Graduated with Distinction Academic Effort 10 Colours: Hockey 10 Community Service Learning 09, 10 Senior School Service Award 10 Year 9 Challenge HM-07 Alliance Française Competition HM-07 Wrest Point Economics Challenge

SW-10



**Campbell Thomas William Muskett** February 2003 to December 2010 Sharing the Prize for Art

Production 10 Colours: Surfing 10



Lawrence (Larry) Owen February 2005 to December 2010 Graduated with High Distinction Prefect: School Captain 10 Senior School Leader 07, 08 School Leader Badge: SRC 09 House Leader: House Executive Member 09, 10 Academic Excellence 08, 09, 10

Academic Excellence 08, 09, 10 Sharing the E M Lilley Memorial Prize for Dux of the School 10 The Bishop's Presentation to the Captain of the School 10 The Arthur Walch Memorial Prize 10 The Prize for Dux of Year 10 08 The Prize for Dux of Year 9 07 The PA Prize for a boy in Yrs 9-12 who shows character, humility and quiet achievement 08 The NMD Jack Memorial Prize for application, achievement and conduct in Year 11 09 State Representative: ARF 08, 09,10 Colours: Cricket 08, 09; ARF 09; Cross Country 10 Thorold House Colours 10 Golden Antlers 10 Community Service Learning 09, 10 Senior School Service Award 10 International Student Science Conference O-08 Chemistry Competition D-10



Gun Woo (Jack) Park February 2007 to December 2010 PricewaterhouseCoopers Business Studies Competition PA-10



Huw Thomas Peacock February 2005 to December 2010 Academic Excellence 09 State Representative: Athletics 07, 09 Australian Representative: Athletics 08, 09 Captain of Co-curricular Award: Athletics 10 ASX Schools Sharemarket Game PA-10



**Richard Pearce** 

February 2001 to December 2010 Graduated with High Distinction Prefect: Thorold House Captain 10 School Leader Badge: SRC 09 House Leader: House Executive Member 10 Academic Excellence 08, 09, 10 Academic Commitment Certificate 08 The John Player Memorial Prize 10 The Prize for Psychology 10 State Representative: Hockey 08 Cap Award: Hockey 09, 10 Special Head of House Service Award 10 Thorold House Colours 10 Golden Antlers 10 Anniversary Tie 10 L F Giblin Scholarship Community Service Learning 09,10 Senior School Service Award 09 Webber Lecture PA-10



Lachlan Peter Jack Poslek February 2009 to December 2010 House Leader: Academics 10 Academic Excellence 09, 10 Academic Commitment Certificate 09 Sharing the O H Biggs Memorial Prize for Mathematics Specialised 10 The Harry D Hewer Memorial Prize for Accounting 09 Colours: Soccer 09, 10 Anniversary Tie 10 Hutchins School Scholarship AIP Physics Quiz GM-09 RACI Tritration Competition HC-09, PA-10 Chemistry Competition MW-10



**David William Readett** February 2010 to December 2010 House Leader: School House Executive 10 Colours: Cricket 10 Wrest Point Economics Challenge SW-10



Lincoln Geoffrey Reynolds February 2002 to December 2010 CPA Australia Plan Your Own **Enterprise Competition SF-08** 



**Edward Henry Roberts** February 2005 to December 2010 Colours: Athletics 09; Soccer 10; Rowing 10



James Alexander Roberts-Thomson

November 1998 to December 2010

Graduated with High Distinction House Leader Badge: House Executive Member 10 Academic Excellence 07, 08,

09,10 Academic Merit (Year 11) 09 Sharing the Bruce Lachlan Brammall Memorial Prize for

**English Communications 10** State Representative: Tennis 07,09

Captain of Co-curricular Award: Tennis 10 The Hutchins School Tennis Champion 09, 10 Stephens House Colours 09 Stephens Guinea 10 Anniversary Tie 10 PH Rockett Scholarship Community Service Learning 09,10 Senior School Service Awards 10 Year 9 Challenge HM-07 Webber Lecture PA-10



Beau Nicholas Rogers February 2003 to December 2010 Academic Effort 09 Merit Award: Water Polo 07, 08; Swimming 07, 08 Cap Award: Water Polo 09 ASX Schools Sharemarket Game PA-10



Joska Peter Romero May 2008 to December 2010 Academic Effort 10 Colours: Debating 09; Soccer 10 Tasmanian Debating Union PA-09; F-10 Anniversary Debate F-10



Max Thomas James Rowan April 2010 to December 2010 Graduated with High Distinction Academic Effort 10 Sharing the F M Young Memorial

Prize for Geography (Snr) 10 Community Service Learning 10 Webber Lecture PA-10

**RACI Tritration Competition M-10** 



#### Christopher Johnathan Ryba

February 2004 to December 2010 Senior School Leader: IT Leader 08 Academic Excellence 09, 10 Academic Merit (Year 10) 08 Academic Commitment Certificate 09 The O H Biggs Memorial Prize for Mathematics Specialised 10 The O H Biggs Memorial Prize for Mathematics Methods 3 09 D H Harvey Scholarship Harry Messel International Science School IP-09 Tournament of Towns Summer Conference IP-09 Australian Mathematical Olympiad IP-08; SM-09; GC-10 ICAS UNSW Mathematics Competition MW-10 Chemistry Competition MW-10 Webber Lecture PA-10



**Dylan Matthew Sault** February 2009 to December 2010 The Prize for Australia in Asia and the Pacific 10 Academic Excellence 09, 10 State Representative: Hockey 09, 10 Captain of Co-curricular Award: Hockey 10 The Addison McLeod Cup for





**Michael Robert Short** February 2004 to December 2010 Graduated with High Distinction Prefect 10 Senior School Leader: Year 10

SRC Member 08 Senior School Leader: Chairman: 2010 Leavers' Dinner Committee House Leader: Executive Member 10; Music & Performing Arts 09, 10 Academic Excellence 08, 09, 10 Sharing the F M Young Memorial Prize for Geography (Snr) 10 Special Hutchins Prize for Service to the Student Tribunal 10 Captain of Co-curricular Award: Real Tennis 10 Buckland House B Badge 09, 10 Buckland House Colours 10 Crace Calvert Scholarship Community Service Learning 09,10 Senior School Service Award 10 Australian Geography Competition HD-09, 10 Webber Lecture PA-10



Ehsan Soltani February 2007 to December 2010 Graduated with High Distinction Prefect 10 House Leader: Executive Member 10 School Leader Badge: Community Service Chair 10 Academic Effort 08, 09, 10 Academic Merit (Year 11) 09 Buckland House B Badge 09, 10 Buckland House Colours 09, 10 Buckland House Eagle Award 09,10 Community Service Learning 09,10 Senior School Service Award 10

Chemistry Competition D-10 RACI Tritration Competition M-10



**Thomas Ian Squires** February 2005 to December 2010 Graduated with Distinction

VALETE 2010

House Leader: Whip 10; House Executive Member 10 School Leader Badge 10 Academic Effort 09, 10 Thorold House Colours 10 Golden Antlers 10 Tom Kibbey Award 10 Colours: ARF 10 Anniversary Tie 10 Community Service Learning 10 Senior School Service Award 10 Webber Lecture PA-10



VALETE 2010

Jordan Peter Stanwix February 2005 to December 2010 House Leader 08 Colours: Basketball 08, 09; Soccer 10 Captain of Co-curricular Award: Basketball 10



Wen-Chuan (Frank) Sung February 2008 to December 2010 Academic Effort 09 Academic Achievement 09 Chemistry Competition PA-10



#### Simeon Kingsley Thomas-Wilson

February 2005 to December 2010 Graduated with Distinction Prefect 10

House Leader: Executive Member 10

School Leader Badge: SRC Chair 09 Academic Effort 09, 10 Buckland House B Badge 09, 10 Buckland House Colours 09, 10 Buckland House Eagle Award 09, 10 Buckland House Waratah Award 10 Buckland House Commendation Certificate 10 Colours: Soccer 10 Community Service Learning 09, 10 Senior School Service Award 10 Webber Lecture PA-10



Michael (Mike) John Titchen February 1998 to December 2010 Graduated with High Distinction Prefect: School Vice-Captain 10 Senior School Leader 07, 08, 10 House Leader: Stephens House Leader 09 School Leader Badge: SRC 09

Academic Excellence 09, 10 The Hutchins Old Boys' Association Prize 10

Merit Award: Debating 09 The Bruce Lachlan Brammall

Memorial Prize for English Communications 09 The John Cameron Prize for

Academic Interest at Yr 11 09 1st Colours: Debating 10 Stephens House Colours 09 Stephens Guinea 10 Community Service Learning 09, 10 Senior School Service Award 10 Wrest Point Economics Challenge SW-10

AARNET International Video-conferences and Debates PA-10 Webber Lecture PA-10



Joshua John Vasicek February 2005 to December 2010 House Leader: Stephens House Leader 09 House Leader Badge 10 Stephens House Colours 10 Stephens Guinea 10



Jack Darcy Vickers February 2005 to December 2010



Minh Quang (Mark) Vo February 2008 to December 2010 Academic Effort 09, 10



James Richard Waldron February 1997 to December 2010 Graduated with High Distinction Prefect 10 House Leader: House Executive Member 09, 10 Senior School Leader: 2010 Leavers' Dinner Committee Academic Excellence 08, 09, 10 Academic Commitment Certificate 08 Sharing the Henry Martin Memorial Prize for Chemistry 10 Colours: Water Polo 09, 10 Service Award: Water Polo 09; Swimming 10 Community Service Learning 09,10 Senior School Service Award 10

Webber Lecture PA-10



Thomas Stephen Whiteley February 2005 to December 2010 House Leader Badge: Spiritual and Pastoral 10 State Representative: Basketball 09 Colours: Basketball 09, 10; Debating 09 Captain of Co-curricular Award: Debating 10 The WA Webster Prize for Most Improved Swimmer in Senior School 10 The H D Erwin Memorial Trophy for Senior Debater 10 Chemistry Competition HD-09; D-10 Anniversary Debate F-10 Tasmanian Debating Union F-10 SATIS Basketball SW-10 Webber Lecture PA-10



Griffin Douglas Windhurst February 2005 to December 2010 Cap Award: ARF 10



Won Goh, David Readett, Griffin Windhurst, Thomas Jenkins

FIFTH ROW: Thomas Misson, Tomos Lelong, William Mollross, Conrad Beckett, Beau Rogers, Aarron Headley, Thomas Squires, Nathan Holloway, Julian Brown, Harrison Hughes, Christopher Ryba.

FOURTH ROW: Luke Chamberlain, Huw Peacock, Edward Langdon, John Franklin, Daniel King, Edward Roberts, Laurens Ahlring, Matthew Huizing, Lucas Hind, Timothy Kiddle, Todd Hind, Aaron James Heron, Joska Romero, Samuel Gardner

Colles, Benjamin Hudson, Jeremy Coles, Jordan Stanwix

Timothy Clark, Nathan McMillan, Minh (Mark) Vo, Michael Short, Macaulay Hagan THIRD ROW: Jordan Graney, William Bowden, Michael Healy, Bart Kalmeijer, Joshua Vasicek, Tobias Martin, Wen-Chuan (Frank) Sung, William Hume, Dale Ayres, Tae-Heon Lee, Benjamin Lieutier

Sarawood (Gab) Dejanipont, Samuel Counsell, Shun Yiu (Vito) Chan, Dwayne Fitzpatrick, Oliver Burke, Gus Howe, Jun Il Bae, Isaac Letchford SECOND ROW: Jack McGrath, Xinhao Li, Joseph McGrath, Lachlan Meyer, Alistair Cowles, Kok-Chang (Gary) Chow, Matthew Keep, Lachlan Poslek, David Fry, Chung-Yi (Jimmy) Lin, Campbell Muskett,

INSERTS: Eli Barrett, Matthew Clark, Alexander Colbert, Charles Gabriel, Harrison King, Thomas MacDonald, Jarrod Midson, Gun Woo (Jack) Park, Lincoln Reynolds, Dylan Sault (Headmaster), Mr Barrie Irons, Mr Duncan Warlters, Michael Titchen, Andrew Isles, George Burbury, Charles Jackson, Lewis Connor, Nicholas Cannell, Simeon Thomas-Wilson, Samuel Downie, Max Rowan FRONT ROW: Lawrence (Larry) Owen, Jamie Clark, Ashley Ahokas-King, Shervin Aflatooni, Alexander Elford, Ehsan Soltani, Cameron Burnett, James Waldron, Richard Pearce, Mr Warwick Dear

ABSENT: Christopher Jones

